
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN
MEETING IN THE SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR
MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL
OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO
ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260, BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 1, 2015 - 10:00
A.M.

             
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF

ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION
 

 

2. PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A.   Presentation of electronic scanning units and
accessible voting devices by Election Systems
& Software as the Gila County Elections
Department's voting equipment is outdated
and in need of replacement.   (Eric Mariscal)

Presented

 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt
Resolution No. 15-09-01 to name one
unnamed section of road in Globe as W.
Dalmolin Heights. 
(Steve Sanders)

Adopted

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt
Resolution No. 15-09-02 to name one
unnamed road in the Central Heights area,
west of Globe, as N. Gambel Drive. 
(Steve Sanders)

Adopted

 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Adopted



C.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt
Resolution No. 15-09-03 to name one
unnamed road in the Washington Park area,
north of Payson, as E. Rim Estates Trail. 
(Steve Sanders)

Adopted

 

D.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize
the submission of an application for Federal
FY 2015 State Community Development Block
Grant (CDBG) funds in the amount of
$113,169 that will be used for two proposed
CDBG housing rehabilitation projects in Gila
County.  (Malissa Buzan)

Authorized

 

E.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve two
liquor license applications submitted by Sheila
Lynn Marcum for Sheila's Creekside
Steakhouse and Tavern located in Payson, as
follows:  1) Order No. LL-15-03 for a person
transfer of a Series 7 beer and wine license
with an interim permit to operate; and
2) Order No. LL-15-04 for a new Series 12
restaurant license with an interim permit to
operate.  (Marian Sheppard)

Approved

 

4. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt
Resolution No. 15-09-05  to amend Bylaws of
the Eastern Arizona Counties Organization to
allow for the addition of new members, and to
accommodate utilization of new technologies.  
(Jacque Griffin)

Adopted

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Approved



B.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the
amended Intergovernmental Agreement
(IGA) between the counties of Apache, Gila,
Graham, Greenlee, Navajo and Cochise,
Arizona to participate in, support and endorse
the actions and decisions of the Eastern
Arizona Counties Organization (ECO) which
are in compliance with the adopted Bylaws of
the organization; authorize the Chairman to
sign the IGA; and, authorize the appointed
member to sign the updated signature page of
the Bylaws.  (Jacque Griffin)

Approved

 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt
Resolution No. 15-09-04
respectfully requesting the United States
Congress to release the balance of funding for
the Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILT) program
for Fiscal Year 2015 without delay,
and provide full mandatory funding to the
PILT program for Fiscal Year 2016 and into
the future.  (Don McDaniel)

Adopted

 

D.   (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County
Board of Supervisors and convene as the
Gila County Library District Board of
Directors.) Information/Discussion/Action to
approve Library Service Agreements for Globe,
Hayden, Isabelle Hunt (Pine), Miami, Payson,
San Carlos, Tonto Basin, and Young public
libraries for the period July 1, 2015, to June
30, 2016.  (Jacque Griffin)

Approved

 

E.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize
the submission of a State Grants-In-Aid
Application by the Gila County Library District
to the Arizona State Library, Archives and
Public Records, Library Development Division,
for fiscal year 2016 in the amount of $23,000

Authorized



designated to Gila County for the period July
1, 2015, through June 30, 2016.  (Jacque
Griffin) (Motion to adjourn as the Gila
County Library District Board of Directors
and convene as the Gila County Board of
Deposit.)

 

F.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 011312-1
Primary Banking Service with JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A. to extend the contract term
for a two-year period, from July 1, 2015 to
June 30, 2017, at the rates established and
agreed to pursuant to Contract No. 011312-1.  
(Jeff Hessenius and Debora Savage) (Motion
to adjourn as the Gila County Board of
Deposit and reconvene as the Gila County
Board of Supervisors.)

Approved

 

G.   Information/Discussion/Action to review all
bids submitted for Invitation for Bid No.
032315-1 - Copper Administration
Building-Interior Renovation; award to the
lowest, most responsible and responsive
qualified bidder; and authorize the Chairman's
signature on the award contract for the
winning bidder for an amount of $1,038,000,
with the project to be substantially complete
within 150 calendar days from the Notice to
Proceed date, with final completion no later
than 30 days from date of substantial
completion.  (Jeff Hessenius and Steve
Sanders)

Tabled

 

5. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any
matter on the Consent Agenda will be
removed from the Consent Agenda and
discussed and voted upon as a regular
agenda item upon the request of any

 



member of the Board of Supervisors.)
 

A.   Approval of Amendment No. 1 to an
Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
ADES15-089113) between the Arizona
Department of Economic Security and Gila
County Division of Community Services,
Community Action Program, to provide case
management and community services to
eligible Gila County residents in the amount of
$11,250 which will increase the
reimbursement ceiling to $301,731 for the
period of July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2020.

Approved

 

B.   Approval to extend the term of a contract with
Blackstone Security Services, Inc., whereby
the contractor will provide armed security
manpower for the safety of the public and
employees at the Gila County Globe
Courthouse in the amount of $82,750 for one
additional year, from September 16, 2015,
to September 15, 2016.

Approved

 

C.   Approval of Amendment No. 4 to Professional
Services Contract No. 062813-Medical
Examiner Services between Gila County
and Mark A. Fischione, M.D., PLC to increase
the current contract amount from $70,000 to
$110,000 for the contract term from January
7, 2015, to January 6, 2016.

Approved

 

D.   Approval of an Application for Extension of
Premises/Patio Permit submitted by Randy D.
Nations to temporarily extend the premises
where liquor is permitted to be sold at the
Sidewinders Tavern & Grill, which is located
in Pine, Arizona at an event to be held on
September 19, 2015.

Approved



 

E.   Approval of a Special Event Liquor License
Application submitted by Gila County Fair,
Inc. to serve liquor at an event to be held at
the Gila County Fairgrounds in Globe on
September 17-20, 2015.

Approved

 

F.   Acknowledgment of the July 2015 monthly
activity report submitted by the Globe
Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Acknowledged

 

G.   Acknowledgment of the July 2015 activity
report submitted by the Payson Regional
Justice of the Peace's Office.

Acknowledged

 

H.   Acknowledgment of the July 2015 monthly
activity report submitted by the Payson
Regional Constable's Office.

Acknowledged

 

I.   Acknowledgment of the July 2015 and
September 2014 monthly activity reports
submitted by the Globe Regional Constable's
Office.

Acknowledged

 

J.   Acknowledgment of the July 2015 monthly
activity report submitted by the Clerk of the
Superior Court's Office.

Acknowledged

 

K.   Acknowledgment of the July 2015 monthly
activity report submitted by the Recorder's
Office.

Acknowledged

 

L.   Approval of the August 17, 2015, Board of
Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Approved

 

M.   Acknowledgment of the Human Resources Acknowledged



M.   Acknowledgment of the Human Resources
reports for the weeks of August 4, 2015,
August 11, 2015, August 18, 2015, and
August 25, 2015.

Acknowledged

 

N.   Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000
which have been approved by the County
Manager for the weeks of August 3, 2015,
through August 7, 2015; and August 10, 2015
through August 14, 2015.

Acknowledged

 

O. Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the
weeks of August 25, 2015, and September 1, 2015.

Approved

 

6. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is
held for public benefit to allow individuals to
address the Board of Supervisors on any issue
within the jurisdiction of the Board of
Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the
agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona
Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the
conclusion of an open call to the public,
individual members of the Board of
Supervisors may respond to criticism made by
those who have addressed the Board, may ask
staff to review a matter or may ask that a
matter be put on a future agenda for further
discussion and decision at a future date.

No Comments

 

7. At any time during this meeting pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members of the Board of
Supervisors and the County Manager may
present a brief summary of current events. No
action may be taken on issues presented.

Presented

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)



IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)
425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL
7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO
(928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING
LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)((3)

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE
MEETING



   

ARF-3327     Presentation Agenda Item      2. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  

Submitted For: Eric Mariscal, Director 
Submitted By: Eric Mariscal, Director, Elections Department
Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Election Equipment Demonstration by Election Systems & Software.

Background Information
The Help America Vote Act of 2002 ( HAVA) began the transition to electronic
scanning units and accessible voting devices.  The Gila County Elections
Department received HAVA funding and began acquiring the necessary
equipment in 2003 to fulfill the requirements of HAVA.  The quoted lifespan of
the equipment was stated at ten years.  The Gila County Elections Department
is seeking to upgrade equipment as the current equipment has begun to show
signs of deterioration.  Election Systems and Software is one vendor that
provides the needed equipment to support election day activities in Gila
County.  The Board of Supervisors has provided direction that a move towards
"Vote Centers" is a method  in which citizens will be provided with efficient
service that will be more cost effective.  In order to establish the "Vote Center"
model this necessitates new elections equipment and software. 

Evaluation
Daniel Clark, Regional Sales Manager of Elections Systems and Software, will
be providing the Board of Supervisors with a demonstration of the Election
Systems and Software product line.

Conclusion
This presentation will be advantageous to the Board of Supervisors to help in its
decision making process with regard to the procurement of new voting
equipment and software. 

Recommendation
It is recommended that Mr. Clark present the Election Systems and Software
equipment.

Suggested Motion
Presentation of electronic scanning units and accessible voting devices by



Presentation of electronic scanning units and accessible voting devices by
Election Systems & Software as the Gila County Elections Department's voting
equipment is outdated and in need of replacement.  (Eric Mariscal)

Attachments
Electronic Pollbook Information
Key Features & Benefits











































   
ARF-3317     Public Hearing      3. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Tom Homan, GIS Supervisor, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 15-09-01 to name a previously unnamed section of road in
Globe as W. Dalmolin Heights.

Background Information
Rural Addressing was contacted by Gila County resident Frankie
Dalmolin to name an unnamed private easement through family 
property.  Mr. Dalmolin is the owner of two of four parcels requiring
access from the unnamed easement.  A petition was submitted with the
suggested name of W. Dalmolin Heights.  Rural Addressing approved the
name.

Evaluation
The road to be named is a private unnamed easement that extends
westerly off of Ruiz Canyon Rd.  The section is identified as PT E 1/2 SEC
36 T1N R15E and is located within Supervisorial District 2 of Supervisor
Michael Pastor. 

The County Rural Addressing Analyst determined the location and
appropriately mapped the roadway.  A map is attached.

Conclusion
Per Gila County Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance No.
11-03, a notice of public hearing was mailed to the property owners. 
Included in the public notice was the proposed name of W. Dalmolin
Heights, map of the area, date for filing objections and the date scheduled
for the public hearing before the Board of Supervisors.  There were no
objections received.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Director recommends that the Board of



The Public Works Division Director recommends that the Board of
Supervisors adopt Resolution No. 15-09-01 naming a previously unnamed
road in Globe as W. Dalmolin Heights.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 15-09-01 to name
one unnamed section of road in Globe as W. Dalmolin Heights. 
(Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Resolution No. 15-09-01
PUBLIC NOTICE-W Dalmolin Heights
Signed Petition Dalmolin Heights
Resident Notification Dalmolin Heights
Map



 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-09-01 

      

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 

COUNTY, ARIZONA NAMING ONE ROAD IN THE GLOBE AREA TO 

BE CALLED W. DALMOLIN HEIGHTS 
 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors initially adopted the Gila County Street 

Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance on April 1, 1991, and last amended it on June 28, 

2011; and,  

 

WHEREAS, street names are assigned in order to implement the uniform assignment of 

property numbers and avoid duplicate names that would hinder emergency services and the 

safety of Gila County residents; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Article 8, Section 806, of the Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance 

provides guidelines for the naming of existing unnamed streets; and,  

 

WHEREAS, the following street name and location substantially complies with the provisions 

of Article 8 of the Ordinance: 

 

W. DALMOLIN HEIGHTS – PT W 1/2 SEC 36 T1N R15E 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors does 

officially recognize the street name set forth above to become effective in conjunction with the 

numbering of properties along said street and directs the appropriate County departments to 

incorporate this name uniformly on all maps of Gila County.   

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of September 2015. 

 

Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

__________________________  ________________________ 

Marian Sheppard, Clerk   Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

__________________________ 

Jefferson R. Dalton 

Deputy Gila County Attorney 

Civil Bureau Chief 



PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Gila County Board of Supervisors will 
hold a public hearing for the naming of an unnamed road in the Globe area.  The road 
will be named to: W Dalmolin Heights 
 
To file an objection to the proposed name change, residents must file an alternative 
petition in writing to the Rural Addressing Department by Tuesday, August 10th, 2015 
per Gila County Street Naming Ordinance No. 11-03. 
 
The public hearing to name W Dalmolin Heights is scheduled for September 1st, 2015 
at 10:00 a.m., or thereafter, located at the Gila County Courthouse, 1400 East Ash 
Street, Globe, AZ. 
 
Inquiries and objections may be directed to: 
Tom Homan, Rural Addressing Supervisor 
745 N Rose Mofford Way 
Globe, AZ 85501 
1(928) 402-8515 
 

 











Voice: (928) 402-8515 thoman@gilacountyaz.gov Fax: (928) 425-8104 

 
 
July 21, 2015 
 
Dear Gila County Resident: 
 
This letter will serve as written notification that the Gila County Rural Addressing Department 
has received a petition with over 75% of the property owners’ signatures to name the road 
adjacent to your property that will be called “W Dalmolin Heights.” 
 
Our purpose is to comply with the Gila County Street Naming and Property Numbering 
Ordinance No 11-03.  In order to accomplish this, Gila County has included a public notice 
informing you of the proposed name of W Dalmolin Heights, a sketch of the road, a date for 
filing objections and the date scheduled for the naming to be presented to the Gila County Board 
of Supervisors.   
 
If you prefer an alternative name, 75% of property owners adjacent to the easement must submit 
a signed petition.  Petitions are available online at www.gilacountyaz.gov or by contacting our 
office. Alternative petitions, suggestions and objections must be received in writing by August 
10, 2015. 
 
Please feel free to contact our Rural Addressing Analyst, Tom Homan at (928) 402-8510 with 
any questions or concerns.  Our offices are open from 7:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday through 
Thursday.   
 
Thank you for taking the time to review this letter.   
 
 
Respectfully, 
 

 
 
Tom Homan 
Rural Addressing Supervisor 
 

   

TOMMIE MARTIN, District I 
P.O. Box 2297,  Payson AZ 85547  DON E. McDANIEL Jr. 

County Manager 
  
MICHAEL A. PASTOR, District II 
1400 East Ash Street, Globe AZ 85501 

STEVE SANDERS 
Director 

  
JOHN D. MARCANTI, District III  
1400 East Ash Street, Globe AZ 85501 

 
 

   
Gila County Public Works Division 

9-1-1 Rural Addressing  
745 N. Rose Mofford Way, Globe Arizona 85501 

 

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/




   
ARF-3318     Public Hearing      3. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Tom Homan, GIS Supervisor, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 15-09-02 to name a previously unnamed road located in
the Central Heights area, west of Globe, as N. Gambel Drive.

Background Information
Rural Addressing was contacted by Bob Urioste regarding the naming of
an unnamed road segment that provides access to his property. Mr.
Urioste completed a petition of affected residents with the proposed name
of N. Gambel Drive. Property
owners were mailed notification letters and a copy of the public notice. No
objections to the proposed road name were received.

Evaluation
The unnamed section of road is identified as PT SW1/4 SEC 22 T1N R15E
branching north off of Roberts Drive in the Central Heights area, west of
Globe, within Supervisorial District 2.  

The County Rural Addressing Analyst determined the location and
appropriately mapped the roadway.  A map is attached.   

Conclusion
Per Gila County Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance No.
11-03, a public notice was mailed.  Included in the public notice was the
proposed name of N. Gambel Drive, map of the area, date for filing
objections and the date scheduled for the public hearing before the Board
of Supervisors.  There were no objections received.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Director recommends that the Board of
Supervisors adopt Resolution No. 15-09-02 naming a previously unnamed
road in the Central Heights area, west of Globe, as N. Gambel Drive.



Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 15-09-02 to name
one unnamed road in the Central Heights area, west of Globe, as N.
Gambel Drive. 
(Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Resolution No. 15-09-02
Public Notice
Letter to Resident
Petition



 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-09-02 

      

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 

COUNTY, ARIZONA NAMING ONE ROAD IN THE CENTRAL 

HEIGHTS AREA, WEST OF GLOBE, TO BE CALLED N. GAMBEL 

DRIVE 
 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors initially adopted the Gila County Street 

Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance on April 1, 1991, and last amended it on June 28, 

2011; and,  

 

WHEREAS, street names are assigned in order to implement the uniform assignment of 

property numbers and avoid duplicate names that would hinder emergency services and the 

safety of Gila County residents; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Article 8, Section 806, of the Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance 

provides guidelines for the naming of existing unnamed streets; and,  

 

WHEREAS, the following street name and location substantially complies with the provisions 

of Article 8 of the Ordinance: 

 

N. GAMBEL DRIVE – PT SW 1/4 SEC 22 T1N R15E 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors does 

officially recognize the street name set forth above to become effective in conjunction with the 

numbering of properties along said street and directs the appropriate County departments to 

incorporate this name uniformly on all maps of Gila County.   

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of September 2015. 

 

Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

__________________________  ________________________ 

Marian Sheppard, Clerk   Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

__________________________ 

Jefferson R. Dalton 

Deputy Gila County Attorney 

Civil Bureau Chief 

 



PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Gila County Board of Supervisors will 
hold a public hearing for the naming of an unnamed road in the Globe area.  The road 
will be named to: N Gambel Drive 
 
To file an objection to the proposed name change, residents must file an alternative 
petition in writing to the Rural Addressing Department by Tuesday, August 10th, 2015 
per Gila County Street Naming Ordinance No. 11-03. 
 
The public hearing to name N GAMBEL DRIVE is scheduled for September 1st, 2015 
at 10:00 a.m., or thereafter, located at the Gila County Courthouse, 1400 East Ash 
Street, Globe, AZ. 
 
Inquiries and objections may be directed to: 
Tom Homan, Rural Addressing Supervisor 
745 N Rose Mofford Way 
Globe, AZ 85501 
1(928) 402-8515 
 

 



Voice: (928) 402-8515 thoman@gilacountyaz.gov Fax: (928) 425-8104 

 
 
July 21, 2015 
 
Dear Gila County Resident: 
 
This letter will serve as written notification that the Gila County Rural Addressing Department 
has received a petition with over 75% of the property owners’ signatures to name the road 
adjacent to your property that will be called “N Gambel Drive.” 
 
Our purpose is to comply with the Gila County Street Naming and Property Numbering 
Ordinance No 11-03.  In order to accomplish this, Gila County has included a public notice 
informing you of the proposed name of N. Gambel Drive, a sketch of the road, a date for filing 
objections and the date scheduled for the naming to be presented to the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors.   
 
If you prefer an alternative name, 75% of property owners adjacent to the easement must submit 
a signed petition.  Petitions are available online at www.gilacountyaz.gov or by contacting our 
office. Alternative petitions, suggestions and objections must be received in writing by August 
10, 2015. 
 
Please feel free to contact our Rural Addressing Analyst, Tom Homan at (928) 402-8510 with 
any questions or concerns.  Our offices are open from 7:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday through 
Thursday.   
 
Thank you for taking the time to review this letter.   
 
 
Respectfully, 
 

 
 
Tom Homan 
Rural Addressing Supervisor 
 

   

TOMMIE MARTIN, District I 
P.O. Box 2297,  Payson AZ 85547  DON E. McDANIEL Jr. 

County Manager 
  
MICHAEL A. PASTOR, District II 
1400 East Ash Street, Globe AZ 85501 

STEVE SANDERS 
Director 

  
JOHN D. MARCANTI, District III  
1400 East Ash Street, Globe AZ 85501 

 
 

   
Gila County Public Works Division 

9-1-1 Rural Addressing  
745 N. Rose Mofford Way, Globe Arizona 85501 

 

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/




   
ARF-3319     Public Hearing      3. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Tom Homan, GIS Supervisor, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 15-09-03 to name a previously unnamed road located in
the Washington Park area, north of Payson, as E. Rim Estates Trail.

Background Information
Rural Addressing was contacted by Fred Wolfe in 2014 requesting that
the road be named as there are a number of properties served by the
road. Without there being a road name, finding properties was difficult for
friends, deliveries and emergency services. Rural Addressing concurred
with the need and mailed notification letters with the public notice with
the suggested name. No objection to the proposed road name was received
from the property owners.

Evaluation
The unnamed road is identified as PT E 1/2 SEC 23 T12N R 10E
branching east off of Forest Service Rd 32 in the Washington Park area
within Supervisorial District 1.  

The County Rural Addressing Analyst determined the GPS location and
appropriately mapped the roadway.  A map is attached.   

Conclusion
Per Gila County Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance No.
11-03, a public notice was mailed.  Included in the public notice was the
proposed name of E. Rim Estates Trail, map of the area, date for filing
objections and the date scheduled for the public hearing before the Board
of Supervisors.  There were no objections received.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Director recommends that the Board of



The Public Works Division Director recommends that the Board of
Supervisors adopt Resolution No. 15-09-03 naming a previously unnamed
road in the Washington Park area, north of Payson, as E. Rim Estates
Trail.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 15-09-03 to name
one unnamed road in the Washington Park area, north of Payson, as E.
Rim Estates Trail.  (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Resolution No. 15-09-03
Public Notice
Second Letter - Notification
First Letter to Residents
Map



 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-09-03 

      

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 

COUNTY, ARIZONA NAMING ONE ROAD IN THE WASHINGTON 

PARK AREA, NORTH OF PAYSON, TO BE CALLED E. RIM ESTATES 

TRAIL 
 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors initially adopted the Gila County Street 

Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance on April 1, 1991, and last amended it on June 28, 

2011; and,  

 

WHEREAS, street names are assigned in order to implement the uniform assignment of 

property numbers and avoid duplicate names that would hinder emergency services and the 

safety of Gila County residents; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Article 8, Section 806, of the Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance 

provides guidelines for the naming of existing unnamed streets; and,  

 

WHEREAS, the following street name and location substantially complies with the provisions 

of Article 8 of the Ordinance: 

 

E. RIM ESTATES TRAIL – PT E ½ SEC 23 T12N R10E 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors does 

officially recognize the street name set forth above to become effective in conjunction with the 

numbering of properties along said street and directs the appropriate County departments to 

incorporate this name uniformly on all maps of Gila County.   

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of September 2015. 

 

Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

__________________________  ________________________ 

Marian Sheppard, Clerk   Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

__________________________ 

Jefferson R. Dalton 

Deputy Gila County Attorney 

Civil Bureau Chief 

 



PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Gila County Board of Supervisors will 
hold a public hearing for the naming of an unnamed road in the Payson area.  The road 
will be named to: E Rim Estates Trail 
 
To file an objection to the proposed name change, residents must file an alternative 
petition in writing to the Rural Addressing Department by Tuesday, August 10th, 2015 
per Gila County Street Naming Ordinance No. 11-03. 
 
The public hearing to name E Rim Estates Trail is scheduled for September 1st, 2015 
at 10:00 a.m., or thereafter, located at the Gila County Courthouse, 1400 East Ash 
Street, Globe, AZ. 
 
Inquiries and objections may be directed to: 
Tom Homan, Rural Addressing Supervisor 
745 N Rose Mofford Way 
Globe, AZ 85501 
1(928) 402-8515 
 

 



Voice: (928) 402-8515 thoman@gilacountyaz.gov Fax: (928) 425-8104 

 
 
July 21, 2015 
 
Dear Gila County Resident: 
 
This letter will serve as written notification that the Gila County Rural Addressing Department is 
in the process of naming a road adjacent to your property.   
 
Our purpose is to comply with the Gila County Street Naming and Property Numbering 
Ordinance No 11-03.  In order to accomplish this, our office has suggested the name of “E Rim 
Estates Trail”.  A public notice informing you of the proposed name, a sketch of the road, a date 
for filing objections and the date scheduled for the naming to be presented to the Gila County 
Board of Supervisors has been enclosed. 
 
If you prefer an alternative name, 75% of property owners adjacent to the easement must submit 
a signed petition.  Petitions are available online at www.gilacountyaz.gov or by contacting our 
office. Alternative petitions, suggestions and objections must be received in writing by August 
10, 2015. 
 
Please feel free to contact our Rural Addressing Analyst, Tom Homan at (928) 402-8515 with 
any questions or concerns.  Our offices are open from 7:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday through 
Thursday.   
 
Thank you for taking the time to review this letter.   
 
 
Respectfully, 
 

 
 
Tom Homan 
Rural Addressing Supervisor 
 

   

TOMMIE MARTIN, District I 
P.O. Box 2297,  Payson AZ 85547  DON E. McDANIEL Jr. 

County Manager 
  
MICHAEL A. PASTOR, District II 
1400 East Ash Street, Globe AZ 85501 

STEVE SANDERS 
Director 

  
JOHN D. MARCANTI, District III  
1400 East Ash Street, Globe AZ 85501 

 
 

   
Gila County Public Works Division 

9-1-1 Rural Addressing  
745 N. Rose Mofford Way, Globe Arizona 85501 

 

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/


Voice: (928) 402-8597 smcgill@gilacountyaz.gov Fax: (928) 425-8104 

 
 
March 3, 2015 
 
Dear Gila County Resident: 
 
Gila County is in the process of naming a road in your area.  A map has been included showing the location of the 
road to be named.  Our purpose is to comply with the Gila County Street Naming and Property Numbering 
Ordinance No. 11-03 and the Gila County Enhanced 911 System. 
 
In order to accomplish this, our office has offered the below suggestions for the road that serves your property.   
 

E Rim Estates Trl 
E Rim Mountain Trl 
E Rim Mountain Est 

 
Please sign and return the enclosed petition and specify any preference of the three by March 17, 2015.  If you prefer 
a different road name, you must provide our office with alternative petition in writing also by March 17, 2015. 
Petitions must have signatures of at least 75% of property owners who own property adjacent to the road being 
named.  I have enclosed a blank petition.  It is also recommended to work with your neighbors to suggest a road 
name agreeable to all.  Please note the road naming guidelines in section 801 of Ordinance 11-03.  The above 
suggestions are 16 characters including spaces, excluding the prefix. 
 
You will receive notification of the final name, deadline to file objections and review date set to go before the Board 
of Supervisors.   
 
Please feel free to contact our Rural Addressing Analyst, Steve McGill at (928) 402-8597 with any questions or 
concerns.  Our offices are open from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday.   
 
Thank you for taking the time to review this letter.   
 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
Steve McGill 
Rural Addressing Analyst 
 

   

TOMMIE MARTIN, District I 
P.O. Box 2297,  Payson AZ 85547  DON E. McDANIEL Jr. 

County Manager 
  
MICHAEL A. PASTOR, District II 
1400 East Ash Street, Globe AZ 85501 

STEVE STRATTON 
Director 

  
JOHN D. MARCANTI, District III  
1400 East Ash Street, Globe AZ 85501 

STEVE SANDERS 
Deputy Director 

   
Gila County Public Works Division 

9-1-1 Rural Addressing  
745 N. Rose Mofford Way, Globe Arizona 85501 

 





   

ARF-3337     Public Hearing      3. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan 
Submitted By: Leitha Griffin, Administrative Assistant, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division Division: Administration
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

2015-2016 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Community Development Block Grant Application Federal FY 2015.

Background Information
The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program was started with the Housing and
Community Development Act of 1974 where the Department of Housing and Urban Development was to
distribute funds to entitlement communities for projects that would develop viable communities, provide
decent housing, suitable living environments and expand economic opportunities.  It wasn't until 1981
that each state received an allocation on behalf of the non-entitlement communities and in 1982 funds
were distributed and administered from the Arizona Department of Housing to the four rural Councils of
Government within Arizona.

Each year an eligible application is submitted by communities to the Arizona Department of Housing for
projects that must meet at least one of the following National Objectives; benefiting an area that is 51%
or more low to moderate income; prevent or eliminate slum and blight; or address an urgent need due to
a natural disaster or human health hazard. 

Evaluation
This is an application to submit for Community Development Block Grant Regional Account funds.
Federal Funds are funneled through the Arizona Department of Housing and the Central Arizona
Association of Government. This is a yearly regional fund source allocated to cities, towns and counties
within the State of Arizona. Funding, if awarded, would be in the amount of $113,169.

Conclusion
If approval is granted and funding awarded, the Community Action, Housing services Program will be
able to provide services in the form of single family home owner rehabilitation to two eligible citizens
residing in Gila County.  

Recommendation
The Community Services Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this application.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the submission of an application for Federal FY 2015 State
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds in the amount of $113,169 that will be used for
two proposed CDBG housing rehabilitation projects in Gila County.  (Malissa Buzan)

Attachments



CDBG App2015
Housing Services Guidelines 2015
CDBG Public Hearing Notice 2015
CDBG Disclosure Report 2015



Arizona 
Department 
of Housing FORMl 

FY FFY15 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
APPLICATION COVER SHEET 

18] 
A. Regional Account (RA) COG: CAG D B. State Special Project (SSP) 

D C. Colonias D D. NRS: Date approved: I I Approval on page: 

1. Applicant and DUNS Number: 2. Legislative/ Congressional Districts: 

Gila County 074462102 1/5 

3. Address (with 9-digit zip code): 5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 
200, Globe, Arizona 85501-4430 

N.~~~ nf1 /\ ~~l;n~~~ I ~n~~~..:I ln• (:;jh 

4. Contact Person/Title (Grantee) 5. Contact Person/Title (COG/Other): 

Malissa Buzan/Director Leitha Griffin/ Administrative Assistant 

Phone/Fax/Email: 928-425-7631/928-425- Phone/Fax/Email: 928-402-8697 /lgriffin@co.gila.az. us 
9468/mbuzan@co.gila.az.us 

6. Complete the following information for the activities for which you are requesting funds in a single contract (maximum of 2 
including Administration). Complete an additional Form 1 for each additional activity included in the application. Item d: Fund 
types are (1) Leverage, (2) Program Income, or (3) Other. 

a. Activity Name b. CDBG Funds c. Non-CDBG Funds d.FundType e. Total Funds 

1. Administration 20,370.42 CDBG 20,370.42 

2. OOHR 92,798.58 CDBG 92 798.58 

Total CDBG Funds Requested for this Project (Activities #1 and #2): $ 113,169.00 

8. List all oilier activities applied for this fiscal year. Indicate by IE.I which application includes the required general information 
(Certifications, Disclosure Report, etc.) and administration funds. Note that there willbe a separate contract for each activity 
except Administration. 

Activity Name Amount (CDBG $ only) CDBG USE ONLY - Contract No. 

~ a. CDBG SSP OOHR 330,000.00 

~ b. HOME/SHF 275,000.00 

~ c. CDBG/RA 132,417.00 

D d. 

9. Total CDBG Funds Requested (all activities applied for this fiscal year, including administration): $ 737,417.00 

10. Certification: To the best of my knowledge and belief, data in this application are true and correct, the document has been duly 
authorized by the governing body of the applicant and the applicant will comply with the attached Certifications if the assistance is 
approved. 

Sign~the ~lected CMJO;n;,.,1 L} / 

.· ·1A ;JJa,~ 
Nam~ (typed): Michael A. Pastor 

Date: 

09-01-2015 

Title: Chairman,Gila County Board of Supervisors 

Pagel of 3 
REV.3-2013 



• Arizona 
~nmcnt 
of Housing FORM2 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
GENERAL ADMINISTRATIN SUMMARY 

1. Applicant: Gila County 

ITEM a.CDBG$ b. Non-CDBG $* c. Total 

2. TAAP. Total costs for COG Technical Assistance and 500.00 500.00 

Application Preparation, as per local government/ 
COG Agreement 

3. Salaries, Wages, Fringe Benefits %or 
Hours 

3.1 Position #1 Title:Director 5% 4,021.00 4,021.00 

3.2 Position #2 Title: Housing Admin. 5% 3,187.00 3,187.00 

3.3 Position #3 Title: Accountant 6% 3,405.00 3,405.00 

3.4 Position #4 Title: Fiscal Manager 6% 4,815.00 4,815.00 

4. Professional Services (Contractual) 

4.1 For: 

4.2 For: 

4.3 For: 

5. Travel 200.00 200.00 

6. Office Supplies and Equipment 187.42 187.42 

7. Advertising/Publications 150.00 150.00 

8. Indirect Costs (% documented by cost 
allocation plan) 

9. Other Operating Expenses (specify) 

9.1 Item 1: Rent 3,205.00 3,205.00 

9.2 Item 2: 

9.3 Item 3: 

9.4 Other (Fair Housing, Section 504, etc.) 700.00 700.00 

10. TOTALS $20,370.42 $20,370.42 

* Indicate in parentheses if the amount is Leverage (L), Program Income (Pl), or Other (0). If the amount is a 
mixture of different types of funds, indicate the amount for each type. 

11. a. Indicate who will be in charge of the financial record keeping (give name and title): 
Nick Montague, Fiscal Manager 

b. Provide the street address for the location of the financial records: 

5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 200, Globe, Arizona 85501- 4430 

Pagel of2 
REV. 3-2013 



• Arizona 
Dqxinmcnt 
of Housing FORM3 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
ACTIVITY BUDGET 

1. Applicant: Gila County 2. Activity Name: OOHR 

a. b. 
CDBG$ Non-CDBG $ 

3. Environmental Review Record 
$200.00 

Check box if included in Administration D 

4. Design/Engineering/Inspection (or other 
Professional Services related to project) 

Previously Procured D Procure D In-House D 

5. Construction Contract Work (include materials and 
$74,038.86 

DB wage rates) 

6. Fixed Asset Equipment 

7. Land Acquisition (includes easements) (must 
comply with the Unifonn Relocation Act) 

8. Rehabilitation Services (if this exceeds 20% of total 
$18,559.72 

activity costs, attach a rationale) 
Procure D In-House~ 

9. Other (specify or attached as page ): 

10. For Cityff own, County or Other Construction 

10.1 Purchase of materials 

10.2.a Employees (documentation attached as page 
regarding number of employees, wages, 

number of hours, etc.) 

10.2.b Offenders 

10.2.c Volunteers 

10.3 Equipment (Use vs. Purchase) (documentation 
attached regarding rental rates, number of 
hours to be used, type of equipment, etc.) 

10.4 Other (attached as page ) 

11. TOTALS $92,798.58 

c. 
TOTAL$ 

$200.00 

$74,038.86 

$18,559.72 

$92,798.58 

Page 1of3 
REV. 3-2013 

3 



• 

Arizona 
Department 
of Housing 

FORMS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION: HOUSING ACTIVITIES 

1. Applicant: Gila County 2. Activity Name: Owner-Occupied Housing Rehab 

3. Map(s) attached as page(s) 

Examples of eligible housing activities include: private housing rehabilitation, public housing rehabilitation and 
modernization, infrastructure in support of new housing, new construction by eligible sub-recipients, housing 
services, property acquisition or conversion. 

4. Type of Housing Activity (check all which apply): 

a. [gl Single family unit, owner-occupied residential rehabilitation (Housing Rehab Guidelines required) 

b. D Residential rental rehabilitation, one or two units (one of which must be occupied by 
low and moderate income persons) (Guidelines required) 

c. D Residential rental rehabilitation, more than two units (51% low and moderate income persons) 

d. D New housing construction (only eligible if executed by a sub-recipient) 
Proforma attached as page 

e. D Acquisition or conversion of property for housing 
Proforma attached as page 

f. D Housing services 

g. D Lead-based paint hazard evaluation and reduction 

h. D Infrastructure related to a proposed housing project 
Proforma attached as page 

i. D Home Ownership Assistance (Home Ownership Assistance Guidelines required) 

j. D NRS Area (If the activity will take place in an approved NRS area, persons do not need to be income 
qualified. However, the applicant must also complete Form 13 and attach to application as page .) 

k. D Commercial Rehabilitation 

1. D Other (describe): 

5. WHAT ARE YOU GOING TO DO? 

Describe the activity and what is intended to be accomplished. See instructions. 
We propose to provide Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation assistance to two homes. This activity will 
be conducted with in Gila County boundaries except reservation land. OOHR will complete 2 or more 
projects at an average of $37,356.00 (each participant will meet the low/mod income qualifications) in the 
form of a forgivable non-interest bearing deferred payment loan. The option of replacement may be 
performed as per our Housing Rehab Guidelines. Each participant will be selected on a first come, first 
served basis from Gila County's housing rehabilitation waiting list. All rehabilitation services will be done 
by in house staff and all construction services will be done by licensed and insured general contractors that 
meet the Gila County and State criteria. 

Page 1of7 
REV. 3-2013 



6. For construction or acquisition or conversion of property, complete the following: 

a. Is the site properly zoned? Yes D No D If no, when will the zoning issue be resolved? 
n/a 

b. Are all utilities presently available to the site? D Yes D No If no, which utilities must be brought to the 
site? n/a 

Who has the responsibility for bringing utilities to the site? n/a 

c. Provide copy of deed of ownership as page n/a 

7. WHY ARE YOU GOING TO DO IT? 

Describe the problems and conditions or other factors that indicate a need for the activity. 
Gila County has an area of 4,768 square miles, with a high percentage of homes built before 1939. Our housing 
stock is in poor condition, especially in the Southern part of Gila County, we have a high percentabe of elderly 
and low-income population. Our goal is to preserve our housing stock by allowing the elderly and low-income 
population to remain in their homes. Our economic outlook has remained dismal, with above average 
unemployment rates in Gila County. On average, there are 100 applicants on our OOHR waiting list. That is why 
we propose to rehabilitate two owner occupied single family residences. 

8. Indicate: 

a. Total Number of People to be Served: 4 d. Total Number of Units: 2 

b. Total Low Moderate People: 4 e. Total Low Moderate Units: 2 

c. LM Percentage: 100% f. Source of Information as page: 

9. Will there be program income generated from the activity? D Yes [gl No 

If yes, describe the program income source and estimated amount. If a DPL is required, this must be completed 
and RLF procedures developed and submitted for approval to CDBG. 

Page 2of7 
REV. 3-2013 































































































































   
ARF-3291     Public Hearing      3. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  
Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Sheila's Creekside Steakhouse and Tavern Liquor License Applications --
Gila County Order Nos. LL-15-03 and LL-15-04.

Background Information
Sheila Lynn Marcum has submitted two applications to the
Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control (DLLC) for Sheila's
Creekside Steakhouse & Tavern in Payson.  The first application is for a
person transfer of a Series 7 beer and wine liquor license with an interim
permit to operate, and the second application is for a new Series 12
restaurant license with an interim permit to operate.

The purpose of a Series 7 beer and wine bar license is defined as follows: 
"Allows a beer and wine bar retailer to sell and serve beer and wine,
primarily by individual portions, to be consumed on the premises and in
the original container for consumption on or off the premises." 

The purpose of a Series 12 restaurant license is defined as follows: 
"Allows the holder of a restaurant license to sell and serve spirituous
liquor solely for consumption on the premises of an establishment which
derives at least 40% of its gross revenue from the sale of food.  Failure to
meet the 40% food requirement shall result in revocation of the
license.  4-213(C)"

Part of the statutory process is once the DLLC accepts and processes the
license applications, they are sent to the local governing body in which
city, town or county the establishment is located.  Upon the local
governing body's review of the applications, a recommendation is then
issued by the local governing body, which in Gila County it is the Board of
Supervisors (Board), to the DLLC to either approve, deny or issue a "no
recommendation" decision.



Per statutory requirements, a notice of hearing by the Board was posted
at the establishment for a period of 20 days, specifically to inform any
person residing or owning or leasing property within a one-mile radius of
the establishment regarding these applications. To date, the Clerk of the
Board's Department has not received any objections to these applications.

Evaluation
These applications have been forwarded to the Gila County Clerk of the
Board of Supervisors Department for submission to the Board.  An
internal review has been conducted by the Gila County Building Permit
Department, the Treasurer's Office, and the Health Department. 

Building Permit Department staff visited the establishment and noted that
the building is in compliance with zoning and building clearances. 
Treasurer's Office staff has submitted documentation indicating that there
are no tax issues with this property.  Health Department staff visited the
establishment and determined there are no issues with regard to Health
Department permits.

Conclusion
These applications have been reviewed by several County departments
with no objections and no one has submitted a written objection to this
application; therefore, a public hearing should be held by the Board to
entertain any comments from the public with regard to these applications
before the Board takes an action to issue a recommendation to the DLLC.

Recommendation
The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors recommends that the Board issue
an approval recommendation to the DLLC if there are no objections
received during the public hearing.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve two liquor license applications
submitted by Sheila Lynn Marcum for Sheila's Creekside Steakhouse and
Tavern located in Payson, as follows:  1) Order No. LL-15-03 for a person
transfer of a Series 7 beer and wine license with an interim permit to
operate; and 2) Order No. LL-15-04 for a new Series 12 restaurant license
with an interim permit to operate.  (Marian Sheppard)

Attachments
Series No. 7 Beer & Wine Liquor License Application



Series No. 12 Restaurant Liquor License Application
Sheriff's Office Affidavits of Posting
Interoffice Memos (3)
Local Governing Body Recommendations

























































   
ARF-3315     Regular Agenda Item      4. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  

Submitted For: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County Manager/Librarian 
Submitted By: Janice Cook, Administrative Services Manager, Asst County Manager/Library District
Department: Asst County Manager/Library District Division: Library District

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 15-09-05 Approving Amended Bylaws of the Eastern Arizona Counties Organization.

Background Information
The Eastern Arizona Counties Organization (ECO) was established by the Apache, Gila, Graham, Greenlee, and
Navajo County Boards of Supervisors in 1993 to address and advocate for issues common to the eastern Arizona
counties they serve, particularly in the areas of natural resources and federal public land management policies.  The
founding members adopted a set of Bylaws at that time.  The intervening 22 years have seen more complicated
federal land management issues.  More recently, other Arizona counties which have common issues and adjacent
boundaries have approached ECO requesting to join.  Cochise County formally requested membership earlier this
year.  In addition, advances in technology have changed the ways in which the members of the organization
communicate, conduct business, and hold meetings.

Evaluation
The original Bylaws did not anticipate nor provide for membership beyond the five founding member counties. 
Likewise, modern digital technology and electronic communication, which is currently commonplace,
makes provisions of the Bylaws obsolete with respect to such things as posting requirements, meeting notices, and
allowable types of attendance at meetings.

Conclusion
The ECO Bylaws are outdated and, in some instances, obsolete.

Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of the amended Bylaws between member counties of the Eastern Arizona Counties
Organization.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 15-09-05  to amend Bylaws of the Eastern Arizona Counties
Organization to allow for the addition of new members, and to accommodate utilization of new technologies.  
(Jacque Griffin)

Attachments

Resolution No. 15-09-05
ECO Amended Bylaws 2015
ECO Bylaws-1993



Resolution 15-09-05 Page 1 of 2  

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-09-05 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 

COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING THE AMENDED BYLAWS OF 

THE EASTERN ARIZONA COUNTIES ORGANIZATION 

 

WHEREAS, the Eastern Arizona Counties Organization (ECO) was established by the boards 

of supervisors of Apache, Gila, Graham, Greenlee and Navajo counties in 1993 to 

address and advocate for issues common to the eastern Arizona counties they serve, 

particularly in the areas of natural resources and Federal public land management policies; 

and, 

 

WHEREAS, at the time of ECO’s formation, the five founding member counties adopted a 

set of Bylaws which have not been updated in twenty-two years; and, 

 

WHEREAS, since adoption of the original Bylaws, Federal land management issues have 

become more complicated, resulting in other Arizona counties with adjacent boundaries 

and common issues requesting membership; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the original Bylaws did not anticipate nor provide for membership beyond the 

five founding counties; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the founding members of ECO desire to enlarge its membership to include 

other Arizona counties in order to combine their efforts whenever possible to further the 

goals of ensuring cultural and social preservation, and enhancing economic stability and 

growth as relates to the management of resources, as well as facilitating cooperation on a 

regional level; and, 

 

WHEREAS, modern digital technology applicable to the day-to-day operations of ECO 

has changed the ways in which the member counties currently communicate, conduct 

business, and hold meetings; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the original Bylaws are outdated and, in some instances, obsolete with respect 

to such things as posting requirements, meeting notices, and allowable types of 

attendance at meetings. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Supervisors of Gila County, 

Arizona, hereby approves the Amended Bylaws of the Eastern Arizona Counties Organization 

to allow for the addition of new members and to accommodate utilization of new 

technologies. 



Resolution 15-09-05 Page 2 of 2  

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 1
st 

day of September 2015, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona.  

Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

__________________________  ________________________ 

Marian Sheppard, Clerk   Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

__________________________ 

Jefferson R. Dalton 

Deputy Gila County Attorney 

Civil Bureau Chief 

 























   
ARF-3338     Regular Agenda Item      4. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  
Submitted By: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County Manager/Librarian, Asst

County Manager/Library District
Department: Asst County Manager/Library District

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of the amended Intergovernmental Agreement and Bylaws for
the Eastern Arizona Counties Organization.

Background Information
The Eastern Arizona Counties Organization (ECO) was established by the
Apache, Gila, Graham, Greenlee and Navajo County Boards of
Supervisors in 1993 to address and advocate for issues common to the
eastern Arizona counties they serve, particularly in the areas of natural
resources and federal public land management policies. The intervening
years have seen many more complicated federal land management
issues.  Other rural Arizona counties which have common issues and
adjacent boundaries have approached ECO requesting to join. Cochise
County formally requested membership in July of this year.  At the time
of ECO's original establishment, the bylaws and the Intergovernmental
Agreement (IGA) did not accommodate additional members.

The newly adopted amended Bylaws allow for additional membership;
however, to formally include Cochise County in ECO requires a new IGA
between all six counties, as well as an updated signature page on the
amended Bylaws.

Evaluation
The new IGA accommodates the addition of Cochise County into ECO,
and updates the signature page on the amended Bylaws. It is in the best
interest of the various counties to combine their efforts whenever possible
to further the goals of ensuring cultural and social preservation and
enhancing economic stability and growth as it relates to the management
of resources.

Conclusion
Enlarging the membership of ECO allows for a larger collective voice to



Enlarging the membership of ECO allows for a larger collective voice to
exercise a more effective and unified political force on public land
management issues affecting the member counties.

Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of the amended IGA to accommodate the
addition of Cochise County into ECO.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the amended
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between the counties of Apache, Gila,
Graham, Greenlee, Navajo and Cochise, Arizona to participate in, support
and endorse the actions and decisions of the Eastern Arizona Counties
Organization (ECO) which are in compliance with the adopted Bylaws of
the organization; authorize the Chairman to sign the IGA; and, authorize
the appointed member to sign the updated signature page of the Bylaws.  
(Jacque Griffin)

Attachments
ECO Amended IGA and Bylaws 2015
ECO original IGA and Bylaws 1993



ECO 2015 Amended IGA & Exhibits    Page: 1 of 23 
 

AMENDED INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTIES OF 
APACHE, GILA, GRAHAM, GREENLEE, NAVAJO AND COCHISE, ARIZONA 

TO PARTICIPATE IN, SUPPORT AND ENDORSE THE ACTIONS AND DECISIONS OF THE EASTERN 
ARIZONA COUNTIES ORGANIZATION (ECO) WHICH ARE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE ADOPTED 

BYLAWS OF THE ORGANIZATION. 
 
 
Whereas, Arizona Revised Statutes 11-952 authorizes two or more public agencies to enter into 
agreements with one another for joint or cooperative action, and; 
 
Whereas, the Arizona Counties of Apache, Gila, Graham, Greenlee, and Navajo ("Original ECO Counties") 
requested in 1993 by joint resolution (Exhibit A) that the State of Arizona assist the Original ECO 
Counties in developing a process to implement Presidential Executive Order 12372 (P.E.0. 12372) related 
to the clearinghouse process for review of Federal programs which affect the custom, cultures and 
economic well-being of the counties, and; 
 
Whereas, in accordance with P.E .O. 12372, the Original ECO Counties were subsequently designated by 
the State as County Official Reviewers (COR) with responsibility to the residents of the Original ECO 
Counties to provide local and area wide land use, demographic, economic and social information and 
expertise in the review of federal programs and projects particularly in relationship to the U.S. 
Department of Agriculture and the U.S. Department of the Interior land management activities, as well 
as programs involving State Land, and; 
 
Whereas, a primary function of ECO was originally to efficiently and effectively implement the 
Procedures for Arizona Single Point of Contact Review Process According to Presidential Executive Order 
12372, and ; 
 
Whereas in the years from 1993 to 2015 ECO evolved to provide to the Original ECO Counties a 
clearinghouse of technical, scientific, social, cultural and economic information and advice to the 
individual counties for more effective interaction, coordination and collaboration in the decision making 
process with federal and state agencies, and ; 
 
Whereas in 2015 the Arizona County of Cochise expressed the desire to join ECO and the Original ECO 
Counties expressed the desire to include Cochise County in ECO, and ; 
 
Whereas, it is believed that the best method for ensuring that the overall functions of ECO are carried 
out is to formalize the ECO structure through adoption of an amended intergovernmental agreement 
and approval of appropriate Bylaws to guide the conduct of ECO business, and ; 
 
Whereas, the Arizona Counties of Apache, Gila, Graham, Greenlee, Navajo and Cochise ("Counties") are 
all dependent on measured and appropriate development of all resources to ensure public welfare and 
promote economic stability, and; 
 
Whereas , it is in the best interests of the Counties to combine their efforts whenever possible to further 
the goals of ensuring cultural and social preservation, and enhancing economic stability and growth as 
relates to the management of resources, and; 
 



ECO 2015 Amended IGA & Exhibits    Page: 2 of 23 
 

Whereas, the Counties have undertaken to make scientific, economic, social and cultural information 
and other data available for analysis to help guide themselves and other agencies in making the best 
resource management decisions, and: 
 
Whereas, cooperation on the regional level between all parties involved in such decisions is deemed to 
be most advantageous. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED THAT: 
 
Section 1. The Eastern Arizona Counties Organization (ECO) originally consisting of membership from 
Apache, Gila, Graham, Greenlee and Navajo Counties is hereby amended to include Cochise County. The 
term of this agreement is as specified in Section 7 herein. 
 
Section 2. By execution and acceptance of this agreement, each ECO County hereby adopts the Arizona 
Single Point of Contact (SPOC) procedures according to: Presidential Executive Order 12372 which is 
fully incorporated into this document as Exhibit B; Arizona Executive Order 2013-09 which is fully 
incorporated into this document as Exhibit C; and User Manual For State Single Point Of Contact (SPOC) 
Procedures In Arizona - Updated December 4, 2014, which is fully incorporated into this document as 
Exhibit D. 
 
Section 3. In accordance with the provisions of Sec. 4 of Exhibit B, each ECO County, Board of 
Supervisors or its designee shall act as County official reviewers for the explicate review of direct federal 
projects for the U.S. Department of Agriculture and its respective agencies which include the Forest 
Service, Soil Conservation Service and Farmers Home Administration, U.S. Department of the Interior 
and its respective agencies which include the Bureau of Land Management, National Park Service and 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service affecting their areas. The County official reviewers will attend scoping 
meetings, receive direct federal notices from the Single Point of Contact (SPOC), and attend the 
meetings in the early stages for the purpose of review and assuring the consistency of the proposed 
activity to be in the best interest and development of each of their counties. 
 
Section 4. The purpose and authorities of ECO are set forth in the Bylaws as incorporated in Exhibit E to 
this agreement and adopted as part of this agreement and as may be subsequently amended in 
accordance with the adopted Bylaws. 
 
Section 5. Each ECO County Board of Supervisors shall, in accordance with adopted Bylaws, appoint two 
representatives to the ECO Board of Directors, one of whom will be a member of that County's Board of 
Supervisors. 
 
Section 6. The finances and budgetary matters of ECO shall be addressed in the manner set forth in 
Article V of the Bylaws with annual budgets established by the Board of Directors and approved annually 
by each County Board of Supervisors representative. Navajo County will act as fiscal agent for the 
purposes of this Intergovernmental Agreement. Each member's manner of financing their participation 
in ECO shall be at the discretion of each County's Board of Supervisors and may include commitment of 
general funds, grant funds or other available funding. 
 
Section 7. This agreement shall remain in effect for one (1) year from the effective date and will be 
automatically renewed for successive one (1) year intervals unless terminated by any member County 
after 30 days written notification to the Chairman provided, however, that the termination by any one 



ECO 2015 Amended IGA & Exhibits    Page: 3 of 23 
 

County shall not affect the agreements with other Counties. This agreement may be canceled pursuant 
to ARS 38-511, the pertinent provisions of which are fully incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Section 8. The acquisition of property under the ownership of ECO is not anticipated. However, should 
this occur, the disposition of such property upon partial or complete termination of this agreement shall 
be decided by the Board of Directors in an open meeting with the approval of each Board of Supervisors 
which is participating in the agreement at the time of the termination. 
 
Section 9. It is agreed that all proceedings, meetings, actions and decisions of the Board of Directors will 
comply with the Arizona Open Meeting Law. No representation of an ECO decision, position or action 
shall be made without proper notification pursuant to the Arizona Open Meeting Law nor without prior 
approval of the Board of Directors in compliance with the provisions of the adopted Bylaws. 
 
Section 10. Any contract, memorandum of understanding, or agreement entered into by ECO on behalf 
of or binding upon any member County must be approved by the affected County’s Board of Supervisors 
in order to be effective. 
 
Section 11. Nothing in this agreement shall in any way abrogate the member Counties' rights, 
obligations and abilities to conduct mandated and discretionary County functions, or otherwise protect, 
in any lawful manner deemed appropriate, the best interests of the County. 
 
Section 12. This agreement shall become effective upon filing with the Secretary of State. 
 
Section 13. Attached hereto as Exhibit F, are the Resolutions or Action Reports of each County Board of 
Supervisors approving this agreement. 
 
Section 14. All agreements in conflict with this are hereby rescinded. 
 
APPROVED by each County on the date indicated below. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
________________________________   _______________________ ___________ 
Supervisor Tom White     Attest: Delwin Wengert  Date 
Chairman Apache County Board of Supervisors  Clerk Apache County BOS 
 
 
________________________________  
Michael Whiting 
Apache County Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 



ECO 2015 Amended IGA & Exhibits    Page: 4 of 23 
 

 
________________________________   _______________________ ___________ 
Supervisor Patrick Call       Attest: Arlethe Rios  Date 
Chairman Cochise County Board of Supervisors  Clerk Cochise County BOS 
 
 
________________________________  
Brian McIntyre 
Cochise County Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________   _______________________ ___________ 
Supervisor Michael Pastor    Attest: Marian Sheppard Date 
Chairman Gila County Board of Supervisors  Clerk Gila County BOS 
 
 
________________________________  
Bradley Beauchamp 
Gila County Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________   _______________________ ___________ 
Supervisor Danny Smith     Attest: Terry Cooper  Date 
Chairman Graham County Board of Supervisors  Clerk Graham County BOS 
 
 
________________________________  
Kenny Angle 
Graham County Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________   _______________________ ___________ 
Supervisor David Gomez    Attest: Yvonne Pearson  Date 
Chairman Greenlee County Board of Supervisors  Clerk Greenlee County BOS 
 
 
________________________________  
Derek Rapier 
Greenlee County Attorney 



ECO 2015 Amended IGA & Exhibits    Page: 5 of 23 
 

 
________________________________   _______________________ ___________ 
Supervisor Dawnafe Whitesinger   Attest: Melissa Buckley  Date 
Chairwoman Navajo County Board of Supervisors Clerk Navajo County BOS 
 
 
________________________________  
Brad Carlyon 
Navajo County Attorney 
 
 
  



ECO 2015 Amended IGA & Exhibits    Page: 6 of 23 
 

Exhibit A 
 

 



ECO 2015 Amended IGA & Exhibits    Page: 7 of 23 
 

 
  



ECO 2015 Amended IGA & Exhibits    Page: 8 of 23 
 

Exhibit B 

 
 



ECO 2015 Amended IGA & Exhibits    Page: 9 of 23 
 

 
 
  



ECO 2015 Amended IGA & Exhibits    Page: 10 of 23 
 

Exhibit C 

 
 
 



ECO 2015 Amended IGA & Exhibits    Page: 11 of 23 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ECO 2015 Amended IGA & Exhibits    Page: 12 of 23 
 

Exhibit D 

 



ECO 2015 Amended IGA & Exhibits    Page: 13 of 23 
 

 



ECO 2015 Amended IGA & Exhibits    Page: 14 of 23 
 

 



ECO 2015 Amended IGA & Exhibits    Page: 15 of 23 
 

 



ECO 2015 Amended IGA & Exhibits    Page: 16 of 23 
 

 



ECO 2015 Amended IGA & Exhibits    Page: 17 of 23 
 

Exhibit E 
 

 



ECO 2015 Amended IGA & Exhibits    Page: 18 of 23 
 

 



ECO 2015 Amended IGA & Exhibits    Page: 19 of 23 
 

 



ECO 2015 Amended IGA & Exhibits    Page: 20 of 23 
 

 



ECO 2015 Amended IGA & Exhibits    Page: 21 of 23 
 

 



ECO 2015 Amended IGA & Exhibits    Page: 22 of 23 
 

 



ECO 2015 Amended IGA & Exhibits    Page: 23 of 23 
 

Exhibit F 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ECO 1993 IGA & Exhibits     Page: 1 of 12 

 

 



ECO 1993 IGA & Exhibits     Page: 2 of 12 

 

 
 



ECO 1993 IGA & Exhibits     Page: 3 of 12 

 

 



ECO 1993 IGA & Exhibits     Page: 4 of 12 

 

 



ECO 1993 IGA & Exhibits     Page: 5 of 12 

 

 



ECO 1993 IGA & Exhibits     Page: 6 of 12 

 

 



ECO 1993 IGA & Exhibits     Page: 7 of 12 

 

 



ECO 1993 IGA & Exhibits     Page: 8 of 12 

 

 



ECO 1993 IGA & Exhibits     Page: 9 of 12 

 

 



ECO 1993 IGA & Exhibits     Page: 10 of 12 

 

 



ECO 1993 IGA & Exhibits     Page: 11 of 12 

 

 



ECO 1993 IGA & Exhibits     Page: 12 of 12 

 

 



   
ARF-3334     Regular Agenda Item      4. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  

Submitted By: Janice Cook, Administrative Services Manager, Asst County Manager/Library District
Department: Asst County Manager/Library District Division: Administrative Services

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 15-09-04 requesting release of Payments in Lieu of Taxes (PILT) funding for FY 2015 as well as a
long-term funding solution for the future.

Background Information
PILT funding is not currently included in the FY 2016 Federal Budget.  PILT funding provides assistance to those
counties within which federal lands are located but are unavailable for economic development or taxation and upon
which the burden for providing vital services falls.  Gila County is comprised of 3,069,101 acres of which 57.2%
(1,756,339 acres) are held by the federal government, 37.7% (1,158,102 acres) are American Indian tribal lands, and
1% (31,463 acres) are State of Arizona lands, all of which are unavailable as part of the property tax base. This
leaves only 4%  (123,196 acres) in private (taxable) ownership. The national average PILT payment in Fiscal Year
2014 was $0.72 per acre, far below the amount federal lands would return through both value based taxation and
economic development.  $37 million of the Fiscal Year 2015 payments have yet to be released, placing added
financial pressure on Gila County taxpayers.  Gila County is required to provide law enforcement, search and
rescue, emergency services, road building and maintenance and other community services on, or associated with
tax-exempt federal lands.  A lack of PILT funding places the large unsustainable burden of providing services on
federal lands squarely on the back of Gila County tax payers, while the presence of that federal land creates barriers
to further economic opportunities.

Evaluation
By adopting Resolution 15-09-04, the Board of Supervisors is formally requesting the United States Congress to
immediately provide full mandatory funding for the PILT program for counties within which Federal lands are
located, but are unavailable for economic development or taxation, to assist the counties with the costs of providing
vital services -- law enforcement, search and rescue, emergency services, road construction and
maintenance, and other community services --  upon those Federal lands.

Conclusion
By adopting Resolution 15-09-04, the Board of Supervisors is formally requesting Congress to immediately provide
full mandatory funding for the PILT program for counties within which Federal lands are located but unavailable for
economic development or taxation and upon which the burden falls for providing vital services.

Recommendation
Staff recommends the adoption of Resolution 15-09-04 requesting the United States Congress to immediately release
fiscal year 2015 Payment in Lieu of Taxes funding and provide full mandatory funding for the PILT program for
fiscal year 2016 and into the future.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 15-09-04 respectfully requesting the United States Congress
to release the balance of funding for the Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILT) program for Fiscal Year 2015 without delay,
and provide full mandatory funding to the PILT program for Fiscal Year 2016 and into the future.  (Don McDaniel)

Attachments

Resolution No. 15-09-04



Resolution 15-09-04  Page 1 of 2 
 
 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-09-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, RESPECTFULLY REQUESTING THE 
CONGRESS OF THE UNITED STATES TO IMMEDIATELY PROVIDE 
FULL MANDATORY FUNDING FOR THE PAYMENT IN LIEU OF 
TAXES PROGRAM 

 
WHEREAS, the Payment In Lieu of Taxes (PILT) program was established in 1976 to offset 
costs incurred by counties for services provided to the federal government and to the users of 
federal lands located within a county; and 
 
WHEREAS, Gila County, Arizona is comprised of 3,069,101 acres of which 1,756,339 acres 
(57.2%) is held by the federal government and unavailable for economic development and not 
part of the property tax base; and 
 
WHEREAS, Gila County also contains 1,158,102 acres (37.7%) of American Indian tribal lands 
and 31,463 acres (1%) of State of Arizona lands leaving only 123,196 acres (4%) in private 
(taxable) ownership; and  
 
WHEREAS, the national average PILT payment in Fiscal Year 2014 was $0.72 per acre, far 
below the amount federal lands would return through both value based taxation and economic 
development; and  
 
WHEREAS, $37 million of the Fiscal Year 2015 payments have yet to be released, placing 
added financial pressure on Gila County taxpayers; and  
 
WHEREAS, Gila County is required to provide law enforcement, search and rescue, emergency 
services, road building and maintenance, and other community services on, or associated with 
tax-exempt federal public lands; and 
 
WHEREAS, a lack of PILT funding places the large, unsustainable burden of providing services 
on federal lands squarely on the back of Gila County tax payers, while the presence of that 
federal land creates barriers to further economic opportunities; and 
 
WHEREAS, failure to provide mandatory PILT funding to Arizona counties in a timely manner 
will critically impact the budget process and structural solvency of Gila County, and 
substantially compromise the county’s ability to provide essential services;  
 



Resolution 15-09-04  Page 2 of 2 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Supervisors of Gila County hereby 
respectfully requests that the United States Congress provide full mandatory funding to the PILT 
program for Fiscal Year 2016 without delay, and work to find a long-term funding solution for 
the future.  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of September 2015, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 
 
Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
__________________________  ________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk   Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
__________________________ 
Jefferson R. Dalton 
Deputy Gila County Attorney 
Civil Bureau Chief 



   
ARF-3314     Regular Agenda Item      4. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  

Submitted For: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County Manager/Librarian 
Submitted By: Janice Cook, Administrative Services Manager, Asst County Manager/Library District
Department: Asst County Manager/Library District Division: Library District
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

Yes Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approve Library Service Agreements for Globe, Hayden, Isabelle Hunt (Pine), Miami, Payson, San Carlos, Tonto
Basin, and Young public libraries for FY 15/16.

Background Information
The  Gila County Library District contracts annually with the eight affiliate public libraries to cooperate in the
provision of library services to the citizens of the District.  These Library Service Agreements serve as contracts for
facilitating funding and resource sharing.

Evaluation
Library funding is based on the aggregate percentages of the four library service measures, from the baseline FY
2012, along with a base amount for each of the community libraries.  This year's funding totals are as follows:

Globe Public Library - $113,600.00
Hayden Public Library - $49,600.00
Isabelle Hunt Memorial Public Library (Pine) - $108,400.00
Miami Memorial Public Library -$54,400.00
Payson Public Library - $230,400.00
San Carlos Public Library - $33,600.00
Tonto Basin Public Library - $70,000.00
Young Public Library - $57,600.00.

The Library District will distribute these amounts in two installments -- the first in November 2015, and the second
in May 2016.

Conclusion
Approval of the FY 15/16 Library Service Agreements will facilitate funding and resource sharing with the affiliate
libraries of the Gila County Library District.

Recommendation
The Gila County District Librarian recommends approval of the FY 15/16 Library Service Agreements between the
Gila County Library District and City of Globe, Town of Hayden, Isabelle Hunt Memorial Public Library, Town of
Miami, Town of Payson, San Carlos Apache Tribe, Tonto Basin Public Library, and Young Public Library.

Suggested Motion

(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and convene as the Gila County
Library District Board of Directors.)  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Library Service Agreements
for Globe, Hayden, Isabelle Hunt (Pine), Miami, Payson, San Carlos, Tonto Basin, and Young public libraries for the
period July 1, 2015, to June 30, 2016.  (Jacque Griffin)

Attachments

Globe
Hayden
Isabelle Hune-Pine



Miami
Payson
San Carlos
Tonto Basin
Young
Approval as to Form





















































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   
ARF-3325     Regular Agenda Item      4. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  

Submitted For: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County Manager/Librarian 
Submitted By: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County Manager/Librarian, Asst County Manager/Library District
Department: Asst County Manager/Library District Division: Library District
Fiscal Year: 2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

7/1/2015 6/30/2016 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
State Grants-in-Aid Application 2016 for the Gila County Library District

Background Information
State Grants-in-Aid (SGIA) is a recurring grant from the Arizona State Library Archives and Public Records provided
to county library districts and large municipal libraries. The funding comes from the State of Arizona to benefit
libraries throughout Arizona. This grant money is to be used for programming, supplies, equipment, training, and
materials and cannot be used for salaries or as match money for other grants.

Evaluation
The Gila County Library District will be using the SGIA 2016 monies to provide training, travel, equipment upgrades,
collection development, and provide for special projects throughout the Gila County Library District. We will keep a
portion of the funds at the district level, and give a portion of the funds to each of the libraries.

FOR THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE: 30% or $7,000
We use these funds in various ways to supplement our services to the eight affiliate libraries.
Part of SGIA funds are earmarked for conferences to encourage networking with other library peers, travel and
training opportunities, both for the district staff, and staff at the eight libraries. We will continue to provide
materials, (books, electronic resources) as well as marketing/promotional material for the electronic resources. The
District will again bulk purchase Movie Licensing USA for the Affiliate Libraries in order for all to comply with the
copyright laws.

FOR THE INDIVIDUAL LIBRARIES: 70% OR $16,000
Each library in the District will be allocated $2,000 to be spent on programs, projects or materials that the local
librarian has determined is important to them, but that they do not have funds for in their regular budgets. These
projects may include computer upgrades, collection development of both print and non-print materials, supplies,
equipment, and summer reading supplies. In past years, SGIA funds have been used at the local level to provide for
special programs, such as guest speakers and workshops in connection with Summer Reading Programs. Since the
eight libraries are vastly different, their needs are also vastly different and varied. In fact, the only common thread is
that they all have needs that their regular budgets do not cover.

Conclusion
The SGIA grant provides for programming, supplies, training, and equipment that benefit library services in all of
Gila County, and is a valued grant.

Recommendation
The District recommends that the County apply for SGIA 2016 to enhance needed services, materials, resources and
supplies for the library patrons of Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the submission of a State Grants-In-Aid Application by the Gila County
Library District to the Arizona State Library, Archives and Public Records, Library Development Division, for fiscal
year 2016 in the amount of $23,000 designated to Gila County for the period July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016.  
(Jacque Griffin) (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors and
convene as the Gila County Board of Deposit.)



Attachments

SGIA 2016 Application
SGIA 2016 Certification
Award Letter SGIA 2016
SGIA FAQs
Resource Attainment Policy State Library









Certification of Application 

I certify this application to be true and accurate to the best of my knowledge. On behalf of all 
organizations participating in this application, I hereby assure and certify that I will comply with all 

regulations, policies, guidelines and requirements pertinent to the application and to the use of 
award funds. Funds will not be used for indirect or administrative costs. The applicant agrees to 

submit a final report, which will include a narrative, budget and certification by the final report 
deadline. If this application is approved, I certify that the project will begin promptly, and will be 

completed as described. 

Library Name:  

Project Name:  

Authorizing Official’s Name:  

Authorizing Official’s Title:  

 

 

 

Authorizing Official Signature for Library 
 

Date 

 

IMPORTANT 

This form MUST be postmarked by the due date in order 
to be eligible for consideration. Please type or print clearly. 

MAIL COMPLETED APPLICATION TO:  

Grants Administrator 
Library Development Division 

Carnegie Center 
1101 W. Washington 

Phoenix, AZ 85007 

 

Date Received 
  

 

 

 

 

 



     

ARIZONA STATE 
LIBRARY, ARCHIVES AND  

PUBLIC RECORDS 
A  DIVISION OF THE ARIZONA SECRETARY OF STATE 

 
 

 

Award Notification for State Grants-in-Aid 
 

Library Name & Address: 
Gila County Library District 
1400 E. Ash 
Globe, AZ  85501-1414 
 

State Project Number: 
SGIA 16-A-04 

Project Name: 
SGIA 2016 
 
 

Project Manager: 
Jacque Griffin 

Program Information: 
http://www.azlibrary.gov/libdev/funding/sgia 
 
 

Amount Awarded: $23000 

Period of Performance:  
July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 
 
 

Final Report Due:   
July 31, 2016 

Contact for LSTA grant questions: 
Janet “Jaime” Ball, Grants Consultant 
 

Phone: 
602-926-3365 

Email: 
jball@azlibrary.gov 

 

When possible, please acknowledge SGIA as follows: 

This project is supported by the Arizona State Library, Archives & Public Records, a division of the 

Secretary of State, with funds appropriated by the Arizona State Legislature. 

 

 

 

 

___________________________________________________       __8/5/2015______________ 

Joan Clark, State Librarian & Director     Date 

http://www.azlibrary.gov/libdev/funding/sgia


State Grants-in-Aid (SGIA) 

What is SGIA? 
In 1981, the Arizona legislature developed State Grants-in-Aid (SGIA) to help Arizona libraries meet the 
information needs of Arizona residents. SGIA provides limited construction funding to public libraries, and 
annual awards to county library districts and to cities with populations of 100,000 or more. 

Who Qualifies? 
In order to qualify for SGIA, libraries must: 

• Be organized as a governmental unit or a non-profit organization. 
• Agree to the Arizona State Library Resource Access and Attainment Policy. 
• Provide library services free of charge to all residents within the library area. 
• Be open to the public on a regular basis with regular, posted hours. 
• Be in good standing with the State Library by submitting library statistics and all other reports in a 

complete, accurate and timely manner. 
• Adhere to any requirements specified in the Arizona Revised Statutes, including but not limited to ARS 9-

411 through 9-420 (Cities and Towns/Public Libraries); ARS 11-901 through 11-914 (Counties/Public 
Libraries); and ARS 34-502 (Computer Access/Harmful to Minors). 

How Can Funds Be Used? 

• State funds will be used for library services county or citywide. Funds will not be used for indirect or 
administrative costs. 

• County/city will expend no less than the amount of state grants-in-aid awarded in the same fiscal year for 
county/citywide library services. SGIA requires a dollar-for-dollar cash match. State money may not be 
substituted for local match. 

• The recipient agrees to submit a final report, which includes a narrative, budget and certification. 

From Arizona State Library Website at:  

http://www.azlibrary.gov/libdev/funding/sgia 

 

http://www.azlibrary.gov/sites/azlibrary.gov/files/libdev-resource-access-attainment-policy.pdf
http://www.azlibrary.gov/libdev/funding/sgia


 1 

Arizona State Library 
Resource Access and Attainment Policy 
July 1, 2013 
 
The Arizona State Library, Archives and Public Records is committed to working with public, 
academic, school and special libraries to help all Arizonans find information they need and 
want, and to attain material needed for that information. 
 
The State Library does this through: 
 
1) Funding for FirstSearch WorldCat, and Unlimited ILL for Arizona public libraries, to 
facilitate the sharing of resources among libraries. 
 
2) Support, with county library districts, of statewide databases on a broad range of topics 
available to all Arizonans and to all public and K-12 public and charter school libraries at no 
cost. Materials include both full-text and bibliographic sources.  
 
4) Support of pilot projects allowing libraries to test new technologies to meet patrons’ needs, 
such as e-readers, and alternative means, such as purchase-on-demand. 
 
5) Training for library staff members on reference services, including helping patrons find 
materials through virtual services. 
 
Arizona Resource Access and Attainment Policy (AzRAP) for Public Libraries 
Agreement: 

 
Receive:  

• Access to FirstSearch WorldCat;  
• Worldcat Resource Sharing Subscription (public libraries). 

 
Agree To:  

• Work with patrons, at no charge, to locate materials.  
• Provide specific information on attaining material. Patrons may be offered several 

options to attain material including: patron purchase of low-cost materials; library 
purchase of materials; database and web sources; and inter-library loan (ILL). 

• When materials can only be attained through ILL, offer to secure the loan for the 
patron. With prior notice to patrons, postage costs for materials sent to any and from 
any library will be capped at $6 per item, and fees charged by non-Arizona public, 
regent or community college libraries, may be passed on to the patron; no other fees 
or charges may be passed on to the patron. Libraries may limit ILL requests to six per 
patron at any one time and may limit requests to print materials published more than 
one year ago; not currently on a nationally recognized best-seller list; or not needed by 
the library’s own patrons. The sharing of circulating non-print materials is encouraged, 
but not required. 

• Write and publish a detailed Resource Access and Attainment Policy, and provide an 
electronic copy to the Arizona State Library each time the policy is updated. 

 
 
 



 2 

 
Arizona Resource Access and Attainment Policy (AzRAP) for Regents and Community 
Colleges: 

 
Receive:  

• Access to FirstSearch Worldcat to all regent and community college members. 
 

Agree To:  
• ILL materials to other Arizona public, regent or community college members, with 

postage charges capped at $6 per item.  
• Write and publish a detailed Resource Access and Attainment Policy, and provide an 

electronic copy to the Arizona State Library each time the policy is updated. 
 

 
SGIA and LSTA 
 
All county and municipal library systems receiving regular SGIA allotments must be AzRAP 
compliant. All public libraries applying for LSTA must be AzRAP compliant. To be eligible for 
LSTA competitive grants, any type of library must be AzRAP compliant. 
 
 



   

ARF-3323     Regular Agenda Item      4. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division
Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: 2015-2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

7-1-15 to
6-30-17

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approve Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 011312-1 Primary Banking Service with
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.

Background Information
In April 2012, Gila County issued Invitation for Proposals No. 011312-1 for Primary
Banking Service for the County Treasurer.  Three qualified banking institutions
submitted proposals.  At the June 5, 2012, Board of Supervisors' regular meeting, the
Gila County Board of Deposit awarded the contract to the lowest, responsible and
qualified bidder, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.

Evaluation
Pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. § 31-325, the Board of Deposit of Gila County did
a call for bids to qualified banks to perform the duties of the Gila County Servicing
Bank for the period of July 1, 2012, to June 30, 2015, with the option to extend until
June 30, 2017.

The contract with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. expires on June 30, 2015.  Amendment
No. 1 has been issued to allow the Gila County Board of Deposit to exercise the option
for the two-year extension, to June 30, 2017. 

On June 26, 2014, the State of Arizona Legislature revised the Policies and Procedures
under Title 35, Chapter 10 for pooled collateral.  This change has been incorporated
into the attached Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 011312-1 Primary Banking
Service.

Conclusion
The Gila County Treasurer is pleased with the quality of service and professionalism



The Gila County Treasurer is pleased with the quality of service and professionalism
the County has received from the staff of JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. through the
term of July 1, 2012, to June 30, 2015, and wishes to exercise the option to renew for
two additional years in order to continue with the rates established and agreed to in
July 2012.

Recommendation
The Finance Division Director and the Gila County Treasurer recommend that the
Board of Supervisors approve Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 011312-1
to extend the contract term with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. to provide Primary
Banking Service for an additional 24 months.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 1 to Contract
No. 011312-1 Primary Banking Service with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. to extend the
contract term for a two-year period, from July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2017, at the rates
established and agreed to pursuant to Contract No. 011312-1.  (Jeff Hessenius and
Debora Savage) (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Deposit and
reconvene as the Gila County Board of Supervisors.)

Attachments
Amendment No. 1-JPMorgan Chase Bank
Contract 011312-1
Contract continued
Approval as to Form



















































































































































































































































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-3249     Regular Agenda Item      4. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division
Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

150 Calendar
Days from
Notice to Proceed

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Award Contract No. 032315-1 for the Copper Administration Building Interior
Renovation Project.

Background Information
At the September 30, 2014, Board of Supervisors Work Session, the Board of
Supervisors approved the purchase of a used modular structured building to relocate
existing County departments and personnel from private leased offices to County
property.

In order for the structure to function as an administration building, an interior
renovation is required.  Invitation for Bid (IFB) No. 032315-1-Copper Admin
Building-Interior Renovation was issued on July 1, 2015, to hire a General Contractor
to perform the scope of work necessary in order to make the structure a workable
environment for County staff.  IFB No. 032315-1 was advertised in the July 1, 2015
and July 8, 2015 editions of the Arizona Silver Belt, as well as two construction
publications, and posted on the Gila County website.  The bids were opened in a public
setting on August 13, 2015.

Evaluation
The IFB was emailed out to twenty-nine contractors (see attached Plan Holder
List).  In our continuing efforts to involve as many local contractors as possible, 16 of
the 29 contractors were local contracting companies.  Several other contractors loaded
the IFB off of the County website.

A mandatory site pre-bid conference was held on July 17, 2015.  A total of 23
contractors attended the pre-bid conference (see attached Pre-Bid Sign In Sheet).  A
total of four addenda were issued for this project (see attached).  Bids were received
from seven contractors, all of which attended the bid opening (see attached Bid
Opening Sign-in Sheet).



Bid responses were evaluated in accordance with A.R.S. §41-2533, Competitive Sealed
Bidding; awards shall be made to the lowest responsible and responsive bidder whose
bid conforms in all material respects to the requirements and criteria set forth in the
Invitation for Bid.

Conclusion
After extensive review, based on the bid responses received, it is the goal of the
Finance Division Director and the Public Works Division Director to award a contract
to the lowest, most responsible and responsive qualified bidder.

Recommendation
The Finance Division Director and the Public Works Division Director recommend that
the Board of Supervisors approve the award of IFB No. 032315-1 for the Copper
Administration Building Interior Renovation Project, to the lowest, most responsible
and responsive qualified bidder, which is SD Crane Builders.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Invitation for Bid No.
032315-1 - Copper Administration Building-Interior Renovation; award to the lowest,
most responsible and responsive qualified bidder; and authorize the Chairman's
signature on the award contract for the winning bidder for an amount of $1,038,000,
with the project to be substantially complete within 150 calendar days from the Notice
to Proceed date, with final completion no later than 30 days from date of substantial
completion.  (Jeff Hessenius and Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Approval as to Form
Contract No. 032315-1-SD Crane Builders
Request to Advertise
GENERAL PROVISIONS GLOBE COPPER ADMIN BLDG RENOVATION
Technical Specifications-IFB No. 032315-1
Drawings-IFB No. 032315-1
Addenda
As Read Bid Results
Plan Holder List
Pre-Bid Sign In Sheet
Bid Opening Sign in Sheet
SD Crane Builders
Valwest Construction
JMW Construction
FCI Constructors, Inc.
Oddonetto Construction
Sellers & Sons
Bayley Construction



Bayley Construction



 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
GILA COUNTY 

 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-2 
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SECTION 01: NOTIFICATION TO BIDDER  ..............................................................................................GP6-7 
 

SECTION 10: DEFINITION OF TERMS  .................................................................................................. GP8-13 

 

SECTION 20: PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS  .......................................................... GP14-17 
20-03    CONTENTS OF PROPOSAL FORMS 

04    ISSUANCE OF PROPOSAL FORMS 
05    ALLOWANCES 
06    EXAMINATION OF PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND SITE 
07    PREPARATION OF PROPOSAL 
08    IRREGULAR PROPOSALS 
09    PROPOSAL GUARANTY 
10    DELIVERY OF PROPOSAL 
11    WITHDRAWAL OR REVISION OF PROPOSALS 
12    PUBLIC OPENING OF PROPOSALS 
13    DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS 
14    PROTESTS 

 

SECTION 30: AWARD AND EXECUTION OF CONTRACT .................................................................... GP18-19 
30-01    CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSALS  

02    AWARD OF CONTRACT  
03    CANCELLATION OF AWARD  
04    RETURN OF PROPOSAL GUARANTY  
05    REQUIREMENTS OF CONTRACT BONDS  
06    EXECUTION OF CONTRACT  
07    APPROVAL OF CONTRACT  
08    FAILURE TO EXECUTE CONTRACT  

  

SECTION 40: SCOPE OF WORK  ......................................................................................................... GP20-21 
40-01    INTENT OF CONTRACT  

02    CHANGES TO THE WORK 
03    OMITTED ITEMS  
04    EXTRA WORK  
05    MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC  
06    RIGHTS IN AND USE OF MATERIALS FOUND IN THE WORK  
07    FINAL CLEANING UP  



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-3 
 

 

SECTION 50: CONTROL OF WORK  .................................................................................................... GP22-28 

 50-01    AUTHORITY OF THE OWNER 
 02    CONFORMITY WITH PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 03    COORDINATION OF CONTRACT, PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 04    COOPERATION OF CONTRACTOR 
 05    COOPERATION BETWEEN CONTRACTOR 
 06    CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT AND STAKES 
 07    AUTOMATICALLY CONTROLLED EQUIPMENT 
 08    AUTHORITY AND DUTIES OF INSPECTORS 
09    INSPECTION OF THE WORK 
 10    REMOVAL OF UNACCEPTABLE AND UNAUTHORIZED WORK 
 11    LOAD RESTRICTIONS 
 12    MAINTENANCE DURING CONSTRUCTION 
 13    FAILURE TO MAINTAIN THE WORK 
 14    PARTIAL ACCEPTANCE 
 15    FINAL ACCEPTANCE 
 16    CLAIMS FOR ADJUSTMENT AND DISPUTES 
 17    GUARANTEE OF WORK (ADDITIONAL) 
 18    CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE 
19    NEGOTIATIONS WITH INDIVIDUAL CONTRACTORS 

 

SECTION 60: CONTROL OF MATERIAL .............................................................................................. GP29-31 
 60-01    SOURCE OF SUPPLY AND QUALITY REQUIREMENTS 

02    SAMPLES, TESTS, AND CITED SPECIFICATIONS 
03    CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE 
04    PLANT INSPECTION 
05    OWNER'S ENGINEER'S FIELD OFFICE AND LABORATORY 
06    STORAGE OF MATERIALS 
07    UNACCEPTABLE MATERIALS 
08    OWNER-FURNISHED MATERIALS 

  

SECTION 70: LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY TO PUBLIC .................................................... GP32-37 
 70-01    LAWS TO BE OBSERVED 

02    PERMITS, LICENSES, AND TAXES 
03    PATENTED DEVICES, MATERIALS, AND PROCESSES 
04    RESTORATION OF SERVICES DISTURBED BY OTHERS 
05    SANITARY, HEALTH, AND SAFETY PROVISIONS 
06    PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND SAFETY 
07    BARRICADES, WARNING SIGNS AND HAZARD MARKINGS 
08    PROTECTION AND RESTORATION OF PROPERTY 
09    RESPONSIBILITY FOR DAMAGE CLAIMS 
10    CONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE 
11    THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY CLAUSE 
12    OPENING SECTIONS OF THE WORK FOR OCCUPANCY 
13    CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR WORK 
14    CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR UTILITY SERVICE AND FACILITIES OF OTHERS 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-4 
 

15    FURNISHING RIGHTS-OF-WAY 
16    PERSONAL LIABILITY OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS 
17    NO WAIVER OF LEGAL RIGHTS 
18    ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

 

SECTION 80: PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS ................................................................................... GP38-42 
 80-01    SUBLETTING OF CONTRACT 

02    NOTICE TO PROCEED 
03    PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS 
04    CONSTRUCTION LIMITS 
05    CHARACTER OF WORKERS, METHODS AND EQUIPMENT 
06    TEMPORARY SUSPENSION OF THE WORK 
07    DETERMINATION AND EXTENSION OF CONTRACT TIME 
08    FAILURE TO COMPLETE ON TIME 
09    DEFAULT AND TERMINATION OF CONTRACT 
10    TERMINATION FOR NATIONAL EMERGENCIES 

 

SECTION 90: MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT .................................................................................. GP43-47 
 90-01    MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 

02    RETAINAGE 
03    CHANGE ORDERS 
04    ALLOWANCES 
05    SCHEDULE OF VALUES 
06    CONSTRUCTION AND PROGRESS SCHEDULES 

 07    ACCEPTANCE AND FINAL PAYMENT 

 
SPECIAL PROVISIONS:  ................................................................................................................... GP48-50 

PROPOSED WORK 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
AS-BUILTS 
CONSTRUCTION LIMITS 
MEETINGS 
CONFLICTING UTILITY SYSTEMS 
UTILITY SHUTDOWNS 
 

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS: SEE TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS W/ DRAWINGS 
 

CONTRACT FORMS  ......................................................................................................................... GP52-74 
BID SUBMITTAL CHECKLIST (CK1) 
BID PROPOSAL (BP1-3) 
SURETY (BID) BOND (BB1) 
QUALIFICATION & CERTIFICATION FORM (QC1-2) 
SUBCONTRACTORS LIST (SL1-2) 
CONTRACTOR REFERENCE LIST (RL-1) 
AFFIDAVIT OF NON-COLLUSION (ANC-1) 
SUBCONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION (SC-1) 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT (C1-5) 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-5 
 

STATUTORY PERFORMANCE BOND (CPB-1) 
STATUTORY LABOR & MATERIAL BOND (LMB-1) 
CONTRACT PERFORMANCE WARRANTY (CPW-1) 
PAY APPLICATION (AIA DOC G702) 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-6 
 

 

 
 

SECTION 01 
NOTIFICATION TO BIDDERS 

 

BIDDERS ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED: 
 
1. The bidder must supply all the information required by the bidding documents or specifications.   
 

All proposals shall be made on the bid proposal forms prepared by Gila County as part of the Contract 
Documents.   
 
No forms shall be detached from the bid packet.  The proposal must include one (1) entire bid packet with 
completed documents with original signatures and two (2) copies of completed bid documents with 
original signatures. 
 
The following forms MUST accompany the bidder’s proposal: 

 

 Bid Proposal (BP1-3) 
 Surety Bid Bond (BB1) 
 Qualification & Certification Form(QC1-2) 
 Contractor Reference List (RL-1) 
 Affidavit of Non-Collusion (ANC-1) 
 Subcontractor List (SL1-2) 
 Subcontractor Certification (SC-1) 
 Construction Contract (C1-5) 
 Contract Performance Warranty (CPW-1) 
 

Failure to include all required documents may invalidate the bid.   
Prices shall include all applicable taxes.   

 

2. Proposal Guaranty - Proposals shall be accompanied by a certified check, cashier's check  
or bid bond for 10 percent (10%) of the total contract price bid. 

 

3. Delivery of Proposal - Each bid shall be sealed and plainly marked:  
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-7 
 

"Bid No. 032315-1 COPPER ADMIN BUILDING, INTERIOR RENOVATION”, on the outer most envelope or 
label.   
 
If courier is used, bidder shall instruct the courier to deliver the package by     4:00 P.M.   on the date 
specified herein, to the Gila County Purchasing Dept., in the Guerrero Building at 1400 East Ash, Globe, 
Arizona 85501.   

 
No bids will be accepted after   4:00  P.M.  M.S.T.,  Thursday, August 13, 2015  .  Time shall be the 
prevailing time per the atomic clock in the reception area of the Guerrero Bldg. Bids will be publicly 
opened and read aloud at     4:00 P.M.   at the location and date listed above. 

  

4. Rejection of Bids -The Owner reserves the right to reject any and all bids, waive all or any informalities in 
the bids. 

 

5. Plans and Specifications - Plans, specifications and all other documents required by bidders may be 
obtained at the address shown below.   

 
A deposit of $20 per set, and $10 for mailing, $20 of which will be refunded upon return of the documents 
in good, usable order.  Payment shall be by check or money order only.  No cash will be accepted.  

   
Gila County  

Purchasing Department 
Guerrero Building 

1400 East Ash 
Globe, Arizona 85501 

 

6. Mandatory Pre-Bid Conference - General Contractors and major subcontractors are required to attend the 
Pre-bid Conference scheduled for: Friday, July 17, 2015_at _8:00 A.M.  Bidders are to meet at the modular 
structure behind the Globe Courthouse, 1350 E. Monroe Street, and must sign-in as in attendance. 

 
 Any questions related to this IFB should be directed in writing to:  the Contracts Administrator, Jeannie 

Sgroi, (928-402-8612) at jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov.  Any correspondence related to any Invitation for Bid 
should refer to the appropriate Invitation for Bid number, page and paragraph number.  Questions may be 
submitted up to 3:00 P.M. MST, Tuesday, July 28, 2015.  Only questions answered by formal written 
addenda will be binding.  Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. 

 
7. Arizona Contractor's License - Prior to submission of bids, bidders must have a valid Arizona Contractor's 

License of a type which meets all criteria and requirements to perform the work as specified in the 
contract documents in accordance with the Arizona State Registrar of Contractors. 

 

8. Bid Opening Information - Information regarding the bid award will not be available until after the Gila 
County Board of Supervisors has issued a decision regarding the submitted project bids.  

mailto:jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov


COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-8 
 

 
 

 
 

 

SECTION 10 
DEFINITION OF TERMS 

 

Whenever the following terms are used in these specifications, in the contract, in any documents or other 
instruments pertaining to construction where these specifications govern, the intent and meaning shall be 
interpreted as follows: 
 
ADDENDA. Written or graphic instruments issued by the Owner and/or Architect/Engineer, prior to bid opening, 
which modify or interpret Bidding documents by addition, deletion, clarification or correction. 
 
ADVERTISEMENT.  A public announcement, as required by local law, inviting bids for work to be performed and 
materials to be furnished. 
 
ARCHITECT. Architect shall be interchangeable with the Gila County assigned “Facility Services Project Manager” 
for such projects that do not include the services of an outside Consultant or Registrant. 
 
APPROVED. Where used in conjunction with the Architect’s/Engineer’s and/or Owners response to SUBMITTALS, 
requests, applications, inquiries, reports and claims by the Contractor, the meaning of the term “approved” will be 
held to the limitations of the Architect’s/Engineer’s responsibilities and duties as specified in the General and 
Supplementary Conditions. In no case will “approval” by the Architect/Engineer be interpreted as a release of the 
Contractor from responsibilities to fulfill the requirements of the Contract Documents. 
 
ASTM.  The American Society for Testing and Materials. 
 
AWARD.  The acceptance, by the Owner, of the successful bidder's proposal. 
 
BASE BID. The sum stated in the Bid for which the Bidder offers to perform Work described as base including all 
allowances, to which Work may be added or deducted for sums stated in Alternate Bid(s), if applicable. 
 
BIDDER.  Any individual, partnership, firm, or corporation, acting directly or through a duly authorized 
representative, who submits a proposal for the work described in the Bidding Documents. 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-9 
 

BIDDING DOCUMENTS / CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. Includes all portions of the General Provisions, Addenda, Plans 
and Technical Specifications. 
 
BUILDING AREA.  An area to be used, considered, or intended to be used for a building or other facilities or rights-
of-way together with all buildings and facilities located thereon. 
 
BUILDING INSPECTOR. Employee of Gila County Community Development, authorized and required to perform 
inspections of the Work at various stages, as identified on the Blue Inspection Card, for compliance with minimum 
Code requirements of the Building Permit. NO WORK is to be covered up prior to inspection by Building Inspector. 
 
CALENDAR DAY.  Every day shown on the calendar. 
 
CHANGE ORDER.  A written order by the Architect/Engineer and/or Owner to the Contractor covering changes in 
the plans, specifications, or proposal quantities and establishing the basis of payment and contract time 
adjustment, if any, for the work affected by such changes.  The work, covered  by a change order, shall be within 
the scope of the contract. 
 
CONTRACT.  The written agreement covering the work to be performed.  The awarded contract shall include, but 
is not limited to:  the Advertisement; the General Provisions, the Construction Contract, the Bid Proposal, the 
Performance Bond, the Payment Bond, any required insurance certificates, the Specifications; the Plans; and any 
addenda issued to bidders. 
 
CONTRACT  ITEM (PAY ITEM).  A specific unit of work for which a price is provided in the contract.  All pay items 
on this contract will be measured in English units. 
 
CONTRACT TIME.  The number of calendar days or working days, stated in the proposal, allowed for completion of 
the contract, including authorized time extensions.  If a calendar date of completion is stated in the proposal, in 
lieu of a number of calendar or working days, the contract shall be completed by that date. 
 
CONTRACTOR.  The individual, partnership, firm, or corporation primarily liable for the acceptable performance of 
the work contracted and for the payment of all legal debts pertaining to the work who acts directly or through 
lawful agents or employees to complete the contract work. 
 
CONTRACTOR'S ENGINEER.  The Arizona Registered Professional Engineer, individual, partnership, firm, or 
corporation, duly authorized by the State of Arizona, hired by the Contractor to be responsible for engineering 
supervision, quality control and certification of the Contract work. If not required, all references to “Contractor’s 
Engineer” shall mean the “Contractor”. 
 
EQUIPMENT.  All machinery, together with the necessary fuel and supplies for upkeep and maintenance including, 
but not limited to, all tools and apparatus necessary for the proper construction and acceptable completion of the 
work. 
 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-10 
 

EXTRA WORK.  An item of work not provided for in the awarded contract as previously modified by change order 
or supplemental agreement, but which is found by the Owner's Engineer to be necessary to complete the work 
within the intended scope of the contract as previously modified. 
 
FACILITY SERVICES PROJECT MANAGER.  An authorized representative of the Owner assigned to make all 
necessary quality assurance inspections and/or tests of the work performed or being performed, or of the 
materials furnished or being furnished by the Contractor, on behalf of the Owner for compliance with all portions 
of the Contract Documents. 
 
FINAL COMPLETION. Time at which the Owner finds the Work acceptable under the Contract Documents and the 
Contract fully performed, including acceptance of O&M Manuals, warranties, guaranties, as-built record 
documents, extra stock items, and all punch list items have been corrected, accepted and completed. The Owner 
will approve the Final Payment due the Contractor. 
 
FURNISH. Except as otherwise defined in greater detail, is used to mean supply and deliver to the project site, 
ready for unloading, unpacking, assembly, installation, etc., as applicable in each instance.  
 
INSTALL. Except as otherwise defined in greater detail, the term “install” is used to describe operations at the 
project site including unloading, unpacking, assembly, erection, placing anchoring, applying, working to 
dimension, finishing, curing, protection, cleaning and similar operation, as applicable in each instance. 
 
INSTALLER. The entity (person or firm) engaged by the Contractor or its subcontractor or sub-subcontractor for 
the performance of a particular unit of work at the project site, including installation, erection, application and 
similar required operations. It is a general requirement that such entities (Installers) be expert in the operations 
they are engaged to perform. 
 
INTENTION OF TERMS.  Whenever, in these specifications or on the plans, the words "directed," "required," 
"permitted," "ordered," "designated," "prescribed," or words of the like import are used, it shall be understood 
that the direction, requirement, permission, order, designation, or prescription of the Owner is intended; and 
similarly, the words, "approved," "acceptable," "satisfactory," or words of like import, shall mean approved by, or 
acceptable to, or satisfactory to the Owner, subject in each case to the final determination of the Owner. 
 
Any reference to a specific requirement of a numbered paragraph of the contract specifications or a cited 
standard shall be interpreted to include all general requirements of the entire section, specification item, or cited 
standard that may be pertinent to such specific reference. 
 
INTERNATIONAL CODE. Shall be latest State of Arizona and/or Gila County adopted version, with amendments, at 
the time the contract was bid. This shall include the building, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, fuel gas and fire 
codes adopted by Gila County or the State of Arizona. 
 
LABORATORY.  A testing laboratory as may be designated or approved by the Owner’s to test construction 
materials and products. 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-11 
 

 
LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND.  The approved form of security furnished by the Contractor and his surety as a 
guaranty that he will pay in full all bills and accounts for materials and labor used in the construction of the work.  
Also known as Payment Bond. 
 
MAJOR AND MINOR CONTRACT ITEMS.  A major contract item shall be any item that is listed in the proposal, the 
total cost of which is equal to or greater than 10 percent of the total amount of the awarded contract.  All other 
items shall be considered minor contract items. 
 
MATERIALS.  Any product or substance specified for use in the construction of the contract work. 
 
NOTICE TO PROCEED.  A written notice to the Contractor to begin the actual contract work on a previously agreed 
to date.  If applicable, the Notice to Proceed shall state the date on which the contract time begins. 
 
OVERTIME HOURS.  Any and all hours worked which are other than a normal work week as defined.  Contractor 
must give prior written notification to the Public Works Director or his authorized representative, for any and all 
overtime hours to be worked.  It shall be at the Owner's discretion to provide an inspector at the worksite to 
ensure compliance during any and all overtime hours worked.  
 
OVERTIME PAY.  Any and all pay resulting from overtime hours worked.  
 
OWNER (SPONSOR).  The term Owner shall mean the Gila County Board of Supervisors. Unless noted otherwise, 
and assigned Gila County Facility Services Project Manager shall act on behalf of the County for construction 
purposes. 
 
OWNER'S ENGINEER.  The individual, partnership, firm, or corporation duly authorized by the Owner (sponsor) to 
be responsible for engineering supervision of the contract work and acting directly or through an authorized 
representative.  There is no Owner's Engineer on this project. See definition of Owner. Facilities Services Project 
Manager shall be substituted as Owner’s Engineer where ever referenced in the documents. 
 
OWNER'S INSPECTOR'S OVERTIME PAY.  Any and all pay to the Owner's Inspector for overtime hours worked 
resulting from the Contractor having received approval for overtime hours.  The inspector's overtime pay shall be 
the actual monies paid by the County and shall be reimbursed by the Contractor to the County.  Certified payrolls 
for the Owner's Inspector's Overtime will be submitted to the Contractor.  The cost for the Owner's Inspector's 
Overtime Pay will be deducted from the Contractor's billing. 
 
PERFORMANCE BOND.  The approved form of security furnished by the Contractor and his surety as a guaranty 
that the Contractor will complete the work in accordance with the terms of the Contract. 
 
PLANS.  The official drawings or exact reproductions, approved by the Owner, which show the location, character, 
dimensions and details of the work to be done and which are to be considered as a part of the contract, 
supplementary to the specifications. 
 
PROJECT.  The agreed scope of work as identified in the Contract Documents. 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-12 
 

 
PROPOSAL.  The written offer of the bidder (when submitted on the approved proposal form) to perform the 
contemplated work and furnish the necessary materials in accordance with the provisions of the plans and 
specifications. 
 
PROPOSAL GUARANTY.  The security furnished with a proposal to guarantee that the bidder will enter into a 
contract if his proposal is accepted by the Owner. 
 
PROVIDE. Except, as otherwise defined in greater detail, the term “provide” means furnish and install, complete 
and ready for the intended use, as applicable in each instance. 
 
SPECIFICATIONS.  A part of the contract containing the written directions and requirements for completing the 
contract work.  Standards for specifying materials or testing which are cited in the contract specifications by 
reference shall have the same force and effect as if included in the contract physically. 
 
STRUCTURES.  Facilities such as buildings, porches, ramadas, bridges, culverts, catch basins, inlets, retaining walls, 
cribbing, storm and sanitary sewer lines, water lines, underdrains, electrical ducts, manholes, handholes, lighting 
fixtures and bases, transformers, flexible and rigid pavements, navigational aids, vaults, and other manmade 
features that may be encountered in the work and not otherwise classified herein. 
 
SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION. The date certified by the Owner when construction is sufficiently complete, in 
accordance with the Contract Documents, so that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work or a designated 
portion thereof for the use for which it is intended. All systems and equipment are fully functioning, all inspection 
and agency approvals have been received and only minor punch list items exist that will not disrupt the 
occupants. Substantial Completion does not imply acceptance. 
 
SUPERINTENDENT.  The Contractor's authorized representative who is present on the work site during progress, 
and is authorized to receive and fulfill instructions from the Owner, and who shall supervise and direct the 
construction. 
 
SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT.  A written agreement between the Contractor and the Owner covering: 1) work 
that would increase or decrease the total dollar amount of the awarded contract, or any major contract item, by 
more than 25 percent, such increased or decreased work being within the scope of the originally awarded 
contract, or 2) work that is not within the scope of the originally awarded contract. 
 
SURETY.  The corporation, partnership, or individual, other than the Contractor, executing payment or 
performance bonds which are furnished to the Owner by the Contractor. 
 
WORK.  The furnishing of all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals necessary or convenient to the 
Contractor's performance of all duties and obligations imposed by the contract, plans, and specifications. 
 
 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-13 
 

 
WORK DAY, WORKING DAY.  A work day shall be any day other than a legal holiday, Saturday, or Sunday on which 
the normal working forces of the Contractor may proceed with regular work for at least 6 hours toward 
completion of the contract, unless work is suspended for causes beyond the Contractor's control.  Saturdays, 
Sundays and holidays on which the Contractor's forces engage in regular work, after obtaining written permission 
from the Public Works Director, or his authorized representative, which requires the presence of an inspector, will 
be considered and applied as working days.   
 
WORK WEEK.  A work week shall consist of forty (40) hours beginning on Sunday and ending on Saturday.  Should 
the Contractor engage in work exceeding the forty (40) hour work week which requires the presence of an 
inspector, as determined by the County Public Works Director or his authorized representative, the Contractor 
shall reimburse the County for all overtime hours. 
 
   



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-14 
 

 
 

 
 

 

SECTION 20 
PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
20-03 CONTENTS OF PROPOSAL FORMS.  The Owner shall furnish bidders with proposal forms, see Contract 
Forms Section.  All papers bound with, or attached to, or referenced, the proposal forms are necessary parts of 
the proposal. The proposal submitted by the bidder must include the entire bid packet. 
 
The plans, specifications, and other documents designated in the proposal whether attached or not to the 
proposal are considered as a part of and included with the proposal. 
 
Bids will be accepted only from those Contractors who are licensed in the State of Arizona and qualified under the 
laws of the State of Arizona to perform the work specified. 
 
20-04 ISSUANCE OF PROPOSAL FORMS.  The Owner reserves the right to refuse to issue a proposal form to a 
prospective bidder should such bidder be in default for any of the following reasons:  
 

(a)    Failure to comply with any prequalification regulations of the Owner, if such regulations are cited, or 
otherwise included, in the proposal as a requirement for bidding. 

(b)    Failure to pay, or satisfactorily settle, all bills due for labor and materials on former contracts in force 
(with the Owner) at the time the Owner issues the proposal to a prospective bidder. 

(c)    Contractor default under previous contracts with the Owner. 
(d)    Unsatisfactory work on previous contracts with the Owner. 
 

20-05 ALLOWANCES.  The contractor shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Contract 
Documents. Items covered by allowances shall be supplied for such amounts as identified. See Allowances 90-04. 
The Schedule of Values and Payment Application shall identify each Allowance as a separate line item. 
 
20-06 EXAMINATION OF PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND SITE.  The bidder is expected to carefully examine the site 
of the proposed work, the proposal, plans, specifications, and contract forms.  He shall satisfy himself as to the 
character, quality, and quantities of work to be performed, materials to be furnished, and as to the requirements 
of the proposed contract.  The submission of a proposal shall be prima facie evidence that the bidder has made 
such examination and is satisfied as to the conditions to be encountered in performing the work and as to the 
requirements of the proposed contract, plans and specifications. 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-15 
 

 
If any person contemplating submitting a bid for the proposed contract is in doubt as to the true meaning of any 
part of the plans, specifications, or other proposed contract documents, or finds discrepancies in, or omissions 
from the drawings or specifications, he may submit to the Owner a written request for an interpretation or 
correction thereof.  The person submitting the request will be responsible for its prompt delivery.  Any 
interpretation or correction of the contract documents will be made only by addendum duly issued and a copy of 
such addendum will be made or delivered to each person having received a set of such documents.  The Owner 
will not be responsible for any other explanations or interpretations of the contract documents. 
 
Any addenda or bulletins issued during the time of bid preparations, forming a part of the contract documents 
furnished the bidder for the preparation of his bid, shall be covered in the bid, and shall be made a part of the 
contract. 
 
20-07  PREPARATION OF PROPOSAL  The bidder shall submit his proposal on the forms furnished by the Owner.  
No forms shall be detached from the bid packet.  The proposal must include the entire bid packet.  All blank 
spaces in the proposal forms must be correctly filled in where indicated for each and every item for which a 
quantity is given.  The bidder shall state the price (written in ink or typed) in NUMERALS for which he proposes to 
do each pay item furnished in the proposal.  The TOTAL AGGREGATE AMOUNT bid shall be stated in both WORDS 
and NUMERALS.  In case of conflict between words and numerals, the words, unless obviously incorrect, shall 
govern. A minimum of one (1) original and two (2) copies ALL with original signatures shall be submitted. 
 
The bidder shall sign his proposal correctly and in ink.  If the proposal is made by an individual, his name and 
mailing address must be shown.  If made by a partnership, the name and mailing address of each member of the 
partnership must be shown.  If made by a corporation, the person signing the proposal shall give the name of the 
state under which the laws of the corporation were chartered and the name, titles, and business address of the 
president, secretary, and the treasurer.  Anyone signing a proposal as an agent shall file evidence of his authority 
to do so and that the signature is binding upon the firm or corporation. 
 
20-08 IRREGULAR PROPOSALS.  Proposals shall be considered irregular for the following reasons: 
 

(a)    If the proposal is on a form other than that furnished by the Owner, or if the Owner's form is altered, or 
if any part of the proposal form is detached. 

(b)    If there are unauthorized additions, conditional or alternate pay items, or irregularities of any kind which 
make the proposal incomplete, indefinite, or otherwise ambiguous. 

(c)    If the proposal does not contain a unit price for each pay item listed in the proposal, except in the case 
of authorized alternate pay items, for which the bidder is not required to furnish a unit price. 

(d)    If the proposal contains unit prices that are obviously unbalanced. 
(e)    If the proposal is not accompanied by the proposal guaranty specified by the Owner. 

 
The Owner reserves the right to reject any irregular proposal and the right to waive technicalities if such waiver is 
in the best interest of the Owner and conforms to local laws and ordinances pertaining to the letting of 
construction contracts. 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-16 
 

20-09 PROPOSAL GUARANTY.  Each proposal shall be accompanied by a certified check, cashier’s check or surety 
bond for ten percent (10%) of the amount of the bid included in the proposal as a guarantee that the Contractor 
will enter into a contract to perform the proposed work in accordance with the plans and specifications. 
 
20-10  DELIVERY OF PROPOSAL.  Each proposal submitted shall be placed in a sealed envelope plainly marked 
with the bid number, name of project, and name and business address of the bidder on the outside.  When sent 
by mail, preferably registered, or courier, the sealed proposal, marked as indicated above, should be enclosed in 
an additional envelope.  No proposal will be considered unless received at the place specified in the 
advertisement before the time specified.  Proposals received after the specified time shall be returned to the 
bidder unopened. 
 
20-11 WITHDRAWAL OR REVISION OF PROPOSALS.  A bidder may withdraw or revise (by withdrawal of one 
proposal and submission of another) a proposal provided that the bidder's request for withdrawal is received by 
the Owner in writing or by telegram before the time specified for receipt of bids.  Revised proposals must be 
received at the place specified in the advertisement before the time specified for receipt of bids.   
 
20-12 PUBLIC OPENING OF PROPOSALS.  Proposals shall be opened and read publicly at the time and place 
specified in the advertisement.  Bidders, their authorized agents, and other interested persons are invited to 
attend. 
 
Proposals that have been withdrawn (by written or telegraphic request) or received after the time specified shall 
be returned to the bidder unopened. 
 
20-13 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS.  A bidder shall be considered disqualified for any of the following reasons: 

 
(a)    Submitting more than one proposal from the same partnership, firm, or corporation under the same or 

different name. 
 
(b)    Evidence of collusion among bidders.  Bidders participating in such collusion shall be disqualified as 

bidders for any future work of the Owner until any such participating bidder has been reinstated by the 
Owner as a qualified bidder. 

 
(c) If the bidder is considered to be in "default" for any reason specified in the subsection titled ISSUANCE 

OF PROPOSAL FORMS of Section 20-04.   
 
(d) Failure to submit all required official bid forms. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-17 
 

 
20-14 PROTESTS.  Only other bidders who have submitted a bid for this project, have the right to protest.  A 
protest of a proposed award or of an award must be filed within ten (10) days after the bid award by the Gila 
County Board of Supervisors and must be sent to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors.  A protest must be in 
writing and must include: 

 
(a)    Name, address and telephone number of the protester. 
(b)    Signature of the protester or its representative, and evidence of authority to sign. 
(c)    Identification of the contract and the solicitation or contract number. 
(d)    Detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of relevant documents. 
(e) The form of relief requested. 

 

All protests shall be sent to the attention of the Clerk of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, 1400 E. Ash 

Street, Globe, AZ 85501.



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-18 
 

 

 
 

SECTION 30 
AWARD & EXECUTION OF CONTRACT 

 
30-01 CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSALS.   
After the proposals are publicly opened and read, they will be compared on the basis of Lump Sum cost and 
qualifications. If a bidder’s proposal contains a discrepancy between lump sum cost written in words and lump 
sum costs written in numbers, the lump sum cost written in words, unless obviously incorrect, shall govern. Bids 
will be accepted only from those Contractors who are licensed in the State of Arizona and qualified under the laws 
of the State of Arizona to perform the work specified. All work performed under the Contract by such licensed 
Contractors must be made to comply with all applicable laws and requirements of any governing bodies or 
regulatory agencies having jurisdiction over such Work.  
 
The General Contractor shall determine that subcontractors are licensed, insured, and qualified to perform their 
respective work under the contract and shall determine that they are bondable, if required.  
 
Until the award of a contract is made, the Owner reserves the right to reject a bidder's proposal for any of the 
following reasons: 
 

(a)    If the proposal is irregular as specified in the subsection titled IRREGULAR PROPOSALS of Section 20-08. 
(b)    If the bidder is disqualified for any of the reasons specified in the subsection titled DISQUALIFICATION OF 

BIDDERS of Section 20-13. 
 
In addition, until the award of a contract is made, the Owner reserves the right to reject any or all proposals; 
waive technicalities, if such waiver is in the best interest of the Owner and is in conformance with applicable state 
and local laws or regulations pertaining to the letting of construction contracts; advertise for new proposals; or 
proceed with the work otherwise.  All such actions shall promote the Owner's best interests. 
 
If a Bidder should fail to receive any addendum, or should fail to acknowledge receipt of same, the Bidder shall 
have the option of accepting a contract, if offered, including all addenda, at the bid price, or withdrawing the bid 
without penalty. The owner and/or A/E are not responsible for assuring delivery of addenda to any Bidder. Failure 
to receive addenda or failure to acknowledge receipt shall not constitute a basis for claim, protest, or re-issue of 
the invitation to bid. 
 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-19 
 

 
30-02 AWARD OF CONTRACT.  The award of contract, if it is to be awarded, shall be made within sixty (60) 
calendar days of the date specified for publicly opening proposals, unless otherwise specified herein. 
 
This contract will be awarded to the responsible bidder whose bid conforms to the invitation and whose bid is the 
most advantageous to the Owner concerning price, conformity to the specifications and other factors. 
 
30-03 CANCELLATION OF AWARD.  The Owner reserves the right to cancel the award without liability to the 
bidder, except return of proposal guaranty, at any time before a contract has been fully executed by all parties 
and is approved by the Owner in accordance with the subsection titled APPROVAL OF CONTRACT of Section 30-07. 
 
30-04 RETURN OF PROPOSAL GUARANTY.  All proposal guaranties, except those of the two lowest bidders, will be 
returned immediately after the Owner has made a comparison of bids as hereinbefore specified in the subsection 
titled CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSALS of Section 30-01.  Proposal guaranties of the two lowest bidders will be 
retained by the Owner until such time as an award is made, at which time the unsuccessful bidder's proposal 
guaranty will be returned as soon as the Owner receives the contract bonds as specified in the subsection titled 
REQUIREMENTS OF CONTRACT BONDS of Section 30-05. 
 
30-05 REQUIREMENTS OF CONTRACT BONDS.  At the time of the execution of the contract, the successful bidder 
shall furnish the Owner surety bond or bonds which have been fully executed by the bidder and his surety 
guaranteeing the performance of the work and the payment of all legal debts that may be incurred by reason of 
the Contractor's performance of the work.  The surety and the form of the bond or bonds shall be acceptable to 
the Owner.  Unless otherwise specified in this subsection, the surety bond or bonds shall be in a sum equal to the 
full amount of the contract.  All bonds shall conform to the requirements of A.R.S. §34-222 and §34-223. 
 
30-06 EXECUTION OF CONTRACT. The successful bidder shall sign (execute) the necessary agreements for 
entering into the contract and return such signed contract to the Owner, along with the fully executed surety 
bond or bonds specified in the subsection titled REQUIREMENTS OF CONTRACT BONDS of Section 30-05, the 
Contractor’s Statement of Insurance and an original Certificate of Insurance conforming with the requirements of 
Section 70-10, within 10 calendar days from the date mailed or otherwise delivered to the successful bidder.  If 
the contract is mailed, special handling is recommended. 
 
30-07 APPROVAL OF CONTRACT.  Upon receipt of the contract and contract bond or bonds that have been 
executed by the successful bidder, the Owner shall complete the execution of the contract in accordance with 
local laws or ordinances, and return the fully executed contract to the Contractor.  Delivery of the fully executed 
contract to the Contractor shall constitute the Owner's approval to be bound by the successful bidder's proposal 
and the terms of the contract.  This agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to A.R.S. §38-511.   
 
30-08 FAILURE TO EXECUTE CONTRACT.  Failure of the successful bidder to execute the contract as specified in 
the subsection titled EXECUTION OF CONTRACT of Section 30-06 and furnish an acceptable surety bond or bonds 
within the 10-calendar-day period specified in the subsection titled REQUIREMENTS OF CONTRACT BONDS of 
Section 30-05 shall be just cause for cancellation of the award and forfeiture of the proposal guaranty, not as a 
penalty, but as liquidation of damages to the Owner. 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-20 
 

 
 

 
 

 

SECTION 40 
SCOPE OF WORK 

 
 
40-01 INTENT OF CONTRACT.  The intent of the contract is to provide for construction and completion, in every 
detail, of the work described.  It is further intended that the Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, 
equipment, tools, and supplies required to complete the work in accordance with the plans, specifications, and 
terms of the contract. 
 
40-02 CHANGES TO THE WORK.  The Owner has identified an Allowance to be included in the Base Bid for 
unforeseen expenses that may require a Change Order. The Owner reserves and shall have the right to make such 
alterations in the work as may be necessary or desirable to complete the work originally intended in an acceptable 
manner.  Unless otherwise specified herein, the Owner shall be and is hereby authorized to make such alterations 
in the work as may increase or decrease the originally awarded contract amount, provided that the aggregate of 
such alterations does not exceed the amount identified for this allowance.  
 
These alterations which are for work within the general scope of the contract shall be covered by "Change Orders" 
issued by the Owner, against the Allowance.  Change order for altered work shall include extensions of contract 
time where, in the Owner's opinion, such extensions impact the critical path of the approved construction 
schedule, per Section 90-06. If the Owner and the Contractor are unable to agree on a cost for adjustment to any 
contract item, the Owner reserves the right to terminate the contract with respect to the item and make other 
arrangements for its completion. 
 
40-03 OMITTED ITEMS.  The Owner may, in the Owner's best interest, omit from the work any contract item, 
except major contract items.  Major contract items may be omitted by a supplemental agreement.  Such omission 
of contract items shall not invalidate any other contract provision or requirement. 
 
Should a contract item be omitted or otherwise ordered to be non-performed, the Contractor shall be paid for all 
work performed toward completion of such item prior to the date of the order to omit such item.  Payment for 
work performed shall be in accordance with the subsection titled CHANGE ORDERS of Section 90-03. 
 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-21 
 

 
40-04 EXTRA WORK.  Should acceptable completion of the contract require the Contractor to perform an item of 
work for which no basis of payment has been provided in the original contract or previously issued change orders 
or supplemental agreements, the same shall be called EXTRA WORK.  Extra work that is within the general scope 
of the contract shall be covered by written change order.  Change orders for such extra work shall contain agreed 
unit or lump sum cost(s) for performing the change order work in accordance with the requirements specified in 
the order, and shall contain any adjustment to the contract time that, in the Owner's opinion, is necessary for 
completion of such extra work. 
 
Extra work that is necessary for acceptable completion of the project, but is not within the general scope of the 
work covered by the original contract, shall be covered by an agreement as hereinbefore defined in the 
subsection titled SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT of Section 10. 
 
Any claim for payment of extra work that is not covered by written agreement (change order or supplemental 
agreement) shall be rejected by the Owner. 
 
40-05 MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC.  It is the explicit intention of the contract that the safety of all traffic, vehicular 
and pedestrian, as well as the Contractor's equipment and personnel, is the most important consideration. 
 
With respect to his own operations and the operations of all his subcontractors, the Contractor shall provide 
marking, lighting, and other acceptable means of identifying personnel, equipment, vehicles, storage areas, and 
any work area or condition that may be hazardous to the operation of all traffic, vehicular and pedestrian. 
 
40-6 RIGHTS IN AND USE OF MATERIALS FOUND IN THE WORK.   
Not applicable to this project. 
 
40-07 FINAL CLEANING UP.  Upon completion of the work and before acceptance and final payment will be made, 
the Contractor shall remove from the site all machinery, equipment, surplus and discarded materials, rubbish, and 
temporary structures. Material cleared from the site and deposited on adjacent property will not be considered as 
having been disposed of satisfactorily, unless the Contractor has obtained the written permission of such property 
owner and furnished a copy to the Owner. 
  



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-22 
 

 

 
 

 

SECTION 50 
CONTROL OF WORK 

 

 
50-01 AUTHORITY OF THE OWNER.  The Owner shall decide any and all questions which may arise as to the 
quality and acceptability of materials furnished, based upon the Contractor's certification for the quality and 
acceptability work performed, and as to the manner of performance and rate of progress of the work.  The Owner 
shall decide all questions which may arise as to the interpretation of the specifications or plans relating to the 
work, the fulfillment of the contract on the part of the Contractor, and the rights of different contractors on the 
project.  The Owner shall review and determine, based upon the Contractor's certifications on quantity and 
quality of the work and materials furnished, the amount and quality of the several kinds of work performed and 
materials furnished which are to be paid for under contract. 
 
50-02 CONFORMITY WITH PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS.  All work and materials furnished shall be the full 
responsibility of the Contractor and shall be in reasonably close conformity with the lines, grades, grading section, 
cross sections, dimensions, material requirements, and testing requirements that are specified (including specified 
tolerances) in the contract, plans, or specifications, and shall be certified by the Contractor. 
 
If the Owner finds the materials furnished, work performed, or the finished product not within reasonably close 
conformity with the plans and specifications, but that the portion of the work affected will, in his opinion, result in 
a finished product having a level of safety, economy, durability and workmanship acceptable to the Owner, he will 
advise the Contractor of his determination that the affected work be accepted and remain in place.  In this event, 
the Owner will document his determination and recommend a basis of acceptance which will provide for an 
adjustment in the contract price for the affected portion of the work.  The Owner's determination and 
recommended contract price adjustments will be based on good engineering judgment and on such tests or 
retests by the Owner, and at the Contractor's expense, of the affected work as are, in his opinion, needed.  
Changes in the contract price shall be covered by contract modifications (change order or supplemental 
agreement) as applicable. 
 
If the Owner finds the materials furnished, work performed, or the finished product are not in reasonably close 
conformity with the plans and specifications and have resulted in an unacceptable finished product, the affected 
work or materials shall be removed and replaced or otherwise corrected by and at the expense of the Contractor 
in accordance with the Owner written orders. 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-23 
 

 
For the purpose of this subsection, the term "reasonably close conformity" shall not be construed as waiving the 
Contractor's responsibility to complete the work in accordance with the contract, plans and specifications.  The 
terms’ shall not be construed as waiving the Owner's right to insist on strict compliance with the requirements of 
the contract, plans, and specifications during the Contractor's prosecution of the work, when, in the Owner's 
opinion, such compliance is essential to provide an acceptable finished portion of the work. 
 
For the purpose of this subsection, the term "reasonably close conformity" is also intended to provide the Owner 
with the authority to use good engineering judgment in his determinations as to acceptance of work that is not in 
strict conformity but will provide a finished product equal to or better than that intended by the requirements of 
the contract, plans and specifications. 
 
50-03 COORDINATION OF CONTRACT, PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS.  The contract, plans, specifications, and all 
referenced standards cited are essential parts of the contract requirements.  A requirement occurring in one is as 
binding as though occurring in all.  They are intended to be complementary and to describe and provide for a 
complete work.  In case of discrepancy, calculated dimensions will govern over scaled dimensions; contract 
technical specifications shall govern over contract general provisions, plans, cited standards for materials or 
testing; contract general provisions shall govern over plans, cited standards for materials or testing; plans shall 
govern over County standards for materials or testing. 
 
The Contractor shall not take advantage of any apparent error or omission on the plans or specifications.  In the 
event the Contractor discovers any apparent error or discrepancy, he shall immediately call upon the Owner for 
his interpretation and decision, and such decision shall be final. 
 
50-04 COOPERATION OF CONTRACTOR.  The Contractor will be supplied with two copies each of the plans and 
specifications.  He shall have available on the job, at all times, one copy each of the plans and specifications.  
Additional copies of plans and specifications may be obtained by the Contractor for the cost of reproduction. 
 
The Contractor shall give constant attention to the work to facilitate the progress thereof, and he shall cooperate 
with the Owner and his inspectors and with other contractors in every way possible.  The Owner shall allocate the 
work and designate the sequence of construction in case of controversy between contractors.  The Contractor 
shall have a competent superintendent on the job at all times who is fully authorized as his agent for the work.  
The superintendent shall be capable of reading and thoroughly understanding the plans and specifications and 
shall receive and fulfill instructions from the Owner or his authorized representative. 
 
50-05 COOPERATION BETWEEN CONTRACTORS.  The Owner reserves the right to contract for and perform other 
or additional work on or near the work covered by this contract. 
 
When separate contracts are let within the limits of any one project, each contractor shall conduct his work so as 
not to interfere with or hinder the progress of completion of the work being performed by other contractors.  
Contractors working on the same project shall cooperate with each other as directed. 
 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-24 
 

 
Each contractor involved shall assume all liability, financial or otherwise, in connection with his contract and shall 
protect and save harmless the Owner from any and all damages or claims that may arise because of 
inconvenience, delays, or loss experienced by him because of the presence and operations of other contractors 
working within the limits of the same project. 
 
The Contractor shall arrange his work and shall place and dispose of the materials being used so as not to 
interfere with the operations of the other contractors within the limits of the same project.  He shall join his work 
with that of the others in an acceptable manner and shall perform it in proper sequence to that of the others. 
 
50-06 CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT AND STAKES.  The Contractor and the Contractor's Engineer will establish 
measurements necessary to the proper prosecution and control of the work contracted for under these 
specifications.  The Contractor shall satisfy himself as to the accuracy of all measurements before constructing any 
permanent elements.  No claim for additional compensation for correction shall be submitted for payment and 
such shall be corrected by the Contractor at his expense.  
 
50-07 AUTOMATICALLY CONTROLLED EQUIPMENT.  Not applicable to this project. 
 
50-08 AUTHORITY AND DUTIES OF INSPECTORS.  Inspectors employed by the Owner shall be authorized to 
inspect all work done and all material furnished.  Such inspection may extend to all or any part of the work and to 
the preparation, fabrication, or manufacture of the materials to be used.  Inspectors are not authorized to revoke, 
alter, or waive any provision of the contract.  Inspectors are not authorized to issue instructions contrary to the 
plans and specifications or to act as foreman for the Contractor. 
 
Inspectors employed by the Owner are authorized to notify the Contractor or his representative of any failure of 
the work or materials to conform to the requirements of the contract, plans, or specifications and to reject such 
nonconforming materials in question until such issues can be referred to the Owner for his decision. 
 
No work shall be covered up until it has passed inspection. If covered, the Contractor will be required to uncover 
the work. The cost of uncovering, removal and the replacing of the covering or making good of the parts removed 
will be at the Contractor's expense. 
 
 
50-09 INSPECTION OF THE WORK.  All materials and each part or detail of the work shall be subject to inspection 
by the Owner.  The Owner shall be allowed access to all parts of the work and shall be furnished with such 
information and assistance by the Contractor as is required to make a complete and detailed inspection. 
 
If the Owner requests it, the Contractor, at any time before acceptance of the work, shall remove or uncover such 
portions of the finished work as may be directed.  After examination, the Contractor shall restore said portions of 
the work to the standard required by the specifications.  Should the work thus exposed or examined prove 
acceptable, the uncovering, or removing and the replacing of the covering or making good of the parts removed 
will be paid for as extra work; but should the work so exposed or examined prove unacceptable, the uncovering, 
or removing, and the replacing of the covering or making good of the parts removed will be at the Contractor's 
expense. 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-25 
 

 
Any work done or materials used without supervision or inspection by an authorized representative of the Owner 
may be ordered removed and replaced at the Contractor's expense unless the Owner's representative failed to 
inspect after having been given reasonable notice in writing that the work was to be performed. 
 
Should the contract work include relocation, adjustment, or any other modification to existing facilities, not the 
property of the (contract) Owner, authorized representatives of the owners of such facilities shall have the right 
to inspect such work.  Such inspection shall in no way make any facility owner a party to the contract, and shall in 
no way interfere with the rights of the parties to this contract. 
 
50-10 REMOVAL OF UNACCEPTABLE AND UNAUTHORIZED WORK.  All work which does not conform to the 
requirements of the contract, plans, and specifications will be considered unacceptable, unless otherwise 
determined acceptable by the Owner as provided in the subsection titled CONFORMITY WITH PLANS AND 
SPECIFICATIONS of Section 50-02. 
 
Unacceptable work, whether the result of poor workmanship, use of defective materials, damage through 
carelessness, or any other cause found to exist prior to the final acceptance of the work, shall be removed 
immediately and replaced in an acceptable manner in accordance with the provisions of the subsection titled 
CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR WORK of Section 70-13. 
 
Work done contrary to the instructions of the Owner, work done beyond the lines shown on the plans or as given, 
except as herein specified, or any extra work done without authority will be considered as unauthorized and will 
not be paid for under the provisions of the contract.  Work so done may be ordered removed or replaced at the 
Contractor's expense. 
 
Upon failure on the part of the Contractor to comply as soon as possible with any order of the Owner made under 
the provisions of this subsection, the Owner will have authority to cause unacceptable work to be remedied or 
removed and replaced and unauthorized work to be removed and to deduct the costs (incurred by the Owner) 
from any monies due or to become due the Contractor. 
 
50-11 LOAD RESTRICTIONS.  The Contractor shall comply with all legal load restrictions in the hauling of materials 
on public roads beyond the limits of the work.  A special permit will not relieve the Contractor of liability for 
damage that may result from the moving of material or equipment. The Contractor shall be responsible for all 
damage done by his hauling equipment and shall correct such damage at his own expense. 
 
50-12 MAINTENANCE DURING CONSTRUCTION.  The Contractor shall maintain the work during construction and 
until the work is accepted.  This maintenance shall constitute continuous and effective work prosecuted day by 
day, with adequate equipment and forces so that the work is maintained in satisfactory condition at all times.  
 
All costs of maintenance work during construction and before the project is accepted shall be included in the base 
bid on the various contract items, and the Contractor will not be paid an additional amount for such work. 
 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-26 
 

 
50-13 FAILURE TO MAINTAIN THE WORK.  Should the Contractor at any time fail to maintain the work as 
provided in the subsection titled MAINTENANCE DURING CONSTRUCTION of Section 50-12, the Owner shall 
immediately notify the Contractor of such noncompliance.  Such notification shall specify a reasonable time within 
which the Contractor shall be required to remedy such unsatisfactory maintenance conditions.  The time specified 
will give due consideration to the emergency that exists. 
 
Should the Contractor fail to respond to the Owner notification, the Owner may suspend any work necessary for 
the Owner to correct such unsatisfactory maintenance condition, depending on the emergency that exists.  Any 
maintenance cost incurred by the Owner shall be deducted from monies due or to become due the Contractor. 
 
50-14 PARTIAL ACCEPTANCE.  If at any time during the prosecution of the project the Contractor substantially 
completes a usable unit or portion of the work, the occupancy of which will benefit the Owner, he may request 
the Owner to make final inspection of that unit.  If the Owner finds upon inspection that the work has been 
satisfactorily completed in compliance with the contract documents, and certified to be in compliance by the 
Contractor, he may accept it as being completed, and the Contractor may be relieved of further responsibility for 
that work, subject to stated guarantees.  Such partial acceptance and beneficial occupancy by the Owner shall not 
void or alter any provision of the contract. 
 
50-15 FINAL ACCEPTANCE.  Upon due notice from the Contractor of presumptive completion of the entire project, 
Owner will make an inspection.  If all construction provided for and contemplated by the contract is found to be 
completed in accordance with the contract, plans, and specifications, such inspection shall constitute the final 
inspection.  The Owner shall notify the Contractor in writing of final acceptance as of the date of the final 
inspection. 
 
If, however, the inspection discloses any work, in whole or in part, as being unsatisfactory, the Owner will give the 
Contractor the necessary instructions for correction of same, and the Contractor shall immediately comply with 
and execute such instructions.  Upon correction of the work, another inspection will be made which shall 
constitute the final inspection, provided the work has been satisfactorily completed.  In such event, the Owner will 
make the final acceptance and notify the Contractor in writing of this acceptance as of the date of final inspection. 
 
50-16 CLAIMS FOR ADJUSTMENT AND DISPUTES.  If for any reason the Contractor deems that additional 
compensation is due him for work or materials not clearly provided for in the contract, plans, or specifications or 
previously authorized as extra work, he shall notify the Owner in writing of his intention to claim such additional 
compensation before he begins the work on which he bases the claim.  If such notification is not given or the 
Owner is not afforded proper opportunity by the Contractor for keeping strict account of actual cost as required, 
then the Contractor hereby agrees to waive any claim for such additional compensation.  Such notice by the 
Contractor and the fact that the Owner has kept account of the cost of the work shall not in any way be construed 
as proving or substantiating the validity of the claim.  When the work on which the claim for additional 
compensation is based has been completed, the Contractor shall, within ten (10) calendar days, submit his written 
claim, to the Owner for consideration in accordance with local laws or ordinances. 
 
Nothing in this subsection shall be construed as a waiver of the Contractor's right to dispute final payment based 
on differences in measurements or computations. 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-27 
 

  
50-17 GUARANTEE OF WORK (ADDITIONAL).  The Contractor shall guarantee all work against any defects due to 
faulty materials or workmanship for a period of two (2) years from the date of final inspection and acceptance.  
The Owner shall give notice of observed defects with reasonable promptness.  Any omission on the part of the 
Owner to condemn defective work at the time of construction or final inspection shall not be deemed an 
acceptance.  The Contractor shall be required to correct defective work or material at any time before final 
inspection and acceptance and within two (2) years thereafter. See Contractor Performance Warranty (CPW-1). 
 
50-18 CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE.  The Contractor shall submit, for review and approval, to the Owner within 20 
days after the Notice to Proceed has been issued, and prior to the first Payment Application. See Construction and 
Progress Schedules, Section 90-06. 
 
50-19 NEGOTIATIONS.  It is the intent of the County to award a Contract to the lowest responsible Bidder 
provided the Bid has been submitted in accordance with the requirements of the Bid Documents, is judge 
reasonable, and does not exceed the funds available. 
 

(a) The County shall have the authority to negotiate with the lowest bidder to reduce the scope of the 
Project in the event that all responsive bids exceed the Project budget. 

 
Bids shall be made available for public inspection after the award has been made by the Board of Supervisors.  The 
Board of Supervisors has the sole authority to award bids and any statement by any employee of the County is not 
binding on the Board. 
 
The following criteria will be considered a part of the evaluation process: 

(a) Competence and responsibility of Bidder. 
(b) Qualifications and experience of Bidder. 
(c) Past performance of Bidder. 
(d) Conformity with bidding requirements and general considerations. 
(e) Record of timely completion of punch lists on past projects. 

 
 
Negotiations with Individual Contractors:   Gila County Public Works Division shall establish procedures and 
schedules for conducting Negotiations.  Disclosure of a Contractor’s Price or any information derived from 
competing Bids if prohibited. 

(a) Any response to a request for clarification of a bid shall be in writing. 
(b) The Public Works Division shall keep a record of all negotiations. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-28 
 

 
For the purpose of conducting Negotiations with Contractors, Gila County may use any of the following methods 
that, in their judgment, best meets the unique requirements. 
 

(a) Concurrent Negotiations:  Negotiations may be conducted concurrently with responsible 
Contractors for the purpose of determining source selection and/or Contract Award. 

(b) Exclusive Negotiations:  A determination may be made by the Public Works Director to enter into 
exclusive negotiations with the responsible Contractor whose bid is determined in the selection 
process to be the most advantageous to Gila County. 

 
Exclusive Negotiations may be conducted subsequent to concurrent Negotiations or may be conducted without 
requiring previous concurrent Negotiations. 
 

(a) A determination to conduct exclusive Negotiations shall not constitute a Contract Award, nor shall 
it confer any property rights to the successful bidder. 

(b) If Exclusive Negotiations are conducted and an agreement is not reached, the County may enter 
into Exclusive Negotiations with the next highest ranked Contractor without the need to repeat 
the formal Solicitation process. 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-29 
 

 
 

 
 

 

SECTION 60 
CONTROL OF MATERIALS 

 
 

60-01 SOURCE OF SUPPLY AND QUALITY REQUIREMENTS .  The materials used on the work shall conform to the 
requirements of the contract, plans, and specifications.  Unless otherwise specified, such materials that are 
manufactured or processed shall be new (as compared to used or reprocessed). 
 
Any construction, building addition or alteration project which is financed by monies of this state or its political 
subdivisions shall not use endangered wood species unless an exemption is granted by the director of the 
Department of Administration.  The director shall only grant an exemption if the use of endangered wood species 
is deemed necessary for historical restoration or to repair existing facilities and the use of any substitute material 
is not practical.  Any lease-purchase agreement entered into by this state or its political subdivisions for 
construction shall specify that no endangered wood species may be used in the construction unless an exemption 
is granted by the director.  As used in this subsection, an endangered wood species includes those listed in 
Appendix I of the Convention on International Trade in Endangered Species of Wild Flora and Fauna.  
 
60-02 SAMPLES, TESTS, AND CITED SPECIFICATIONS.  All materials used in the work shall be listed, labeled and 
certified by the appropriate testing agency before incorporation in the work.  Any work in which untested 
materials are used without approval or written permission by the Owner shall be performed at the Contractor's 
risk. Materials found to be unacceptable and unauthorized will not be paid for and, if directed by the Owner, shall 
be removed at the Contractor's expense.   
 
60-03 CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE.  The Owner may permit the use, prior to sampling and testing, of certain 
materials or assemblies when accompanied by manufacturer's certificates of compliance stating that such 
materials or assemblies fully comply with the requirements of the contract.   
 
The certificate shall be signed by the manufacturer.  Each lot of such materials or assemblies delivered to the work 
must be accompanied by a certificate of compliance in which the lot is clearly identified. 
 
Materials or assemblies used on the basis of certificates of compliance may be sampled and tested at any time 
and if found not to be in conformity with contract requirements will be subject to rejection whether in place or 
not. 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-30 
 

 
The form and distribution of certificates of compliance shall be as approved by the Owner. 
 
When a material or assembly is specified by "brand name or equal" and the Contractor elects to furnish the 
specified "brand name," the Contractor shall be required to furnish the manufacturer's certificate of compliance 
for each lot of such material or assembly delivered to the work.  Such certificate of compliance shall clearly 
identify each lot delivered and shall certify as to: 
 

(a)    Conformance to the specified performance, testing, quality or dimensional requirements; and, 
(b)    Suitability of the material or assembly for the use intended in the contract work. 

 
Should the Contractor propose to furnish an "or equal" material or assembly, he shall furnish the manufacturer's 
certificates of compliance as hereinbefore described for the specified brand name material or assembly.  
However, the Owner shall be the sole judge as to whether the proposed "or equal" is suitable for use in the work. 
 
The Owner reserves the right to refuse permission for use of materials or assemblies on the basis of certificates of 
compliance. 
 
60-04 PLANT INSPECTION.  Not applicable to this project. 
 
60-05 OWNER'S FIELD OFFICE AND LABORATORY.  Not applicable to this project. 
 
60-06 STORAGE OF MATERIALS.  Materials shall be so stored as to assure the preservation of their quality and 
fitness for the work.  Stored materials, even though approved before storage, may again be inspected prior to 
their use in the work.  Stored materials shall be located so as to facilitate their prompt inspection.  The Contractor 
shall coordinate the storage of all materials with the Owner.  Private property shall not be used for storage 
purposes without written permission of the owner or lessee of such property.  The Contractor shall make all 
arrangements and bear all expenses for the storage of materials on private property.  Upon request, the 
Contractor shall furnish the Owner a copy of the property owner's permission. 
 
All storage sites on private property shall be restored to their original condition by the Contractor at his entire 
expense, except as otherwise agreed to (in writing) by the owner or lessee of the property. 
 
60-07 UNACCEPTABLE MATERIALS.  Any material or assembly that does not conform to the requirements of the 
contract, plans or specifications shall be considered unacceptable and shall be rejected.  The Contractor shall 
remove any rejected material or assembly from the site of the work, unless otherwise instructed by the Owner. 
 
No rejected material or assembly, the defects of which have been corrected by the Contractor, shall be returned 
to the site of the work until such time as the Owner has approved its use in the work. 
 
60-08 OWNER-FURNISHED MATERIALS.  The Contractor shall furnish all materials required to complete the work, 
except those specified herein (if any) to be furnished by the Owner.  Owner-furnished materials shall be made 
available to the Contractor at the location specified herein. 
 

After any owner-furnished material has been delivered to the location specified, the Contractor shall be 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-31 
 

responsible for any demurrage, damage, loss, or other deficiencies that may occur during the Contractor's 
handling, storage, or use of such owner-furnished material.  The Owner will deduct from any monies due or to 
become due the Contractor any cost incurred by the Owner in making good such loss due to the Contractor's 
handling, storage, or use of owner-furnished materials. 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-32 
 

 

 
 

 

SECTION 70 
LEGAL RELATIONS & RESPONSIBILITY TO PUBLIC 

 

 
70-01 LAWS TO BE OBSERVED.  The Contractor shall keep fully informed of all Federal and State laws, all local 
laws, ordinances, and regulations and all orders and decrees of bodies or tribunals having any jurisdiction or 
authority, which in any manner affect those engaged or employed on the work, or which in any way affect the 
conduct of the work.  He shall at all times observe and comply with all such laws, ordinances, regulations, orders, 
and decrees; and shall protect and indemnify the Owner and all his officers, agents, or servants against any claim 
or liability arising from or based on the violation of any such law, ordinance, regulation, order, or decree, whether 
by himself or his employees. 
 
Laws and Ordinances:  This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the State of Arizona and Gila County.  
The Contractor shall maintain in current status all Federal, State and Local licenses and permits required for the 
operation of the business conducted by the Contractor.  The Contractor shall comply with the applicable 
provisions of the AzDA Arizonans w/ Disabilities Act, Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 
12101-12213) and applicable federal regulations under the Act. 
 
70-02 PERMITS, LICENSES, AND TAXES.  The Contractor will be provided an approved Field Copy set of plans and 
Technical Specifications for this project. The Contractor shall maintain this set of original documents on site at all 
times.  
 
The Contractor shall procure any other permits and licenses, pay all charges, fees, and taxes, and give all notices 
necessary and incidental to the due and lawful prosecution of the work.   
 
70-03 PATENTED DEVICES, MATERIALS, AND PROCESSES.  If the Contractor is required or desires to use any 
design, device, material, or process covered by letters of patent or copyright, he shall provide for such use by 
suitable legal agreement with the patentee or owner.  The Contractor and the surety shall indemnify and save 
harmless the Owner, any third party, or political subdivision from any and all claims for infringement by reason of 
the use of any patented design, device, material or process, or any trademark or copyright, and shall indemnify 
the Owner for any costs, expenses, and damages which it may be obliged to pay by reason of an infringement, at 
any time during the prosecution or after the completion of the work. 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-33 
 

 
70-04 RESTORATION OF SERVICES DISTURBED BY OTHERS.  Not applicable to this project. 
 
70-05 SANITARY, HEALTH, AND SAFETY PROVISIONS.  The Contractor shall provide and maintain in a neat, 
sanitary condition such accommodations for the use of his employees as required to comply with the require-
ments of the State and local boards of health, or of other bodies or tribunals having jurisdiction. 
 
Attention is directed to Federal, State and local laws, rules and regulations concerning construction safety and 
health standards.  The Contractor shall not require any worker to work in surroundings or under conditions which 
are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to his health or safety as determined under the Arizona Occupational 
Safety and Health Standards for Construction, adopted by the Industrial Commission of Arizona pursuant to the 
Authority in A.R.S. '23-410. 
 
70-06 PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND SAFETY.  The Contractor shall control his operations and those of his 
subcontractors and all suppliers, to assure the least inconvenience to the traveling public and pedestrians.  Under 
all circumstances, safety shall be the most important consideration. 
 
The Contractor shall maintain the free and unobstructed movement of pedestrian and/or vehicular traffic with 
respect to his own operations and those of his subcontractor and all suppliers in accordance with the subsection 
titled MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC of Section 40-05 hereinbefore specified. 
 
70-07 BARRICADES, WARNING SIGNS AND HAZARD MARKINGS.  The Contractor shall furnish, erect and maintain 
all barricades, warning signs, and markings for hazards necessary to protect the public and the work.  When used 
during periods of darkness, such barricades, warning signs and hazard markings shall be suitably illuminated. 
 
For vehicular and pedestrian traffic, the Contractor shall furnish, erect, and maintain barricades, warning signs, 
lights and other traffic control devices in reasonable conformity with the requirements of AzDA Arizonas with 
Disabilities Act and the Arizonan’s with Disabilities Act and Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets 
and Highways (MUTCD Part VI), published by the United States Government Printing Office. 
 
The Contractor shall furnish and erect all barricades, warning signs and markings for hazards prior to commencing 
work which required such erection and shall maintain the barricades, warning signs, and markings for hazards 
until their dismantling is directed by the Owner. 
 
70-08 PROTECTION AND RESTORATION OF PROPERTY .  The Contractor shall be responsible for the preservation 
of all public and private property, and shall protect carefully from disturbance or damage.  
 
The Contractor shall be responsible for all damage or injury to property of any character, during the prosecution 
of the work, resulting from any act, omission, neglect, or misconduct in his manner or method of executing the 
work, or at any time due to defective work or materials, and said responsibility will not be released until the 
project shall have been completed and accepted. 
 
 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-34 
 

 
When or where any direct or indirect damage or injury is done to public or private property by or on account of 
any act, omission, neglect, or misconduct in the execution of the work, or in consequence of the non-execution 
thereof by the Contractor, he shall restore, at his own expense, such property to a condition similar or equal to 
that existing before such damage or injury was done, by repairing, rebuilding, or otherwise restoring as may be 
directed, or he shall make good such damage or injury in an acceptable manner. 
 
70-09 RESPONSIBILITY FOR DAMAGE CLAIMS.  To the fullest extend permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless Gila County and their respective agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials, 
and employees from and against any and all demands, proceedings, suits, actions, claims, damages, or losses 
relating to, arising out of, resulting from or alleged to have resulted from the performance of the Work.  
Contractor’s duty to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the indemnitee and their respective agents, 
representatives, officers, directors, officials and employees shall arise in connection with any and all demands, 
proceedings, suits, actions, claims, workers compensation claims, unemployment claims, damages, losses or 
expenses (including but not limited to attorneys fees, court costs and the cost of appellate proceedings) that are 
attributable to personal or bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, or injury to, impairment or destruction of 
property including the loss of use resulting thereon, caused by any act or omission of the Contractor, a 
subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or for whose acts they may be liable.  The amount 
and type of insurance coverage requirements set forth in the Contract shall in no way be construed as limiting the 
scope of this indemnity. 
 
70-10 CONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE.  Prior to the execution of the contract, the Contractor shall file with the 
Owner a certificate or certificates of insurance executed by an insurance company doing business in the State of 
Arizona and acceptable to the Owner.  The certificate of insurance shall state that, with respect to the contract 
awarded the Contractor; the Contractor carries insurance in accordance with the requirements of this subsection 
and the Construction Contract. 
 
On all policies Gila County shall be named as an additional insured. 
 
All insurance policies or certificates shall include an endorsement providing for thirty (30) days prior written notice 
to the Owner of any cancellation or reduction of coverage.  The Contractor shall cease operations on the 
occurrence of any such cancellation or reduction and shall not resume operations until the required insurance is in 
force and new certificates of insurance have been filed with the Owner.   
 
See Construction Contract under Contract Forms Section of these General Provisions for Insurance Requirements. 
 
70-11 THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY CLAUSE.  It is specifically agreed between the parties executing the contract 
that it is not intended by any of the provisions of any part of the contract to create to the public or any member 
thereof a third party beneficiary or to authorize anyone not a party to the contract to maintain a suit for personal 
injuries or property damage pursuant to the terms or provisions of the contract. 
 
 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-35 
 

 
70-12 OPENING SECTIONS OF THE WORK FOR OCCUPANCY.  Should it be necessary for the Contractor to 
complete portions of the contract work for the beneficial occupancy of the Owner prior to completion of the 
entire contract, such "phasing" of the work shall be specified herein and indicated on the plans.  When so 
specified, the Contractor shall complete such portions of the work on or before the date specified or as otherwise 
specified.  The Contractor shall make his own estimate of the difficulties involved in arranging his work to permit 
such beneficial occupancy by the Owner. 
 
Upon completion of any portion of the work listed above, with certification of the work by the Contractor, such 
portion(s) shall be accepted by the Owner in accordance with the subsection titled PARTIAL ACCEPTANCE of 
Section 50-14. 
 
No portion of the work may be opened by the Contractor for public use until ordered by the Owner in writing.  
Should it become necessary to open a portion of the work to the public on a temporary or intermittent basis, such 
openings shall be made when, in the opinion of the Owner, such portion of the work is in an acceptable condition 
to support the intended use.  Temporary or intermittent openings are considered to be inherent in the work and 
shall not constitute either acceptance of the portion of the work so opened or a waiver of any provision of the 
contract.  Any damage to the portion of the work so opened that is not attributable to use which is permitted by 
the Owner shall be repaired by the Contractor at his expense. 
 
The Contractor shall make his own estimate of the inherent difficulties involved in completing the work under the 
conditions herein described and shall not claim any added compensation by reason of delay or increased cost due 
to opening a portion of the contract work. 
 
70-13 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR WORK.  Until the Owner's final written acceptance of the entire 
completed work, excepting only those portions of the work accepted in accordance with the subsection titled 
PARTIAL ACCEPTANCE of Section 50-14, the Contractor shall have the charge and care thereof and shall take every 
precaution against injury or damage to any part due to the action of the elements or from any other cause, 
whether arising from the execution or from the non-execution of the work.  The Contractor shall rebuild, repair, 
restore, and make good all injuries or damages to any portion of the work occasioned by any of the above causes 
before final acceptance and shall bear the expense thereof except damage to the work due to unforeseeable 
causes beyond the control of and without the fault or negligence of the Contractor, including but not restricted to 
acts of God such as earthquake, tidal wave, tornado, hurricane or other cataclysmic phenomenon of nature, or 
acts of the public enemy or of governmental authorities. 
 
If the work is suspended for any cause whatever, the Contractor shall be responsible for the work and shall take 
such precautions necessary to prevent damage to the work.   
 
70-14 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR UTILITY SERVICE AND FACILITIES OF OTHERS.  The Contractor shall 
cooperate with the owner of any public or private utility service, or a utility service of another government agency 
that may be authorized by the Owner to construct, reconstruct or maintain such utility services or facilities during 
the progress of the work.  In addition, the Contractor shall control his operations to prevent the unscheduled 
interruption of such utility services and facilities and shall notify Blue Stake in accordance with applicable State 
laws or regulations prior to commencing any work. 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-36 
 

 
It is understood and agreed that the Owner does not guarantee the accuracy or the completeness of the location 
information relating to existing utility services, facilities, or structures that may be shown on the plans or 
encountered in the work.  Any inaccuracy or omission in such information shall not relieve the Contractor of his 
responsibility to protect such existing features from damage or unscheduled interruption of service.  It is further 
understood and agreed that the Contractor shall, upon execution of the contract, notify the owners in writing of 
all utility services or other facilities of his plans of operations.   
 
Prior to commencing the work in the general vicinity of an existing utility service or facility, the Contractor shall 
again notify each such owner of his plan of operation.  If, in the Contractor's opinion, the Owner's assistance is 
needed to locate the utility service or facility or the presence of a representative of the Owner is desirable to 
observe the work, such advice should be included in the notification.  Such notification shall be given by the most 
expeditious means to reach the utility owner's PERSON TO CONTACT no later than two normal business days prior 
to the Contractor's commencement of operations in such general vicinity.  The Contractor shall furnish a written 
summary of the notification to the Owner.  The Contractor's failure to give the two day's notice hereinabove 
provided shall be cause for the Owner to suspend the Contractor's operations in the general vicinity of a utility 
service or facility.   
 
Should the Contractor damage or interrupt the operation of a utility service or facility by accident or otherwise, he 
shall immediately notify the proper authority and the Owner, and shall take all reasonable measures to prevent 
further damage or interruption of service.  The Contractor, in such events, shall cooperate with the utility service 
or facility owner and the Owner continuously until such damage has been repaired and service restored to the 
satisfaction of the utility or facility owner. 
 
The Contractor shall bear all costs of damage and restoration of service to any utility service or facility due to his 
operations whether or not due to negligence or accident.  The Owner reserves the right to deduct such costs from 
any monies due or which may become due the Contractor, or his surety. 
 
70-15 FURNISHING RIGHTS-OF-WAY.  Not applicable to this project. 
 
70-16 PERSONAL LIABILITY OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS.  In carrying out any of the contractor provisions or in exercising 
any power or authority granted to him by this contract, there shall be no liability upon the Owner, his authorized 
representatives, or any official of the Owner either personally or as an official of the Owner.  It is understood that 
in such matters they act solely as agents and representatives of the Owner. 
 
70-17 NO WAIVER OF LEGAL RIGHTS.  Upon completion of the work, the Owner will expeditiously make final 
inspection and notify the Contractor of final acceptance.  Such final acceptance, however, shall not preclude or 
stop the Owner from correcting any measurement, estimate, or certificate made before or after completion of the 
work, nor shall the Owner be precluded or stopped from recovering from the Contractor or his surety, or both, 
such overpayment as may be sustained, or by failure on the part of the Contractor to fulfill his obligations under 
the contract.  A waiver on the part of the Owner of any breach of any part of the contract shall not be held to be a 
waiver of any other or subsequent breach. 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-37 
 

 
The Contractor, without prejudice to the terms of the contract, shall be liable to the Owner for latent defects, 
fraud, or such gross mistakes as may amount to fraud, or as regards the Owner's rights under any warranty or 
guaranty. 
 
70-18 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION.  The Contractor shall comply with all Federal, State, and local laws and 
regulations controlling pollution of the environment.  He shall take necessary precautions to prevent pollution of 
streams, lakes, ponds and reservoirs with fuels, oils, bitumen’s, chemicals, or other harmful materials and to 
prevent pollution of the atmosphere from particulate and gaseous matter. 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-38 
 

 

 
 

 

SECTION 80 
PROSECUTION & PROGRESS 

 

 
80-01 SUBLETTING OF CONTRACT.  The Contractor shall not sublet, sell, transfer, assign or otherwise dispose of 
the contract or contracts or any portion thereof or of his right, title or interest therein without written consent of 
the Owner.  In case such consent is given, the Contractor will be permitted to sublet a portion thereof, but shall 
perform with his own organization work amounting to not less than 50 percent (50%) of the total contract 
amount, except that any items designated in the contract as "Specialty Items" may be performed by subcontract 
and the cost of any such specialty items so performed by subcontract may be deducted from the total cost before 
computing the amount of work required to be performed by the Contractor with his own organization.  No 
subcontracts or transfer of contract shall release the Contractor of his liability under the contract and bond. 
 
"His own organization" shall be construed to include only workmen employed and paid directly by the prime 
contractor and equipment owned or rented by him, with or without operators. 
 
"Specialty Items" shall be construed to be limited to work that requires highly specialized knowledge, 
craftsmanship or equipment not ordinarily available in contracting organizations qualified to bid on the contract 
as a whole and in general are to be limited to minor components of the overall contract. 
 
The contract amount upon which the 50 percent (50%) requirement is computed includes the cost of materials 
and manufactured products which are to be purchased or produced by the Contractor under the contract 
provisions. 
 
Any items that have been selected as "Specialty Items" for the contract will be listed as such in the special 
provisions, bidding schedule, or elsewhere in the contract documents. 
 
The Owner will not recognize any subcontractor on the work.  The Contractor shall at all times when work is in 
progress be represented either in person, by a qualified superintendent, or by other designated, qualified 
representative who is duly authorized to receive and execute the orders of the Owner. 
 
Should the Contractor elect to assign his contract, said assignment shall be concurred in by the surety, shall be 
presented for the consideration and approval of the Owner, and shall be consummated only on the written 
approval of the Owner.  In case of approval, the Contractor shall file copies of all subcontracts with the Owner. 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-39 
 

80-02 NOTICE TO PROCEED.  The notice to proceed shall state the date on which it is expected the Contractor will 
begin the construction and from which date contract time will be charged.  The Contractor shall begin the work to 
be performed under the contract within ten (10) calendar days of the date set by the Owner in the written Notice 
to Proceed, but in any event, the Contractor shall notify the Owner at least two work days in advance of the time 
actual construction operations will begin. 
 
80-03 PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS.  Unless otherwise specified, the Contractor shall submit his progress 
schedule, per Section 90-06, for the Owner's approval within twenty (20) days after the effective date of the 
Notice to Proceed, and prior to the first Pay Application.  The Contractor's progress schedule, when approved by 
the Owner, may be used to establish major construction operations and to check on the progress of the work.  
The Contractor shall provide sufficient materials, equipment, and labor to guarantee the completion of the 
project in accordance with the plans and specifications within the time set forth in the bid proposal. 
 
If the Contractor falls significantly behind the submitted schedule, the Contractor shall, upon the Owner's request, 
submit a revised schedule for completion of the work within the contract time and modify his operations to 
provide such additional materials, equipment, and labor necessary to meet the revised schedule, per Section 90-
06.  Should the prosecution of the work be discontinued for any reason, the Contractor shall notify the Owner at 
least 24 hours in advance of resuming operations. 
 
The Contractor shall not commence any actual construction prior to the date on which the Notice to Proceed is 
issued by the Owner. 
 
80-04 CONSTRUCTION LIMITS.  Construction limits shall be defined in the construction documents.  
 
80-05 CHARACTER OF WORKERS, METHODS AND EQUIPMENT.  The Contractor shall, at all times, employ 
sufficient labor and equipment for prosecuting the work to full completion in the manner and time required by 
the contract, plans and specifications. 
 
All workers shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform properly the work assigned to them. Workers 
engaged in special work or skilled work shall have sufficient experience in such work and in the operation of the 
equipment required to perform the work satisfactorily. 
 
Any person employed by the Contractor or by any subcontractor who, in the opinion of the Owner, does not 
perform his work in a proper and skillful manner or is intemperate or disorderly shall, at the written request of the 
Owner, be removed forthwith by the Contractor or subcontractor employing such person, and shall not be 
employed again in any portion of the work without the approval of the Owner. 
 
Should the Contractor fail to remove such person or persons or fail to furnish suitable and sufficient personnel for 
the proper prosecution of the work, the Owner may suspend the work by written notice until compliance with 
such orders. 
 
All equipment which is proposed to be used on the work shall be of sufficient size and in such mechanical 
condition as to meet requirements of the work and to produce a satisfactory quality of work.  Equipment used on 
any portion of the work shall be such that no injury to previously completed work, adjacent property, or existing 
facilities will result from its use. 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-40 
 

 
When the methods and equipment to be used by the Contractor in accomplishing the work are not prescribed in 
the contract, the Contractor is free to use any methods or equipment that will accomplish the work in conformity 
with the requirements of the contract, plans and specifications. When the contract specifies the use of certain 
methods and equipment, such methods and equipment shall be used unless others are authorized by the Owner.  
If the Contractor desires to use a method or type of equipment other than specified in the contract, he may 
request authority from the Owner to do so.  The request shall be in writing and shall include a full description of 
the methods and equipment proposed and of the reasons for desiring to make the change.  If approval is given, it 
will be on the condition that the Contractor will be fully responsible for producing work in conformity with 
contract requirements.  If, after trial use of the substituted methods or equipment, the Owner determines that 
the work produced does not meet contract requirements, the Contractor shall discontinue the use of the 
substitute method or equipment and shall complete the remaining work with the specified methods and 
equipment.  The Contractor shall remove any deficient work and replace it with work of specified quality, or take 
such other corrective action as the Owner may direct.  No change will be made in basis of payment for the 
contract items involved nor in contract time as a result of authorizing a change in methods or equipment under 
this subsection. 
 
80-06 TEMPORARY SUSPENSION OF THE WORK.  The Owner shall have the authority to suspend the work wholly, 
or in part, for such period or periods as he may deem necessary, due to security issues and/or unsuitable weather, 
or such other conditions as are considered unfavorable for the prosecution of the work, or for such time as is 
necessary due to the failure on the part of the Contractor to carry out orders given or perform any or all 
provisions of the contract. 
 
In the event that the Contractor is ordered by the Owner, in writing, to suspend work for some unforeseen cause 
not otherwise provided for in the contract and over which the Contractor has no control, the Contractor may be 
reimbursed for actual money expended on the work during the period of shutdown.  No allowance will be made 
for anticipated profits.  The period of shutdown shall be computed from the effective date of the Owner's order to 
suspend work to the effective date of the Owner's order to resume the work.  Claims for such compensation shall 
be filed with the Owner within the time period stated in the Owner's order to resume work.  The Contractor shall 
submit with his claim information substantiating the amount shown on the claim.  No provision of this article shall 
be construed as entitling the Contractor to compensation for delays due to inclement weather, for suspensions 
made at the request of the Contractor, or for any other delay provided for in the contract, plans or specifications. 
 
If it should become necessary to suspend work for an indefinite period, the Contractor shall store all materials in 
such manner that they will not become an obstruction nor become damaged in any way. He shall take every 
precaution to prevent damage or deterioration of the work performed.  The Contractor shall erect temporary 
structures where necessary to provide for the continuous operation of existing facilities. 
 
80-07 DETERMINATION AND EXTENSION OF CONTRACT TIME.  The number of calendar or working days allowed 
for completion of the work shall be stated in the proposal and contract and shall be known as the CONTRACT 
TIME. 
 
Should the contract time require extension for reasons beyond the Contractor's control, it shall be adjusted as 
follows: 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-41 
 

 
(a)    CONTRACT TIME based on CALENDAR DAYS shall consist of the number of calendar days stated in the 

contract counting from the effective date of the notice to proceed and including all Saturdays, Sundays, 
holidays, and non-work days.  All calendar days elapsing between the effective dates of the Owner's 
orders to suspend and resume all work, due to causes not the fault of the Contractor, shall be excluded. 

 
(b)    When the contract time is a specified completion date, it shall be the date on which all contract work 

shall be substantially completed. 
 

If the Contractor finds it impossible for reasons beyond his control to complete the work within the 
contract time as specified, or as extended in accordance with the provisions of this subsection, he may, 
at any time prior to the expiration of the contract time as extended, make a written request to the 
Owner for an extension of time setting forth the reasons which he believes will justify the granting of his 
request.  The Contractor's plea that insufficient time was specified is not a valid reason for extension of 
time.  If the Owner finds that the work was delayed because of conditions beyond the control and 
without the fault of the Contractor, he may extend the time for completion in such amount as the 
conditions justify.  The extended time for completion shall then be in full force and effect, the same as 
though it were the original time for completion. 
 

80-08 FAILURE TO COMPLETE ON TIME.  For each calendar day, as specified in the contract, that any work 
remains uncompleted after the contract time (including all extensions and adjustments as provided in the 
subsection titled DETERMINATION AND EXTENSION OF CONTRACT TIME of Section 80-07) the sum specified in the 
Contract and Bid Proposal as liquidated damages will be deducted from any money due or to become due the 
Contractor or his surety.  Such deducted sums shall not be deducted as a penalty but shall be considered as 
liquidation of a reasonable portion of damages that will be incurred by the Owner should the Contractor fail to 
complete the work in the time provided in his contract. 
 
Permitting the Contractor to continue and finish the work or any part of it after the time fixed for its completion, 
or after the date to which the time for completion may have been extended, will in no way operate as a waiver on 
the part of the Owner of any of its rights under the contract. 
 
80-09 DEFAULT AND TERMINATION OF CONTRACT.  The Contractor shall be considered in default of his contract 
and such default will be considered as cause for the Owner to terminate the contract for any of the following 
reasons if the Contractor: 

 
(a)    Fails to begin the work under the contract within the time specified in the "Notice to Proceed (80-02)"; 

or 
(b)    Fails to perform the work or fails to provide sufficient workers, equipment or materials to assure 

completion of work in accordance with the terms of the contract; or 
(c)    Performs the work unsuitably or neglects or refuses to remove materials or to perform anew such work 

as may be rejected as unacceptable and unsuitable; or  
(d)    Discontinues the prosecution of the work; or 
(e)    Fails to resume work which has been discontinued within a reasonable time after notice to do so; or 
(f)    Becomes insolvent or is declared bankrupt, or commits any act of bankruptcy or insolvency; or 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-42 
 

(g)    Allows any final judgment to stand against him unsatisfied for a period of ten (10) days; or 
(h)    Makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; or  
(i)    For any other cause whatsoever, fails to carry on the work in an acceptable manner. 

 
Should the Owner consider the Contractor in default of the contract for any reason hereinbefore, he shall 
immediately give written notice to the Contractor and the Contractor's surety as to the reasons for considering 
the Contractor in default and the Owner's intentions to terminate the contract. 
 
If the Contractor or surety, within a period of ten (10) calendar days after such notice, does not proceed in 
accordance therewith, then the Owner will, upon written notification from the Owner of the facts of such delay, 
neglect, or default and the Contractor's failure to comply with such notice, have full power and authority without 
violating the contract, to take the prosecution of the work out of the hands of the Contractor.  The Owner may 
appropriate or use any or all materials and equipment that have been mobilized for use in the work and are 
acceptable and may enter into an agreement for the completion of said contract according to the terms and 
provisions thereof, or use such other methods as in the opinion of the Owner will be required for the completion 
of said contract in an acceptable manner. 
 
All costs and charges incurred by the Owner, together with the cost of completing the work under contract, will be 
deducted from any monies due or which may become due the Contractor.  If such expense exceeds the sum which 
would have been payable under the contract, then the Contractor and the surety shall be liable and shall pay to 
the Owner the amount of such excess. 
 

80-10 TERMINATION FOR NATIONAL EMERGENCIES.  The Owner shall terminate the contract or portion thereof 
by written notice when the Contractor is prevented from proceeding with the construction contract as a direct 
result of an Executive Order of the President with respect to the prosecution of war or in the interest of national 
defense. 
 
When the contract, or any portion thereof, is terminated before completion of all items of work in the contract, 
payment will be made for the actual work completed at the contract price or as mutually agreed for items of work 
partially completed or not started.  No claims or loss of anticipated profits shall be considered. 
 
Reimbursement for organization of the work, and other overhead expenses, (when not otherwise included in the 
contract) and moving equipment and materials to and from the job will be considered, the intent being that an 
equitable settlement will be made with the Contractor. 
 
Acceptable materials, obtained or ordered by the Contractor for the work and that are not incorporated in the 
work shall, at the option of the Contractor, be purchased from the Contractor at actual cost as shown by receipted 
bills and actual cost records at such points of delivery as may be designated by the Owner. 
 
Termination of the contract or a portion thereof shall neither relieve the Contractor of his responsibilities for the 
completed work nor shall it relieve his surety of its obligation for and concerning any just claim arising out of the 
work performed. 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-43 
 

 

 
 

 

SECTION 90 
MEASUREMENT & PAYMENT 

 

 
90-01 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT.   
 
Payment will be measured against the Schedule of Values as approved by the Owner.  
 
Payments on account of the Contract Price will be made monthly as Work progresses. Payment Applications, 
covering labor, material, equipment, supplies, and other items completed, delivered or suitably stored on site 
during a period ending on the last calendar day of each month, shall be submitted to the Owner by the Contractor 
on Contractor Payment Application, within five (5) days after the end of the period. Payment Applications shall be 
notarized and shall be supported by such data substantiating the Contractor’s right to payment as the Owner may 
require, and reflect retainage, if any, as is provided. All payments shall be subject to any offset or retainage 
provisions of the Contract. 
 
Each payment made to the Contractor shall be on account of the total amount payable to the Contractor, and title 
to all Work covered by a paid partial payment shall thereupon pass to the Owner. Nothing in this section shall be 
construed as relieving the Contractor from the sole responsibility for care and protection of materials and Work 
upon which payments have been made, for restoration of any damaged Work, or as a waiver of the right of the 
Owner to require fulfillment of all terms of Contract Documents. 
 
If the Owner receives a Preliminary Lien Notice from a subcontractor or material supplier, the Contractor shall 
provide Lien Waivers prior to Contractor receiving payment. 
 
Payment may be withheld in whole, or in part, to protect the Owner on account of: 

 Unsatisfactory job progress as determined by the Owner. 

 Defective Work or materials not remedied. 

 Disputed Work or materials. 

 Claims or other encumbrances filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of claims or other 
encumbrances by Subcontractors or Suppliers, or others. 

 Failure of the Contractor to make payment to Subcontractors or Suppliers within seven (7) days after 
receipt of each progress payment. 

 A reasonable doubt, as determined by the Owner, that the Work can be completed for the unpaid balance 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-44 
 

of the Contract Price or within the Contract Time. 

 The Contractor’s failure to perform any of its contractual obligations under the Contract Documents, or 
any other agreement with the Owner. 

 Deficiencies or claims asserted by the Owner against Contractor arising from any other project. 
 
 
 
90-02 RETAINAGE.  The Owner shall pay to the Contractor 90% of the value of the Work in place and materials 
suitably stored at the site. The remaining 10% shall be retained by the Owner until the Contract is 50% completed 
at which time the retainage shall be reduced to 5% provided that (a) the Contractor is making satisfactory 
progress on the Contract; and (b) in the Owner’s sole judgment, there is no specific cause or claim requiring a 
greater amount than 5% be retained. Thereafter, the Owner shall pay the Contractor 95% of the value of the 
Work, unless and until it determines satisfactory progress is not being made, at which time the 10% retainage may 
be reinstated. Such 10% reinstatement would be 10% of the total contract value of Work in place and materials 
stored. The Owner’s sole judgment concerning the satisfactory progress of the Work shall be final.  
 
 
90-03 CHANGE ORDERS.  No changes in the Work shall be undertaken by the Contractor without written direction 
by the Owner. Any changes made without such written direction are done so at the Contractor’s own risk and 
hereby waives all rights or claims the Contractor may have as a result of the change. Change Orders shall be 
processed by the Owner and per the procedures set forth in the Contract.  
 
The cost or credit to the Owner resulting from a change in Work shall be determined in one or more of the 
following ways: 
 

A. By unit prices stated in the Contract Documents. 
 

B. By cost, as defined below, properly itemized and supported by sufficient substantiating data to permit 
evaluation, plus a fee (profit) or five percent (5%) of items 1 through 5 described below. Such costs shall 
be itemized by crafts as defined within the schedule of values and limited to the following items directly 
allocable to the change in the Work: 

1) Cost of materials, including cost of delivery. 
2) Fully-burdened cost of labor, including, but not limited to, payroll taxes, social security, old 

age and unemployment insurance, vacation and fringe benefits required by agreement or 
routinely paid by Contractor, and worker’s or workman’s compensation insurance. 

3) Contractor Supervision/Overhead allowance shall not exceed (5%) of 1 plus 2 above; the 
parties agree that this mark-up shall fully cover all Contractor overhead. 

4) Rental value of equipment and machinery to be established by rental receipts and not to 
exceed reasonable and customary rates for the locale of the Work. For owned equipment, 
Contractor  must prove reasonable rental rate pursuant to actual ownership costs. 

5) Cost of Subcontracted work calculated as above. 
6) Contractor’s fee on subcontractor’s work not to exceed five percent (5%) of the value of 

such work calculated as above, which sum shall exclude the cost attributable to bonds, 
insurance and taxes; the parties herby agree that this fee includes all Contractor overhead 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-45 
 

and profit on subcontractor work. 
7) Sales tax at full value; insurance and bond premiums not to exceed a total of 2%. 
8) If this method of cost or credit calculation is selected, in no event shall the combined total 

fee for overhead and profit including all levels or tiers of subcontractors exceed fifteen 
percent (15%) of the total cost of items 1,2 4 and 5. 
 

C. By mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient substantiating data to 
permit evaluation; provided that such lump sum shall not exceed that amount calculated under (B) above. 

 
A fully executed Change Order shall be full and final settlement of all claims for direct, indirect, delay, disruption, 
inefficiency and any other consequential costs related to items covered or affected, as well as time extensions. 
Any such claim not presented by the Contractor for inclusion in the Change Order is irrevocably waived.  
 
In an emergency affecting the safety of life, or of the structure, or of adjoining property, the Contractor, without 
special instruction or authorization from the Owner, is permitted to act at its discretion to prevent threatened loss 
or injury. Any compensation claimed by the Contractor on account of such emergency work shall be determined in 
accordance with this section. 
 
90-04 ALLOWANCES.  The Contractor’s price for the Work shall include all of the Contractor’s costs associated 
with such allowance(s). If the actual costs to the Contractor of such allowance(s) is different from the specified 
sum, increases or decreases in the cost of the allowance shall be adjusted in accordance with Change Orders (90-
03). Allowances for this project: 
 

Fire Sprinkler System Modification:  Not to exceed: $25,000.00, labor and materials 

Provide design and modifications (labor and material costs) of the existing fire sprinkler system for a 

complete system compliant with NFPA 13. Submit engineered, State Fire Marshal approved, drawings for 

Gila County approval, prior to doing the work.  

 

Fire Alarm System: Not to exceed: $20,000.00 labor and materials 

Provide design and installation of (labor and material costs) fire alarm system in accordance with NFPA 72. 

Submit engineered, State Fire Marshal approved, drawings for Gila County approval, prior to doing work. 

 

Millwork: Not to exceed $125,000, material cost only.  

Material costs only. Labor costs to be included in Base Bid millwork installation. See submittals 

requirements in the Technical Specifications. 

 

Unforeseen Conditions: Not to exceed $50,000   

Contingency Fund for Change Orders in regards to unforeseen conditions and changes to Scope of Work 

required to complete the work originally intended in an acceptable manner. See Change Orders (90-03). 

 

 

 

 

 

 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-46 
 

The contractor shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Contract Documents. Items covered 
by Allowances shall be supplied for such amounts as identified. Allowances shall cover the cost to the Contractor 
of materials and equipment delivered at the site and all required taxes, less applicable trade discounts. Whenever 
costs are more than or less than Allowances, the Contract Sum shall be adjusted accordingly by Change Order. The 
amount of the Change Order shall reflect the difference between actual costs and the Allowances specified. 
Contractor shall submit detailed invoicing for all Allowances that clearly identifies the actual costs as identified 
under Change Orders (90-03). 
 
90-05 SCHEDULE OF VALUES.  Individual construction activities which are indicated by the Schedule of Values shall 
coincide with activities presented on the Contractor’s Construction Schedule. The Contractor shall submit 
proposed Schedule of Values for review and approval by the Owner, prior to submission of their first Payment 
Application. 
 
If requesting a time extension, due to additions to or deletions from the Contract authorized through Change 
Orders, shall be reflected in the Contractor’s Construction Schedule if such changes affect the critical path of 
project completion. 
 
90-06 CONSTRUCTION AND PROGRESS SCHEDULES.  The Contractor shall submit, for review and approval, to the 
owner within 20 days after the Notice to Proceed has been issued, and prior to the first Payment Application, 
Contractor’s Construction Schedule in computer generated format. Alternate schedule forms, such as hand-
generated bar charts may be accepted at the Project Manager’s discretion. 
 
The Schedule shall illustrate the planned, logical progression of construction activities which will result in 
completion of the project by the Contract Completion Time and shall be reviewed and approved by the Owner 
prior to first Payment Application. Items of Work shall coincide with the Schedule of Values to be used in 
determination of progress payments. 
 
Monthly updates of the Contractor’s Construction Schedule showing actual amounts of work completed shall be 
provided by the Contractor with each application for Progress Payment. Contractor and Project manager will 
review the updated schedule for accurate reflection of work progress. If the project is behind schedule in any 
month, the Contractor shall provide a Narrative Report that shall indicate precisely what measure will be taken in 
the next thirty days to put the Work back on schedule. 
 
In the event significant delays or lags in schedule, as determined by the Owner, are encountered, the Contractor 
shall provide to the Owner a revised Contractor’s Construction Schedule indicating proposed rescheduling of 
subsequent activities to achieve project completion by the Contract Completion Time or Amended Completion 
Time. 
 
No extensions shall be granted nor delay for damages paid unless the delay is clearly demonstrated by an updated 
Construction Schedule current as of the month the change was issued or the delay occurred and which delay 
cannot be mitigated, offset, or eliminated through such actions as revising the intended sequence of work or 
other reasonable means. 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-47 
 

Additions to or deletions from the Contract, authorized through Change Orders, shall be reflected in the 
Contractor’s Construction Schedule if such changes affect the critical path of project completion. 
 
90-07 ACCEPTANCE AND FINAL PAYMENT.  When the contract work has been accepted in accordance with the 
requirements of the subsection titled FINAL ACCEPTANCE of Section 50-15, the Owner will issue a Certificate of 
Final Completion. After issuance of the Certificate of Final Completion and receipt of all other documents required 
by the Contract, all retained amounts shall be paid to the Contractor as part of Final Payment: 
 

 The Final Payment shall not become due until the Contractor delivers to the Owner full and final 
unconditional releases from Subcontractors and major Suppliers acknowledging payment in full. Any claim 
filed thereafter shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. 
 

 If any claim remains unsatisfied after all payments are made, the Contractor shall immediately upon 
demand refund to the Owner all monies that the latter may be compelled to pay in discharging such claim 
including all cost, interest and attorneys’ fees. 
 

 The Contractor shall provide an executed Affidavit of Release of Liens and an Affidavit of Payment to the 
Owner, prior to the release of the Final Payment. 

 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-48 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 

 PROPOSED WORK 
 
The work consists of interior renovation of a portion of an existing vacant building located by the Globe 

Courts Complex, for offices and public restrooms. Work includes non-structural renovation, demolition 

of existing offices, relocation of existing restrooms and construction of new interior walls and finishes, 

ceilings, flooring, mechanical, electrical, plumbing and fire sprinkler system modifications. See 

Technical Specifications and Construction Drawings for specific Scope of Work requirements.  

 
 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

 

The project has been designed utilizing the 2 0 1 2  International Building Code, current version as adopted and 
amended by Gila County. See Technical Specifications. 

 

In the event of any conflict between the plans and Technical Specifications, the more restrictive shall apply. In 
the event of any conflict between these Special Provisions and the plans or Technical Specifications, these Special 
Provisions shall prevail. 

 

AS-BUILTS 
 
 

When the work is completed, the Contractor shall provide the OWNER with a set of asbuilt drawings on clean 

prints of the original drawings.   The as-built drawings shall indicate in a neat and accurate manner all changes 

and revisions in the original design which affect the mechanical, plumbing and electrical systems and which 

exist in the completed work.  All hidden   utilities, within walls ceilings or floors,   to be relocated under this 

contract shall be referenced to semi permanent or permanent physical objects. 

 

The alterations and references shall be made with colored ink and shall be sufficiently clear and complete to 

enable reproducing these changes on the original drawings. The Contractor will document these changes on 

the original drawings and forward the signed copy to the Owner. Final payment of this contract will not 

be made to the Contractor until the As-Built drawings are satisfactorily produced and approved. 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-49 
 

 

As-Built conditions shall be kept current.   They shall be inspected for accuracy and completeness monthly.  

The Contractor shall certify on his monthly payment requisition that the drawings are accurate and complete 

before the monthly payment estimate will be prepared and approved. 

 
 CONSTRUCTION LIMITS 
 
The Contractor shall be limited to the areas, as identified in the Construction Documents, as the site. These 

limits shall be known as the Construction Limits. Deviation outside these limits is not authorized. The Contractor 

shall not enter or occupy with personnel, tools, equipment or materials, any private property without  

written  consent of the Owner thereof. 

 
The Contractor shall submit at the preconstruction conference a map showing the proposed location of his 
Contractor's yard.  The location of the yard is subject to the approval of the Owner. The Contractor is 
responsible for the security of his yard and the equipment and materials stored at the yard or construction site. 
Damage, theft, vandalism, or loss of such equipment or materials is the responsibility of the Contractor. The 
Contractor will not be compensated for replacement, repair, or refusal of materials by the Owner, damaged by 
vandalism or theft. The Contractor will take measures necessary to secure his yard, equipment, and materials. 
Security measures such as yard fences, security guards, locks, chains, etc. are incidental to the work for this 
project. 
 
MEETINGS 
 

Preconstruction Conference: 

A preconstruction conference shall be held. Notification of the time and date of such conference 

shall be made to the selected Contractor in the Letter of Intent to Award. The Contractor shall 

require the Superintendent, and major Subcontractors to attend. 

 

Progress Meetings: 

Progress meetings shall occur on a regular basis, once a week, according to a schedule determined 

at the pre-construction conference. The General Contractors superintendent and that of major 

subcontractors scheduled to do work over the next week shall be in attendance. 

 

Safety Meetings: 

The Contractor shall be held responsible for conducting regular safety meetings. Gila County Public 

Works will issue a Safety and Loss Control booklet, to be reviewed by the Contractor, prior to being 

on site. The Gila County Safety and Loss Control booklet must be read and signed by all working at 

the job site. During the preconstruction meeting a time will be set for the Gila County QA/QC 

Safety Compliance Officer for a safety meeting. For every safety meeting the Contractor shall invite 

the QA/QC Safety Compliance Officer and shall give at least twenty-four (24) hour notice. 

 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-50 
 

 
CONFLICTING UTILITY SYSTEMS 
 
 
The Contractor shall be aware that within the project limits there are utility systems that may conflict with the 

proposed work. The Contractor is not responsible for resolving these conflicts unless otherwise noted within 

the plans. Such shall be the sole responsibility of each individual utility owner. However, the Contractor shall 

coordinate directly with each utility owner to insure that the work progresses and notify the Owner on all 

matters. The Contractor shall be aware of several utility systems existing within and adjacent to the project 

limits. The Contractor shall be responsible for any damage to the utilities within the construction area(s).   

 
UTILITY SHUTDOWNS 
 
 
The Contractor shall prearrange time with the Owner whenever it becomes necessary to interrupt any 

service to make connections, alterations or relocations and shall fully cooperate with the Owner in 

doing Work so as to cause the least annoyance and interference with the continuous operation of 

the Owner’s business or official duties. Any existing plumbing, heating, ventila ting, air conditioning 

or electrical disconnections which may affect portions of this construction or building or any other 

building must be coordinated with the Owner to avoid any disruption of operation within the 

building or construction.  

 

In no case, unless previously approved in writing by the owner, shall utilities be left disconnected at 

the end of a work day or over a weekend. Any interruption of utilities, whether negligently, 

intentionally, or accidentally, shall not relieve the Contractor’s resp onsibility for the interruption or 

from liability for loss or damage caused by such interruption even though such loss or damage was 

not foreseeable by Contractor or subcontractor, or from responsibility for repairing and restoring the 

utility to normal service. Repairs and restoration shall be made before the workmen responsible for 

the repair and restoration leave the job.  

 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-51 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 
 
 
 

SEE TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS AND 
CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS 

 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-52 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

CONTRACT FORMS 
 
 

Bid Submittal Checklist (CK1) 

Bid Proposal (BP1-3) 

Surety Bid Bond (BB1) 

Qualification & Certification Form (QC1-2) 

Subcontractors List (SL1-2) 

Contractor Reference List (RL-1) 

Affidavit of Non-Collusion (ANC1) 

Subcontractor Certification (SC1) 

Construction Contract (C1-5) 

Contract Performance Bond (CPB-1) 

Labor & Material Bond (LMB-1) 

Contract Performance Warranty (CPW-1) 

Pay Application (Sample AIA Doc G702) 

 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-53 
 

 

 
 

BID SUBMITTAL CHECKLIST (CK1) 
 

BIDDERS ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED: 
 
The bidder must supply all the information required by the bidding documents or specifications.   
All proposals shall be made on the Bid Proposal (BP1-3) form prepared by Gila County as part of the Contract 
Documents.   
 
Each Bid shall be sealed in an envelope addressed to Gila County Purchasing Department and bearing the 
following statement on the outside of the envelope:  
 

Sealed Bid for:  
BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 
INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 
The proposal must include one (1) entire bid packet with completed documents with original signatures and 
two (2) copies of completed bid documents with original signatures. 
 
The following forms must accompany the bidder’s proposal: 
 

 Bid Proposal (BP1-3) 
 Surety Bid Bond (BB1) 
 Qualification & Certification Form (QC1-2) 
 Subcontractors List (SL1-2) 
 Contractors Reference List (RL-1) 
 Affidavit of Non-Collusion (ANC-1) 
 Subcontractor Certification (SC-1) 
 Construction Contract (C1-5) 
 Contract Performance Warranty (CPW-1) 
 

Failure to include all required documents may invalidate the bid.   







































COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-70 
 

 
 

STATUTORY PERFORMANCE BOND (CPB-1) 
PURSUANT TO TITLE 34, CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 2 OF 

THE ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES 
( PENALTY OF THIS BOND MUST BE 100% OF CONTRACT AMOUNT ) 

 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 
That, _________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________, (hereinafter called the Principal), as Principal,  

  

and _________________________________________________________________________________ 

(hereinafter called Surety), a corporation duly organized and existing the laws of the State of  

 

_____________________________________________ with its principal office in the city of ___________________________ holding a certificate of 

authority to transact surety business in Arizona issued by the Director of the Department of Insurance, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto Gila 

County (hereinafter called the Obligee) in the amount of (100% OF CONTRACT AMOUNT)____________________________________________ 

dollars ($_________________), for the payment whereof, the said Principal and Surety bind themselves, and their heirs, administrator, executors, 

successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

 

WHEREAS, the Principal has agreed to enter into a certain contract with the Obligee for: COPPER ADMIN BUILDING, INTERIOR 

RENOVATION, which contract is hereby referred to and made a part hereof as fully and to the same extent as if copied at length herein. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if the said Principal shall faithfully perform and fulfill 

all the undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions and agreements of said contract during the original term of said contract and any extension thereof, with 

or without notice to the Surety, and during the life of any guaranty required under the contract, and shall also perform and fulfill all the undertakings, 

covenants, terms, conditions, and agreements of any and all duly authorized modifications of said contract that may hereafter be made, notice of which 

modifications to the Surety being hereby waived; then the above obligation shall be void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect; 

 

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of Title 34, Chapter 2, Article 2, of the Arizona Revised 

Statutes, and all liabilities on this bond shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of said Title, Chapter and Article, so the extent as if they 

were copied at length herein. 

 The prevailing party in a suit on this bond shall recover as a part of the judgement such reasonable attorneys' fees as may be fixed by a judge of 

the court. 

 

Witness our hands this __________ day of ____________________, 20 ______. 

 

 

________________________________________________________ 

Principal                                    Seal   

________________________________________________________ 

Surety                                       Seal 

________________________________________________________ 

Agency of Record 

________________________________________________________ 

Arizona Countersignature 

________________________________________________________          

Address     Phone Number 

Phone Number 

 

 

_______________________________ 

By: 

____________________________ 

By: 

 

      
AgencyAddress



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-71 
 

 

STATUTORY LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND (LMB-1) 

PURSUANT TO TITLE 34, CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 2 OF 

THE ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES 
(PENALTY OF THIS BOND MUST BE 100% OF CONTRACT AMOUNT) 

 

 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 

That, _________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________,  (hereinafter called the Principal), as Principal,  

and _________________________________________________________________________________ 

(hereinafter called Surety), a corporation duly organized and existing the laws of the State of  

 

_________________with its principal office in the city of ___________________________ holding a certificate of authority to transact surety business in 

Arizona issued by the Director of the Department of Insurance, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto Gila County (hereinafter called the Obligee) in 

the amount of (100% of Contract Amount)______________________________________ dollars ($_________________), for the payment whereof, the 

said Principal and Surety bind themselves, and their heirs, administrator, executors, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

 

WHEREAS, the Principal has agreed to enter into a certain contract with the Obligee for COPPER ADMIN BUILDING, INTERIOR 

RENOVATION which contract is hereby referred to and made a part hereof as fully and to the same extent as if copied at length herein. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if the said Principal shall faithfully perform and fulfill 

all the undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions and agreements of said contract during the original term of said contract and any extension thereof, with 

or without notice to the Surety, and during the life of any guaranty required under the contract, and shall also perform and fulfill all the undertakings, 

covenants, terms, conditions, and agreements of any and all duly authorized modifications of said contract that may hereafter be made, notice of which 

modifications to the Surety being hereby waived; then the above obligation shall be void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect; 

 

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of Title 34, Chapter 2, Article 2, of the Arizona Revised 

Statutes, and all liabilities on this bond shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of said Title, Chapter and Article, so the extent as if they 

were copied at length herein. 

The prevailing party in a suit on this bond shall recover as a part of the judgment such reasonable attorneys' fees as may be fixed by a judge of 

the court. 

Witness our hands this __________ day of ____________________, 20 ______. 

 

 

________________________________________________________ 

Principal                                    Seal   

________________________________________________________ 

Surety                                       Seal 

________________________________________________________ 

Agency of Record 

________________________________________________________ 

Arizona Countersignature 

________________________________________________________ 

Address     Phone Number 

_________________________________ 

Phone Number 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

By: 

_______________________________ 

By: 

_______________________________ 

AgencyAddress

 





GLOBE COURTHOUSE  BID NO 012114 

2
ND

 FLR RENOVATION 

SCHOOLS AND ASSESSOR 

 

 

 



GLOBE COURTHOUSE  BID NO 012114 

2
ND

 FLR RENOVATION 

SCHOOLS AND ASSESSOR 

 

 
 





COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
GILA COUNTY 

 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-2 
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SECTION 01: NOTIFICATION TO BIDDER  ..............................................................................................GP6-7 
 

SECTION 10: DEFINITION OF TERMS  .................................................................................................. GP8-13 

 

SECTION 20: PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS  .......................................................... GP14-17 
20-03    CONTENTS OF PROPOSAL FORMS 

04    ISSUANCE OF PROPOSAL FORMS 
05    ALLOWANCES 
06    EXAMINATION OF PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND SITE 
07    PREPARATION OF PROPOSAL 
08    IRREGULAR PROPOSALS 
09    PROPOSAL GUARANTY 
10    DELIVERY OF PROPOSAL 
11    WITHDRAWAL OR REVISION OF PROPOSALS 
12    PUBLIC OPENING OF PROPOSALS 
13    DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS 
14    PROTESTS 

 

SECTION 30: AWARD AND EXECUTION OF CONTRACT .................................................................... GP18-19 
30-01    CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSALS  

02    AWARD OF CONTRACT  
03    CANCELLATION OF AWARD  
04    RETURN OF PROPOSAL GUARANTY  
05    REQUIREMENTS OF CONTRACT BONDS  
06    EXECUTION OF CONTRACT  
07    APPROVAL OF CONTRACT  
08    FAILURE TO EXECUTE CONTRACT  

  

SECTION 40: SCOPE OF WORK  ......................................................................................................... GP20-21 
40-01    INTENT OF CONTRACT  

02    CHANGES TO THE WORK 
03    OMITTED ITEMS  
04    EXTRA WORK  
05    MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC  
06    RIGHTS IN AND USE OF MATERIALS FOUND IN THE WORK  
07    FINAL CLEANING UP  



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-3 
 

 

SECTION 50: CONTROL OF WORK  .................................................................................................... GP22-28 

 50-01    AUTHORITY OF THE OWNER 
 02    CONFORMITY WITH PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 03    COORDINATION OF CONTRACT, PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 04    COOPERATION OF CONTRACTOR 
 05    COOPERATION BETWEEN CONTRACTOR 
 06    CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT AND STAKES 
 07    AUTOMATICALLY CONTROLLED EQUIPMENT 
 08    AUTHORITY AND DUTIES OF INSPECTORS 
09    INSPECTION OF THE WORK 
 10    REMOVAL OF UNACCEPTABLE AND UNAUTHORIZED WORK 
 11    LOAD RESTRICTIONS 
 12    MAINTENANCE DURING CONSTRUCTION 
 13    FAILURE TO MAINTAIN THE WORK 
 14    PARTIAL ACCEPTANCE 
 15    FINAL ACCEPTANCE 
 16    CLAIMS FOR ADJUSTMENT AND DISPUTES 
 17    GUARANTEE OF WORK (ADDITIONAL) 
 18    CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE 
19    NEGOTIATIONS WITH INDIVIDUAL CONTRACTORS 

 

SECTION 60: CONTROL OF MATERIAL .............................................................................................. GP29-31 
 60-01    SOURCE OF SUPPLY AND QUALITY REQUIREMENTS 

02    SAMPLES, TESTS, AND CITED SPECIFICATIONS 
03    CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE 
04    PLANT INSPECTION 
05    OWNER'S ENGINEER'S FIELD OFFICE AND LABORATORY 
06    STORAGE OF MATERIALS 
07    UNACCEPTABLE MATERIALS 
08    OWNER-FURNISHED MATERIALS 

  

SECTION 70: LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY TO PUBLIC .................................................... GP32-37 
 70-01    LAWS TO BE OBSERVED 

02    PERMITS, LICENSES, AND TAXES 
03    PATENTED DEVICES, MATERIALS, AND PROCESSES 
04    RESTORATION OF SERVICES DISTURBED BY OTHERS 
05    SANITARY, HEALTH, AND SAFETY PROVISIONS 
06    PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND SAFETY 
07    BARRICADES, WARNING SIGNS AND HAZARD MARKINGS 
08    PROTECTION AND RESTORATION OF PROPERTY 
09    RESPONSIBILITY FOR DAMAGE CLAIMS 
10    CONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE 
11    THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY CLAUSE 
12    OPENING SECTIONS OF THE WORK FOR OCCUPANCY 
13    CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR WORK 
14    CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR UTILITY SERVICE AND FACILITIES OF OTHERS 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-4 
 

15    FURNISHING RIGHTS-OF-WAY 
16    PERSONAL LIABILITY OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS 
17    NO WAIVER OF LEGAL RIGHTS 
18    ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

 

SECTION 80: PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS ................................................................................... GP38-42 
 80-01    SUBLETTING OF CONTRACT 

02    NOTICE TO PROCEED 
03    PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS 
04    CONSTRUCTION LIMITS 
05    CHARACTER OF WORKERS, METHODS AND EQUIPMENT 
06    TEMPORARY SUSPENSION OF THE WORK 
07    DETERMINATION AND EXTENSION OF CONTRACT TIME 
08    FAILURE TO COMPLETE ON TIME 
09    DEFAULT AND TERMINATION OF CONTRACT 
10    TERMINATION FOR NATIONAL EMERGENCIES 

 

SECTION 90: MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT .................................................................................. GP43-47 
 90-01    MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 

02    RETAINAGE 
03    CHANGE ORDERS 
04    ALLOWANCES 
05    SCHEDULE OF VALUES 
06    CONSTRUCTION AND PROGRESS SCHEDULES 

 07    ACCEPTANCE AND FINAL PAYMENT 

 
SPECIAL PROVISIONS:  ................................................................................................................... GP48-50 

PROPOSED WORK 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
AS-BUILTS 
CONSTRUCTION LIMITS 
MEETINGS 
CONFLICTING UTILITY SYSTEMS 
UTILITY SHUTDOWNS 
 

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS: SEE TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS W/ DRAWINGS 
 

CONTRACT FORMS  ......................................................................................................................... GP52-74 
BID SUBMITTAL CHECKLIST (CK1) 
BID PROPOSAL (BP1-3) 
SURETY (BID) BOND (BB1) 
QUALIFICATION & CERTIFICATION FORM (QC1-2) 
SUBCONTRACTORS LIST (SL1-2) 
CONTRACTOR REFERENCE LIST (RL-1) 
AFFIDAVIT OF NON-COLLUSION (ANC-1) 
SUBCONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION (SC-1) 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT (C1-5) 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-5 
 

STATUTORY PERFORMANCE BOND (CPB-1) 
STATUTORY LABOR & MATERIAL BOND (LMB-1) 
CONTRACT PERFORMANCE WARRANTY (CPW-1) 
PAY APPLICATION (AIA DOC G702) 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-6 
 

 

 
 

SECTION 01 
NOTIFICATION TO BIDDERS 

 

BIDDERS ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED: 
 
1. The bidder must supply all the information required by the bidding documents or specifications.   
 

All proposals shall be made on the bid proposal forms prepared by Gila County as part of the Contract 
Documents.   
 
No forms shall be detached from the bid packet.  The proposal must include one (1) entire bid packet with 
completed documents with original signatures and two (2) copies of completed bid documents with 
original signatures. 
 
The following forms MUST accompany the bidder’s proposal: 

 

 Bid Proposal (BP1-3) 
 Surety Bid Bond (BB1) 
 Qualification & Certification Form(QC1-2) 
 Contractor Reference List (RL-1) 
 Affidavit of Non-Collusion (ANC-1) 
 Subcontractor List (SL1-2) 
 Subcontractor Certification (SC-1) 
 Construction Contract (C1-5) 
 Contract Performance Warranty (CPW-1) 
 

Failure to include all required documents may invalidate the bid.   
Prices shall include all applicable taxes.   

 

2. Proposal Guaranty - Proposals shall be accompanied by a certified check, cashier's check  
or bid bond for 10 percent (10%) of the total contract price bid. 

 

3. Delivery of Proposal - Each bid shall be sealed and plainly marked:  
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-7 
 

"Bid No. 032315-1 COPPER ADMIN BUILDING, INTERIOR RENOVATION”, on the outer most envelope or 
label.   
 
If courier is used, bidder shall instruct the courier to deliver the package by     4:00 P.M.   on the date 
specified herein, to the Gila County Purchasing Dept., in the Guerrero Building at 1400 East Ash, Globe, 
Arizona 85501.   

 
No bids will be accepted after   4:00  P.M.  M.S.T.,  Thursday, August 13, 2015  .  Time shall be the 
prevailing time per the atomic clock in the reception area of the Guerrero Bldg. Bids will be publicly 
opened and read aloud at     4:00 P.M.   at the location and date listed above. 

  

4. Rejection of Bids -The Owner reserves the right to reject any and all bids, waive all or any informalities in 
the bids. 

 

5. Plans and Specifications - Plans, specifications and all other documents required by bidders may be 
obtained at the address shown below.   

 
A deposit of $20 per set, and $10 for mailing, $20 of which will be refunded upon return of the documents 
in good, usable order.  Payment shall be by check or money order only.  No cash will be accepted.  

   
Gila County  

Purchasing Department 
Guerrero Building 

1400 East Ash 
Globe, Arizona 85501 

 

6. Mandatory Pre-Bid Conference - General Contractors and major subcontractors are required to attend the 
Pre-bid Conference scheduled for: Friday, July 17, 2015_at _8:00 A.M.  Bidders are to meet at the modular 
structure behind the Globe Courthouse, 1350 E. Monroe Street, and must sign-in as in attendance. 

 
 Any questions related to this IFB should be directed in writing to:  the Contracts Administrator, Jeannie 

Sgroi, (928-402-8612) at jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov.  Any correspondence related to any Invitation for Bid 
should refer to the appropriate Invitation for Bid number, page and paragraph number.  Questions may be 
submitted up to 3:00 P.M. MST, Tuesday, July 28, 2015.  Only questions answered by formal written 
addenda will be binding.  Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. 

 
7. Arizona Contractor's License - Prior to submission of bids, bidders must have a valid Arizona Contractor's 

License of a type which meets all criteria and requirements to perform the work as specified in the 
contract documents in accordance with the Arizona State Registrar of Contractors. 

 

8. Bid Opening Information - Information regarding the bid award will not be available until after the Gila 
County Board of Supervisors has issued a decision regarding the submitted project bids.  

mailto:jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov


COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-8 
 

 
 

 
 

 

SECTION 10 
DEFINITION OF TERMS 

 

Whenever the following terms are used in these specifications, in the contract, in any documents or other 
instruments pertaining to construction where these specifications govern, the intent and meaning shall be 
interpreted as follows: 
 
ADDENDA. Written or graphic instruments issued by the Owner and/or Architect/Engineer, prior to bid opening, 
which modify or interpret Bidding documents by addition, deletion, clarification or correction. 
 
ADVERTISEMENT.  A public announcement, as required by local law, inviting bids for work to be performed and 
materials to be furnished. 
 
ARCHITECT. Architect shall be interchangeable with the Gila County assigned “Facility Services Project Manager” 
for such projects that do not include the services of an outside Consultant or Registrant. 
 
APPROVED. Where used in conjunction with the Architect’s/Engineer’s and/or Owners response to SUBMITTALS, 
requests, applications, inquiries, reports and claims by the Contractor, the meaning of the term “approved” will be 
held to the limitations of the Architect’s/Engineer’s responsibilities and duties as specified in the General and 
Supplementary Conditions. In no case will “approval” by the Architect/Engineer be interpreted as a release of the 
Contractor from responsibilities to fulfill the requirements of the Contract Documents. 
 
ASTM.  The American Society for Testing and Materials. 
 
AWARD.  The acceptance, by the Owner, of the successful bidder's proposal. 
 
BASE BID. The sum stated in the Bid for which the Bidder offers to perform Work described as base including all 
allowances, to which Work may be added or deducted for sums stated in Alternate Bid(s), if applicable. 
 
BIDDER.  Any individual, partnership, firm, or corporation, acting directly or through a duly authorized 
representative, who submits a proposal for the work described in the Bidding Documents. 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-9 
 

BIDDING DOCUMENTS / CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. Includes all portions of the General Provisions, Addenda, Plans 
and Technical Specifications. 
 
BUILDING AREA.  An area to be used, considered, or intended to be used for a building or other facilities or rights-
of-way together with all buildings and facilities located thereon. 
 
BUILDING INSPECTOR. Employee of Gila County Community Development, authorized and required to perform 
inspections of the Work at various stages, as identified on the Blue Inspection Card, for compliance with minimum 
Code requirements of the Building Permit. NO WORK is to be covered up prior to inspection by Building Inspector. 
 
CALENDAR DAY.  Every day shown on the calendar. 
 
CHANGE ORDER.  A written order by the Architect/Engineer and/or Owner to the Contractor covering changes in 
the plans, specifications, or proposal quantities and establishing the basis of payment and contract time 
adjustment, if any, for the work affected by such changes.  The work, covered  by a change order, shall be within 
the scope of the contract. 
 
CONTRACT.  The written agreement covering the work to be performed.  The awarded contract shall include, but 
is not limited to:  the Advertisement; the General Provisions, the Construction Contract, the Bid Proposal, the 
Performance Bond, the Payment Bond, any required insurance certificates, the Specifications; the Plans; and any 
addenda issued to bidders. 
 
CONTRACT  ITEM (PAY ITEM).  A specific unit of work for which a price is provided in the contract.  All pay items 
on this contract will be measured in English units. 
 
CONTRACT TIME.  The number of calendar days or working days, stated in the proposal, allowed for completion of 
the contract, including authorized time extensions.  If a calendar date of completion is stated in the proposal, in 
lieu of a number of calendar or working days, the contract shall be completed by that date. 
 
CONTRACTOR.  The individual, partnership, firm, or corporation primarily liable for the acceptable performance of 
the work contracted and for the payment of all legal debts pertaining to the work who acts directly or through 
lawful agents or employees to complete the contract work. 
 
CONTRACTOR'S ENGINEER.  The Arizona Registered Professional Engineer, individual, partnership, firm, or 
corporation, duly authorized by the State of Arizona, hired by the Contractor to be responsible for engineering 
supervision, quality control and certification of the Contract work. If not required, all references to “Contractor’s 
Engineer” shall mean the “Contractor”. 
 
EQUIPMENT.  All machinery, together with the necessary fuel and supplies for upkeep and maintenance including, 
but not limited to, all tools and apparatus necessary for the proper construction and acceptable completion of the 
work. 
 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-10 
 

EXTRA WORK.  An item of work not provided for in the awarded contract as previously modified by change order 
or supplemental agreement, but which is found by the Owner's Engineer to be necessary to complete the work 
within the intended scope of the contract as previously modified. 
 
FACILITY SERVICES PROJECT MANAGER.  An authorized representative of the Owner assigned to make all 
necessary quality assurance inspections and/or tests of the work performed or being performed, or of the 
materials furnished or being furnished by the Contractor, on behalf of the Owner for compliance with all portions 
of the Contract Documents. 
 
FINAL COMPLETION. Time at which the Owner finds the Work acceptable under the Contract Documents and the 
Contract fully performed, including acceptance of O&M Manuals, warranties, guaranties, as-built record 
documents, extra stock items, and all punch list items have been corrected, accepted and completed. The Owner 
will approve the Final Payment due the Contractor. 
 
FURNISH. Except as otherwise defined in greater detail, is used to mean supply and deliver to the project site, 
ready for unloading, unpacking, assembly, installation, etc., as applicable in each instance.  
 
INSTALL. Except as otherwise defined in greater detail, the term “install” is used to describe operations at the 
project site including unloading, unpacking, assembly, erection, placing anchoring, applying, working to 
dimension, finishing, curing, protection, cleaning and similar operation, as applicable in each instance. 
 
INSTALLER. The entity (person or firm) engaged by the Contractor or its subcontractor or sub-subcontractor for 
the performance of a particular unit of work at the project site, including installation, erection, application and 
similar required operations. It is a general requirement that such entities (Installers) be expert in the operations 
they are engaged to perform. 
 
INTENTION OF TERMS.  Whenever, in these specifications or on the plans, the words "directed," "required," 
"permitted," "ordered," "designated," "prescribed," or words of the like import are used, it shall be understood 
that the direction, requirement, permission, order, designation, or prescription of the Owner is intended; and 
similarly, the words, "approved," "acceptable," "satisfactory," or words of like import, shall mean approved by, or 
acceptable to, or satisfactory to the Owner, subject in each case to the final determination of the Owner. 
 
Any reference to a specific requirement of a numbered paragraph of the contract specifications or a cited 
standard shall be interpreted to include all general requirements of the entire section, specification item, or cited 
standard that may be pertinent to such specific reference. 
 
INTERNATIONAL CODE. Shall be latest State of Arizona and/or Gila County adopted version, with amendments, at 
the time the contract was bid. This shall include the building, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, fuel gas and fire 
codes adopted by Gila County or the State of Arizona. 
 
LABORATORY.  A testing laboratory as may be designated or approved by the Owner’s to test construction 
materials and products. 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-11 
 

 
LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND.  The approved form of security furnished by the Contractor and his surety as a 
guaranty that he will pay in full all bills and accounts for materials and labor used in the construction of the work.  
Also known as Payment Bond. 
 
MAJOR AND MINOR CONTRACT ITEMS.  A major contract item shall be any item that is listed in the proposal, the 
total cost of which is equal to or greater than 10 percent of the total amount of the awarded contract.  All other 
items shall be considered minor contract items. 
 
MATERIALS.  Any product or substance specified for use in the construction of the contract work. 
 
NOTICE TO PROCEED.  A written notice to the Contractor to begin the actual contract work on a previously agreed 
to date.  If applicable, the Notice to Proceed shall state the date on which the contract time begins. 
 
OVERTIME HOURS.  Any and all hours worked which are other than a normal work week as defined.  Contractor 
must give prior written notification to the Public Works Director or his authorized representative, for any and all 
overtime hours to be worked.  It shall be at the Owner's discretion to provide an inspector at the worksite to 
ensure compliance during any and all overtime hours worked.  
 
OVERTIME PAY.  Any and all pay resulting from overtime hours worked.  
 
OWNER (SPONSOR).  The term Owner shall mean the Gila County Board of Supervisors. Unless noted otherwise, 
and assigned Gila County Facility Services Project Manager shall act on behalf of the County for construction 
purposes. 
 
OWNER'S ENGINEER.  The individual, partnership, firm, or corporation duly authorized by the Owner (sponsor) to 
be responsible for engineering supervision of the contract work and acting directly or through an authorized 
representative.  There is no Owner's Engineer on this project. See definition of Owner. Facilities Services Project 
Manager shall be substituted as Owner’s Engineer where ever referenced in the documents. 
 
OWNER'S INSPECTOR'S OVERTIME PAY.  Any and all pay to the Owner's Inspector for overtime hours worked 
resulting from the Contractor having received approval for overtime hours.  The inspector's overtime pay shall be 
the actual monies paid by the County and shall be reimbursed by the Contractor to the County.  Certified payrolls 
for the Owner's Inspector's Overtime will be submitted to the Contractor.  The cost for the Owner's Inspector's 
Overtime Pay will be deducted from the Contractor's billing. 
 
PERFORMANCE BOND.  The approved form of security furnished by the Contractor and his surety as a guaranty 
that the Contractor will complete the work in accordance with the terms of the Contract. 
 
PLANS.  The official drawings or exact reproductions, approved by the Owner, which show the location, character, 
dimensions and details of the work to be done and which are to be considered as a part of the contract, 
supplementary to the specifications. 
 
PROJECT.  The agreed scope of work as identified in the Contract Documents. 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-12 
 

 
PROPOSAL.  The written offer of the bidder (when submitted on the approved proposal form) to perform the 
contemplated work and furnish the necessary materials in accordance with the provisions of the plans and 
specifications. 
 
PROPOSAL GUARANTY.  The security furnished with a proposal to guarantee that the bidder will enter into a 
contract if his proposal is accepted by the Owner. 
 
PROVIDE. Except, as otherwise defined in greater detail, the term “provide” means furnish and install, complete 
and ready for the intended use, as applicable in each instance. 
 
SPECIFICATIONS.  A part of the contract containing the written directions and requirements for completing the 
contract work.  Standards for specifying materials or testing which are cited in the contract specifications by 
reference shall have the same force and effect as if included in the contract physically. 
 
STRUCTURES.  Facilities such as buildings, porches, ramadas, bridges, culverts, catch basins, inlets, retaining walls, 
cribbing, storm and sanitary sewer lines, water lines, underdrains, electrical ducts, manholes, handholes, lighting 
fixtures and bases, transformers, flexible and rigid pavements, navigational aids, vaults, and other manmade 
features that may be encountered in the work and not otherwise classified herein. 
 
SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION. The date certified by the Owner when construction is sufficiently complete, in 
accordance with the Contract Documents, so that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work or a designated 
portion thereof for the use for which it is intended. All systems and equipment are fully functioning, all inspection 
and agency approvals have been received and only minor punch list items exist that will not disrupt the 
occupants. Substantial Completion does not imply acceptance. 
 
SUPERINTENDENT.  The Contractor's authorized representative who is present on the work site during progress, 
and is authorized to receive and fulfill instructions from the Owner, and who shall supervise and direct the 
construction. 
 
SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT.  A written agreement between the Contractor and the Owner covering: 1) work 
that would increase or decrease the total dollar amount of the awarded contract, or any major contract item, by 
more than 25 percent, such increased or decreased work being within the scope of the originally awarded 
contract, or 2) work that is not within the scope of the originally awarded contract. 
 
SURETY.  The corporation, partnership, or individual, other than the Contractor, executing payment or 
performance bonds which are furnished to the Owner by the Contractor. 
 
WORK.  The furnishing of all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals necessary or convenient to the 
Contractor's performance of all duties and obligations imposed by the contract, plans, and specifications. 
 
 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-13 
 

 
WORK DAY, WORKING DAY.  A work day shall be any day other than a legal holiday, Saturday, or Sunday on which 
the normal working forces of the Contractor may proceed with regular work for at least 6 hours toward 
completion of the contract, unless work is suspended for causes beyond the Contractor's control.  Saturdays, 
Sundays and holidays on which the Contractor's forces engage in regular work, after obtaining written permission 
from the Public Works Director, or his authorized representative, which requires the presence of an inspector, will 
be considered and applied as working days.   
 
WORK WEEK.  A work week shall consist of forty (40) hours beginning on Sunday and ending on Saturday.  Should 
the Contractor engage in work exceeding the forty (40) hour work week which requires the presence of an 
inspector, as determined by the County Public Works Director or his authorized representative, the Contractor 
shall reimburse the County for all overtime hours. 
 
   



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-14 
 

 
 

 
 

 

SECTION 20 
PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
20-03 CONTENTS OF PROPOSAL FORMS.  The Owner shall furnish bidders with proposal forms, see Contract 
Forms Section.  All papers bound with, or attached to, or referenced, the proposal forms are necessary parts of 
the proposal. The proposal submitted by the bidder must include the entire bid packet. 
 
The plans, specifications, and other documents designated in the proposal whether attached or not to the 
proposal are considered as a part of and included with the proposal. 
 
Bids will be accepted only from those Contractors who are licensed in the State of Arizona and qualified under the 
laws of the State of Arizona to perform the work specified. 
 
20-04 ISSUANCE OF PROPOSAL FORMS.  The Owner reserves the right to refuse to issue a proposal form to a 
prospective bidder should such bidder be in default for any of the following reasons:  
 

(a)    Failure to comply with any prequalification regulations of the Owner, if such regulations are cited, or 
otherwise included, in the proposal as a requirement for bidding. 

(b)    Failure to pay, or satisfactorily settle, all bills due for labor and materials on former contracts in force 
(with the Owner) at the time the Owner issues the proposal to a prospective bidder. 

(c)    Contractor default under previous contracts with the Owner. 
(d)    Unsatisfactory work on previous contracts with the Owner. 
 

20-05 ALLOWANCES.  The contractor shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Contract 
Documents. Items covered by allowances shall be supplied for such amounts as identified. See Allowances 90-04. 
The Schedule of Values and Payment Application shall identify each Allowance as a separate line item. 
 
20-06 EXAMINATION OF PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND SITE.  The bidder is expected to carefully examine the site 
of the proposed work, the proposal, plans, specifications, and contract forms.  He shall satisfy himself as to the 
character, quality, and quantities of work to be performed, materials to be furnished, and as to the requirements 
of the proposed contract.  The submission of a proposal shall be prima facie evidence that the bidder has made 
such examination and is satisfied as to the conditions to be encountered in performing the work and as to the 
requirements of the proposed contract, plans and specifications. 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-15 
 

 
If any person contemplating submitting a bid for the proposed contract is in doubt as to the true meaning of any 
part of the plans, specifications, or other proposed contract documents, or finds discrepancies in, or omissions 
from the drawings or specifications, he may submit to the Owner a written request for an interpretation or 
correction thereof.  The person submitting the request will be responsible for its prompt delivery.  Any 
interpretation or correction of the contract documents will be made only by addendum duly issued and a copy of 
such addendum will be made or delivered to each person having received a set of such documents.  The Owner 
will not be responsible for any other explanations or interpretations of the contract documents. 
 
Any addenda or bulletins issued during the time of bid preparations, forming a part of the contract documents 
furnished the bidder for the preparation of his bid, shall be covered in the bid, and shall be made a part of the 
contract. 
 
20-07  PREPARATION OF PROPOSAL  The bidder shall submit his proposal on the forms furnished by the Owner.  
No forms shall be detached from the bid packet.  The proposal must include the entire bid packet.  All blank 
spaces in the proposal forms must be correctly filled in where indicated for each and every item for which a 
quantity is given.  The bidder shall state the price (written in ink or typed) in NUMERALS for which he proposes to 
do each pay item furnished in the proposal.  The TOTAL AGGREGATE AMOUNT bid shall be stated in both WORDS 
and NUMERALS.  In case of conflict between words and numerals, the words, unless obviously incorrect, shall 
govern. A minimum of one (1) original and two (2) copies ALL with original signatures shall be submitted. 
 
The bidder shall sign his proposal correctly and in ink.  If the proposal is made by an individual, his name and 
mailing address must be shown.  If made by a partnership, the name and mailing address of each member of the 
partnership must be shown.  If made by a corporation, the person signing the proposal shall give the name of the 
state under which the laws of the corporation were chartered and the name, titles, and business address of the 
president, secretary, and the treasurer.  Anyone signing a proposal as an agent shall file evidence of his authority 
to do so and that the signature is binding upon the firm or corporation. 
 
20-08 IRREGULAR PROPOSALS.  Proposals shall be considered irregular for the following reasons: 
 

(a)    If the proposal is on a form other than that furnished by the Owner, or if the Owner's form is altered, or 
if any part of the proposal form is detached. 

(b)    If there are unauthorized additions, conditional or alternate pay items, or irregularities of any kind which 
make the proposal incomplete, indefinite, or otherwise ambiguous. 

(c)    If the proposal does not contain a unit price for each pay item listed in the proposal, except in the case 
of authorized alternate pay items, for which the bidder is not required to furnish a unit price. 

(d)    If the proposal contains unit prices that are obviously unbalanced. 
(e)    If the proposal is not accompanied by the proposal guaranty specified by the Owner. 

 
The Owner reserves the right to reject any irregular proposal and the right to waive technicalities if such waiver is 
in the best interest of the Owner and conforms to local laws and ordinances pertaining to the letting of 
construction contracts. 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-16 
 

20-09 PROPOSAL GUARANTY.  Each proposal shall be accompanied by a certified check, cashier’s check or surety 
bond for ten percent (10%) of the amount of the bid included in the proposal as a guarantee that the Contractor 
will enter into a contract to perform the proposed work in accordance with the plans and specifications. 
 
20-10  DELIVERY OF PROPOSAL.  Each proposal submitted shall be placed in a sealed envelope plainly marked 
with the bid number, name of project, and name and business address of the bidder on the outside.  When sent 
by mail, preferably registered, or courier, the sealed proposal, marked as indicated above, should be enclosed in 
an additional envelope.  No proposal will be considered unless received at the place specified in the 
advertisement before the time specified.  Proposals received after the specified time shall be returned to the 
bidder unopened. 
 
20-11 WITHDRAWAL OR REVISION OF PROPOSALS.  A bidder may withdraw or revise (by withdrawal of one 
proposal and submission of another) a proposal provided that the bidder's request for withdrawal is received by 
the Owner in writing or by telegram before the time specified for receipt of bids.  Revised proposals must be 
received at the place specified in the advertisement before the time specified for receipt of bids.   
 
20-12 PUBLIC OPENING OF PROPOSALS.  Proposals shall be opened and read publicly at the time and place 
specified in the advertisement.  Bidders, their authorized agents, and other interested persons are invited to 
attend. 
 
Proposals that have been withdrawn (by written or telegraphic request) or received after the time specified shall 
be returned to the bidder unopened. 
 
20-13 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS.  A bidder shall be considered disqualified for any of the following reasons: 

 
(a)    Submitting more than one proposal from the same partnership, firm, or corporation under the same or 

different name. 
 
(b)    Evidence of collusion among bidders.  Bidders participating in such collusion shall be disqualified as 

bidders for any future work of the Owner until any such participating bidder has been reinstated by the 
Owner as a qualified bidder. 

 
(c) If the bidder is considered to be in "default" for any reason specified in the subsection titled ISSUANCE 

OF PROPOSAL FORMS of Section 20-04.   
 
(d) Failure to submit all required official bid forms. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-17 
 

 
20-14 PROTESTS.  Only other bidders who have submitted a bid for this project, have the right to protest.  A 
protest of a proposed award or of an award must be filed within ten (10) days after the bid award by the Gila 
County Board of Supervisors and must be sent to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors.  A protest must be in 
writing and must include: 

 
(a)    Name, address and telephone number of the protester. 
(b)    Signature of the protester or its representative, and evidence of authority to sign. 
(c)    Identification of the contract and the solicitation or contract number. 
(d)    Detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of relevant documents. 
(e) The form of relief requested. 

 

All protests shall be sent to the attention of the Clerk of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, 1400 E. Ash 

Street, Globe, AZ 85501.



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-18 
 

 

 
 

SECTION 30 
AWARD & EXECUTION OF CONTRACT 

 
30-01 CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSALS.   
After the proposals are publicly opened and read, they will be compared on the basis of Lump Sum cost and 
qualifications. If a bidder’s proposal contains a discrepancy between lump sum cost written in words and lump 
sum costs written in numbers, the lump sum cost written in words, unless obviously incorrect, shall govern. Bids 
will be accepted only from those Contractors who are licensed in the State of Arizona and qualified under the laws 
of the State of Arizona to perform the work specified. All work performed under the Contract by such licensed 
Contractors must be made to comply with all applicable laws and requirements of any governing bodies or 
regulatory agencies having jurisdiction over such Work.  
 
The General Contractor shall determine that subcontractors are licensed, insured, and qualified to perform their 
respective work under the contract and shall determine that they are bondable, if required.  
 
Until the award of a contract is made, the Owner reserves the right to reject a bidder's proposal for any of the 
following reasons: 
 

(a)    If the proposal is irregular as specified in the subsection titled IRREGULAR PROPOSALS of Section 20-08. 
(b)    If the bidder is disqualified for any of the reasons specified in the subsection titled DISQUALIFICATION OF 

BIDDERS of Section 20-13. 
 
In addition, until the award of a contract is made, the Owner reserves the right to reject any or all proposals; 
waive technicalities, if such waiver is in the best interest of the Owner and is in conformance with applicable state 
and local laws or regulations pertaining to the letting of construction contracts; advertise for new proposals; or 
proceed with the work otherwise.  All such actions shall promote the Owner's best interests. 
 
If a Bidder should fail to receive any addendum, or should fail to acknowledge receipt of same, the Bidder shall 
have the option of accepting a contract, if offered, including all addenda, at the bid price, or withdrawing the bid 
without penalty. The owner and/or A/E are not responsible for assuring delivery of addenda to any Bidder. Failure 
to receive addenda or failure to acknowledge receipt shall not constitute a basis for claim, protest, or re-issue of 
the invitation to bid. 
 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-19 
 

 
30-02 AWARD OF CONTRACT.  The award of contract, if it is to be awarded, shall be made within sixty (60) 
calendar days of the date specified for publicly opening proposals, unless otherwise specified herein. 
 
This contract will be awarded to the responsible bidder whose bid conforms to the invitation and whose bid is the 
most advantageous to the Owner concerning price, conformity to the specifications and other factors. 
 
30-03 CANCELLATION OF AWARD.  The Owner reserves the right to cancel the award without liability to the 
bidder, except return of proposal guaranty, at any time before a contract has been fully executed by all parties 
and is approved by the Owner in accordance with the subsection titled APPROVAL OF CONTRACT of Section 30-07. 
 
30-04 RETURN OF PROPOSAL GUARANTY.  All proposal guaranties, except those of the two lowest bidders, will be 
returned immediately after the Owner has made a comparison of bids as hereinbefore specified in the subsection 
titled CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSALS of Section 30-01.  Proposal guaranties of the two lowest bidders will be 
retained by the Owner until such time as an award is made, at which time the unsuccessful bidder's proposal 
guaranty will be returned as soon as the Owner receives the contract bonds as specified in the subsection titled 
REQUIREMENTS OF CONTRACT BONDS of Section 30-05. 
 
30-05 REQUIREMENTS OF CONTRACT BONDS.  At the time of the execution of the contract, the successful bidder 
shall furnish the Owner surety bond or bonds which have been fully executed by the bidder and his surety 
guaranteeing the performance of the work and the payment of all legal debts that may be incurred by reason of 
the Contractor's performance of the work.  The surety and the form of the bond or bonds shall be acceptable to 
the Owner.  Unless otherwise specified in this subsection, the surety bond or bonds shall be in a sum equal to the 
full amount of the contract.  All bonds shall conform to the requirements of A.R.S. §34-222 and §34-223. 
 
30-06 EXECUTION OF CONTRACT. The successful bidder shall sign (execute) the necessary agreements for 
entering into the contract and return such signed contract to the Owner, along with the fully executed surety 
bond or bonds specified in the subsection titled REQUIREMENTS OF CONTRACT BONDS of Section 30-05, the 
Contractor’s Statement of Insurance and an original Certificate of Insurance conforming with the requirements of 
Section 70-10, within 10 calendar days from the date mailed or otherwise delivered to the successful bidder.  If 
the contract is mailed, special handling is recommended. 
 
30-07 APPROVAL OF CONTRACT.  Upon receipt of the contract and contract bond or bonds that have been 
executed by the successful bidder, the Owner shall complete the execution of the contract in accordance with 
local laws or ordinances, and return the fully executed contract to the Contractor.  Delivery of the fully executed 
contract to the Contractor shall constitute the Owner's approval to be bound by the successful bidder's proposal 
and the terms of the contract.  This agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to A.R.S. §38-511.   
 
30-08 FAILURE TO EXECUTE CONTRACT.  Failure of the successful bidder to execute the contract as specified in 
the subsection titled EXECUTION OF CONTRACT of Section 30-06 and furnish an acceptable surety bond or bonds 
within the 10-calendar-day period specified in the subsection titled REQUIREMENTS OF CONTRACT BONDS of 
Section 30-05 shall be just cause for cancellation of the award and forfeiture of the proposal guaranty, not as a 
penalty, but as liquidation of damages to the Owner. 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-20 
 

 
 

 
 

 

SECTION 40 
SCOPE OF WORK 

 
 
40-01 INTENT OF CONTRACT.  The intent of the contract is to provide for construction and completion, in every 
detail, of the work described.  It is further intended that the Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, 
equipment, tools, and supplies required to complete the work in accordance with the plans, specifications, and 
terms of the contract. 
 
40-02 CHANGES TO THE WORK.  The Owner has identified an Allowance to be included in the Base Bid for 
unforeseen expenses that may require a Change Order. The Owner reserves and shall have the right to make such 
alterations in the work as may be necessary or desirable to complete the work originally intended in an acceptable 
manner.  Unless otherwise specified herein, the Owner shall be and is hereby authorized to make such alterations 
in the work as may increase or decrease the originally awarded contract amount, provided that the aggregate of 
such alterations does not exceed the amount identified for this allowance.  
 
These alterations which are for work within the general scope of the contract shall be covered by "Change Orders" 
issued by the Owner, against the Allowance.  Change order for altered work shall include extensions of contract 
time where, in the Owner's opinion, such extensions impact the critical path of the approved construction 
schedule, per Section 90-06. If the Owner and the Contractor are unable to agree on a cost for adjustment to any 
contract item, the Owner reserves the right to terminate the contract with respect to the item and make other 
arrangements for its completion. 
 
40-03 OMITTED ITEMS.  The Owner may, in the Owner's best interest, omit from the work any contract item, 
except major contract items.  Major contract items may be omitted by a supplemental agreement.  Such omission 
of contract items shall not invalidate any other contract provision or requirement. 
 
Should a contract item be omitted or otherwise ordered to be non-performed, the Contractor shall be paid for all 
work performed toward completion of such item prior to the date of the order to omit such item.  Payment for 
work performed shall be in accordance with the subsection titled CHANGE ORDERS of Section 90-03. 
 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-21 
 

 
40-04 EXTRA WORK.  Should acceptable completion of the contract require the Contractor to perform an item of 
work for which no basis of payment has been provided in the original contract or previously issued change orders 
or supplemental agreements, the same shall be called EXTRA WORK.  Extra work that is within the general scope 
of the contract shall be covered by written change order.  Change orders for such extra work shall contain agreed 
unit or lump sum cost(s) for performing the change order work in accordance with the requirements specified in 
the order, and shall contain any adjustment to the contract time that, in the Owner's opinion, is necessary for 
completion of such extra work. 
 
Extra work that is necessary for acceptable completion of the project, but is not within the general scope of the 
work covered by the original contract, shall be covered by an agreement as hereinbefore defined in the 
subsection titled SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT of Section 10. 
 
Any claim for payment of extra work that is not covered by written agreement (change order or supplemental 
agreement) shall be rejected by the Owner. 
 
40-05 MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC.  It is the explicit intention of the contract that the safety of all traffic, vehicular 
and pedestrian, as well as the Contractor's equipment and personnel, is the most important consideration. 
 
With respect to his own operations and the operations of all his subcontractors, the Contractor shall provide 
marking, lighting, and other acceptable means of identifying personnel, equipment, vehicles, storage areas, and 
any work area or condition that may be hazardous to the operation of all traffic, vehicular and pedestrian. 
 
40-6 RIGHTS IN AND USE OF MATERIALS FOUND IN THE WORK.   
Not applicable to this project. 
 
40-07 FINAL CLEANING UP.  Upon completion of the work and before acceptance and final payment will be made, 
the Contractor shall remove from the site all machinery, equipment, surplus and discarded materials, rubbish, and 
temporary structures. Material cleared from the site and deposited on adjacent property will not be considered as 
having been disposed of satisfactorily, unless the Contractor has obtained the written permission of such property 
owner and furnished a copy to the Owner. 
  



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-22 
 

 

 
 

 

SECTION 50 
CONTROL OF WORK 

 

 
50-01 AUTHORITY OF THE OWNER.  The Owner shall decide any and all questions which may arise as to the 
quality and acceptability of materials furnished, based upon the Contractor's certification for the quality and 
acceptability work performed, and as to the manner of performance and rate of progress of the work.  The Owner 
shall decide all questions which may arise as to the interpretation of the specifications or plans relating to the 
work, the fulfillment of the contract on the part of the Contractor, and the rights of different contractors on the 
project.  The Owner shall review and determine, based upon the Contractor's certifications on quantity and 
quality of the work and materials furnished, the amount and quality of the several kinds of work performed and 
materials furnished which are to be paid for under contract. 
 
50-02 CONFORMITY WITH PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS.  All work and materials furnished shall be the full 
responsibility of the Contractor and shall be in reasonably close conformity with the lines, grades, grading section, 
cross sections, dimensions, material requirements, and testing requirements that are specified (including specified 
tolerances) in the contract, plans, or specifications, and shall be certified by the Contractor. 
 
If the Owner finds the materials furnished, work performed, or the finished product not within reasonably close 
conformity with the plans and specifications, but that the portion of the work affected will, in his opinion, result in 
a finished product having a level of safety, economy, durability and workmanship acceptable to the Owner, he will 
advise the Contractor of his determination that the affected work be accepted and remain in place.  In this event, 
the Owner will document his determination and recommend a basis of acceptance which will provide for an 
adjustment in the contract price for the affected portion of the work.  The Owner's determination and 
recommended contract price adjustments will be based on good engineering judgment and on such tests or 
retests by the Owner, and at the Contractor's expense, of the affected work as are, in his opinion, needed.  
Changes in the contract price shall be covered by contract modifications (change order or supplemental 
agreement) as applicable. 
 
If the Owner finds the materials furnished, work performed, or the finished product are not in reasonably close 
conformity with the plans and specifications and have resulted in an unacceptable finished product, the affected 
work or materials shall be removed and replaced or otherwise corrected by and at the expense of the Contractor 
in accordance with the Owner written orders. 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-23 
 

 
For the purpose of this subsection, the term "reasonably close conformity" shall not be construed as waiving the 
Contractor's responsibility to complete the work in accordance with the contract, plans and specifications.  The 
terms’ shall not be construed as waiving the Owner's right to insist on strict compliance with the requirements of 
the contract, plans, and specifications during the Contractor's prosecution of the work, when, in the Owner's 
opinion, such compliance is essential to provide an acceptable finished portion of the work. 
 
For the purpose of this subsection, the term "reasonably close conformity" is also intended to provide the Owner 
with the authority to use good engineering judgment in his determinations as to acceptance of work that is not in 
strict conformity but will provide a finished product equal to or better than that intended by the requirements of 
the contract, plans and specifications. 
 
50-03 COORDINATION OF CONTRACT, PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS.  The contract, plans, specifications, and all 
referenced standards cited are essential parts of the contract requirements.  A requirement occurring in one is as 
binding as though occurring in all.  They are intended to be complementary and to describe and provide for a 
complete work.  In case of discrepancy, calculated dimensions will govern over scaled dimensions; contract 
technical specifications shall govern over contract general provisions, plans, cited standards for materials or 
testing; contract general provisions shall govern over plans, cited standards for materials or testing; plans shall 
govern over County standards for materials or testing. 
 
The Contractor shall not take advantage of any apparent error or omission on the plans or specifications.  In the 
event the Contractor discovers any apparent error or discrepancy, he shall immediately call upon the Owner for 
his interpretation and decision, and such decision shall be final. 
 
50-04 COOPERATION OF CONTRACTOR.  The Contractor will be supplied with two copies each of the plans and 
specifications.  He shall have available on the job, at all times, one copy each of the plans and specifications.  
Additional copies of plans and specifications may be obtained by the Contractor for the cost of reproduction. 
 
The Contractor shall give constant attention to the work to facilitate the progress thereof, and he shall cooperate 
with the Owner and his inspectors and with other contractors in every way possible.  The Owner shall allocate the 
work and designate the sequence of construction in case of controversy between contractors.  The Contractor 
shall have a competent superintendent on the job at all times who is fully authorized as his agent for the work.  
The superintendent shall be capable of reading and thoroughly understanding the plans and specifications and 
shall receive and fulfill instructions from the Owner or his authorized representative. 
 
50-05 COOPERATION BETWEEN CONTRACTORS.  The Owner reserves the right to contract for and perform other 
or additional work on or near the work covered by this contract. 
 
When separate contracts are let within the limits of any one project, each contractor shall conduct his work so as 
not to interfere with or hinder the progress of completion of the work being performed by other contractors.  
Contractors working on the same project shall cooperate with each other as directed. 
 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-24 
 

 
Each contractor involved shall assume all liability, financial or otherwise, in connection with his contract and shall 
protect and save harmless the Owner from any and all damages or claims that may arise because of 
inconvenience, delays, or loss experienced by him because of the presence and operations of other contractors 
working within the limits of the same project. 
 
The Contractor shall arrange his work and shall place and dispose of the materials being used so as not to 
interfere with the operations of the other contractors within the limits of the same project.  He shall join his work 
with that of the others in an acceptable manner and shall perform it in proper sequence to that of the others. 
 
50-06 CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT AND STAKES.  The Contractor and the Contractor's Engineer will establish 
measurements necessary to the proper prosecution and control of the work contracted for under these 
specifications.  The Contractor shall satisfy himself as to the accuracy of all measurements before constructing any 
permanent elements.  No claim for additional compensation for correction shall be submitted for payment and 
such shall be corrected by the Contractor at his expense.  
 
50-07 AUTOMATICALLY CONTROLLED EQUIPMENT.  Not applicable to this project. 
 
50-08 AUTHORITY AND DUTIES OF INSPECTORS.  Inspectors employed by the Owner shall be authorized to 
inspect all work done and all material furnished.  Such inspection may extend to all or any part of the work and to 
the preparation, fabrication, or manufacture of the materials to be used.  Inspectors are not authorized to revoke, 
alter, or waive any provision of the contract.  Inspectors are not authorized to issue instructions contrary to the 
plans and specifications or to act as foreman for the Contractor. 
 
Inspectors employed by the Owner are authorized to notify the Contractor or his representative of any failure of 
the work or materials to conform to the requirements of the contract, plans, or specifications and to reject such 
nonconforming materials in question until such issues can be referred to the Owner for his decision. 
 
No work shall be covered up until it has passed inspection. If covered, the Contractor will be required to uncover 
the work. The cost of uncovering, removal and the replacing of the covering or making good of the parts removed 
will be at the Contractor's expense. 
 
 
50-09 INSPECTION OF THE WORK.  All materials and each part or detail of the work shall be subject to inspection 
by the Owner.  The Owner shall be allowed access to all parts of the work and shall be furnished with such 
information and assistance by the Contractor as is required to make a complete and detailed inspection. 
 
If the Owner requests it, the Contractor, at any time before acceptance of the work, shall remove or uncover such 
portions of the finished work as may be directed.  After examination, the Contractor shall restore said portions of 
the work to the standard required by the specifications.  Should the work thus exposed or examined prove 
acceptable, the uncovering, or removing and the replacing of the covering or making good of the parts removed 
will be paid for as extra work; but should the work so exposed or examined prove unacceptable, the uncovering, 
or removing, and the replacing of the covering or making good of the parts removed will be at the Contractor's 
expense. 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-25 
 

 
Any work done or materials used without supervision or inspection by an authorized representative of the Owner 
may be ordered removed and replaced at the Contractor's expense unless the Owner's representative failed to 
inspect after having been given reasonable notice in writing that the work was to be performed. 
 
Should the contract work include relocation, adjustment, or any other modification to existing facilities, not the 
property of the (contract) Owner, authorized representatives of the owners of such facilities shall have the right 
to inspect such work.  Such inspection shall in no way make any facility owner a party to the contract, and shall in 
no way interfere with the rights of the parties to this contract. 
 
50-10 REMOVAL OF UNACCEPTABLE AND UNAUTHORIZED WORK.  All work which does not conform to the 
requirements of the contract, plans, and specifications will be considered unacceptable, unless otherwise 
determined acceptable by the Owner as provided in the subsection titled CONFORMITY WITH PLANS AND 
SPECIFICATIONS of Section 50-02. 
 
Unacceptable work, whether the result of poor workmanship, use of defective materials, damage through 
carelessness, or any other cause found to exist prior to the final acceptance of the work, shall be removed 
immediately and replaced in an acceptable manner in accordance with the provisions of the subsection titled 
CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR WORK of Section 70-13. 
 
Work done contrary to the instructions of the Owner, work done beyond the lines shown on the plans or as given, 
except as herein specified, or any extra work done without authority will be considered as unauthorized and will 
not be paid for under the provisions of the contract.  Work so done may be ordered removed or replaced at the 
Contractor's expense. 
 
Upon failure on the part of the Contractor to comply as soon as possible with any order of the Owner made under 
the provisions of this subsection, the Owner will have authority to cause unacceptable work to be remedied or 
removed and replaced and unauthorized work to be removed and to deduct the costs (incurred by the Owner) 
from any monies due or to become due the Contractor. 
 
50-11 LOAD RESTRICTIONS.  The Contractor shall comply with all legal load restrictions in the hauling of materials 
on public roads beyond the limits of the work.  A special permit will not relieve the Contractor of liability for 
damage that may result from the moving of material or equipment. The Contractor shall be responsible for all 
damage done by his hauling equipment and shall correct such damage at his own expense. 
 
50-12 MAINTENANCE DURING CONSTRUCTION.  The Contractor shall maintain the work during construction and 
until the work is accepted.  This maintenance shall constitute continuous and effective work prosecuted day by 
day, with adequate equipment and forces so that the work is maintained in satisfactory condition at all times.  
 
All costs of maintenance work during construction and before the project is accepted shall be included in the base 
bid on the various contract items, and the Contractor will not be paid an additional amount for such work. 
 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-26 
 

 
50-13 FAILURE TO MAINTAIN THE WORK.  Should the Contractor at any time fail to maintain the work as 
provided in the subsection titled MAINTENANCE DURING CONSTRUCTION of Section 50-12, the Owner shall 
immediately notify the Contractor of such noncompliance.  Such notification shall specify a reasonable time within 
which the Contractor shall be required to remedy such unsatisfactory maintenance conditions.  The time specified 
will give due consideration to the emergency that exists. 
 
Should the Contractor fail to respond to the Owner notification, the Owner may suspend any work necessary for 
the Owner to correct such unsatisfactory maintenance condition, depending on the emergency that exists.  Any 
maintenance cost incurred by the Owner shall be deducted from monies due or to become due the Contractor. 
 
50-14 PARTIAL ACCEPTANCE.  If at any time during the prosecution of the project the Contractor substantially 
completes a usable unit or portion of the work, the occupancy of which will benefit the Owner, he may request 
the Owner to make final inspection of that unit.  If the Owner finds upon inspection that the work has been 
satisfactorily completed in compliance with the contract documents, and certified to be in compliance by the 
Contractor, he may accept it as being completed, and the Contractor may be relieved of further responsibility for 
that work, subject to stated guarantees.  Such partial acceptance and beneficial occupancy by the Owner shall not 
void or alter any provision of the contract. 
 
50-15 FINAL ACCEPTANCE.  Upon due notice from the Contractor of presumptive completion of the entire project, 
Owner will make an inspection.  If all construction provided for and contemplated by the contract is found to be 
completed in accordance with the contract, plans, and specifications, such inspection shall constitute the final 
inspection.  The Owner shall notify the Contractor in writing of final acceptance as of the date of the final 
inspection. 
 
If, however, the inspection discloses any work, in whole or in part, as being unsatisfactory, the Owner will give the 
Contractor the necessary instructions for correction of same, and the Contractor shall immediately comply with 
and execute such instructions.  Upon correction of the work, another inspection will be made which shall 
constitute the final inspection, provided the work has been satisfactorily completed.  In such event, the Owner will 
make the final acceptance and notify the Contractor in writing of this acceptance as of the date of final inspection. 
 
50-16 CLAIMS FOR ADJUSTMENT AND DISPUTES.  If for any reason the Contractor deems that additional 
compensation is due him for work or materials not clearly provided for in the contract, plans, or specifications or 
previously authorized as extra work, he shall notify the Owner in writing of his intention to claim such additional 
compensation before he begins the work on which he bases the claim.  If such notification is not given or the 
Owner is not afforded proper opportunity by the Contractor for keeping strict account of actual cost as required, 
then the Contractor hereby agrees to waive any claim for such additional compensation.  Such notice by the 
Contractor and the fact that the Owner has kept account of the cost of the work shall not in any way be construed 
as proving or substantiating the validity of the claim.  When the work on which the claim for additional 
compensation is based has been completed, the Contractor shall, within ten (10) calendar days, submit his written 
claim, to the Owner for consideration in accordance with local laws or ordinances. 
 
Nothing in this subsection shall be construed as a waiver of the Contractor's right to dispute final payment based 
on differences in measurements or computations. 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-27 
 

  
50-17 GUARANTEE OF WORK (ADDITIONAL).  The Contractor shall guarantee all work against any defects due to 
faulty materials or workmanship for a period of two (2) years from the date of final inspection and acceptance.  
The Owner shall give notice of observed defects with reasonable promptness.  Any omission on the part of the 
Owner to condemn defective work at the time of construction or final inspection shall not be deemed an 
acceptance.  The Contractor shall be required to correct defective work or material at any time before final 
inspection and acceptance and within two (2) years thereafter. See Contractor Performance Warranty (CPW-1). 
 
50-18 CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE.  The Contractor shall submit, for review and approval, to the Owner within 20 
days after the Notice to Proceed has been issued, and prior to the first Payment Application. See Construction and 
Progress Schedules, Section 90-06. 
 
50-19 NEGOTIATIONS.  It is the intent of the County to award a Contract to the lowest responsible Bidder 
provided the Bid has been submitted in accordance with the requirements of the Bid Documents, is judge 
reasonable, and does not exceed the funds available. 
 

(a) The County shall have the authority to negotiate with the lowest bidder to reduce the scope of the 
Project in the event that all responsive bids exceed the Project budget. 

 
Bids shall be made available for public inspection after the award has been made by the Board of Supervisors.  The 
Board of Supervisors has the sole authority to award bids and any statement by any employee of the County is not 
binding on the Board. 
 
The following criteria will be considered a part of the evaluation process: 

(a) Competence and responsibility of Bidder. 
(b) Qualifications and experience of Bidder. 
(c) Past performance of Bidder. 
(d) Conformity with bidding requirements and general considerations. 
(e) Record of timely completion of punch lists on past projects. 

 
 
Negotiations with Individual Contractors:   Gila County Public Works Division shall establish procedures and 
schedules for conducting Negotiations.  Disclosure of a Contractor’s Price or any information derived from 
competing Bids if prohibited. 

(a) Any response to a request for clarification of a bid shall be in writing. 
(b) The Public Works Division shall keep a record of all negotiations. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-28 
 

 
For the purpose of conducting Negotiations with Contractors, Gila County may use any of the following methods 
that, in their judgment, best meets the unique requirements. 
 

(a) Concurrent Negotiations:  Negotiations may be conducted concurrently with responsible 
Contractors for the purpose of determining source selection and/or Contract Award. 

(b) Exclusive Negotiations:  A determination may be made by the Public Works Director to enter into 
exclusive negotiations with the responsible Contractor whose bid is determined in the selection 
process to be the most advantageous to Gila County. 

 
Exclusive Negotiations may be conducted subsequent to concurrent Negotiations or may be conducted without 
requiring previous concurrent Negotiations. 
 

(a) A determination to conduct exclusive Negotiations shall not constitute a Contract Award, nor shall 
it confer any property rights to the successful bidder. 

(b) If Exclusive Negotiations are conducted and an agreement is not reached, the County may enter 
into Exclusive Negotiations with the next highest ranked Contractor without the need to repeat 
the formal Solicitation process. 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-29 
 

 
 

 
 

 

SECTION 60 
CONTROL OF MATERIALS 

 
 

60-01 SOURCE OF SUPPLY AND QUALITY REQUIREMENTS .  The materials used on the work shall conform to the 
requirements of the contract, plans, and specifications.  Unless otherwise specified, such materials that are 
manufactured or processed shall be new (as compared to used or reprocessed). 
 
Any construction, building addition or alteration project which is financed by monies of this state or its political 
subdivisions shall not use endangered wood species unless an exemption is granted by the director of the 
Department of Administration.  The director shall only grant an exemption if the use of endangered wood species 
is deemed necessary for historical restoration or to repair existing facilities and the use of any substitute material 
is not practical.  Any lease-purchase agreement entered into by this state or its political subdivisions for 
construction shall specify that no endangered wood species may be used in the construction unless an exemption 
is granted by the director.  As used in this subsection, an endangered wood species includes those listed in 
Appendix I of the Convention on International Trade in Endangered Species of Wild Flora and Fauna.  
 
60-02 SAMPLES, TESTS, AND CITED SPECIFICATIONS.  All materials used in the work shall be listed, labeled and 
certified by the appropriate testing agency before incorporation in the work.  Any work in which untested 
materials are used without approval or written permission by the Owner shall be performed at the Contractor's 
risk. Materials found to be unacceptable and unauthorized will not be paid for and, if directed by the Owner, shall 
be removed at the Contractor's expense.   
 
60-03 CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE.  The Owner may permit the use, prior to sampling and testing, of certain 
materials or assemblies when accompanied by manufacturer's certificates of compliance stating that such 
materials or assemblies fully comply with the requirements of the contract.   
 
The certificate shall be signed by the manufacturer.  Each lot of such materials or assemblies delivered to the work 
must be accompanied by a certificate of compliance in which the lot is clearly identified. 
 
Materials or assemblies used on the basis of certificates of compliance may be sampled and tested at any time 
and if found not to be in conformity with contract requirements will be subject to rejection whether in place or 
not. 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-30 
 

 
The form and distribution of certificates of compliance shall be as approved by the Owner. 
 
When a material or assembly is specified by "brand name or equal" and the Contractor elects to furnish the 
specified "brand name," the Contractor shall be required to furnish the manufacturer's certificate of compliance 
for each lot of such material or assembly delivered to the work.  Such certificate of compliance shall clearly 
identify each lot delivered and shall certify as to: 
 

(a)    Conformance to the specified performance, testing, quality or dimensional requirements; and, 
(b)    Suitability of the material or assembly for the use intended in the contract work. 

 
Should the Contractor propose to furnish an "or equal" material or assembly, he shall furnish the manufacturer's 
certificates of compliance as hereinbefore described for the specified brand name material or assembly.  
However, the Owner shall be the sole judge as to whether the proposed "or equal" is suitable for use in the work. 
 
The Owner reserves the right to refuse permission for use of materials or assemblies on the basis of certificates of 
compliance. 
 
60-04 PLANT INSPECTION.  Not applicable to this project. 
 
60-05 OWNER'S FIELD OFFICE AND LABORATORY.  Not applicable to this project. 
 
60-06 STORAGE OF MATERIALS.  Materials shall be so stored as to assure the preservation of their quality and 
fitness for the work.  Stored materials, even though approved before storage, may again be inspected prior to 
their use in the work.  Stored materials shall be located so as to facilitate their prompt inspection.  The Contractor 
shall coordinate the storage of all materials with the Owner.  Private property shall not be used for storage 
purposes without written permission of the owner or lessee of such property.  The Contractor shall make all 
arrangements and bear all expenses for the storage of materials on private property.  Upon request, the 
Contractor shall furnish the Owner a copy of the property owner's permission. 
 
All storage sites on private property shall be restored to their original condition by the Contractor at his entire 
expense, except as otherwise agreed to (in writing) by the owner or lessee of the property. 
 
60-07 UNACCEPTABLE MATERIALS.  Any material or assembly that does not conform to the requirements of the 
contract, plans or specifications shall be considered unacceptable and shall be rejected.  The Contractor shall 
remove any rejected material or assembly from the site of the work, unless otherwise instructed by the Owner. 
 
No rejected material or assembly, the defects of which have been corrected by the Contractor, shall be returned 
to the site of the work until such time as the Owner has approved its use in the work. 
 
60-08 OWNER-FURNISHED MATERIALS.  The Contractor shall furnish all materials required to complete the work, 
except those specified herein (if any) to be furnished by the Owner.  Owner-furnished materials shall be made 
available to the Contractor at the location specified herein. 
 

After any owner-furnished material has been delivered to the location specified, the Contractor shall be 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-31 
 

responsible for any demurrage, damage, loss, or other deficiencies that may occur during the Contractor's 
handling, storage, or use of such owner-furnished material.  The Owner will deduct from any monies due or to 
become due the Contractor any cost incurred by the Owner in making good such loss due to the Contractor's 
handling, storage, or use of owner-furnished materials. 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-32 
 

 

 
 

 

SECTION 70 
LEGAL RELATIONS & RESPONSIBILITY TO PUBLIC 

 

 
70-01 LAWS TO BE OBSERVED.  The Contractor shall keep fully informed of all Federal and State laws, all local 
laws, ordinances, and regulations and all orders and decrees of bodies or tribunals having any jurisdiction or 
authority, which in any manner affect those engaged or employed on the work, or which in any way affect the 
conduct of the work.  He shall at all times observe and comply with all such laws, ordinances, regulations, orders, 
and decrees; and shall protect and indemnify the Owner and all his officers, agents, or servants against any claim 
or liability arising from or based on the violation of any such law, ordinance, regulation, order, or decree, whether 
by himself or his employees. 
 
Laws and Ordinances:  This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the State of Arizona and Gila County.  
The Contractor shall maintain in current status all Federal, State and Local licenses and permits required for the 
operation of the business conducted by the Contractor.  The Contractor shall comply with the applicable 
provisions of the AzDA Arizonans w/ Disabilities Act, Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 
12101-12213) and applicable federal regulations under the Act. 
 
70-02 PERMITS, LICENSES, AND TAXES.  The Contractor will be provided an approved Field Copy set of plans and 
Technical Specifications for this project. The Contractor shall maintain this set of original documents on site at all 
times.  
 
The Contractor shall procure any other permits and licenses, pay all charges, fees, and taxes, and give all notices 
necessary and incidental to the due and lawful prosecution of the work.   
 
70-03 PATENTED DEVICES, MATERIALS, AND PROCESSES.  If the Contractor is required or desires to use any 
design, device, material, or process covered by letters of patent or copyright, he shall provide for such use by 
suitable legal agreement with the patentee or owner.  The Contractor and the surety shall indemnify and save 
harmless the Owner, any third party, or political subdivision from any and all claims for infringement by reason of 
the use of any patented design, device, material or process, or any trademark or copyright, and shall indemnify 
the Owner for any costs, expenses, and damages which it may be obliged to pay by reason of an infringement, at 
any time during the prosecution or after the completion of the work. 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-33 
 

 
70-04 RESTORATION OF SERVICES DISTURBED BY OTHERS.  Not applicable to this project. 
 
70-05 SANITARY, HEALTH, AND SAFETY PROVISIONS.  The Contractor shall provide and maintain in a neat, 
sanitary condition such accommodations for the use of his employees as required to comply with the require-
ments of the State and local boards of health, or of other bodies or tribunals having jurisdiction. 
 
Attention is directed to Federal, State and local laws, rules and regulations concerning construction safety and 
health standards.  The Contractor shall not require any worker to work in surroundings or under conditions which 
are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to his health or safety as determined under the Arizona Occupational 
Safety and Health Standards for Construction, adopted by the Industrial Commission of Arizona pursuant to the 
Authority in A.R.S. '23-410. 
 
70-06 PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND SAFETY.  The Contractor shall control his operations and those of his 
subcontractors and all suppliers, to assure the least inconvenience to the traveling public and pedestrians.  Under 
all circumstances, safety shall be the most important consideration. 
 
The Contractor shall maintain the free and unobstructed movement of pedestrian and/or vehicular traffic with 
respect to his own operations and those of his subcontractor and all suppliers in accordance with the subsection 
titled MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC of Section 40-05 hereinbefore specified. 
 
70-07 BARRICADES, WARNING SIGNS AND HAZARD MARKINGS.  The Contractor shall furnish, erect and maintain 
all barricades, warning signs, and markings for hazards necessary to protect the public and the work.  When used 
during periods of darkness, such barricades, warning signs and hazard markings shall be suitably illuminated. 
 
For vehicular and pedestrian traffic, the Contractor shall furnish, erect, and maintain barricades, warning signs, 
lights and other traffic control devices in reasonable conformity with the requirements of AzDA Arizonas with 
Disabilities Act and the Arizonan’s with Disabilities Act and Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets 
and Highways (MUTCD Part VI), published by the United States Government Printing Office. 
 
The Contractor shall furnish and erect all barricades, warning signs and markings for hazards prior to commencing 
work which required such erection and shall maintain the barricades, warning signs, and markings for hazards 
until their dismantling is directed by the Owner. 
 
70-08 PROTECTION AND RESTORATION OF PROPERTY .  The Contractor shall be responsible for the preservation 
of all public and private property, and shall protect carefully from disturbance or damage.  
 
The Contractor shall be responsible for all damage or injury to property of any character, during the prosecution 
of the work, resulting from any act, omission, neglect, or misconduct in his manner or method of executing the 
work, or at any time due to defective work or materials, and said responsibility will not be released until the 
project shall have been completed and accepted. 
 
 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-34 
 

 
When or where any direct or indirect damage or injury is done to public or private property by or on account of 
any act, omission, neglect, or misconduct in the execution of the work, or in consequence of the non-execution 
thereof by the Contractor, he shall restore, at his own expense, such property to a condition similar or equal to 
that existing before such damage or injury was done, by repairing, rebuilding, or otherwise restoring as may be 
directed, or he shall make good such damage or injury in an acceptable manner. 
 
70-09 RESPONSIBILITY FOR DAMAGE CLAIMS.  To the fullest extend permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless Gila County and their respective agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials, 
and employees from and against any and all demands, proceedings, suits, actions, claims, damages, or losses 
relating to, arising out of, resulting from or alleged to have resulted from the performance of the Work.  
Contractor’s duty to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the indemnitee and their respective agents, 
representatives, officers, directors, officials and employees shall arise in connection with any and all demands, 
proceedings, suits, actions, claims, workers compensation claims, unemployment claims, damages, losses or 
expenses (including but not limited to attorneys fees, court costs and the cost of appellate proceedings) that are 
attributable to personal or bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, or injury to, impairment or destruction of 
property including the loss of use resulting thereon, caused by any act or omission of the Contractor, a 
subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or for whose acts they may be liable.  The amount 
and type of insurance coverage requirements set forth in the Contract shall in no way be construed as limiting the 
scope of this indemnity. 
 
70-10 CONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE.  Prior to the execution of the contract, the Contractor shall file with the 
Owner a certificate or certificates of insurance executed by an insurance company doing business in the State of 
Arizona and acceptable to the Owner.  The certificate of insurance shall state that, with respect to the contract 
awarded the Contractor; the Contractor carries insurance in accordance with the requirements of this subsection 
and the Construction Contract. 
 
On all policies Gila County shall be named as an additional insured. 
 
All insurance policies or certificates shall include an endorsement providing for thirty (30) days prior written notice 
to the Owner of any cancellation or reduction of coverage.  The Contractor shall cease operations on the 
occurrence of any such cancellation or reduction and shall not resume operations until the required insurance is in 
force and new certificates of insurance have been filed with the Owner.   
 
See Construction Contract under Contract Forms Section of these General Provisions for Insurance Requirements. 
 
70-11 THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY CLAUSE.  It is specifically agreed between the parties executing the contract 
that it is not intended by any of the provisions of any part of the contract to create to the public or any member 
thereof a third party beneficiary or to authorize anyone not a party to the contract to maintain a suit for personal 
injuries or property damage pursuant to the terms or provisions of the contract. 
 
 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-35 
 

 
70-12 OPENING SECTIONS OF THE WORK FOR OCCUPANCY.  Should it be necessary for the Contractor to 
complete portions of the contract work for the beneficial occupancy of the Owner prior to completion of the 
entire contract, such "phasing" of the work shall be specified herein and indicated on the plans.  When so 
specified, the Contractor shall complete such portions of the work on or before the date specified or as otherwise 
specified.  The Contractor shall make his own estimate of the difficulties involved in arranging his work to permit 
such beneficial occupancy by the Owner. 
 
Upon completion of any portion of the work listed above, with certification of the work by the Contractor, such 
portion(s) shall be accepted by the Owner in accordance with the subsection titled PARTIAL ACCEPTANCE of 
Section 50-14. 
 
No portion of the work may be opened by the Contractor for public use until ordered by the Owner in writing.  
Should it become necessary to open a portion of the work to the public on a temporary or intermittent basis, such 
openings shall be made when, in the opinion of the Owner, such portion of the work is in an acceptable condition 
to support the intended use.  Temporary or intermittent openings are considered to be inherent in the work and 
shall not constitute either acceptance of the portion of the work so opened or a waiver of any provision of the 
contract.  Any damage to the portion of the work so opened that is not attributable to use which is permitted by 
the Owner shall be repaired by the Contractor at his expense. 
 
The Contractor shall make his own estimate of the inherent difficulties involved in completing the work under the 
conditions herein described and shall not claim any added compensation by reason of delay or increased cost due 
to opening a portion of the contract work. 
 
70-13 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR WORK.  Until the Owner's final written acceptance of the entire 
completed work, excepting only those portions of the work accepted in accordance with the subsection titled 
PARTIAL ACCEPTANCE of Section 50-14, the Contractor shall have the charge and care thereof and shall take every 
precaution against injury or damage to any part due to the action of the elements or from any other cause, 
whether arising from the execution or from the non-execution of the work.  The Contractor shall rebuild, repair, 
restore, and make good all injuries or damages to any portion of the work occasioned by any of the above causes 
before final acceptance and shall bear the expense thereof except damage to the work due to unforeseeable 
causes beyond the control of and without the fault or negligence of the Contractor, including but not restricted to 
acts of God such as earthquake, tidal wave, tornado, hurricane or other cataclysmic phenomenon of nature, or 
acts of the public enemy or of governmental authorities. 
 
If the work is suspended for any cause whatever, the Contractor shall be responsible for the work and shall take 
such precautions necessary to prevent damage to the work.   
 
70-14 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR UTILITY SERVICE AND FACILITIES OF OTHERS.  The Contractor shall 
cooperate with the owner of any public or private utility service, or a utility service of another government agency 
that may be authorized by the Owner to construct, reconstruct or maintain such utility services or facilities during 
the progress of the work.  In addition, the Contractor shall control his operations to prevent the unscheduled 
interruption of such utility services and facilities and shall notify Blue Stake in accordance with applicable State 
laws or regulations prior to commencing any work. 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-36 
 

 
It is understood and agreed that the Owner does not guarantee the accuracy or the completeness of the location 
information relating to existing utility services, facilities, or structures that may be shown on the plans or 
encountered in the work.  Any inaccuracy or omission in such information shall not relieve the Contractor of his 
responsibility to protect such existing features from damage or unscheduled interruption of service.  It is further 
understood and agreed that the Contractor shall, upon execution of the contract, notify the owners in writing of 
all utility services or other facilities of his plans of operations.   
 
Prior to commencing the work in the general vicinity of an existing utility service or facility, the Contractor shall 
again notify each such owner of his plan of operation.  If, in the Contractor's opinion, the Owner's assistance is 
needed to locate the utility service or facility or the presence of a representative of the Owner is desirable to 
observe the work, such advice should be included in the notification.  Such notification shall be given by the most 
expeditious means to reach the utility owner's PERSON TO CONTACT no later than two normal business days prior 
to the Contractor's commencement of operations in such general vicinity.  The Contractor shall furnish a written 
summary of the notification to the Owner.  The Contractor's failure to give the two day's notice hereinabove 
provided shall be cause for the Owner to suspend the Contractor's operations in the general vicinity of a utility 
service or facility.   
 
Should the Contractor damage or interrupt the operation of a utility service or facility by accident or otherwise, he 
shall immediately notify the proper authority and the Owner, and shall take all reasonable measures to prevent 
further damage or interruption of service.  The Contractor, in such events, shall cooperate with the utility service 
or facility owner and the Owner continuously until such damage has been repaired and service restored to the 
satisfaction of the utility or facility owner. 
 
The Contractor shall bear all costs of damage and restoration of service to any utility service or facility due to his 
operations whether or not due to negligence or accident.  The Owner reserves the right to deduct such costs from 
any monies due or which may become due the Contractor, or his surety. 
 
70-15 FURNISHING RIGHTS-OF-WAY.  Not applicable to this project. 
 
70-16 PERSONAL LIABILITY OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS.  In carrying out any of the contractor provisions or in exercising 
any power or authority granted to him by this contract, there shall be no liability upon the Owner, his authorized 
representatives, or any official of the Owner either personally or as an official of the Owner.  It is understood that 
in such matters they act solely as agents and representatives of the Owner. 
 
70-17 NO WAIVER OF LEGAL RIGHTS.  Upon completion of the work, the Owner will expeditiously make final 
inspection and notify the Contractor of final acceptance.  Such final acceptance, however, shall not preclude or 
stop the Owner from correcting any measurement, estimate, or certificate made before or after completion of the 
work, nor shall the Owner be precluded or stopped from recovering from the Contractor or his surety, or both, 
such overpayment as may be sustained, or by failure on the part of the Contractor to fulfill his obligations under 
the contract.  A waiver on the part of the Owner of any breach of any part of the contract shall not be held to be a 
waiver of any other or subsequent breach. 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-37 
 

 
The Contractor, without prejudice to the terms of the contract, shall be liable to the Owner for latent defects, 
fraud, or such gross mistakes as may amount to fraud, or as regards the Owner's rights under any warranty or 
guaranty. 
 
70-18 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION.  The Contractor shall comply with all Federal, State, and local laws and 
regulations controlling pollution of the environment.  He shall take necessary precautions to prevent pollution of 
streams, lakes, ponds and reservoirs with fuels, oils, bitumen’s, chemicals, or other harmful materials and to 
prevent pollution of the atmosphere from particulate and gaseous matter. 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-38 
 

 

 
 

 

SECTION 80 
PROSECUTION & PROGRESS 

 

 
80-01 SUBLETTING OF CONTRACT.  The Contractor shall not sublet, sell, transfer, assign or otherwise dispose of 
the contract or contracts or any portion thereof or of his right, title or interest therein without written consent of 
the Owner.  In case such consent is given, the Contractor will be permitted to sublet a portion thereof, but shall 
perform with his own organization work amounting to not less than 50 percent (50%) of the total contract 
amount, except that any items designated in the contract as "Specialty Items" may be performed by subcontract 
and the cost of any such specialty items so performed by subcontract may be deducted from the total cost before 
computing the amount of work required to be performed by the Contractor with his own organization.  No 
subcontracts or transfer of contract shall release the Contractor of his liability under the contract and bond. 
 
"His own organization" shall be construed to include only workmen employed and paid directly by the prime 
contractor and equipment owned or rented by him, with or without operators. 
 
"Specialty Items" shall be construed to be limited to work that requires highly specialized knowledge, 
craftsmanship or equipment not ordinarily available in contracting organizations qualified to bid on the contract 
as a whole and in general are to be limited to minor components of the overall contract. 
 
The contract amount upon which the 50 percent (50%) requirement is computed includes the cost of materials 
and manufactured products which are to be purchased or produced by the Contractor under the contract 
provisions. 
 
Any items that have been selected as "Specialty Items" for the contract will be listed as such in the special 
provisions, bidding schedule, or elsewhere in the contract documents. 
 
The Owner will not recognize any subcontractor on the work.  The Contractor shall at all times when work is in 
progress be represented either in person, by a qualified superintendent, or by other designated, qualified 
representative who is duly authorized to receive and execute the orders of the Owner. 
 
Should the Contractor elect to assign his contract, said assignment shall be concurred in by the surety, shall be 
presented for the consideration and approval of the Owner, and shall be consummated only on the written 
approval of the Owner.  In case of approval, the Contractor shall file copies of all subcontracts with the Owner. 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-39 
 

80-02 NOTICE TO PROCEED.  The notice to proceed shall state the date on which it is expected the Contractor will 
begin the construction and from which date contract time will be charged.  The Contractor shall begin the work to 
be performed under the contract within ten (10) calendar days of the date set by the Owner in the written Notice 
to Proceed, but in any event, the Contractor shall notify the Owner at least two work days in advance of the time 
actual construction operations will begin. 
 
80-03 PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS.  Unless otherwise specified, the Contractor shall submit his progress 
schedule, per Section 90-06, for the Owner's approval within twenty (20) days after the effective date of the 
Notice to Proceed, and prior to the first Pay Application.  The Contractor's progress schedule, when approved by 
the Owner, may be used to establish major construction operations and to check on the progress of the work.  
The Contractor shall provide sufficient materials, equipment, and labor to guarantee the completion of the 
project in accordance with the plans and specifications within the time set forth in the bid proposal. 
 
If the Contractor falls significantly behind the submitted schedule, the Contractor shall, upon the Owner's request, 
submit a revised schedule for completion of the work within the contract time and modify his operations to 
provide such additional materials, equipment, and labor necessary to meet the revised schedule, per Section 90-
06.  Should the prosecution of the work be discontinued for any reason, the Contractor shall notify the Owner at 
least 24 hours in advance of resuming operations. 
 
The Contractor shall not commence any actual construction prior to the date on which the Notice to Proceed is 
issued by the Owner. 
 
80-04 CONSTRUCTION LIMITS.  Construction limits shall be defined in the construction documents.  
 
80-05 CHARACTER OF WORKERS, METHODS AND EQUIPMENT.  The Contractor shall, at all times, employ 
sufficient labor and equipment for prosecuting the work to full completion in the manner and time required by 
the contract, plans and specifications. 
 
All workers shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform properly the work assigned to them. Workers 
engaged in special work or skilled work shall have sufficient experience in such work and in the operation of the 
equipment required to perform the work satisfactorily. 
 
Any person employed by the Contractor or by any subcontractor who, in the opinion of the Owner, does not 
perform his work in a proper and skillful manner or is intemperate or disorderly shall, at the written request of the 
Owner, be removed forthwith by the Contractor or subcontractor employing such person, and shall not be 
employed again in any portion of the work without the approval of the Owner. 
 
Should the Contractor fail to remove such person or persons or fail to furnish suitable and sufficient personnel for 
the proper prosecution of the work, the Owner may suspend the work by written notice until compliance with 
such orders. 
 
All equipment which is proposed to be used on the work shall be of sufficient size and in such mechanical 
condition as to meet requirements of the work and to produce a satisfactory quality of work.  Equipment used on 
any portion of the work shall be such that no injury to previously completed work, adjacent property, or existing 
facilities will result from its use. 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-40 
 

 
When the methods and equipment to be used by the Contractor in accomplishing the work are not prescribed in 
the contract, the Contractor is free to use any methods or equipment that will accomplish the work in conformity 
with the requirements of the contract, plans and specifications. When the contract specifies the use of certain 
methods and equipment, such methods and equipment shall be used unless others are authorized by the Owner.  
If the Contractor desires to use a method or type of equipment other than specified in the contract, he may 
request authority from the Owner to do so.  The request shall be in writing and shall include a full description of 
the methods and equipment proposed and of the reasons for desiring to make the change.  If approval is given, it 
will be on the condition that the Contractor will be fully responsible for producing work in conformity with 
contract requirements.  If, after trial use of the substituted methods or equipment, the Owner determines that 
the work produced does not meet contract requirements, the Contractor shall discontinue the use of the 
substitute method or equipment and shall complete the remaining work with the specified methods and 
equipment.  The Contractor shall remove any deficient work and replace it with work of specified quality, or take 
such other corrective action as the Owner may direct.  No change will be made in basis of payment for the 
contract items involved nor in contract time as a result of authorizing a change in methods or equipment under 
this subsection. 
 
80-06 TEMPORARY SUSPENSION OF THE WORK.  The Owner shall have the authority to suspend the work wholly, 
or in part, for such period or periods as he may deem necessary, due to security issues and/or unsuitable weather, 
or such other conditions as are considered unfavorable for the prosecution of the work, or for such time as is 
necessary due to the failure on the part of the Contractor to carry out orders given or perform any or all 
provisions of the contract. 
 
In the event that the Contractor is ordered by the Owner, in writing, to suspend work for some unforeseen cause 
not otherwise provided for in the contract and over which the Contractor has no control, the Contractor may be 
reimbursed for actual money expended on the work during the period of shutdown.  No allowance will be made 
for anticipated profits.  The period of shutdown shall be computed from the effective date of the Owner's order to 
suspend work to the effective date of the Owner's order to resume the work.  Claims for such compensation shall 
be filed with the Owner within the time period stated in the Owner's order to resume work.  The Contractor shall 
submit with his claim information substantiating the amount shown on the claim.  No provision of this article shall 
be construed as entitling the Contractor to compensation for delays due to inclement weather, for suspensions 
made at the request of the Contractor, or for any other delay provided for in the contract, plans or specifications. 
 
If it should become necessary to suspend work for an indefinite period, the Contractor shall store all materials in 
such manner that they will not become an obstruction nor become damaged in any way. He shall take every 
precaution to prevent damage or deterioration of the work performed.  The Contractor shall erect temporary 
structures where necessary to provide for the continuous operation of existing facilities. 
 
80-07 DETERMINATION AND EXTENSION OF CONTRACT TIME.  The number of calendar or working days allowed 
for completion of the work shall be stated in the proposal and contract and shall be known as the CONTRACT 
TIME. 
 
Should the contract time require extension for reasons beyond the Contractor's control, it shall be adjusted as 
follows: 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-41 
 

 
(a)    CONTRACT TIME based on CALENDAR DAYS shall consist of the number of calendar days stated in the 

contract counting from the effective date of the notice to proceed and including all Saturdays, Sundays, 
holidays, and non-work days.  All calendar days elapsing between the effective dates of the Owner's 
orders to suspend and resume all work, due to causes not the fault of the Contractor, shall be excluded. 

 
(b)    When the contract time is a specified completion date, it shall be the date on which all contract work 

shall be substantially completed. 
 

If the Contractor finds it impossible for reasons beyond his control to complete the work within the 
contract time as specified, or as extended in accordance with the provisions of this subsection, he may, 
at any time prior to the expiration of the contract time as extended, make a written request to the 
Owner for an extension of time setting forth the reasons which he believes will justify the granting of his 
request.  The Contractor's plea that insufficient time was specified is not a valid reason for extension of 
time.  If the Owner finds that the work was delayed because of conditions beyond the control and 
without the fault of the Contractor, he may extend the time for completion in such amount as the 
conditions justify.  The extended time for completion shall then be in full force and effect, the same as 
though it were the original time for completion. 
 

80-08 FAILURE TO COMPLETE ON TIME.  For each calendar day, as specified in the contract, that any work 
remains uncompleted after the contract time (including all extensions and adjustments as provided in the 
subsection titled DETERMINATION AND EXTENSION OF CONTRACT TIME of Section 80-07) the sum specified in the 
Contract and Bid Proposal as liquidated damages will be deducted from any money due or to become due the 
Contractor or his surety.  Such deducted sums shall not be deducted as a penalty but shall be considered as 
liquidation of a reasonable portion of damages that will be incurred by the Owner should the Contractor fail to 
complete the work in the time provided in his contract. 
 
Permitting the Contractor to continue and finish the work or any part of it after the time fixed for its completion, 
or after the date to which the time for completion may have been extended, will in no way operate as a waiver on 
the part of the Owner of any of its rights under the contract. 
 
80-09 DEFAULT AND TERMINATION OF CONTRACT.  The Contractor shall be considered in default of his contract 
and such default will be considered as cause for the Owner to terminate the contract for any of the following 
reasons if the Contractor: 

 
(a)    Fails to begin the work under the contract within the time specified in the "Notice to Proceed (80-02)"; 

or 
(b)    Fails to perform the work or fails to provide sufficient workers, equipment or materials to assure 

completion of work in accordance with the terms of the contract; or 
(c)    Performs the work unsuitably or neglects or refuses to remove materials or to perform anew such work 

as may be rejected as unacceptable and unsuitable; or  
(d)    Discontinues the prosecution of the work; or 
(e)    Fails to resume work which has been discontinued within a reasonable time after notice to do so; or 
(f)    Becomes insolvent or is declared bankrupt, or commits any act of bankruptcy or insolvency; or 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-42 
 

(g)    Allows any final judgment to stand against him unsatisfied for a period of ten (10) days; or 
(h)    Makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; or  
(i)    For any other cause whatsoever, fails to carry on the work in an acceptable manner. 

 
Should the Owner consider the Contractor in default of the contract for any reason hereinbefore, he shall 
immediately give written notice to the Contractor and the Contractor's surety as to the reasons for considering 
the Contractor in default and the Owner's intentions to terminate the contract. 
 
If the Contractor or surety, within a period of ten (10) calendar days after such notice, does not proceed in 
accordance therewith, then the Owner will, upon written notification from the Owner of the facts of such delay, 
neglect, or default and the Contractor's failure to comply with such notice, have full power and authority without 
violating the contract, to take the prosecution of the work out of the hands of the Contractor.  The Owner may 
appropriate or use any or all materials and equipment that have been mobilized for use in the work and are 
acceptable and may enter into an agreement for the completion of said contract according to the terms and 
provisions thereof, or use such other methods as in the opinion of the Owner will be required for the completion 
of said contract in an acceptable manner. 
 
All costs and charges incurred by the Owner, together with the cost of completing the work under contract, will be 
deducted from any monies due or which may become due the Contractor.  If such expense exceeds the sum which 
would have been payable under the contract, then the Contractor and the surety shall be liable and shall pay to 
the Owner the amount of such excess. 
 

80-10 TERMINATION FOR NATIONAL EMERGENCIES.  The Owner shall terminate the contract or portion thereof 
by written notice when the Contractor is prevented from proceeding with the construction contract as a direct 
result of an Executive Order of the President with respect to the prosecution of war or in the interest of national 
defense. 
 
When the contract, or any portion thereof, is terminated before completion of all items of work in the contract, 
payment will be made for the actual work completed at the contract price or as mutually agreed for items of work 
partially completed or not started.  No claims or loss of anticipated profits shall be considered. 
 
Reimbursement for organization of the work, and other overhead expenses, (when not otherwise included in the 
contract) and moving equipment and materials to and from the job will be considered, the intent being that an 
equitable settlement will be made with the Contractor. 
 
Acceptable materials, obtained or ordered by the Contractor for the work and that are not incorporated in the 
work shall, at the option of the Contractor, be purchased from the Contractor at actual cost as shown by receipted 
bills and actual cost records at such points of delivery as may be designated by the Owner. 
 
Termination of the contract or a portion thereof shall neither relieve the Contractor of his responsibilities for the 
completed work nor shall it relieve his surety of its obligation for and concerning any just claim arising out of the 
work performed. 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-43 
 

 

 
 

 

SECTION 90 
MEASUREMENT & PAYMENT 

 

 
90-01 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT.   
 
Payment will be measured against the Schedule of Values as approved by the Owner.  
 
Payments on account of the Contract Price will be made monthly as Work progresses. Payment Applications, 
covering labor, material, equipment, supplies, and other items completed, delivered or suitably stored on site 
during a period ending on the last calendar day of each month, shall be submitted to the Owner by the Contractor 
on Contractor Payment Application, within five (5) days after the end of the period. Payment Applications shall be 
notarized and shall be supported by such data substantiating the Contractor’s right to payment as the Owner may 
require, and reflect retainage, if any, as is provided. All payments shall be subject to any offset or retainage 
provisions of the Contract. 
 
Each payment made to the Contractor shall be on account of the total amount payable to the Contractor, and title 
to all Work covered by a paid partial payment shall thereupon pass to the Owner. Nothing in this section shall be 
construed as relieving the Contractor from the sole responsibility for care and protection of materials and Work 
upon which payments have been made, for restoration of any damaged Work, or as a waiver of the right of the 
Owner to require fulfillment of all terms of Contract Documents. 
 
If the Owner receives a Preliminary Lien Notice from a subcontractor or material supplier, the Contractor shall 
provide Lien Waivers prior to Contractor receiving payment. 
 
Payment may be withheld in whole, or in part, to protect the Owner on account of: 

 Unsatisfactory job progress as determined by the Owner. 

 Defective Work or materials not remedied. 

 Disputed Work or materials. 

 Claims or other encumbrances filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of claims or other 
encumbrances by Subcontractors or Suppliers, or others. 

 Failure of the Contractor to make payment to Subcontractors or Suppliers within seven (7) days after 
receipt of each progress payment. 

 A reasonable doubt, as determined by the Owner, that the Work can be completed for the unpaid balance 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-44 
 

of the Contract Price or within the Contract Time. 

 The Contractor’s failure to perform any of its contractual obligations under the Contract Documents, or 
any other agreement with the Owner. 

 Deficiencies or claims asserted by the Owner against Contractor arising from any other project. 
 
 
 
90-02 RETAINAGE.  The Owner shall pay to the Contractor 90% of the value of the Work in place and materials 
suitably stored at the site. The remaining 10% shall be retained by the Owner until the Contract is 50% completed 
at which time the retainage shall be reduced to 5% provided that (a) the Contractor is making satisfactory 
progress on the Contract; and (b) in the Owner’s sole judgment, there is no specific cause or claim requiring a 
greater amount than 5% be retained. Thereafter, the Owner shall pay the Contractor 95% of the value of the 
Work, unless and until it determines satisfactory progress is not being made, at which time the 10% retainage may 
be reinstated. Such 10% reinstatement would be 10% of the total contract value of Work in place and materials 
stored. The Owner’s sole judgment concerning the satisfactory progress of the Work shall be final.  
 
 
90-03 CHANGE ORDERS.  No changes in the Work shall be undertaken by the Contractor without written direction 
by the Owner. Any changes made without such written direction are done so at the Contractor’s own risk and 
hereby waives all rights or claims the Contractor may have as a result of the change. Change Orders shall be 
processed by the Owner and per the procedures set forth in the Contract.  
 
The cost or credit to the Owner resulting from a change in Work shall be determined in one or more of the 
following ways: 
 

A. By unit prices stated in the Contract Documents. 
 

B. By cost, as defined below, properly itemized and supported by sufficient substantiating data to permit 
evaluation, plus a fee (profit) or five percent (5%) of items 1 through 5 described below. Such costs shall 
be itemized by crafts as defined within the schedule of values and limited to the following items directly 
allocable to the change in the Work: 

1) Cost of materials, including cost of delivery. 
2) Fully-burdened cost of labor, including, but not limited to, payroll taxes, social security, old 

age and unemployment insurance, vacation and fringe benefits required by agreement or 
routinely paid by Contractor, and worker’s or workman’s compensation insurance. 

3) Contractor Supervision/Overhead allowance shall not exceed (5%) of 1 plus 2 above; the 
parties agree that this mark-up shall fully cover all Contractor overhead. 

4) Rental value of equipment and machinery to be established by rental receipts and not to 
exceed reasonable and customary rates for the locale of the Work. For owned equipment, 
Contractor  must prove reasonable rental rate pursuant to actual ownership costs. 

5) Cost of Subcontracted work calculated as above. 
6) Contractor’s fee on subcontractor’s work not to exceed five percent (5%) of the value of 

such work calculated as above, which sum shall exclude the cost attributable to bonds, 
insurance and taxes; the parties herby agree that this fee includes all Contractor overhead 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-45 
 

and profit on subcontractor work. 
7) Sales tax at full value; insurance and bond premiums not to exceed a total of 2%. 
8) If this method of cost or credit calculation is selected, in no event shall the combined total 

fee for overhead and profit including all levels or tiers of subcontractors exceed fifteen 
percent (15%) of the total cost of items 1,2 4 and 5. 
 

C. By mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient substantiating data to 
permit evaluation; provided that such lump sum shall not exceed that amount calculated under (B) above. 

 
A fully executed Change Order shall be full and final settlement of all claims for direct, indirect, delay, disruption, 
inefficiency and any other consequential costs related to items covered or affected, as well as time extensions. 
Any such claim not presented by the Contractor for inclusion in the Change Order is irrevocably waived.  
 
In an emergency affecting the safety of life, or of the structure, or of adjoining property, the Contractor, without 
special instruction or authorization from the Owner, is permitted to act at its discretion to prevent threatened loss 
or injury. Any compensation claimed by the Contractor on account of such emergency work shall be determined in 
accordance with this section. 
 
90-04 ALLOWANCES.  The Contractor’s price for the Work shall include all of the Contractor’s costs associated 
with such allowance(s). If the actual costs to the Contractor of such allowance(s) is different from the specified 
sum, increases or decreases in the cost of the allowance shall be adjusted in accordance with Change Orders (90-
03). Allowances for this project: 
 

Fire Sprinkler System Modification:  Not to exceed: $25,000.00, labor and materials 

Provide design and modifications (labor and material costs) of the existing fire sprinkler system for a 

complete system compliant with NFPA 13. Submit engineered, State Fire Marshal approved, drawings for 

Gila County approval, prior to doing the work.  

 

Fire Alarm System: Not to exceed: $20,000.00 labor and materials 

Provide design and installation of (labor and material costs) fire alarm system in accordance with NFPA 72. 

Submit engineered, State Fire Marshal approved, drawings for Gila County approval, prior to doing work. 

 

Millwork: Not to exceed $125,000, material cost only.  

Material costs only. Labor costs to be included in Base Bid millwork installation. See submittals 

requirements in the Technical Specifications. 

 

Unforeseen Conditions: Not to exceed $50,000   

Contingency Fund for Change Orders in regards to unforeseen conditions and changes to Scope of Work 

required to complete the work originally intended in an acceptable manner. See Change Orders (90-03). 

 

 

 

 

 

 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-46 
 

The contractor shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Contract Documents. Items covered 
by Allowances shall be supplied for such amounts as identified. Allowances shall cover the cost to the Contractor 
of materials and equipment delivered at the site and all required taxes, less applicable trade discounts. Whenever 
costs are more than or less than Allowances, the Contract Sum shall be adjusted accordingly by Change Order. The 
amount of the Change Order shall reflect the difference between actual costs and the Allowances specified. 
Contractor shall submit detailed invoicing for all Allowances that clearly identifies the actual costs as identified 
under Change Orders (90-03). 
 
90-05 SCHEDULE OF VALUES.  Individual construction activities which are indicated by the Schedule of Values shall 
coincide with activities presented on the Contractor’s Construction Schedule. The Contractor shall submit 
proposed Schedule of Values for review and approval by the Owner, prior to submission of their first Payment 
Application. 
 
If requesting a time extension, due to additions to or deletions from the Contract authorized through Change 
Orders, shall be reflected in the Contractor’s Construction Schedule if such changes affect the critical path of 
project completion. 
 
90-06 CONSTRUCTION AND PROGRESS SCHEDULES.  The Contractor shall submit, for review and approval, to the 
owner within 20 days after the Notice to Proceed has been issued, and prior to the first Payment Application, 
Contractor’s Construction Schedule in computer generated format. Alternate schedule forms, such as hand-
generated bar charts may be accepted at the Project Manager’s discretion. 
 
The Schedule shall illustrate the planned, logical progression of construction activities which will result in 
completion of the project by the Contract Completion Time and shall be reviewed and approved by the Owner 
prior to first Payment Application. Items of Work shall coincide with the Schedule of Values to be used in 
determination of progress payments. 
 
Monthly updates of the Contractor’s Construction Schedule showing actual amounts of work completed shall be 
provided by the Contractor with each application for Progress Payment. Contractor and Project manager will 
review the updated schedule for accurate reflection of work progress. If the project is behind schedule in any 
month, the Contractor shall provide a Narrative Report that shall indicate precisely what measure will be taken in 
the next thirty days to put the Work back on schedule. 
 
In the event significant delays or lags in schedule, as determined by the Owner, are encountered, the Contractor 
shall provide to the Owner a revised Contractor’s Construction Schedule indicating proposed rescheduling of 
subsequent activities to achieve project completion by the Contract Completion Time or Amended Completion 
Time. 
 
No extensions shall be granted nor delay for damages paid unless the delay is clearly demonstrated by an updated 
Construction Schedule current as of the month the change was issued or the delay occurred and which delay 
cannot be mitigated, offset, or eliminated through such actions as revising the intended sequence of work or 
other reasonable means. 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-47 
 

Additions to or deletions from the Contract, authorized through Change Orders, shall be reflected in the 
Contractor’s Construction Schedule if such changes affect the critical path of project completion. 
 
90-07 ACCEPTANCE AND FINAL PAYMENT.  When the contract work has been accepted in accordance with the 
requirements of the subsection titled FINAL ACCEPTANCE of Section 50-15, the Owner will issue a Certificate of 
Final Completion. After issuance of the Certificate of Final Completion and receipt of all other documents required 
by the Contract, all retained amounts shall be paid to the Contractor as part of Final Payment: 
 

 The Final Payment shall not become due until the Contractor delivers to the Owner full and final 
unconditional releases from Subcontractors and major Suppliers acknowledging payment in full. Any claim 
filed thereafter shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. 
 

 If any claim remains unsatisfied after all payments are made, the Contractor shall immediately upon 
demand refund to the Owner all monies that the latter may be compelled to pay in discharging such claim 
including all cost, interest and attorneys’ fees. 
 

 The Contractor shall provide an executed Affidavit of Release of Liens and an Affidavit of Payment to the 
Owner, prior to the release of the Final Payment. 

 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-48 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 

 PROPOSED WORK 
 
The work consists of interior renovation of a portion of an existing vacant building located by the Globe 

Courts Complex, for offices and public restrooms. Work includes non-structural renovation, demolition 

of existing offices, relocation of existing restrooms and construction of new interior walls and finishes, 

ceilings, flooring, mechanical, electrical, plumbing and fire sprinkler system modifications. See 

Technical Specifications and Construction Drawings for specific Scope of Work requirements.  

 
 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

 

The project has been designed utilizing the 2 0 1 2  International Building Code, current version as adopted and 
amended by Gila County. See Technical Specifications. 

 

In the event of any conflict between the plans and Technical Specifications, the more restrictive shall apply. In 
the event of any conflict between these Special Provisions and the plans or Technical Specifications, these Special 
Provisions shall prevail. 

 

AS-BUILTS 
 
 

When the work is completed, the Contractor shall provide the OWNER with a set of asbuilt drawings on clean 

prints of the original drawings.   The as-built drawings shall indicate in a neat and accurate manner all changes 

and revisions in the original design which affect the mechanical, plumbing and electrical systems and which 

exist in the completed work.  All hidden   utilities, within walls ceilings or floors,   to be relocated under this 

contract shall be referenced to semi permanent or permanent physical objects. 

 

The alterations and references shall be made with colored ink and shall be sufficiently clear and complete to 

enable reproducing these changes on the original drawings. The Contractor will document these changes on 

the original drawings and forward the signed copy to the Owner. Final payment of this contract will not 

be made to the Contractor until the As-Built drawings are satisfactorily produced and approved. 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-49 
 

 

As-Built conditions shall be kept current.   They shall be inspected for accuracy and completeness monthly.  

The Contractor shall certify on his monthly payment requisition that the drawings are accurate and complete 

before the monthly payment estimate will be prepared and approved. 

 
 CONSTRUCTION LIMITS 
 
The Contractor shall be limited to the areas, as identified in the Construction Documents, as the site. These 

limits shall be known as the Construction Limits. Deviation outside these limits is not authorized. The Contractor 

shall not enter or occupy with personnel, tools, equipment or materials, any private property without  

written  consent of the Owner thereof. 

 
The Contractor shall submit at the preconstruction conference a map showing the proposed location of his 
Contractor's yard.  The location of the yard is subject to the approval of the Owner. The Contractor is 
responsible for the security of his yard and the equipment and materials stored at the yard or construction site. 
Damage, theft, vandalism, or loss of such equipment or materials is the responsibility of the Contractor. The 
Contractor will not be compensated for replacement, repair, or refusal of materials by the Owner, damaged by 
vandalism or theft. The Contractor will take measures necessary to secure his yard, equipment, and materials. 
Security measures such as yard fences, security guards, locks, chains, etc. are incidental to the work for this 
project. 
 
MEETINGS 
 

Preconstruction Conference: 

A preconstruction conference shall be held. Notification of the time and date of such conference 

shall be made to the selected Contractor in the Letter of Intent to Award. The Contractor shall 

require the Superintendent, and major Subcontractors to attend. 

 

Progress Meetings: 

Progress meetings shall occur on a regular basis, once a week, according to a schedule determined 

at the pre-construction conference. The General Contractors superintendent and that of major 

subcontractors scheduled to do work over the next week shall be in attendance. 

 

Safety Meetings: 

The Contractor shall be held responsible for conducting regular safety meetings. Gila County Public 

Works will issue a Safety and Loss Control booklet, to be reviewed by the Contractor, prior to being 

on site. The Gila County Safety and Loss Control booklet must be read and signed by all working at 

the job site. During the preconstruction meeting a time will be set for the Gila County QA/QC 

Safety Compliance Officer for a safety meeting. For every safety meeting the Contractor shall invite 

the QA/QC Safety Compliance Officer and shall give at least twenty-four (24) hour notice. 

 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-50 
 

 
CONFLICTING UTILITY SYSTEMS 
 
 
The Contractor shall be aware that within the project limits there are utility systems that may conflict with the 

proposed work. The Contractor is not responsible for resolving these conflicts unless otherwise noted within 

the plans. Such shall be the sole responsibility of each individual utility owner. However, the Contractor shall 

coordinate directly with each utility owner to insure that the work progresses and notify the Owner on all 

matters. The Contractor shall be aware of several utility systems existing within and adjacent to the project 

limits. The Contractor shall be responsible for any damage to the utilities within the construction area(s).   

 
UTILITY SHUTDOWNS 
 
 
The Contractor shall prearrange time with the Owner whenever it becomes necessary to interrupt any 

service to make connections, alterations or relocations and shall fully cooperate with the Owner in 

doing Work so as to cause the least annoyance and interference with the continuous operation of 

the Owner’s business or official duties. Any existing plumbing, heating, ventila ting, air conditioning 

or electrical disconnections which may affect portions of this construction or building or any other 

building must be coordinated with the Owner to avoid any disruption of operation within the 

building or construction.  

 

In no case, unless previously approved in writing by the owner, shall utilities be left disconnected at 

the end of a work day or over a weekend. Any interruption of utilities, whether negligently, 

intentionally, or accidentally, shall not relieve the Contractor’s resp onsibility for the interruption or 

from liability for loss or damage caused by such interruption even though such loss or damage was 

not foreseeable by Contractor or subcontractor, or from responsibility for repairing and restoring the 

utility to normal service. Repairs and restoration shall be made before the workmen responsible for 

the repair and restoration leave the job.  

 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-51 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 
 
 
 

SEE TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS AND 
CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS 

 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-52 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

CONTRACT FORMS 
 
 

Bid Submittal Checklist (CK1) 

Bid Proposal (BP1-3) 

Surety Bid Bond (BB1) 

Qualification & Certification Form (QC1-2) 

Subcontractors List (SL1-2) 

Contractor Reference List (RL-1) 

Affidavit of Non-Collusion (ANC1) 

Subcontractor Certification (SC1) 

Construction Contract (C1-5) 

Contract Performance Bond (CPB-1) 

Labor & Material Bond (LMB-1) 

Contract Performance Warranty (CPW-1) 

Pay Application (Sample AIA Doc G702) 

 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-53 
 

 

 
 

BID SUBMITTAL CHECKLIST (CK1) 
 

BIDDERS ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED: 
 
The bidder must supply all the information required by the bidding documents or specifications.   
All proposals shall be made on the Bid Proposal (BP1-3) form prepared by Gila County as part of the Contract 
Documents.   
 
Each Bid shall be sealed in an envelope addressed to Gila County Purchasing Department and bearing the 
following statement on the outside of the envelope:  
 

Sealed Bid for:  
BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 
INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 
The proposal must include one (1) entire bid packet with completed documents with original signatures and 
two (2) copies of completed bid documents with original signatures. 
 
The following forms must accompany the bidder’s proposal: 
 

 Bid Proposal (BP1-3) 
 Surety Bid Bond (BB1) 
 Qualification & Certification Form (QC1-2) 
 Subcontractors List (SL1-2) 
 Contractors Reference List (RL-1) 
 Affidavit of Non-Collusion (ANC-1) 
 Subcontractor Certification (SC-1) 
 Construction Contract (C1-5) 
 Contract Performance Warranty (CPW-1) 
 

Failure to include all required documents may invalidate the bid.   



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-54 
 

 
 

 

BID PROPOSAL (BP1-3) 
 

TO THE GILA COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT: 
 
The undersigned hereby proposed and agrees to furnish all labor, material, transportation, supervision, applicable 
taxes, and services necessary to complete all work as called for in the General Provisions, Plans and Technical 
Specifications.  We acknowledge the following addenda and have included their provisions in this proposal. 
 
Addendum No. _______Dated ______________   Addendum No. _______ Dated ______________ 
 
Addendum No. _______Dated ______________   Addendum No. _______ Dated ______________ 
 
 
BASE BID: The undersigned proposes to complete all work as described in the Specifications, and to the limits 
indicated on the Drawings, including all allowances, for: 
 
________________________________________ _____________ Dollars ($_______________). 
 
The following Proposal is made for : 
 
BID NO. 032315-1, COPPER ADMIN BUILDING, INTERIOR RENOVATION  
 
in the County of Gila in the State of Arizona. 
 
The following Proposal is made on behalf of 

__________________________________________________________________________  
 
__________________________________________________________________________  
 
__________________________________________________________________________  
 
and no others.  The Proposal is in all respects fair and is made without collusion on the part of any person, firm or 
corporation mentioned above, and no member or employee of Gila County is personally or financially interested, 
directly or indirectly, in the Proposal, or in any purchase or sale of any materials or supplies for the work to which 
it relates, or in any portion of the profits thereof. 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-55 
 

 
The undersigned certifies that the approved Plans, Technical Specifications, General and Special Provisions 

and forms of Contract and Bond authorized by Gila County and constituting essential parts of this Proposal, have 
been carefully examined, and also that the site of the work has been personally inspected.  The undersigned 
declares that the amount and nature of the work to be done is understood and that at no time will misunder-
standing of the Plans, Technical Specifications, General Provisions, Special Provisions, or conditions to be 
overcome, be plead.  On the basis of Plans, Technical Specifications, General and Special Provisions, each 
Addendum (if any) and the forms of Contract and Bond proposed for use, the undersigned proposes to furnish all 
the necessary equipment, materials, machinery, tools, apparatus, and other means of construction, and labor, to 
do all the work in the manner specified and to finish the entire project within the time hereinafter proposed. The 
Bidder agrees that the total lump sum amount, including any alternates if awarded, will be payment in full for all 
work described.  
 

The undersigned further proposes to execute the Construction Contract and furnish satisfactory Bonds 
within ten (10) calendar days from the date of Notice of Award, time being of the essence.  The undersigned 
further proposes to begin work as specified in the contract attached hereto, and to reach Substantial Completion 
of the work within one hundred and fifty (150) Calendar Days of the Notice to Proceed  and Final Completion 
within thirty (30) Calendar Days of the date of Substantial Completion, and maintain at all times a Payment Bond 
and Performance, Labor and Material Bonds, approved by the Owner, in an amount equal to one hundred percent 
(100%) of the total bid.  These bonds shall serve not only to guarantee the completion of the work on the part of 
the undersigned, but also to guarantee the excellence of both workmanship and material and the payment of all 
obligations incurred, until the work is finally accepted and the provisions of the Plans, Technical Specifications and 
General Provisions fulfilled. 
 

It is expressly understood and agreed that in case of failure on the part of the Contractor, for any 
reason, except with the written consent of the Owner, to complete the work to the satisfaction of the Owner 
and with the aforesaid time limits, the owner may deduct from any money due, or which may become due 
the Contractor, as liquidated damages, in the amount of $1,000.00 per Calendar Day. 

 
A Proposal Guaranty in the amount and character named in the Call for Bids is enclosed amounting to not 

less than ten percent (10%) of the total bid, which Proposal Guaranty is submitted as a guaranty of the good faith 
of the bidder and that the bidder will enter into written contract, as provided, to do the work, if successful in 
securing the award thereof, and it is hereby agreed that if at any time other than as provided in the Proposal 
requirements and conditions the undersigned should withdraw this Proposal, or if the Proposal is accepted and 
there should be failure on the part of the undersigned to execute the Contract and furnish satisfactory Bond as 
herein provided, Gila County, in either of such events, shall be entitled and is hereby given the right to retain the 
said Proposal Guaranty as liquidated damages. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-56 
 

 
 
If by a Corporation: 
 

                                                                (SEAL)              

Corporate Name:__________________________________________________________  
 
Corporate Address:________________________________________________________  
 
Incorporated under the laws of the State of:____________________________________        
 
By (Signature):__________________________ Date:_____________________________  
 
President:_________________________________________________________________  
 
Secretary:_________________________________________________________________  
 
Treasurer:_________________________________________________________________  
 
If by a Firm or Partnership: 
 
Firm or Partnership Name:__________________________________________________  
 
Firm or Partnership Address:________________________________________________  
 
By (Signature):__________________________ Date:_____________________________  
 
Name and Address of Each Member:__________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________________  
 
__________________________________________________________________________  
 
If by an Individual: 
 
Signature:_______________________________ Date:_____________________________      



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-57 
 

GILA COUNTY 

SURETY (BID) BOND (BB1) 
(Penalty of this Bond must not be less than 10% of the bid amount) 

 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS,   

that we, the undersigned __________________________________________, as Principal, hereinafter called the Principal, and 

_____________________________________________ a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of 

__________________________________, as Surety, hereinafter called the Surety, holding a certificate of authority to transact 

surety business in this State issued by the Director of the Department of Insurance, are held and firmly bound unto the Gila 

County as Obligee, hereinafter called the Obligee, in the sum of ten percent (10%) of the amount bid, submitted by Principal to 

Gila County for the Work described below, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, the said Principal and the 

said Surety bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these 

presents. 

 

WHEREAS, the Principal is herewith submitting its proposal for: 

 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

BID NO. 032315-1 

 

NOW THEREFORE, if the Obligee, accepts the proposal of the Principal and the Principal shall enter into contract with the 

Obligee in accordance with the terms of such proposal, and give such bonds and certificates of insurance as may be specified in 

the contract documents with good and sufficient surety for the faithful performance of such contract and for the prompt payment 

of labor and material furnished in the prosecution thereof, or in the event of the failure of the Principal to enter into such 

contract and give such bonds and certificates of insurance, if the Principal shall pay to the Obligee the difference not to exceed 

the penalty of the bond between the amount specified in the proposal and such larger amount for which the Obligee may in good 

faith contract with another party to perform the work covered by the proposal then this obligation is void.  Otherwise, it remains 

in full force and effect provided, however, that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. §34-201, and all 

liabilities on this bond shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of the section to the extent as if it were copied at 

length herein. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we hereunto set our hands and seals: 

 

Principal      Surety 

 

By       By Attorney-in-Fact 

   

Title       Address, Attorney-in-Fact 

       

Subscribed and sworn to before me 

This ________ day of __________________,20__ 

      My commission expires:  ___________________ 

      Notary Public 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-58 
 

 
 

QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION FORM (QC1-2) 

Purpose 
 
This exhibit shall serve as a requirement to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of Contractors under consideration for 
final award. 
 

The information may or may not be a determining factor in award. 
 

BID NO. 032315-1 
COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 
 

 
The Contractor submitting this Bid warrants the following: 

 
1. Name, Address, Telephone Number and E-mail Address of Principal Contractor: 

 ________________________________________________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 ________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever failed to complete a contract? 

________Yes    ________No.   If “Yes, give details, including the date, the contracting agency, and the reasons Contractor failed to 

perform, in the narrative part of this Contract. 

 
3. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever been disbarred or prohibited from competing for a contract?  

________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, give details, including the date, the contracting agency, the reasons for the Contractors 

disqualification, and whether this disqualification remains in effect, in the narrative part of this Contract. 

 
4. Has a contracting agency ever terminated a contract for cause with Contractor (under your firm’s present or any previous 

name)?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, give details including the date, the contracting agency, and the reasons Contractor 

was terminated, in the narrative part of this Contract.  

 
5. Contractor must also provide at least the following information:   



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-59 
 

a. A brief history of the Contractors Firm.  

b. A Cost Proposal shall be submitted on the Price Sheet, attached hereon and made a full part of this contract by this 

reference.  

c. A list of previous and current customers, which are considered identical or similar to the Scope of Work described herein; 

shall be submitted on the Reference List, attached hereon and made a full part of this contract by this reference.  

d. List the specific qualifications the Contractor has in supplying the specified services.  

e. Gila County reserves the right to request additional information. 

 

6 Contractor Experience Modifier (e-mod) Rating: _______________________________________ 

A method the National Council on Compensation Insurance (NCCI) uses to measure a business’ computed loss ratio and 

determine a factor, which when multiplied by premium, can reward policyholders with lower losses.  E-mod rate may be a 

determining factor in bid award. 

 

1. Current Arizona Contractor License Number:  __________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________________________ 
      Signature of Authorized Representative 

 
      _______________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 

 
      _______________________________________________ 
      Title 
 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-60 
 

 

 
 

SUBCONTRACTORS LIST (SL1-2) 

Proposer is to list every subcontractor and supplier proposed to be employed on the above project as 
required by the bidding documents. Any work proposed to be done by the Proposer should be listed as a line 
item with the word "Self" inserted under firm name. Designation of subcontractors is subject to Owner’s 
approval. No change in subcontractor's list will be permitted without the Owner’s prior written consent.   

THIS SUB-CONTRACTOR LIST MUST BE FILLED OUT, FAILURE TO DO SO IS AUTOMATIC GROUNDS FOR 
REJECTION OF BID. 

 

CARPENTRY  

      
[COMPANY NAME] [LICENSE #]  [CONTACT PERSON & PHONE #] 

INSTALLER FOR DOORS/HARDWARE 

      
[COMPANY NAME] [LICENSE #]  [CONTACT PERSON & PHONE #] 

CEILING SYSTEMS 

     
[COMPANY NAME] [LICENSE #]  [CONTACT PERSON & PHONE #] 

WALL GYP BD / FINISHING 

     
[COMPANY NAME] [LICENSE #]  [CONTACT PERSON & PHONE #] 

PLUMBING 

     
[COMPANY NAME] [LICENSE #]  [CONTACT PERSON & PHONE #] 

ELECTRICAL 

      
[COMPANY NAME] [LICENSE #]  [CONTACT PERSON & PHONE #] 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-61 
 

HVAC 

     
[COMPANY NAME] [LICENSE #]  [CONTACT PERSON & PHONE #] 

FIRE ALARM 

      
[COMPANY NAME] [LICENSE #]  [CONTACT PERSON & PHONE #] 

FIRE SPRINKLER 

      
[COMPANY NAME] [LICENSE #]  [CONTACT PERSON & PHONE #] 

FLOORING 

     
[COMPANY NAME] [LICENSE #]  [CONTACT PERSON & PHONE #] 

MILLWORK 

     
[COMPANY NAME] [LICENSE #]  [CONTACT PERSON & PHONE #] 

STOREFRONT SYSTEMS 

     
[COMPANY NAME] [LICENSE #]  [CONTACT PERSON & PHONE #] 

 

ANY ADDITIONAL SUB-CONTRACTORS MUST BE LISTED THAT HAVE A COST OF AT LEAST 

10% OF THE TOTAL CONTRACT COST 
 
     
[COMPANY NAME] [LICENSE #]  [CONTACT PERSON & PHONE #] 

 
I submit that the preceding is correct and current as of    . 
     [BID OPENING DATE] 
 

 

________________________________________________________________________[company] 
    [authorized representative]    [date] 

 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-62 
 

 
 

CONTRACTOR REFERENCE LIST (RL-1) 

 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 
INTERIOR RENOVATION 

BID NO 032315-1 
 
These references are required to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of Contractors under consideration 
for final award. 
 
The information may or may not be a determining factor in award. 

 
REFERENCES: 
 
Please list at least four (4) customers for whom you have provided service of a similar scope as this Invitation for Bid during 
the past twelve (12) months, in or as close to Gila County as possible. 
 

CUSTOMER NAME AND ADDRESS     TELEPHONE     PRIMARY CONTACT  

               

               

               

               

 

 

      _______________________________________________ 
      Signature of Authorized Representative 

 
      _______________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 

 
      _______________________________________________ 
      Title 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-63 
 

AFFIDAVIT BY CONTRACTOR (ANC-1) 

CERTIFYING THAT THERE WAS NO COLLUSION 

IN BIDDING FOR CONTRACT  

 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 

)ss 

COUNTY OF:   ) 

 

____________________________________________________________________________________                           

                                          (Name of Individual) 

being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 

 

That he is ____________________________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                (Title)  

of_______________________________________________________________________________  and 

                                                                      (Name of Business) 

 

That he is  bidding on Gila County BID NO 032315-1, COPPER ADMIN BUILDING, INTERIOR 

RENOVATION, GLOBE and, 

 

That neither he nor anyone associated with the said _____________________________________  

 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

                                                                     (Name of Business) 

 

has, directly or indirectly entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion or otherwise taken any action in restraint 

of free competitive bidding in connection with the above mentioned project. 

 

       _____________________________________________ 

Name of Business 

 

_____________________________________________  

By 

 

_____________________________________________ 

Title 

 

 

 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this __________ day of _________________________, 20_____. 

 

My Commission expires:      

 

Notary Public 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-64 
 

  

 
 

 

SUBCONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION:   
INTENTIONS CONCERNING SUBCONTRACTING (SC-1) 

 
 At the time of the submission of bids on:  
 

BID NO. 032315-1, COPPER ADMIN BUILDING, INTERIOR RENOVATION 
 
my intention concerning subcontracting a portion of the work is as indicated below. 
 
 In indicating that it is my intention to subcontract a portion of the work, this will acknowledge that such 
subcontractors will be identified and approved by the Owner prior to award of the contract; and that docu-
mentation, such as copies of letters, requests for quotations, quotations, etc., substantiating the actions taken 
and the responses to such actions is on file and available for review. 
 

A list of any subcontractors to be used in performing the service must accompany the Bid.  The list must include 
the subcontractors name, address, and phone number. 

 
 __________    It is my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 
 
 __________    It is not my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 
 

__________________________________________ 
           Name of Firm 

 
__________________________________________  
             By: (Signature) 

 
__________________________________________ 

                                                                            Title 
 

____________________________________  
Date 

 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-65 
 

 
 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT (C1-5) 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this ________day of _______________, 20__, by and between Gila County, 
a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, hereinafter designated the County, and      
   of the City of ______________, State of __________________, hereinafter designated the Contractor. 

 
THE CONTRACTOR shall furnish any and all labor, materials, construction equipment, and services, required for 

performing all work for construction of: 
 

BID NO. 032315-1, COPPER ADMIN BUILDING, INTERIOR RENOVATION 
 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS:  Includes all portions of the General Provisions, Addenda, Plans, Technical Specifications 
and any supplemental agreements, if applicable, provided by the County for this project, are by this reference made a part of 
this Contract to the same extent as if set forth herein in full. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION:  Contractor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the County of Gila and its officers, 

officials, agents, and employees, and any jurisdiction or agency issuing permits for any work included in the project, their 
officers, agents and employees,  (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all suits, claims, cost of 
litigation, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, expense, cost or claims of any character or any nature arising out of the work 
done in fulfillment of the terms of this Contract (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing, 
investigation and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or loss 
or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or willful 
acts or omissions of Contractor or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, employees or subcontractors.  This indemnity 
includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under the Workers’ Compensation Law or arising out of the failure 
of such contractor to conform to any federal, state or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree.  It is the 
specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent 
or willful acts or omissions of the Indemnitee, be indemnified by Contractor from and against any and all claims.  It is agreed 
that Contractor will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs where this indemnification is 
applicable.  In consideration of the award of this contract, the Contractor agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the 
County, its officers, officials, agents and employees for losses arising from the work performed by the Contractor for the 
County. 
 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  Contractor and subcontractors shall procure and maintain until all of their obligations 
have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this Contract are satisfied, insurance against claims for injury to 
persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the 
Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors.   
 
The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this Contract and in no way limit the indemnity covenants 
contained in this Contract.  The County in no way warrants that the minimum limits contained herein are sufficient to protect 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-66 
 

the Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of the work under this contract by the Contractor, his 
agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors and Contractor is free to purchase additional insurance as may be 
determined necessary. 
 
A. MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE:  Contractor shall provide coverage with limits of liability not less than 

those stated below. 
 

1. Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form 
Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage and broad form contractual liability and XCU coverage. 

 General Aggregate $2,000,000 

 Products – Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 

 Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 

 Each Occurrence $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: "The County of Gila shall be 
named as an additional insured with respect to liability arising out of the activities performed by, or on 
behalf of the Contractor". 

 
 2.    Automobile Liability 
        Bodily injury and property damage for any owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles used in the performance of this 

Contract. 
                               Combined Single Limit (CSL)                                                                   $1,000,000 
  
                   a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language:  
             The County of Gila shall be named as additional insured with respect to liability arising out of the activities 

performed by, or on behalf of the Contractor, including automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the 
Contractor”. 

 
3. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability 

 Workers' Compensation Statutory 
 Employers' Liability  

 Each Accident $100,000 
 Disease – Each Employee $100,000 
 Disease – Policy Limit $500,000 

a. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the County of Gila. 
 
 

4. Builders' Risk Insurance or Installation Floater $________ 

In an amount equal to the initial bid amount plus any additional coverage equal to the awarded Contract Amount 

for all subsequent change orders. 

a. The County of Gila, the Contractor, subcontractors, engineer and engineer’s consultant and any others with 

an insurable interest in the work shall be Insureds on the policy. 

b. Coverage shall be written on an all risk, replacement cost basis and shall include coverage for soft costs, 

flood and earth movement. 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-67 
 

c. Policy shall be maintained until whichever of the following shall first occur:  (1) final payment has been 

made; or, (2) until no person or entity, other than the County of Gila, has an insurable interest in the 

property required to be covered. 

d. Policy shall be endorsed such that the insurance shall not be canceled or lapse because of any partial use or 

occupancy by the County. 

e. Policy must provide coverage from the time any covered property becomes the responsibility of the 

Contractor, and continue without interruption during construction, renovation, or installation, including any 

time during which the covered property is being transported to the construction installation site, or awaiting 

installation, whether on or off site. 

f. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the County of Gila. 

g. Contractor is responsible for the payment of all policy deductibles. 

 
B. ADDITIONAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  The policies shall include, or be endorsed to include, the following 

provisions: 

1. On insurance policies where the County of Gila is named as an additional insured, the County of Gila shall be an 
additional insured to the full limits of liability purchased by the Contractor even if those limits of liability are in 
excess of those required by this Contract. 

2 The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance and non-contributory with respect to all other 
available sources. 

3. Coverage provided by the Contractor shall not be limited to the liability assumed under the indemnification 
provisions of this Contract. 

 
C. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION: Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Contract shall provide 

the required coverage and shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or endorsed to lower limits 
except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the County.  Such notice shall be sent directly to Gila 
County Purchasing Department, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ, 85501 or and shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt 
requested.  

 
D. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed or approved unlicensed companies 

in the state of Arizona and with an “A.M. Best” rating of not less than B+ VI.  The County in no way warrants that the 
above-required minimum insurer rating is sufficient to protect the Contractor from potential insurer insolvency. 

 
E. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  Contractor shall furnish the County with certificates of insurance (ACORD form or 

equivalent approved by the County) as required by this Contract.  The certificates for each insurance policy are to be 
signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. 

 
 All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the County before work commences.  Each 

insurance policy required by this Contract must be in effect at or prior to commencement of work under this Contract 
and remain in effect for the duration of the project.  Failure to maintain the insurance policies as required by this 
Contract or to provide evidence of renewal is a material breach of contract.   

 
 All certificates required by this Contract shall be sent directly to Gila County Purchasing Department, 1400 E. Ash St., 

Globe, AZ, 85501 or email to jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov. The County project/contract number and project description 
shall be noted on the certificate of insurance.  The County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all 
insurance policies required by this Contract at any time.   

mailto:jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov


COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-68 
 

 
F. SUBCONTRACTORS:  Contractors’ certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as additional insured’s under its policies 

or Contractor shall furnish to the County separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor.  All coverage’s 
for subcontractors shall be subject to the minimum requirements identified above. 

 
G. APPROVAL:  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this Contract shall be made by the 

County Attorney, whose decision shall be final.  Such action will not require a formal Contract amendment, but may be 
made by administrative action. 

 
LAWS AND ORDINANCES: This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the State of Arizona. Contractor shall 

maintain in current status all Federal, State and Local licenses and permits required for the operation of the business 
conducted by the Contractor. The contractor shall comply with the applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and applicable federal regulations under the Act. 

 
LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE: Contractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of 

this Contract comply with all federal immigration laws applicable to Contractor’s employment of its employees, and with the 
requirements of A.R.S. §23-214 (A) (together the “State and Federal Immigration Laws”). Contractor shall further ensure that 
each subcontractor who performs any work for Contractor under this contract likewise complies with the State and Federal 
Immigration Laws. 
 
County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of Contractor and any subcontractor in order to 
verify such party’s compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws. 
 
Any breach of Contractor’s, or any subcontractor’s, warranty of compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws, or 
of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this Contract subjecting Contractor to 
penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this Contract. If the breach is by a subcontractor, and the 
subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, Contractor shall be required to take such steps as may be necessary to 
either self-perform the services that would have been provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor 
as soon as possible so as not to delay project completion. 
 
Contractor shall advise each subcontractor of County’s rights, and the subcontractor’s obligations, under this Article by 
including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form: “Subcontractor hereby warrants that it will at all 
times during the term of this contract comply with all federal immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor’s employees, and 
with the requirements of A.R.S. §23-214 (A). Subcontractor further agrees that County may inspect the Subcontractor’s books 
and records to insure that Subcontractor is in compliance with these requirements. Any breach of this paragraph by 
Subcontractor will be deemed to be a material breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractor to penalties up to and 
including suspension or termination of this contract”. 
 
Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the responsibility of 
Contractor. 
 

TIME OF COMPLETION: The Contractor further covenants and agrees, at his own proper cost and expense, to do all 
work and furnish all materials, labor, construction equipment, and services for performing all of the work as identified in the 
Contract Documents and this agreement, free and clear of all claims, liens, and charges whatsoever, in the manner and under 
the conditions specified within the time stated in the Contract Documents. 
 
Work shall start within no later than ten (10) Calendar Days of the Notice To Proceed, and shall be Substantially Complete 
within One Hundred and Fifty (150) Calendar Days from the date of the Notice to Proceed. The Contractor further agrees to 
achieve Final Completion within no later than Thirty (30) Calendar Days from the date of Substantial Completion. 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-69 
 

 
It is expressly understood and agreed that in case of failure on the part of the Contractor, for any reason, except with the 
written consent of the Owner, to complete the work to the satisfaction of the Owner and with the aforesaid time limits, the 
owner may deduct from any money due, or which may become due the Contractor, as liquidated damages, in the amount of 
$1,000.00 per Calendar Day. 
 
If no money shall be due the Contractor, the Owner shall have a cause of action to recover against the Contractor in a court of 
competent jurisdiction, liquidated damages as fixed by this Contract; said deduction to be made, or said sum to be recovered, 
not as a penalty, but as liquidated damages; provided, however, that upon receipt of written notice from the Contractor, of 
the existence of causes, as herein provided, over which said Contractor has no control and which must delay the completion 
of the said work or any delay occasioned by the Owner, the Owner may extend the period hereinafter specified for the 
completion of said work in accordance with the Contract Documents and in such case, the Contractor shall become liable for 
said liquidated damages for delays commencing from date said extension period shall expire. 
 

IN RETURN for the performance of the contract by the contractor, the County agrees to pay the amount of not more 
than $     including all applicable taxes through a payment schedule as described in the Contact 
Documents and as may be modified and executed by change orders. 
 
 
OWNER:      CONTRACTOR: 
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
              
Michael A. Pastor,      Contracting Company Name 
Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
        
              
ATTEST:      Print Name       
  
              
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board   Witness (If Contractor is Individual) 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
       
Bryan B. Chambers, Deputy County Attorney/Civil Bureau Chief 
for Bradley D. Beauchamp, County Attorney 



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-70 
 

 
 

STATUTORY PERFORMANCE BOND (CPB-1) 
PURSUANT TO TITLE 34, CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 2 OF 

THE ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES 
( PENALTY OF THIS BOND MUST BE 100% OF CONTRACT AMOUNT ) 

 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 
That, _________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________, (hereinafter called the Principal), as Principal,  

  

and _________________________________________________________________________________ 

(hereinafter called Surety), a corporation duly organized and existing the laws of the State of  

 

_____________________________________________ with its principal office in the city of ___________________________ holding a certificate of 

authority to transact surety business in Arizona issued by the Director of the Department of Insurance, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto Gila 

County (hereinafter called the Obligee) in the amount of (100% OF CONTRACT AMOUNT)____________________________________________ 

dollars ($_________________), for the payment whereof, the said Principal and Surety bind themselves, and their heirs, administrator, executors, 

successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

 

WHEREAS, the Principal has agreed to enter into a certain contract with the Obligee for: COPPER ADMIN BUILDING, INTERIOR 

RENOVATION, which contract is hereby referred to and made a part hereof as fully and to the same extent as if copied at length herein. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if the said Principal shall faithfully perform and fulfill 

all the undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions and agreements of said contract during the original term of said contract and any extension thereof, with 

or without notice to the Surety, and during the life of any guaranty required under the contract, and shall also perform and fulfill all the undertakings, 

covenants, terms, conditions, and agreements of any and all duly authorized modifications of said contract that may hereafter be made, notice of which 

modifications to the Surety being hereby waived; then the above obligation shall be void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect; 

 

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of Title 34, Chapter 2, Article 2, of the Arizona Revised 

Statutes, and all liabilities on this bond shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of said Title, Chapter and Article, so the extent as if they 

were copied at length herein. 

 The prevailing party in a suit on this bond shall recover as a part of the judgement such reasonable attorneys' fees as may be fixed by a judge of 

the court. 

 

Witness our hands this __________ day of ____________________, 20 ______. 

 

 

________________________________________________________ 

Principal                                    Seal   

________________________________________________________ 

Surety                                       Seal 

________________________________________________________ 

Agency of Record 

________________________________________________________ 

Arizona Countersignature 

________________________________________________________          

Address     Phone Number 

Phone Number 

 

 

_______________________________ 

By: 

____________________________ 

By: 

 

      
AgencyAddress



COPPER ADMIN BUILDING  INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 

 GP-71 
 

 

STATUTORY LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND (LMB-1) 

PURSUANT TO TITLE 34, CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 2 OF 

THE ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES 
(PENALTY OF THIS BOND MUST BE 100% OF CONTRACT AMOUNT) 

 

 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 

That, _________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________,  (hereinafter called the Principal), as Principal,  

and _________________________________________________________________________________ 

(hereinafter called Surety), a corporation duly organized and existing the laws of the State of  

 

_________________with its principal office in the city of ___________________________ holding a certificate of authority to transact surety business in 

Arizona issued by the Director of the Department of Insurance, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto Gila County (hereinafter called the Obligee) in 

the amount of (100% of Contract Amount)______________________________________ dollars ($_________________), for the payment whereof, the 

said Principal and Surety bind themselves, and their heirs, administrator, executors, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

 

WHEREAS, the Principal has agreed to enter into a certain contract with the Obligee for COPPER ADMIN BUILDING, INTERIOR 

RENOVATION which contract is hereby referred to and made a part hereof as fully and to the same extent as if copied at length herein. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if the said Principal shall faithfully perform and fulfill 

all the undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions and agreements of said contract during the original term of said contract and any extension thereof, with 

or without notice to the Surety, and during the life of any guaranty required under the contract, and shall also perform and fulfill all the undertakings, 

covenants, terms, conditions, and agreements of any and all duly authorized modifications of said contract that may hereafter be made, notice of which 

modifications to the Surety being hereby waived; then the above obligation shall be void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect; 

 

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of Title 34, Chapter 2, Article 2, of the Arizona Revised 

Statutes, and all liabilities on this bond shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of said Title, Chapter and Article, so the extent as if they 

were copied at length herein. 

The prevailing party in a suit on this bond shall recover as a part of the judgment such reasonable attorneys' fees as may be fixed by a judge of 

the court. 

Witness our hands this __________ day of ____________________, 20 ______. 

 

 

________________________________________________________ 

Principal                                    Seal   

________________________________________________________ 

Surety                                       Seal 

________________________________________________________ 

Agency of Record 

________________________________________________________ 

Arizona Countersignature 

________________________________________________________ 

Address     Phone Number 

_________________________________ 

Phone Number 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

By: 

_______________________________ 

By: 

_______________________________ 

AgencyAddress

 



GLOBE COURTHOUSE  BID NO 012114 

2
ND

 FLR RENOVATION 

SCHOOLS AND ASSESSOR 

 

 

 
 

 

CONTRACT PERFORMANCE WARRANTY (CWP-1) 
 
 
I, ______________________________________________________, representing 
 
_____________________________________________________ (company name) 
 
do hereby warranty the work performed for the:  
 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING, INTERIOR RENOVATION 
 
for a period of two years from the date of Substantial Completion .  Work shall be free from defects 
which would cause the work not to perform in its’ intended manner. 
 
The Contractor shall provide 24-hour response to all critical building systems, i.e., loss of electrical, 
plumbing, heating, cooling, fire suppression or other control systems. The Contractor shall provide 
the Owner a list of contact persons and phone numbers to contact in case of loss of a critical building 
system, available on a 24-hour basis. The Contractor shall include the contact person and phone 
number for their bonding company for use if the Owner experiences problems during the warranty. 
 
All other, noncritical warranty items will be corrected within five (5) working days, unless the 
Contractor notifies the Owner in writing that a delay will be experienced due to shipping of materials. 
A shipping date must be provided to advise the Owner of the approximate date of warranty repair. 
 
All warranty work must commence as soon as reasonably possible and be diligently prosecuted to 
completion.  
 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
(Officer, Partner, Owner)                             Date 



GLOBE COURTHOUSE  BID NO 012114 

2
ND

 FLR RENOVATION 

SCHOOLS AND ASSESSOR 

 

 

 



GLOBE COURTHOUSE  BID NO 012114 

2
ND

 FLR RENOVATION 

SCHOOLS AND ASSESSOR 

 

 
 



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

1 of 36 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

TECHNICAL  
SPECIFICATIONS 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

2 of 36 

 
 

INDEX 

Allowances 

Demolition 

Submittals Required 

Rough Carpentry 

FRP Fiber Reinforced Plastic Panels 

Bathroom Partitions 

ADA Grab Bar Details 

Architectural Woodwork 

Windows 

Doors - General 

Hollow Metal Frames 

Wood Doors 

Entrances and Storefronts 

Door Hardware 

Hardware Groups 

Acoustical Treatment 

Resilient Flooring 

Carpeting 

Painting 

Mechanical 

Plumbing 

Electrical 

Lighting 

 

 

ALLOWANCES 

 

Fire Sprinkler System Modification:  Not to exceed: $25,000.00, labor and materials 

Provide design and modifications (labor and material costs) of the existing fire sprinkler 

system for a complete system compliant with NFPA 13. Submit engineered, State Fire 

Marshal approved, drawings for Gila County approval, prior to doing the work.  

 

Fire Alarm System: Not to exceed: $20,000.00, labor and materials 

Provide design and installation of (labor and material costs) fire alarm system in 

accordance with NFPA 72. Submit engineered, State Fire Marshal approved, drawings 

for Gila County approval, prior to doing work. 

 

Millwork: Not to exceed $125,000, material cost only  

Material costs only. Labor costs to be included in Base Bid millwork installation. See 

submittals requirements in the Technical Specifications. 

 

Unforeseen Conditions: Not to exceed $50,000   

Contingency Fund for Change Orders in regards to unforeseen conditions and changes to 

Scope of Work required to complete the work originally intended in an acceptable 
manner. See Change Orders (90-03). 

 

 



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

3 of 36 

 
 

 

DEMOLITION 

 

  To minimize impact and disruption of business in the surrounding offices/buildings and parking 

area, the Contractor is to confine all work to the project site area for his own storage, staging 

and parking areas. Contractor access through the existing parking areas, for deliveries and 

equipment shall not interfere with the existing parking areas usage or access. 

 

  During demolition and removal of debris throughout the course of the construction, the 

contractor shall maintain all building egress paths, parking area access, and keep clean of any 

debris and dust that might be hazards.  

 

Contractor to restore or repair any damaged floors, walls, ceilings, sidewalks, curbs, utilities, 

etc. damaged by the contractor, or his subcontractors, during construction. The Owner to review 

repair work with the Contractor and approve prior to final acceptance and payment. 

 

 

SUBMITTALS REQUIRED: 

 

Drawings and/or Engineering 

 

Fire Sprinkler System Modifications: 

Provide engineered, State Fire Marshal approved, drawings for Gila County approval, 

prior to doing the work. 

 

Fire Alarm System: 

Provide engineered, State Fire Marshal approved, drawings for Gila County approval, 

prior to doing work.  

 

Millwork: 

Provide manufacturer’s shop drawings and details for review and approval, prior to doing 

the work. Also provide color samples for both cabinets and countertops. 

 

Final Door Hardware Schedule:  
Provide door hardware listing by door number, as noted on the drawings, for review and 

approval, prior to ordering. 

 

Aluminum Metal Storefront Door/Window Units: 

Provide manufacturer’s shop drawings and details for review and approval, prior to doing 

the work. Compatibility with Keycard Access System where required. 

 

Submittal: Color selection only 

 

Paint:  Provide color samples for Owners selection. 

 

Bathroom Partitions: 

 Manufacturer: Accurate Partitions Corp. 

 Type: Powder Coated Steel 



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

4 of 36 

 
 

 

ROUGH CARPENTRY 

 

All lumber shall be rated, graded and stamped, identified as such, in accordance with the 

currently adopted version of the IBC and consistent with the Bid Documents.  

 

Wall Framing:  

No exterior or load bearing walls are proposed for this project. 

All interior, non-load bearing walls shall be a minimum 2x4 Doug Fir #2 or better, at 16” O.C., 

unless noted otherwise on the drawings. 

All non-bearing headers to be (2) 2x8 Doug Fir #2 or better for spans up to 8’. 

 

Fire Blocking:  

Fireblocking shall be provided to cut off all concealed draft openings (both vertical and 

horizontal) and to form an effective barrier between stories. Fireblocking shall be provided in 

wood-frame construction in the following locations: 

 Stud walls and partitions, including furred spaces and parallel rows of studs or staggered 

studs: Vertically at the ceiling and floor levels, and Horizontally at intervals not 

exceeding 10’. 

 At all interconnections between concealed vertical and horizontal spaces such as occur at 

soffits, drop ceilings and cove ceilings. 

 At openings around vents, pipes, and ducts at ceiling and floor level, with an approved 

material to resist the free passage of flame and products of combustion. 

 

GYPSUM BOARD 

 

All walls, except restrooms: ½” gypsum board with a light orange peel texture, to match existing, 

unless noted otherwise.  

 

Restrooms and wet areas: When gypsum board is used as a base for tile or wall panels for tubs, 

shower or water closet compartment walls, water-resistant gypsum backing board shall be used 

as a substrate.  

 

Accessories such as grab bars, towel bars, paper dispensers and soap dishes, provided on or 

within walls, shall be installed and sealed to protect structural elements from moisture. 

 

Water-resistant gypsum backing board shall not be used in the following locations: 

 Over a vapor retarder in shower or bathtub compartments. 

 Where there will be direct exposure to water or in areas subject to continuous high 

humidity. 

 On ceilings where frame spacing exceeds 12” OC for ½”, or exceeds 16” OC for 5/8” 

thickness. 

 

  



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

5 of 36 

 
 

 

FRP (FIBER REINFORCED PLASTIC) PANELS 

 

Manufacturer: Marlite 

Type: Standard FRP Artizan 

Style: Stone Grid, Textured Finish 

Color: T936-G44 Milan (4x4 score, 1/8” groove with white core) 

 

Installation shall be per the manufacturer’s specifications, instructions and details. 

 

Prefinished polyester glass reinforced plastic sheets and adhered to unfinished gypsum 

wallboard.  

 

Conform to building code requirements for interior finish for smoke and flame spread 

requirements as tested in accordance with ASTM E 84 (Method of test for surface burning 

characteristics of building Materials), Class C minimum. 

 

Panels: 

Fiberglass reinforced thermosetting polyester resin panel sheets complying with ASTM D 5319. 

Coating: Multi-layer print, primer and finish coats or applied over-layer. 

Dimensions: 

Thickness: 0.090” (2.29mm) nominal 

Width: 4’-0” (1.22m) nominal 

Length: 8’-0” (2.4m) nominal 

Tolerance: 

Length and Width: +/- 1/8” (3.175mm) 

Square: Not to exceed 1/8” for 8’ panels 

Properties: 

Resistant to rot, corrosion, staining, denting, peeling, and splintering. 

Flexural Strength: 1.0 x 10
4
 psi per ASTM D790 (7.0 kilogram-force/square millimeter). 

Flexural Modulus: 3.1 x 10
5
 psi per ASTM D790 (217.9 kilogram-force/square 

millimeter). 

Tensile Strength: 7.0 x 10
3
 psi per ASTM D 638 ( 4.9 kilogram-force/square millimeter). 

Tensile Modulus: 1.6 x 10
5
 psi per ASTM D 638 (112.5 kilogram-force/square 

millimeter). 

Water Absorption: 0.72% per ASTM D 570. 

Barcol Hardness (scratch resistance) of 35 55 as per ASTM D 2583. 

Izod Impact Strength of 72 ft. lbs./in ASTM D 256. 

 

Base:  

Manufacturer: Johnsonite  

Type: ColorMatch 

Style: Traditional Wall Base 

Color: Brown (47) 

Size: 4” 

All outside corners shall be pre-formed.  

 

 



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

6 of 36 

 
 

 

Trim: 

SaniSeal Trim: Co-extruded, dual-durometer polypropylene/monprene profiles with Dual-Seal 

Technology and high performance pressure sensitive adhesive. 

Color Tan (or best match with Milan) 

 

Accessories: 

Fasteners: Non-staining nylon drive rivets. Match panel colors. Length to suit project conditions. 

Adhesive: Either of the following construction adhesives complying with ASTM C 557. 

Marlite C-551 FRP Adhesive – Water-resistant, non-flammable adhesive. 

Marlite C-375 Construction Adhesive – Flexible, water-resistant, solvent based adhesive, 

formulated for fast, easy application. 

Titebond Advanced Polymer Panel Adhesive – VOC compliant, non-flammable, 

environmentally safe adhesive. 

Sealant: Marlite brand, color to match. 

 

 

Preparation: 

Examine backup surfaces to determine that corners are plumb and straight, surfaces are smooth, 

uniform, clean and free from foreign matter, nails countersunk, joints and cracks filled flush and 

smooth with the adjoining surface.  

 

Verify stud spacing does not exceed 24” on-center. 

 

Repair defects prior to installation. Level wall surfaces to panel manufacturer’s requirements. 

Remove protrusions and fill indentations. 

 

 

Installation: 

 

Deliver materials factory packaged on strong pallets. Store panels and trim lying flat, under 

cover and protected from the elements. Allow panels to acclimate to room temperature (70 

degrees) for 48 hours prior to installation. Building shall be fully enclosed prior to installation 

with sufficient heat and ventilation consistent with good working conditions for finish work.  

 

During installation and for not less than 48 hours before, maintain an ambient temperature and 

relative humidity within limits required by type of adhesive used and recommendation of 

adhesive manufacturer. Provide ventilation to disperse fumes during application of adhesive as 

recommended by the adhesive manufacturer. 

 

Comply with manufacturer’s recommended procedures and installation sequence. Install panels 

with manufacturer’s recommended gap for panel field and corner joints. 

 

Adhesive trowel and application method to conform to adhesive manufacturer’s 

recommendations. 

 



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

7 of 36 

 
 

Apply panel moldings to all panel edges using silicone sealant providing for required clearances.  

Apply sealant to all moldings, channels and joints between the system and different materials to 

assure watertight installation. 

 

Remove excess sealant from panels and moldings. Wipe panel down using a damp cloth and 

mild soap solution or cleaner. Refer to manufacturer’s specific cleaning recommendations. Do 

not use abrasive cleaners. 

 

 

Warranty: Furnish two year guarantee against defects in material and workmanship. 

 

  



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

8 of 36 

 
 

 

BATHROOM PARTITIONS 

 

Manufacturer: Accurate Partitions Corp. 

Type: Powder Coated Steel 

Style: Floor Anchored / Overhead Braced 

 

Installation shall be per the manufacturer’s specifications, instructions and details. 

 

Submittal Required: Color selection to Owner for selection and approval. 

 

 

ADA GRAB BAR DETAILS:  
 

 

 

  



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

9 of 36 

 
 

 

ARCHITECTURAL WOODWORK 
 

Custom Casework Locations: 

 See Millwork Elevation Drawings, Sheets A7, A8 and A9 and floor plans. 

 Bathroom Counters (no base unit): 4 total, See Plan.  

 Field verify dimensions. 

 

Minimum Construction Standards: 

 All cabinet and millwork tops, sides, dividers, shelving, etc., shall be 3/4" minimum 

stock.  

 Stained veneer materials shall conform to AWI custom grade, minimum thickness 1/16". 

 Unexposed framing shall be nominal 1 x 2 hardwood, AWI custom grade. 

 Doors and drawer fronts shall be 3/4" minimum core stock. 

 Drawer boxes shall be 1/2" minimum with minimum 1/4" plywood bottoms. 

 ADA compliant locations, noted on drawings, shall meet the standards of ADA currently 

adopted by the State of Arizona. 

 Built-in shelving or free standing modular shelving height should not exceed 6' from 

finished floor and be securely anchored to studs reinforced to accept the loading. 

 All shelving should be designed as fully adjustable, 3/4" minimum thickness. 

 "Line bore and pin" method of shelving adjustment (either in cabinets or standing 

shelving) is desired.  Shelf standards mortised in with brackets is also acceptable. 

 All millwork and accessory hardware shall comply with ANSI A156.9, minimum quality 

level Type 2 (institutional). Hinges, guides, slides, etc., shall utilize bearings complying 

with BHMA 201. 

 All cabinet hinges should be self closing. Amerock spring loaded or approved equal. 

 Drawer slides should allow full extension (1" longer than total drawer depth) and be 

specified as heavy duty (100 lb. minimum), Blum or approved alternate. 

 The use of painted particleboard as the finish for cabinets and tops is not acceptable. 

Particle board is allowable as core stock in low/no moisture areas when receiving a high 

pressure plastic laminate finish. 

 Particle board is not an acceptable material for shelving with greater than a 2 foot 

unsupported span. 

 The use of melamine or other similar low mill finishes (less than .020") as interior 

cabinet lining or underside of shelving is not acceptable. Melamine thermo fused ¾” is 

acceptable for interior finish of cabinets only. 

 All exposed cabinet hardware should be specified with a permanent, durable finish that is 

easily cleanable. 

 All countertops designed as work surfaces shall be of an appropriate height to 

accommodate the physically disabled. 

 All millwork designed to support electrical equipment (computers, phones, clocks, etc.) 

shall have grommet openings allowing cords, interconnect cables, etc., to be concealed or 

routed internally. Grommets shall be 2-1/2" minimum diameter plastic, color to match 

adjacent finish.   

 The use of plastic laminate tops and splashes is not recommended for high moisture areas 

such as lav tops, coffee bar tops, or work surfaces that are repeatedly subjected to 

spillage, water cleaning, or subject to chemical substances. 



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

10 of 36 

 
 

 

Plastic Laminate 

 

Synthetic counter tops shall be high pressure laminate, or, in extra heavy duty use 

applications, equal to "Corian", 5/8" minimum thickness  

 

Guides for minimum plastic laminate finishing are as follows:  

 .050" exposed horizontal surfaces;  

 .028" exposed vertical surfaces;  

 .020" cabinet linings and concealed backing. 

 

  



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

11 of 36 

 
 

 

WINDOWS: 

 

See Interior Elevation drawings, Sheet A7, A8 and A9. Provide interior laminated glass windows 

with hollow metal frames at locations show.  

 

Provide transaction window opening at locations shown. Opening shall be designed to provide 

for nighttime and after hours closing and locking of opening locations. 

 

Frames: Hollow Metal, painted per Owners requirements. 

 

Glass: ¼” thickness, clear laminated glass.  

 

DOORS: GENERAL 

 

Doors and door hardware are to be installed only by qualified persons and all work must meet 

appropriate codes. 

 

All doors, hardware, openers, etc. shall be institutional grade throughout. 

 

Final acceptance of any hardware installations shall be subject to approval by the Gila County 

Facility Services. 

 

All hardware submittals shall be routed through the Gila County Facility Services for review and 

approval prior to purchase. 

 

HOLLOW METAL FRAMES 

 

Commercial heavy duty hollow metal frames required. Frames shall be commercial heavy duty 

quality.   

 

Kickplates are required on both sides of all doors that are subject to high traffic. See Door 

Schedule and Hardware Groups. 

 

All frames shall be welded.  Knock-downs are not acceptable. An inspection of anchoring 

method must be made prior to drywall or closing up of walls. 

 

Frames shall have wall anchors a maximum of 16" O.C. per jamb.   

 

All door frames shall be no lighter than 14 gauge steel. Seamless end channel closure pieces at 

door heads. 

 

Doors shall have a minimum of 3 heavy duty industrial type hinges per door. 

 

Doors and frames shall have a spray applied finish. 

 

Door stops required on all installations, closures required if doors open into a rated space. 

 



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

12 of 36 

 
 

 

WOOD DOORS 

 

Wooden doors are acceptable for interior applications only, must be solid core, and have 

adhesives that are 100% waterproof.   

 

All doors shall be 3'0" x 6’8", solid core flush (100% waterproof adhesives) with veneer faces, 

commercial heavy duty minimum grade, 1-3/4" thick, unless noted otherwise. 

 

All doors should be specified from a single manufacturer. 

 

Formaldehyde off-gassing rates to be less than .03 milligrams per square foot of surface/hr in 

accordance with ASTM D5116-90. 

 

Doors shall carry a life of installation warranty from the manufacturer. All doors that are warped, 

after installation, shall be replaced prior to substantial completion.   

 

Door receiving a stained finish shall be specified as having premium quality face veneers, 

minimum thickness 1/16". 

 

Doors used as a normal means of ingress and egress shall have either vision panels or adjacent 

sidelights (where allowable by code) in metal frames. See Door Schedule for locations and size. 

 

All doors subject to heavy traffic shall have kickplates both sides. See Door Schedule for 

locations.  

 

ENTRANCES AND STOREFRONTS 

 

Remove existing exterior pairs of doors, 4 locations, and replace with new storefront door 

and sidelite per door type shown on drawings and identified on Door Schedule. 

 

Aluminum Storefronts 

 

Field verify existing conditions. Contractor to provide manufacturer’s installation detail for such 

condition, for approval, prior to ordering. See Submittals Required.  

 

Doors to accommodate panic hardware and electronic keypad control system, to be 

installed by Owner. 

 

 

DOOR HARDWARE 

 

Cylindrical locksets with lever handles:  

Marks USA 175RAB/26D 

Locksets Survivor Series 

175RAB Lever Lockset 

Grade 2 

2 ¾” Backset 



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

13 of 36 

 
 

IC Core Model 

26D Chrome Finish 

 

All electronic systems: By Others 

 

Exit devices: By Owner. 

Shall be rim type, installed with a mullion in double doors.  

Vertical rod systems shall not be used unless necessary to make an existing doorway meet 

Handicap code requirements for width. 

Finish to match other door hardware. 

Approved Model: Precision Hardware Inc., APEX Series 

 

Door closers:  

Shall have extra heavy duty arms and be mounted with thru bolts.  

Approved Model: LCN 4041, EDA, TB 

 

Cylinders and Cores: 

Gila County Facility Services will key all locks, specify which system, and the keyway to be 

used. Only original Best cylinders and interchangeable cores shall be used. Pinning and key 

cutting will be done by the Facility Services. Key blanks and cylinders/cores will be provided by 

and paid for by the contractor and should be shipped directly to the Facility Services. 

 

Hinges: 

All doors will be mounted with three 4-1/2” X  4-1/2”  full mortise hinges.  Doors larger than 

3'x7' will be mounted with four hinges that are the same size as above. 

Approved Models: Hager BB1168, McKinney TA2714, Stanley FBB168 

Roton continuous hinge or equal continuous hinge for high traffic exterior doors 

 

Thresholds:  

Shall meet ADA requirements.   

Thresholds shall be aluminum and rated for heavy duty traffic. 

 

 

HARDWARE GROUPS 

 

See drawings for Door Schedule w/ hardware identified 

 

See Schedule for location of Keypad controlled door locations. Contractor to coordinate 

with Keypad Control contractor to accommodate installation. 

 

GROUP 1: OFFICE 

Lockset with lever handle 

Hinges 

Kickplates required at custodial closets 

Add foot kickstop to hold door open at door 114 

 

 

 



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

14 of 36 

 
 

GROUP 2: STORAGE 

Lockset with lever handle 

Hinges 

 

GROUP 3: RESTROOM 

Lockset with lever handle 

Hinges 

Door Closer 

Kickplates 

 

GROUP 4: CONFERENCE ROOM 

Lockset with lever handle 

Hinges 

 

GROUP 5: HALLWAY 

Lockset with lever handle 

Hinges 

Kickplates 

 

GROUP 6: EXTERIOR STOREFRONT 

Panic Hardware and Electronic Keypad System by Owner 

Hinges 

Closer 

Threshold 

Weatherseal gasket 

Kickplates: By Door Manufacture 

 

 

  



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

15 of 36 

 
 

 

ACOUSTICAL TREATMENT 
 

Acoustical Ceilings and Support System 

 

Careful consideration should be given during installation in regards to the location of all lighting 

fixtures, diffusers or any other ceiling projections identified on the drawings.  

 

Ceiling Tiles: 

 Manufacturer: Armstrong 

 Type: Cortega Second Look II 

 Style: 2767 

 

Size: 24” x 48” x ¾” 

Style: 15/16” Angled Tegular 

Color: White  

 

Suspension System: 

 Manufacturer: Armstrong 

 Type/Style: 15/16” Prelude XL w/ 7/8” Hemmed angle wall molding 

 Color: White 

 

Install per manufacturer’s specifications, instructions and details.  

 

Lighting, diffusers, and sprinklers shall be located in the system at regular or predetermined 

intervals. Fire Sprinkler heads shall be located in the center of a tile. Require subtrades to locate 

ceiling penetrations in center of a panel. 

 

Where walls run to the underside of the system, provide an acoustical seal at junction. 

  



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

16 of 36 

 
 

 

RESILIENT FLOORING 
 

Protection: 

It shall be the contractor's responsibility to protect all furniture, walls, doors, etc from any 

damages during installation of flooring and base, and removing existing floor finishes, where 

applicable. Any items moved shall be replaced in original position.  The Contractor will be 

responsible for all damages. 

 

Job Conditions: 

Installer must examine the substrate and conditions under which the flooring is to be installed  

and notify the contractor, in writing, of conditions detrimental to the proper and timely 

completion of the work,  per the manufacturer’s installation requirements. 

 

 

Installation: 

All contractors that bid this work, shall have a minimum of not less than 5 years vinyl tile 

installation experience, similar to the size and scope contained in the project, and provide a 

minimum 2 year full warranty to fix, repair or replace carpeting failure as the result of defective 

workmanship. Shall be installed/applied with a suitable waterproof mastic for the conditions of 

use. 

 

Extra Stock: 
Contractor shall provide a minimum 5% additional material over actual area used as extra stock, 

to be provided to Owner prior to or at final completion. All extra stock shall be full tiles, not cut 

pieces, and shall be from the same dye lot / manufacturing batch as the tiles used on the job. 

 

 

 Manufacturer: Armstrong Commercial Flooring 

 Type: Luxury Vinyl Tile 

 Style: Natural Creations, Arbor Art 

 Color: TP036 Roan-Oak Warm 

 Size: 4” x  36” 

 

Product Data: 

Size:   4” x 36”  

Overall Thickness: .125” 

Wearlayer Thickness: .020” 

Finish:   UV-cured Polyurthane 

 

Installation:    

Full spread adhesives: S-288 Premium, S-543 High-Moisture, S240 Eposy 

 

Static Load Limit: No visually apparent indentation, 250 psi 

 

 

 

 



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

17 of 36 

 
 

Testing: 

Heat Stability (ASTM F-1514):   Exceeds 

Stain & Chemical Stability (ASTM F-925): Meets or Exceeds 

Light Resistance (ASTM F1515):   Exceeds 

Flexibility (ASTM F137):    Exceeds, No cracks or breaks 

Fire Test Data: Flame Spread (ASTM E648): 0.45 watt/cm
2
 or more Class 1 

Fire Test Data: Smoke Evolution (ASTM 662): 450 or less 

FloorScore Indoor Air Quality:   CHPS 01350 Certified 

Sustainability Assessment:    Gold Level Certified 

Certified Low Emitting Product:   LEED EQ4.3 

Certified Low Emitting Adhesive:   LEED EQ4.1 

 

Warranty:  

Limited 10 Year Commercial Warranty 

 

 

VINYL BASE 

 

Manufacturer: Johnsonite  

Type: ColorMatch 

Style: Traditional Wall Base 

Color: Brown (47) 

Size: 4” 

 

All outside corners shall be pre-formed.  

 

 

  



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

18 of 36 

 
 

 

CARPETING: GENERAL NOTES 
 

Protection: 

It shall be the contractor's responsibility to protect all furniture, walls, doors, etc from any 

damages during installation of carpet and base, and removing existing carpet and base where 

applicable. Any items moved shall be replaced in original position.  The Contractor will be 

responsible for all damages. 

 

Job Conditions: 

Installer must examine the substrate and conditions under which the carpeting is to be installed, 

and notify the contractor, in writing, of conditions detrimental to the proper and timely 

completion of the work, per the manufacturer’s installation requirements. 

 

Installation: 

All contractors that bid this work, shall have a minimum of not less than 5 years of carpeting 

installation experience, similar to the size and scope contained in the project, and provide a 

minimum 2 year full warranty to fix, repair or replace carpeting failure as the result of defective 

workmanship. Installation per manufacturer’s requirements and specifications. 

Metal or vinyl carpet reducers shall be provided at all exposed or junction edges with other 

material or at entrances. 

 

Extra Stock: 
Contractor shall provide a minimum 10% additional material over actual area used as extra 

stock, to be provided to Owner prior to or at final completion. All extra stock shall be full carpet 

tiles, not cut pieces, and shall be from the same dye lot / manufacturing batch as the carpet tiles 

used on the job. 

 

 

MODULAR (CARPET TILES) 

 

Locations: All Conference Rooms and Weekend Reporting Room 239 

 

Manufacturer: Lees  

Type: Work It! Modular 26 

Style : GT143  

Size: 24” x 24” 

Color: Natural Hybrid 228 

 

Product Data: 

Construction:  Tufted 

Dye Method :  Solution Dyed 

Surface Texture:  Level Multi-Colored Loop 

Gauge:   1/10 (39.37 rows per 10cm) 

Stitches Per Inch:  8.5 (33.46 per 10cm) 

Density:   6118 

Weight Density:  159,068 

Finished Pile Thickness: 0.153” 



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

19 of 36 

 
 

Yarn Weight:  26 oz./yd2 

Backing:   EcoFlex ICT 

Face Yarn:   Duracolor Premium Nylon 

Protective Treatments: Sentry Plus 

Sustainable Content: Contains a minimum 35% pre-consumer recycled content by total weight 

 

Performance: 

Static Control:  AATCC-134 <3.5 KV 

Flammability:  ASTM E 648 class 1 (Glue Down) 

Smoke Density:  ASTM E-662 <450   

Soil Resistance:  Passes GSA requirements for permanent stain resistant carpet 

CRI Green Label Plus: 1098 

 

Warranties: 

Lifetime Limited Modular Warranty 

Lifetime Duracolor Stain Warranty 

Lifetime Static 

 

BROADLOOM 

 

Locations:  

All Offices, HR Testing /Storage Room 118, HR Reception 122, Library Storage 130, and 

Library Workroom 135 

 

Manufacturer: Lees  

Type: Work It! 26 

Style : GL143  

Size: 12’ width 

Color: Natural Hybrid 228 

 

Product Data: 

Construction:  Tufted 

Dye Method :  Solution Dyed 

Surface Texture:  Level Multi-Colored Loop 

Gauge:   1/10 (39.37 rows per 10cm) 

Stitches Per Inch:  11.8 (46.46 per 10cm) 

Density:   6933 

Weight Density:  180,258 

Finished Pile Thickness: 0.135” 

Yarn Weight:  26 oz./yd2 

Backing:   UniBond Flex 

Face Yarn:   Duracolor Premium Nylon 

Protective Treatments: Sentry Plus 

 

 

 

 

 



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

20 of 36 

 
 

 

Performance: 

Static Control:  AATCC-134 <3.5 KV 

Flammability:  ASTM E 648 class 1 (Glue Down) 

Smoke Density:  ASTM E-662 <450   

Soil Resistance:  Passes GSA requirements for permanent stain resistant carpet 

CRI Green Label Plus:  4952 

 

Warranties: 

Lifetime Limited Unibond Flex Warranty 

Lifetime Duracolor Stain Warranty 

Lifetime Static 

 

Submittal required: No  

 

 

VINYL BASE 

 

Manufacturer: Johnsonite  

Type: ColorMatch 

Style: Traditional Wall Base 

Color: Brown (47) 

Size: 4” 

 

All outside corners shall be pre-formed.  

 

 

  



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

21 of 36 

 
 

 

PAINTING 
 

Submittal required: Color selection for approval, prior to doing the work.  

 

Painting products shall be specified from one of the following manufacturers: Dunn Edwards, 

Frazee, Kelly Moore, Sherwin Williams, or Glidden.  Alternative manufacturers may be 

submitted for approval. 

 

Deliver and store materials on job site in original, new and unopened packages and containers 

bearing manufacturer's name, paint identification, formula number, batch number, etc. with 

labels intact. 

 

Coatings shall be applied in accordance with the manufacturer's printed directions for the paint 

used.  Special attention shall be given to applying a coating when temperature, humidity, and 

other weather factors are acceptable by the manufacturer requirements and/or owner.  No paint 

shall be applied until preceding coat has dried.  Successive coats shall have colors varied by 

tinting sufficiently to permit easy visual check of the coverage unless otherwise stated. 

 

In occupied buildings, the contractor shall do all painting that produces noxious fumes or smells, 

during nights, weekends and off hours to prevent disruption of Gila County business and services 

to the public.  

 

Materials: 

 

All paint materials shall be of manufacturers' premium grade product.   

 

Insofar as possible, all components of the paint system shall be products of the same 

manufacturer. 

 

Extra Stock: 
Prior to final completion, the contractor shall provide a minimum of one gallon, from the same 

batch of each color and each type of paint used on the project. Gallon cans shall be labeled with 

manufacturer’s name, color name & formula. 

 

Surface Preparation: 

Perform preparation and cleaning procedures in accordance with paint manufacturer's 

instructions and as herein specified, for each particular substrate condition. 

 

Remove or protect hardware, hardware accessories, machined surfaces, plates, lighting fixtures, 

and similar items that are not to be painted to insure that no paint is applied to these surfaces.  

Reinstall or remove protection upon completion of painting of the adjacent surfaces. 

 

Clean all surfaces to be painted, stained or sealed before applying paint or surface treatments.   

 

 

 

 



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

22 of 36 

 
 

 

Wood:  

Prime fill holes and imperfections in finish surfaces with putty or plastic wood-filler. 

Sandpaper smooth when dried. Prime, stain, or seal wood required to be job-painted.  

Prime all edges, ends, faces, undersides, and backsides of such wood. Seal tops, bottoms 

and cut-outs of un-primed wood doors with a heavy coat of varnish or equivalent sealer. 

 

Ferrous Metals:   

Clean ferrous surfaced, which are not galvanized or shop-coated, of oil, grease, dirt, loose 

mill scale and other foreign substances by solvent or mechanical cleaning. 

 

Galvanized Surfaces:   

Clean free of oil and surface contaminants with non-petroleum based solvent and apply 

pre-wash or bond coat as indicated. 

 

Application: 

Apply paint in accordance with manufacturer's directions.  Use applicators and techniques best 

suited for substrate and type of material being applied. 

 

Understand and honor all applicable OSHA safety and local, State or Federal VOC requirements. 

 

Apply additional coats when undercoats, stain or other conditions show through final coat of 

paint, until paint film is of uniform finish, color and appearance.  Give special attention to insure 

that surfaces, including edges, corners, crevices, welds, and exposed fasteners receive a dry film 

thickness equivalent to that of flat surfaces. 

 

Paint surfaces behind movable equipment and furniture same as similar exposed surfaces.  Paint 

surfaces behind permanently-fixed equipment or furniture. 

 

Finish exterior doors on tops, bottoms and side edges same as exterior faces, unless otherwise 

indicated. 

 

Sand lightly between each succeeding enamel or varnish coat. 

 

Clean-up And Protection: 
During progress of work, remove from site discarded all materials, rubbish, cans and rags at end 

of each work day.   

 

Upon completion of work, clean window glass and other paint-splattered surfaces.  Remove 

splattered paint by proper methods of washing and scraping, using care not to scratch to 

otherwise damage finished surfaces. 

 

Protection:  Protect work of other trades, whether to be painted or not, against damage by 

painting and finishing work.  Correct and damage by cleaning, repairing or replacing, and 

repainting, as acceptable to the Owner. 

 

 

 



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

23 of 36 

 
 

 

Provide "Wet Paint" signs as required to protect newly-painted finishes.  Remove temporary 

protective wrappings provided by others for protection of their work, after completion of 

painting operations.  At the completion of work of other trades, touch-up and restore all damages 

to painted surfaces. 

 

  



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

24 of 36 

 
 

 

MECHANICAL MATERIALS AND METHODS 

 

SEE MECHANICAL ENGINEERING DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS ON 

DRAWINGS. 

 

  



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

25 of 36 

 
 

 

PLUMBING GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

All cleanouts, meters, controllers, valves, etc. must be installed in boxes with removable lids and 

or access panels.  

 

Provide isolation valves for each floor and for every bathroom.  All isolation valves shall be 

ball valves. 

 

 

Plumbing Piping 

 

Domestic water lines shall be a minimum of Type L copper or PEX. 

Waste and vent piping shall be ABS. 

 

Plumbing lines shall not be located in outside walls, unheated attics, basements, or other 

unconditioned areas without specific approval from Facility Services. 

 

Plumbing Insulation 

Provide minimum R-5 insulation at all exposed plumbing piping to prevent freezing. 

 

Plumbing Fixtures 

  

All fixtures required to be ADA compliant shall meet the requirements of Division 1 of the 

Specifications. 

 

Plumbing fixtures shall be low flow: 

Toilets: 1.6 gallons per flush 

Urinals: one gallon per flush, No urinals shall be installed using a timing device to flush 

periodically, regardless of demand. 

Lavatory faucets: 3 gallons per minute, at a pressure of 80 psi 

Kitchen faucets: 3 gallons per minute, at a pressure of 80 psi  

Showerheads: 3 gallons per minute, at a pressure of 80 psi. Showerheads shall be tamper 

resistant. 

 

Plumbing fixtures as manufactured by the following (or approved equal), unless noted otherwise:  

American Standard, Chicago, Elger. 

 

Water Closets: American Standard Madera, 2234.58 Floor Mount 

 FloWise 15” height, 1.28 gpf, Top Spud bowl and Selectronic Flush Valve. 

Water Fountain: Elkay Wall Mount Water Cooler, Model EZS4 

Urinal: American Standard Washbrook Urinal 

Flush Valves: Regal XL 

Faucets: Chicago Faucets Deck Mounted 4” centers 

 Lavatory Faucet 802-V317ABCP 

Lavatory: Ohio Oval Countertop Sink (White) Model 0439 

Mop Sink: Zurn Z1996-24 (24”x24” White) Stainless steel drain with Dome 

Strainer, Lint Basket and Locking Nut. 



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

26 of 36 

 
 

Mob Sink Faucet: T&S Brass and Bronze Works, Inc. Model: B-0665-BSTR 
Breakroom Sink: Elkay Model #DSE233223 

Breakroom Sink Faucet: American Standard 4175.300.075 

  



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

27 of 36 

 
 

 

ELECTRICAL GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

 

All work shall comply with the Night Sky Lighting ordinances, as adopted by the Gila County 

Board of Supervisors, with all  requirements of the National Electrical Code (latest edition 

adopted by Gila County), and requirements of Arizona Public Service. 

 

All materials shall be new, Underwriter listed, and standard first line products of their respective 

kinds. 

 

 

Materials and Methods: 

 

In general, no more than six circuits shall be run in a single ¾” homerun, if conductors are #12’s 

or smaller. Size of all homerun conduits shall be 3/4" minimum. Do not combine homeruns when 

shown separate.  If conduit is greater than ¾”, fill shall be no more than 50% allowed by NEC. 

 

Neutral conductors shall be #10 AWG minimum, where 2 or more 15 or 20 amp circuits share a 

common neutral. 

 

Metallic tags or labels shall not be used inside switchboards, panels and/or MCC's. 

 

Telephone plates and devices or jacks (modular) shall match electrical device plates and devices, 

in color and material. 

 

Panelboards, gutters, junction boxes and other electrical equipment with removable covers shall 

not be painted other than original factory paint and necessary touch up paint. 

 

Different systems shall be run in separate conduits as complete systems with conduit, wireways, 

boxes, etc. Examples of separate systems are as follows:  120/208 volts, 277/480 volts, fire 

alarm, emergency lighting and power, computer, telephone, intrusion alarms, building 

automation, and energy management 

 

All wiring shall be in conduits or raceways regardless of voltage.  All main service, main feeder, 

and general circuitry wiring shall be specified as copper. Telephone cable and power limiter 

cable for fire alarm systems shall be in conduit unless they are plenum rated. All shall be 

properly installed and supported. 

  

Sleeves shall be specified for penetration through floor and shall extend a minimum of 1 inch 

AFF  (above finished floor). Fireproofing shall be provided for all penetrations. 

 

All electrical equipment, disconnects, starters, panels, devices and plates shall be installed plumb 

and true. All adjacent boxes shall be aligned and level. Devices will be installed with enough 

clearance and access to allow maintenance, repair, or calibration. 

 

Conductor splices shall be in outlet boxes, gutters, junction boxes or pull boxes. 

 

 



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

28 of 36 

 
 

 

Raceways: 
 

Raceway systems shall be installed as complete systems. Support shall be every 10 feet and 

within 3 feet of boxes, cabinets, or fittings and within 18" of each change in direction. 

  

Wiremold or similar, and equal, wireways shall be installed as complete systems using accessory 

fittings (elbows, end plates, tees, etc.) according to the manufacturer's recommendations assuring 

a rigid mechanical and electrical connection between parts. Removable wireway covers shall be 

accessible except as in N.E.C. 362.2. Wiremold is acceptable only in exposed locations. If a box 

is located behind the raceway, the opening in the raceway shall be of the same dimension as the 

box opening. The opening shall be provided with a bushing. 

 

Raceway installations shall be made in such a way that no wrench or tool teeth marks are evident.  

 

Conduits:  
 

All conduit shall be a minimum of 3/4".  Exception: 1/2" conduit may be used in walls for 

dead end runs only. 
  

Flexible Steel Conduits:  
Flexible Steel Conduits shall be used only where approved by the Owner for connection to 

equipment which is moveable for adjustment, mounted on isolation units for elimination of 

vibration and sound or for connection from a close by junction box to lay-in type light fixtures in 

a "T" grid ceiling.  Run green ground wire in all flexible conduits.  Seal tight flex shall be 

spirally wound steel. 

 

Connectors for flexible steel conduit shall be of steel type. Twist on type connectors shall also be 

made of steel type.  Under no circumstances shall runs of flexible conduit exceed six feet. 

Junction boxes shall be as close as possible to fixtures. Junction boxes shall be fully accessible 

without removing the fixture. 

 

Type “MC” cable shall be the exception and not the norm.  It shall only be used by special 

permission from the authority having jurisdiction.  Type “MC” cable shall be of the steel type, 

color coded along its entire external length.  Minimum size wire shall be #12.  Light fixtures 

with factory “MC” whips are acceptable when approved by the Owner. 

 

Use of Flexible Metallic Tubing or non-metallic flexible conduit is prohibited. 

 

 

Rigid Heavy Wall Steel conduit: 

 

Rigid heavy wall steel conduit shall be installed with double locknuts and an insulated metallic 

bushing. All surface conduits exposed to weather or subject to mechanical damage shall be Rigid 

Heavy Wall Steel Conduit or I.M.C. unless otherwise stated.  

 

Where conduits enter from below, install a threaded rigid conduit coupling flush with the 

concrete to permit removal of the conduit above the floor.  



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

29 of 36 

 
 

 

When conduit is removed a threaded conduit plug can be installed flush with the floor for 

abandonment.  

 

Changing from one raceway to another shall be accomplished at an approved box only.  

 

Rigid Heavy Wall Steel Conduit shall be half lap wrapped with Scotch Wrap #50 or an approved 

equal when installed in concrete or in earth.  Rigid heavy wall steel conduit shall be hot-dipped 

galvanized mild steel, full weight, with clean cut sharp threads. Only approved full radius 

benders shall be used.  

 

Rigid conduit shall be used in all tunnels, in concrete pours (high voltage only), wherever 

subjected to physical damage and shall be used in mechanical rooms 10’ and below.   

 

General 

 Feeders of more than 100 amps, rigid or I.M.C. is acceptable.   

 EMT is allowable except where physical damage might occur.  

 High voltage (12,470 volts) shall be installed in rigid or IMC.  

 Only steel compression or set screw fittings are acceptable.   

 Mallable or cast construction is not acceptable.  

 

EMT Electrical metallic tubing  

 EMT shall be hot-dipped galvanized and shall conform to the NEC requirements.  

 Only UL approved steel fittings shall be used with all EMT.  Fittings may be 

compression type or steel set screws.  Only approved full radius benders shall be used.  

 Minimum size EMT shall be 3/4".  ½” EMT may be used for dead-end runs.   

 EMT may be used in furred spaces, in either metal or wood stud walls, and either 

exposed or concealed.  

 The use of EMT over 2" ID is not acceptable.  

 EMT is not approved for use in masonry walls.   

 EMT shall not be installed so as to come into contact with the earth.   

 

Where wires or cables enter or exit a conduit which is used to provide support or protection from 

physical damage, a fitting such as a connector and ground bushing shall be provided on the 

end(s) of the conduit or tubing to protect the wires or cables from abrasion and to ground the 

conduit. All bushings to be insulated metallic bushings appropriately rated. 

 

Spare conduits shall be extended up from flush mounted panels to the space above false ceilings 

and capped. If there is no false ceiling, these conduits shall extend to an accessible location and 

terminate in a labeled junction box with suitable blank cover. A minimum of 1-1" spare conduit 

shall be provided for each 3 (or fraction thereof) one-pole spares/spaces, with at least 3 spare 

conduits provided. 

 

Surface conduits shall be painted same color as surface it is attached to. Panels, gutters and other 

electrical equipment with removable covers shall not be painted. Conduits concealed, run in 

tunnels or equipment rooms shall not be painted. 

 

 



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

30 of 36 

 
 

Installation of Conduit 

 

Conduit shall be run concealed except in certain approved locations.   Conduit shall be secured 

both horizontally and vertically against movement.  Listed mechanical fasteners shall be used.  

Tie wire may only be used for securing horizontal conduit runs within stud walls.  Outlet boxes, 

junction and pull boxes, etc., shall be installed so as not to interfere with any piping, fixtures or 

equipment. All boxes shall be fully accessible. Exposed conduits shall be grouped in neat parallel 

lines, properly supported, following the lines of the building structure as closely as possible and 

as directed. 

 

Conduit shall not run through any structural member of the building except as specifically 

directed by a structural engineer, licensed in the State of Arizona.  

 

No running threads will be permitted.  Union fittings may be used as necessary. Rigid conduit 

threadless connectors or couplings, split couplings that bolt together, self-threading fittings or 

couplings permanently attached to conduit shall not be used unless approved by Gila County. 

 

Ninety degree bends in conduit 1-1/2" and larger shall be made with factory bent standard 

conduit elbows or by hydraulic type benders.  

 

No more than four 90 degree bends (360 degrees) shall be used between pull, or junction, boxes. 

No more than three 90 degree bends (270 degrees) shall be used between pull, or junction, boxes 

on data, communications or phone conduits. 

 

The ends of all conduits shall be cut square, carefully reamed to full size and shouldered in 

fittings. EMT shall be fully seated in connector and couplings. Drip pans shall be used under 

threading equipment. Roller type tubing cutters shall not be used. 

 

Conduit installation shall be such that conduits are not abraded, scraped, flattened, dented or 

wrinkled and the interior diameter is not effectively reduced. Install conduit in such a way that 

condensation or water cannot be trapped. 

 

Perforated strap iron or plumbers tape shall not be used for hanging conduit or boxes. Use 

standard pipe hangers with rings and rods for all conduits suspended from ceilings.  Standard 

16.5 gauge Ty Wire is acceptable with prior approval but only when tied per ironworkers tie. 

 

Runs of one conduit suspended shall be on rings with rod hangers with self-drilling anchors or 

other approved methods. Runs of more than one conduit suspended, shall be on a strut trapeze 

support with clamps. Trapeze supports shall be 1-5/8" x 1-5/8" strut channel supported by 

minimum 3/8" rods. 

 

Strut clamps shall be of the nut and bolt type, minimum 300 lb. static load limit. 

 

Drive-it straps are not acceptable. Plastic sleeve, lead anchor, rawl plugs or power driven anchors 

are not acceptable. 

 

 

 



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

31 of 36 

 
 

 

When using all thread or bolts they must be backed on both sides with washers, lock-washers 

and nuts. (Floating  unistrut/conduit straps etc. are not acceptable) 

 

Electrical metallic conduits shall not touch any plumbing pipe. Where unavoidable, approved 

insulation shall be used. 

 

Upon completion of all runs, all conduits shall be properly sealed until ready to pull wires. 

  

Install pull cord in all empty conduits and install plates on all communication boxes. All boxes 

shall have covers or plates. 

 

Provide moisture tight hubs for entrance from above or sides of exterior boxes, gutter, 

panelboards, switchboards, etc. 

 

Short pulling elbows and 90 degree connectors shall not be used on conduit sized greater than 1”. 

 

Bushings shall be insulated throat metallic bushings, appropriately rated.  

 

All conduit shall be terminated with a box, cabinet, panel, gutter, or a piece of electrical 

equipment. In fixtures, surface metal raceways and boxes where conductors pass through either 

factory or field punched, cut or drilled slots or holes in metal members, the conductors shall be 

protected by bushing material or grommets securely fastened in the opening prior to installation 

of the unit.   Units shall have mechanical and electrical continuity. When conduits for 

communications, telephone or data are to be terminated by being clamped to cable tray, a 

threaded bushing and connector may be used in lieu of other terminal fittings at the cable tray. A 

Gedney CTC clamp or approved equal shall be used to clamp conduit to cable tray. 

 

Conduit containing cables rated over 600 volts shall be identified at least every 20 feet with high 

visibility labeling. Transformers, switches, equipment, pull boxes, cabinets, junction boxes and 

gutters having voltages of more than 600 volts shall be identified as to the voltage of the cables 

within. Letters and numbers shall be a minimum of 2" and are to be highly visible contrasting 

colors.  "DANGER - HIGH VOLTAGE - KEEP OUT" signs shall be permanently attached to 

the primary section door on transformers and on doors of sectionalizing switches of 600 volts or 

more. Signs are to be bilingual Spanish/English sized according to OSHA codes. 

 

The Firewall integrity shall not be compromised. 

 

Wire and Cable 
 

Wire shall be 600v insulated NEC standard of the type specified below for different applications, 

shall bear the Underwriter's label, and shall be brought to the job in unbroken packages, showing 

the date of manufacture and the maximum allowable voltages. Manufacture date to be within the 

past year.  Approved wire is Calec, Hi-Tec, Capitol, Rome, Essex, or General. All wire shall be 

copper soft-drawn, annealed, having conductivity of not less than 98% pure copper. 

 

 

 



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

32 of 36 

 
 

 

Wire shall be type THHN (THWN in damp locations). 

 

Minimum wire size shall be #12 except for controls wiring.  Wire of size #10 and larger shall be 

stranded, all motor related wiring and controls shall be stranded. 

 

Wire shall be color coded throughout its entire length, except feeders shall be identified with 

multiple rings or spirals of color coding tape at terminal points and any other accessible points. 

Grounded and grounding conductors shall be identified continuously at all visible points. 

  

Circuits and feeder wires shall be continuous from switch to terminal or most distant outlet.  

  

Continuity of all conductors shall not be dependent upon device connections, where the removal 

of such devices would interrupt the continuity of other conductors in the circuit.  

 

Only approved wire lubricant may be used. Any conduit run that does not allow conductors to be 

pulled readily, will be condemned and the run must be replaced by other conduit satisfactory to 

the Owner. 

  

Joints in wiring #8 B & S gauge, and larger, shall be made with compression only connectors. 

 

Branch circuits shall be tagged in the load centers, with circuit numbers to correspond to the 

plans. 

 

Joints shall be covered with a layer of rubber tape, then thermoplastic tape. Plastic electrical 

insulating tape shall be flame retardant and weather resistant, of premium grade vinyl plastic, 

resistant to hot and cold weather, 7 mil tape that applies well at 0 degree F, has an operating 

range up to 220 degrees F, and shall meet the requirements of ASTM D-3005-72, Type 1,  UL 

510 and HHI-595C. CAS Bulletin No. 561A (105 degrees C.).   

 

When using twist on wire connectors, wires shall be twisted together, with pliers, before 

applying connector. 

  

Carefully cable all wires, in panelboards, gutters, and wireways, in a neat arrangement, with 

termination located directly opposite terminals. Leave wire loops not less than 6" long, in each 

outlet box, even if wires do not stop in the box. 

 

Color code wire throughout including feeders, branch circuits and equipment ground conductors, 

as specified and as indicated: 

  



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

33 of 36 

 
 

 

                

 PHASE  120/208 VOLTS  277/480 VOLTS 

A BLACK BROWN 

B RED ORANGE 

C BLUE YELLOW 

NEUTRAL WHITE GRAY 

GROUND GREEN GREEN 

Isolated Grnd GREEN/Orange 

Stripe 

GREEN/Orange Str. 

 

 

 

Wiring for switches shall be the same color as phase wire. Colored insulation shall be used up 

through No. 6 conductors. Conductors No. 4 and larger may be phase coded with multiple bands 

of 1/2" wide color coding tape at all accessible locations. Grounded wires (neutral) and ground 

wires shall have a continuous color coding at all accessible locations. Maintain the same 

conductor color coding from incoming line to last device. 

 

 

Boxes: 

  

Boxes shall be 4" square as a minimum. For convenience outlets, switch, data, telephone, fire 

alarm system or intercom outlets use a 4" square or larger box with plaster ring. 

 

Outlet boxes, junction boxes and switch boxes shall be galvanized code-gauge steel. Conduit 

body  type case FD/FS boxes with cast lugs shall be used where exposed to the weather and 

where subject  to moisture or mechanical damage. FD/FS covers shall be used with these boxes. 

Do not compromise integrity of FD/FS boxes by drilling holes in box for fastening. 

 

For outlets in unplastered masonry walls use masonry boxes of the proper depth. The face of all 

boxes shall be vertical and not more than 1/4" in from the finished surface. The mason and 

electrical contractor shall be mutually responsible for the proper execution of masonry work. 

Handy boxes or handy box extension rings shall not be used. 

 

Use of more than one extension ring is not acceptable. 

 

Ceiling outlet boxes shall be equipped with 3" plaster rings. Fixture studs shall be provided, if 

fixture is to be mounted directly on box. 

 

Boxes shall not be installed back to back, even if associated with different systems. 

 

Receptacles installed in a horizontal manner shall be installed so that the neutral is to the top. 



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

34 of 36 

 
 

 

All boxes shall be grounded to conduit system, and bonded to the equipment ground, which shall 

be bonded to the equipment ground screw, on all devices. 

 

In walls or ceilings of non-combustible material, boxes will not set back more than 1/4". In walls 

of wood or other combustible material, boxes shall be flush with the finished surface. There shall 

be no broken surfaces, gaps or open spaces at the edge of boxes. 

 

All surface mounted fire alarm break stations shall be mounted on back-boxes specifically made 

for the purpose and red in color. 

 

Pull and Junction Boxes 

 

Pull boxes and junction boxes shall be identified as to which circuit and panel the run feeds from, 

i.e., Panel E - Cir. 16-18-20. 

 

Boxes shall be galvanized or metal with baked enamel. Boxes shall be constructed with suitable 

barriers separating the different systems. Boxes shall be provided with removable covers, 

secured with machine screws. Gangable boxes shall be used for remodel fish jobs only. 

 

Conduit shall enter boxes through tight fitting bored or punched clearance holes and be secured 

to boxes. Provide inserts, or expansion anchors, rods and angle iron members to support pull 

boxes independently of the conduit runs. Conduit shall enter boxes at right angle with no 

binding. Offsets shall be used as necessary for proper fit. Offset connectors are not acceptable. 

 

Install junction boxes or pull boxes in order to facilitate the pulling in of wires or cables. Runs 

shall not exceed 90 feet between boxes. 

 

Branch circuits shall be left tagged in the panel boards and pull boxes for the purpose of 

distinguishing the various circuits. Tags to be plainly marked with indelible ink, and attached to 

the wires. 

 

Conduit bodies larger than 1-1/4" shall not be used. SLB fittings are not approved. 

 

Conduit connections shall not be made to box covers. 

 

Pull and junction boxes shall be grounded to conduit system, and bonded to the equipment 

ground, which shall be bonded to the equipment ground screw, on all devices. 

 

Support of Boxes 

 

Boxes shall be accurately placed, rigidly and securely supported from the structure. Boxes for 

concealed work shall be set flush with the finished surfaces of the walls or ceilings. Boxes may 

be supported by rods from the ceilings, only when fitted with approved support devices. 

 

Approved bar hangers, fitted with fixture studs, shall be used to support boxes in ceilings. 

 

 



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

35 of 36 

 
 

Data and telephone outlet boxes shall be located at heights to match adjoining receptacles unless 

noted differently for wall mount phone. In remodeled locations box heights shall match existing. 

 

Receptacles 

 

Typical Receptacles: Leviton 20A-125V TR Decora,  T5825-W 

Provide GFCI and Dedicated Outlets as shown on the drawings and as required by NEC. 

 

Receptacles shall be 18" to bottom in stud walls (per the requirements of the Americans With 

Disabilities Act of 1990), or 48" or 40" where table, work benches and counters occur, or as 

noted 

 

Cover plates: Matching Leviton plates.  White nylon. All plates shall be commercial spec grade.  

Plates shall be specified for all openings, with devices or blank. All plates shall match devices. 

 

Switches 

 

Typical Switch: Leviton SP WHT 20A, 5621-2W    Color: White 

3-Way Switch: Leviton 3WAY WHT 20A, 5623-2W   Color: White 

 

All switches to have body securely locked to bridge by staked screw assembly. Back wire 

through a hole with clamp type wiring assembly suitable for stranded wire. 

 

Toilet rooms shall be equipped with motion sensing switches for both lights and fans. 

  

Switch plate covers: Matching Leviton plates. White nylon in low impact areas or stainless steel, 

where required by the Owner.   Matching plates in exposed wiring, j-box, to be steel, rounded to 

box edge. Oversized plates are not acceptable.  

  

Wall switches shall be on the latching side of doors. All switches shall be 48" high to the bottom 

of the switch, except where located in cabinets, see details. 

 

LIGHTING- 

  

Ceiling Lighting Fixtures: 

Manufacturer: Elite 

Offices: 24-OT-3-32-T8-A12-L35K-C3 

Manufacturer:  Hubbell 

Bathrooms: JT822-232U6G-FSA12-EU-FO735-C388 

 

Exterior Light:  
Hubbell 

Type: 1NC-9LU-5K-3-1 (20 watt LED 120/277 bronze exterior fixture with acrylic diffuser) 

 

Emergency Light: Combo exit and Emergency light: 

Manufacturer: Compass 

Type: CCR 

Exit Sign Only: CER 



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

36 of 36 

 
 

 

Fixtures mounted in plaster or drywall ceiling shall be rigidly supported in approved manner 

with channel supported across plaster framing. Provide proper plaster frames for all fixtures 

requiring them. Wiring for fluorescent fixtures is to be accessible after fixture installation, 

without requiring removal of the fixture from the ceiling. Mount all fixtures with a minimum of 

three 1/4" bolts for 1' x 8' fixtures, two 1/4" bolts for 1' x 4' fixtures, and four 1/4" bolts for 2' x 4' 

fixtures. Only approved anchors shall be used (Toggle bolt may not be used in damp location). 

 

Recessed fixtures shall be supported to the supporting building structure above (not the roof 

deck).  All fixtures shall be supported on at least two points (opposite corners each individual 

fixture). Support shall be with #12 gauge wire with a minimum of 3 twists of wire at each point 

of attachment. Two or more wires shall not be supported by a single anchor. Two or more 

fixtures shall not be supported by a single wire. Points of attachment and anchoring shall be 

approved by the Engineer. Install strut channel as necessary to provide support between building 

structure.  

 

Contractor shall note that if certain areas in the building contain fire rated ceilings which require 

fire rated enclosures, the fixtures supplied for use in these areas shall be approved and suitable 

for the purpose. 

 

 

PHONE / DATA:  

 

Contractor shall coordinate with Gila County Facility Services’ subcontractor and/or in-house 

personnel whom will be installing these systems. Contractor shall provide wall, floor or ceiling 

box at location identified on the plan, conduit and pull wiring in place for phone and data wiring 

use. 

 

SECURITY SYSTEMS:  

 

Contractor shall coordinate with Gila County Facility Services’ subcontractor and/or in-house 

personnel whom will be installing these systems.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



        INVITATION FOR BID NO. 032315-1 

COPPER ADMIN BUILDING 

INTERIOR RENOVATION 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

DRAWINGS 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



2012 IBC 
COMMERCIAL CODE REVIEW 

Globe Copper Admin Bldg. 
 
 
Occupancy Type: B Occupancy 
 
Sprinklers Required:  N 
Sprinklers Provided:  Y  
 
Notes:  

 303.1.1 Small buildings and tenant spaces used for assembly purposes with an occupant load of less than 50 people shall be classed 
as a B occupancy. 

 

 
Height and Area Requirements:  
 
Occupancy Type:  B 
Construction Type: VB 
Proposed Area: 120’ x 166.5’ = 19,980 sq.ft. 
 
Allowable Area: 9,000 sq.ft. 
506.3 Area Increase (300%): Fire Sprinkler system, one story 
Revised Allowable Area: 27,000 sq.ft. > 19,980 sq.ft. OK 
 
Proposed Height:  1 Story 
Allowable Height:  2 Story 
 

 

Exterior Wall & Opening Requirements (Chapter 6)  
 
Occupancy Type:  B 
Distance to Property Line or other structures: >10’ No opening protection required. 
 
 

Fire Protection Systems (Chapter 9)  
 
903 Fire Sprinkler System:  B Occupancy: Not Required 
   Area Increase: Required. To be provided. 
906 Portable Fire Extinguisher: See Plan locations 
907 Fire Alarm / Detection System: Required:  B Occupancy < 500P: Not Required. To be provided. 
 
 

Means of Egress (Chapter 10) 

  
Room Name / Use:  Administrative Offices  Adult Probation Offices 
Area:   9,990 sq.ft.  9,990 sq.ft. 
Sq.ft / Person:  100/Person (Gross)  100/Person (Gross) 
 
Max People:  100   100 
# Exits Required:    2     2 
Travel Distance Allowable: 300’ 
Travel Distance Provided: See Emergency Egress Plan 
Common Egress Path: See Emergency Egress Plan 
Width of Egress: 3’ Minimum Required, 40” Minimum Provided. 
Means of Egress Illumination: Provided, See Emergency Plan 
Exit Signs: Provided, See Emergency Egress Plan 
1024 Luminous Egress Path Markings 
 

Accessibility (See Site Plan) 
Parking Space(s) 
Accessible Route 
Stairs / Ramps 
Lighting 
Doors and maneuvering clearances 
Restrooms: Provided, See Plan 
 
 



Restroom Requirements (Chapter 29) 
 
Separate Facilities Exception: No 
 
Occupancy Type: B 
# People: 200 People 
Male: 100  Female: 100  
 
Mop sink: 1 required, 2 provided 
 
  WC F WC M UR M  LAV F LAV M 
 
Requirement 1/25 for 1

st
 50 May replace 1/40 for 1

st
 80 

  1/50 for rest 50% Max WC 1/80 rest 
# Required 5 5   3 3 
Provided  5 4+2 (Replaces 1) 4 4+2 
 
 

CJP 4/16/15 































C
O

P
P

E
R

 A
D

M
I
N

 B
U

I
L

D
I
N

G

G
I
L

A
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 P

U
B

L
I
C

 W
O

R
K

S

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

 G
L

O
B

E
,
 A

R
I
Z

O
N

A

15013

S
Y

M
B

O
L

S
,
 A

B
R

E
V

I
A

T
I
O

N
S

A
N

D
 D

R
A

W
I
N

G
 I

N
D

E
X

M0.1



C
O

P
P

E
R

 A
D

M
I
N

 B
U

I
L

D
I
N

G

G
I
L

A
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 P

U
B

L
I
C

 W
O

R
K

S

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

 G
L

O
B

E
,
 A

R
I
Z

O
N

A

15013

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 N

O
T

E
S

 A
N

D

D
E

T
A

I
L

S

M0.2



C
O

P
P

E
R

 A
D

M
I
N

 B
U

I
L

D
I
N

G

G
I
L

A
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 P

U
B

L
I
C

 W
O

R
K

S

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

 G
L

O
B

E
,
 A

R
I
Z

O
N

A

15013

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

S
,
 D

E
T

A
I
L

S
 A

N
D

V
E

N
T

I
L

A
T

I
O

N
 C

A
L

C
U

L
A

T
I
O

N
S

M0.3

LOUVER SCHEDULE EXHAUST FAN SCHEDULE

VENTILATI0N CALCULATIONS



C
O

P
P

E
R

 A
D

M
I
N

 B
U

I
L

D
I
N

G

G
I
L

A
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 P

U
B

L
I
C

 W
O

R
K

S

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

 G
L

O
B

E
,
 A

R
I
Z

O
N

A

15013

NORTH

M
E

C
H

A
N

I
C

A
L

 D
E

M
O

L
I
T

I
O

N

P
L

A
N

M1.1



C
O

P
P

E
R

 A
D

M
I
N

 B
U

I
L

D
I
N

G

G
I
L

A
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 P

U
B

L
I
C

 W
O

R
K

S

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

 G
L

O
B

E
,
 A

R
I
Z

O
N

A

15013

NORTH

M
E

C
H

A
N

I
C

A
L

 P
L

A
N

M2.1























      BID  

TITLE:

      BID  

      NO: Due Date:
 

NOTE:  These are "As-Read Bid Results" only.  Award is pending Gila County Board of Supervisors approval at the 09-01-15

               Board of Supervisors meeting.

1,122,000.00$                       

Bayley Construction 1,389,000.00$                       

SD Crane Builders

JMW Construction, Inc. 1,085,390.00$                       

Sellers & Sons, Inc. 1,187,000.00$                       

Oddonetto Construction, Inc. 1,179,607.00$                       

FCI Constructors, Inc.

AS-READ BID RESULTS

GILA COUNTY

Valwest Construction  $                       1,065,416.43 

Copper Admin Building-Interior Renovation

032315-1 8-13-15/4:00 P.M.

 $                       1,038,000.00 

BIDDER FIRM NAME BID AMOUNT



PLAN HOLDER LIST

 

  

Title

      

07-08-15 emailed Mechanical drawings 07-29-15 emailed Addendum #2 08-07-15 emailed Addendum #4
07-20-15 emailed Addendum #1 08-05-15 emailed Addendum #3

7/1/2015

7/1/2015

7/1/2015

7/1/2015

7/1/2015

7/1/2015

7/1/2015

7/1/2015

7/1/2015

GILA COUNTY

Oddonetto Construction

FIRM NAME

La Casa Bella Builders

PLAN HOLDER LIST

boddonetto@oddonetto.net

lacasabellabuilders@yahoo.com

khunter44@cableone.netHunter & Hunter Construction

Due Date: 8/13/2015

Rodriguez Constructions

SDB, Inc.

Blue Book

Doyle.Kahabka@sdb.com

www.bluebook.com

5D Mining & Construction (Ben) 5dben@live.com

Art@rodriguez-az.com

DATE

Bid No: 032315-1

MAILING ADDRESS TELEPHONE

928-425-2450

928-425-6515

Tim HumphreyDream Pole Construction timhumphrey.59@gmail.com

Visus Engineering rsmith@visusinc.com

CONTACT NAME

Shane

Karen Hunter

Brian Oddonetto

Robert Smith

928-425-3608

928-425-7244

480-833-8268

Copper Admin Bldg-Interior 

Renovation

928-425-2998

928-701-1455

Posted on Blue Book 

website by County 

Contracts Administrator

Ben Dalmolin

480-967-5810

Art Rodriguez

Doyle Kahabka

IFB

IFB

IFB

IFB

IFB

ADDENDUMPLANS

IFB

IFB

IFB

IFB

mailto:boddonetto@oddonetto.net
mailto:lacasabellabuilders@yahoo.com
mailto:khunter44@cableone.net
mailto:Doyle.Kahabka@sdb.com
http://www.bluebook.com/
mailto:5dben@live.com
mailto:Art@rodriguez-az.com
mailto:timhumphrey.59@gmail.com
mailto:rsmith@visusinc.com


PLAN HOLDER LIST

 

  

Title

      

 

IFB

Noble Building LLC noblebuildingllc@yahoo.com 928-478-0059 Byron 7/1/2015 IFB

IFB

Mountain Retreat Builders johnnyrayo58@gmail.com 928-606-4674 John Oddonetto 7/1/2015 IFB

JNL Contracting, Inc. jnlci@yahoo.com 928-468-9003 Roxann 7/1/2015

Breanna.treto@construction.com 626-737-7447 Breanna Treto 7/1/2015

Kroll Contractors, Inc. Bernard@krollcontractorsinc.com 480-226-2458 Bernard Kroll 7/1/2015

Vertical Build kelly@vertical-build.com 480-231-4066 Kelly 7/1/2015 IFB

Rucci Contracting Services chris@ruccicontracting.com 480-447-2411 Chris 7/1/2015 IFB

IFB

Division Nine Contracting Mattw@divisionnineinc.com 602-437-8900 Matt 7/1/2015 IFB

Dodge Data & Analytics

Woodruff Construction Wade.Woodruff@woodruffaz.com

GILA COUNTY

Due Date: 8/13/2015

PLAN HOLDER LIST Bid No: 032315-1

 

FIRM NAME MAILING ADDRESS

480-921-1925 Wade Woodruff

Copper Admin Bldg-Interior 

Renovation

TELEPHONE CONTACT NAME

7/1/2015

PLANS ADDENDUM

IFB

DATE

mailto:noblebuildingllc@yahoo.com
mailto:johnnyrayo58@gmail.com
mailto:jnlci@yahoo.com
mailto:Breanna.treto@construction.com
mailto:Bernard@krollcontractorsinc.com
mailto:kelly@vertical-build.com
mailto:chris@ruccicontracting.com
mailto:Mattw@divisionnineinc.com
mailto:Wade.Woodruff@woodruffaz.com


PLAN HOLDER LIST

 

  

Title

      

 

KWIK Kool kwcrick@hotmail.com 928-425-6445 Ken 7/1/2015 IFB

Azteca Glass jameslangley13@yahoo.com 602-626-1774 James 7/1/2015 IFB

MDC Electrical mdcelectrical@cableone.net 928-812-2708 Walter 7/1/2015 IFB

Kino Floors kinofloors@qwestoffice.net 928-425-9443 Kino Floors 7/1/2015 IFB

AM Jackson Electric amichaeljackson@gmail.com 928-978-1338 Michael 7/1/2015 IFB

Pueblo Mechanical john@pueblo-mechanical.com 520-545-1044 John Neuser 7/1/2015 IFB

Pueblo Mechanical rhonda.morris@pueblo-mechanical.com 520-310-7394 Rhonda Morris 7/1/2015 IFB

DATE PLANS ADDENDUM

IFB

Burden Electric burdenelectric@aol.com 928-402-0379 Rodney Burden 7/1/2015 IFB

Marcanti Electric marcantielectric@qwestoffice.net 928-425-0269 Mark Marcanti 7/1/2015

 

FIRM NAME MAILING ADDRESS TELEPHONE CONTACT NAME

GILA COUNTY

Due Date: 8/13/2015

Copper Admin Bldg-Interior 

Renovation

PLAN HOLDER LIST Bid No: 032315-1

mailto:kwcrick@hotmail.com
mailto:jameslangley13@yahoo.com
mailto:mdcelectrical@cableone.net
mailto:kinofloors@qwestoffice.net
mailto:amichaeljackson@gmail.com
mailto:john@pueblo-mechanical.com
mailto:rhonda.morris@pueblo-mechanical.com
mailto:burdenelectric@aol.com
mailto:marcantielectric@qwestoffice.net


PLAN HOLDER LIST

 

  

Title

      

 

Earthquest Plumbing earthquest07@q.com 928-425-2111 Tim 7/1/2015 IFB

Low Mountain Construction apecha@lowmountain.com 602-265-2201 Andrea Pecha 7/6/2015

Sun Eagle Corporation ctaylor@suneaglecorporation.com 480-961-0004 Cheryl Taylor

07-06-15  

downloaded 

from County 

website

Patterson Enterprises, Inc. cindynoline@hotmail.com 480-489-6644 Cindy Noline

07-06-15  

downloaded 

from County 

website

OMR Builders LLC rluker@omrbuilders.com 480-671-9876 Rodney 7/1/2015 Blue Book

Waltz Construction jeff@waltzconstruction.com 480-759-9622 Jeff Baer 7/1/2015 IFB

Rural Arizona Maintenance 

Specialists ramaz@cableone.net 928-701-1242 Matthew 7/1/2015 IFB

DATE PLANS ADDENDUM

DutchAire tnjdutcher@yahoo.com 928-425-0236 Troy Dutcher 7/1/2015 IFB

GILA COUNTY

Due Date: 8/13/2015 Copper Admin Bldg-Interior 

PLAN HOLDER LIST Bid No: 032315-1

 

FIRM NAME MAILING ADDRESS TELEPHONE CONTACT NAME

mailto:apecha@lowmountain.com
mailto:ctaylor@suneaglecorporation.com
mailto:cindynoline@hotmail.com
mailto:rluker@omrbuilders.com
mailto:jeff@waltzconstruction.com
mailto:ramaz@cableone.net
mailto:tnjdutcher@yahoo.com


PLAN HOLDER LIST

 

  

Title

      

 

Vinrose Corporation vinrosecorp@yahoo.com 928-474-5537 Vincent Palandri 7/15/2015 IFB

Amond Builders, Inc. jason.amon@hotmail.com 928-951-4266 Jason Amon 7/15/2015 IFB

Construction Maraket Data 

Group LLC lou.panaligan@cmdgroup.com 323-602-5079 Lou Panaligan 7/10/2015 IFB

Koo Design-Build hoonkoo@koodb.com 480-560-2233 Hoon Koo 7/10/2015 IFB

SD Crane Builders, Inc. kmurphy@sdcranebuilders.com 480-832-1777 Kim Murphy 7/10/2015 IFB

ADDENDUM

Spray Systems Environmental Sseery@spray-eri.com 602-757-9067 Shawn Seery 7/6/2015 IFB

Jonovich Companies jjjonovich@jonovichcompanies.com 928-425-8300 Joshua Jonovich 7/9/2015 IFB

7-14-15 Per 

Wayne Jonovich, 

unable to quote 

at this time.

PLAN HOLDER LIST Bid No: 032315-1

 

FIRM NAME MAILING ADDRESS TELEPHONE CONTACT NAME DATE PLANS

GILA COUNTY

Due Date: 8/13/2015 Copper Admin Bldg-Interior 

mailto:vinrosecorp@yahoo.com
mailto:jason.amon@hotmail.com
mailto:lou.panaligan@cmdgroup.com
mailto:hoonkoo@koodb.com
mailto:kmurphy@sdcranebuilders.com
mailto:Sseery@spray-eri.com
mailto:jjjonovich@jonovichcompanies.com






















































































































































































































































































































































   
ARF-3313     Consent Agenda Item      5. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Director 
Submitted By: Leitha Griffin, Administrative Assistant, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division Division: Administration
Fiscal Year: 2015-2020 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2015-June 30, 2020 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 1 to and Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADES15-089113) with the Arizona Department
of Economic Security.

Background Information
The Gila County Board of Supervisors approved Contract No. ADES15-089113 on June 23, 2015. 

Evaluation
Amendment 1 to Contract ADES15-089113 will increase the reimbursement ceiling from $290,481 to $301,731. This
is an increase of $11,250.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving Amendment 1 to Contract No. ADES15-089113, the Gila County Community
Action Program will have additional funding to provide case management services to eligible residents of Gila County
of which the intent is to assist the household in resolving crisis situations in order to move closer to self-sufficiency. 

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. ADES15-089113. 

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADES15-089113) between the
Arizona Department of Economic Security and Gila County Division of Community Services, Community Action
Program, to provide case management and community services to eligible Gila County residents in the amount of
$11,250 which will increase the reimbursement ceiling to $301,731 for the period of July 1, 2015, through June 30,
2020.

Attachments

IGA Explanation
Amendment 1 to ADES15-089113
Contract ADES15-089113
Contract ADES15-089113 cont.



 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 

















































































































































































































































































































   

ARF-3312     Consent Agenda Item      5. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division
Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

9-16-15 to
9-15-16

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approval to extend the term of service with Blackstone Security Services, Inc.

Background Information
At the September 2, 2014, regular Board of Supervisors' meeting, the Board approved
Gila County's utilization of a State of Arizona, State Procurement Office contract with
Blackstone Security Services, Inc. to provide armed security guards at the entrance to
the Globe Courthouse to man the security equipment.

Staff sought input from the Sheriff's Office, County Attorney's Office and the Courts on
utilizing armed security or unarmed security. The consensus was to continue to use
armed security. 

Evaluation
The original term of service between Gila County and Blackstone Security Services,
Inc. was from 9-16-14 to 9-15-15. The County contracted with Blackstone Security
Services, Inc. to provide two armed guards at an annual cost of $82,750.

The existing term of service between Gila County and Blackstone Security Services,
Inc. will expire on 9-15-15.  Staff desires to extend the term of service for an additional
year. 
 
The service will provide two guards posted at the main entrance of the Globe
Courthouse, from 7:30 A.M. to 5:30 P.M., Monday through Friday to man the security
equipment at the entrance the public will be utilizing, as well as to locker any weapons
brought into the Courthouse by a member of the public.  The annual cost to the
County of $82,750 reflects the hourly rates for which the State has contracted with
Blackstone Security Services, Inc. less the ten holidays the County facilities will not be
open for business.

Conclusion
Staff wishes to extend the term of service with Blackstone Security Services, Inc. to



Staff wishes to extend the term of service with Blackstone Security Services, Inc. to
provide armed security to man the security equipment in the Gila County Courthouse
in Globe, AZ.  Gila County is a member of ProcureAZ, the State of Arizona’s
procurement agency for cooperative purchasing.  By using the State of Arizona
Contract No. ADSPO13-054359 with Blackstone Security Services, Inc., it will save the
County both time and money for a rate that has already been established through the
State of Arizona bidding process.

Recommendation
The Finance Division Director and the Public Works Division Director recommend that
the Board of Supervisors approve the request to extend the term of service for one
additional year between Gila County and Blackstone Security Services, Inc. by
utilizing the State of Arizona, State Procurement Office Contract No. ADSPO13-054359
with Blackstone Security Services, Inc. to provide armed security manpower for the
safety of the public and employees in the Gila County Globe Courthouse.

Suggested Motion
Approval to extend the term of a contract with Blackstone Security Services, Inc.,
whereby the contractor will provide armed security manpower for the safety of the
public and employees at the Gila County Globe Courthouse in the amount of $82,750
for one additional year, from September 16, 2015, to September 15, 2016.

Attachments
Approval as to Form
Amendment No. 1-Blackstone Security
Contract Agreement Form with Blackstone Security Services



 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 







   

ARF-3326     Consent Agenda Item      5. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division
Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: 2015/2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

January 7, 2015
to January 6,
2016

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 4 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813-Medical Examiner
Services for Gila County.

Background Information
On January 7, 2014, Gila County entered into Professional Services Agreement No.
062813 with Dr. Mark Fischione for Medical Examiner Services for Gila County.  The
contract was issued for a period of one year in a not to exceed amount of $30,000
without prior written approval from Gila County.  Additionally, the contract allows for
the option to renew the contract term for three additional one-year periods.  
 
On June 24, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 1 to increase
the total contract by an additional $40,000 for a new total contract amount of $70,000.

On October 21, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 2 to increase
the total contract by an additional $30,000 for a new total contract amount of
$100,000.

On December 16, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 3 to
extend the term of the contract from January 7, 2015 to January 6, 2016. 
Amendment No. 3 also served to increase the original dollar amount of the contract
from $30,000 to $70,000.

Evaluation
As of Dr. Fischione's July 2015 billing, the sum of $64,155 has been expensed against
the 1-7-15 to 1-6-16 contract.  Additional funds will be required to cover the remaining
five months on this contract.  Amendment No. 4 will increase the current contract
amount of $70,000 by an additional $40,000, for a new, not to exceed without prior
written authorization, total contract amount of $110,000, for the contract term from
January 7, 2015, to January 6, 2016.



Conclusion
As there is no way to predict the costs that will be incurred during the course of the
contract term, Amendment No. 4 has been issued to increase the contract amount
from $70,000 to $110,000 for the remainder of the contract term, which expires on
January 6, 2016.

Recommendation
Staff recommends the approval of Amendment No. 4 to increase the current contract
amount of $70,000 by an additional $40,000 for a new total contract amount of
$110,000, for the contract term from January 7, 2015, to January 6, 2016.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 4 to Professional Services Contract No. 062813-Medical
Examiner Services between Gila County and Mark A. Fischione, M.D., PLC to increase
the current contract amount from $70,000 to $110,000 for the contract term from
January 7, 2015, to January 6, 2016.

Attachments
Amendment No. 4 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062831
Amendment No. 3 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062831
Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062831
Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062831
Professional Services Agreement No. 062831-Medical Examiner Services with Dr.
Fischione
Approval as to Form



























 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   
ARF-3321     Consent Agenda Item      5. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  
Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Sidewinders Tavern & Grill Application for a Temporary Extension of
Premises/Patio Permit.

Background Information
Any establishment that has been issued a liquor license must submit an
Application for Extension of Premises/Patio Permit to the local governing
body of the city, town or county where the establishment is located.  The
application can be submitted to temporarily or permanently extend the
premises/patio where serving liquor is permitted by the Arizona
Department of Liquor Licenses and Control (DLLC).  The local governing
body usually has established internal procedures for review and approval
of the application.  The DLLC has final approval of all recommendations
submitted by the local governing body. 

Randy D. Nations has submitted an application to temporarily extend the
premises/patio of the Sidewinders Tavern & Grill for an event to be held
on September 19, 2015.  The Sidewinders Tavern & Grill is located in
Pine, Arizona.

Evaluation
The application has been reviewed by the Clerk of the Board Department. 
Scott Buzan, Chief Building Official of the Community Development
Division, has also reviewed the application and he is familiar with the
premises.  Both departments have no objections with regard to
this application. 

Conclusion
The application is ready to be presented to the Board of Supervisors for a



The application is ready to be presented to the Board of Supervisors for a
decision.  The Board's recommendation will then be sent to the DLLC for
a final decision.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors issue an approval
recommendation to the DLLC.

Suggested Motion
Approval of an Application for Extension of Premises/Patio
Permit submitted by Randy D. Nations to temporarily extend the premises
where liquor is permitted to be sold at the Sidewinders Tavern & Grill,
which is located in Pine, Arizona at an event to be held on September 19,
2015.

Attachments
Sidewinders Application Temp. Ext. Patio
Interoffice Memo (Approved)













   
ARF-3335     Consent Agenda Item      5. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  
Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Fair, Inc. Special Event Liquor License Application for
September 17-20, 2015.

Background Information
A qualified organization may submit an application to serve liquor at a
special event for up to 10 days per year.  The Arizona Department of
Liquor Licenses and Control (DLLC) approves all liquor-related
applications; however, part of the DLLC's process requires that the local
governing body review the application and submit a recommendation for
approval or disapproval to DLLC for any establishment located within the
jurisdiction of that local governing body.

Evaluation
The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors Department has reviewed the
application and has determined that it has been filled out correctly.

Conclusion
This Charitable organization has completed the application properly and if
the Board of Supervisors approves the application, the Gila County Fair,
Inc. will have used 4 of the allowable 10 days to serve liquor at a special
event in 2015.

Recommendation
The Clerk of the Board recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve this application.  Upon approval, the applicant has the
responsibility to submit the application to the DLLC for its final approval.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by Gila



Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by Gila
County Fair, Inc. to serve liquor at an event to be held at the Gila County
Fairgrounds in Globe on September 17-20, 2015.

Attachments
GC Fair, Inc. Special Event Liquor License Application













   
ARF-3304     Consent Agenda Item      5. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  
Reporting
Period:

July 2015

Submitted For: Jesse Bolinger, Justice of the Peace-Globe Region 
Submitted By: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr., Justice

Court-Globe Regional

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office monthly report for July 2015.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the July 2015 monthly activity report submitted by
the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
Globe Regional Justice Court Monthly Report









   
ARF-3329     Consent Agenda Item      5. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  
Reporting
Period:

July 2015

Submitted By: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region, Justice
Court-Payson Regional

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office monthly report for July 2015.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the July 2015 activity report submitted by the Payson
Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
July 2015













   
ARF-3322     Consent Agenda Item      5. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  
Reporting
Period:

July 2015

Submitted For: Colt White, Payson Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Michelle Keegan, Constable Clerk, Constable - Payson

Regional

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's Office monthly report for July 2015.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the July 2015 monthly activity report submitted by
the Payson Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for July 2015



























































   
ARF-3306     Consent Agenda Item      5. I.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  
Reporting
Period:

July 2015 and September 2014

Submitted For: Ruben Mancha, Globe Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Kimberly Rust, Constable Clerk, Constable - Globe

Regional

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Constable Office Monthly Reports for July 2015 and
September 2014.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the July 2015 and September 2014 monthly activity
reports submitted by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
July 2015
September 2014

























































   
ARF-3316     Consent Agenda Item      5. J.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  
Reporting
Period:

July 2015

Submitted For: Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court 
Submitted By: Vicki Aguilar, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Superior Court,

Clerk of the Superior Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for July 2015.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the July 2015 monthly activity report submitted by
the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

Attachments
Clerk of Superior Court Report for July 2015



















   
ARF-3328     Consent Agenda Item      5. K.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  
Reporting
Period:

July 2015

Submitted For: Sadie Bingham, Recorder 
Submitted By: Kaycee Stratton, Chief Deputy Recorder, Recorder's Office

Information
Subject
Recorder's Office Monthly Report for July 2015.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the July 2015 monthly activity report submitted by
the Recorder's Office.

Attachments
Recorder's Office Monthly Report for July 2015























   
ARF-3333     Consent Agenda Item      5. L.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  
Reporting
Period:

August 17, 2015

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors

Information
Subject
August 17, 2015, Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the August 17, 2015, Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Attachments
BOS 08-17-15 Meeting Minutes



Page 1 of 10 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  August 17, 2015 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN  By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                          
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman; 
John D. Marcanti, Member; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County Manager; Michael 
Scannell, Deputy County Manager; Jacque Griffin, Assistant County 
Manager/Librarian; Bryan B. Chambers, Deputy County Attorney/Civil Bureau 
Chief; Jefferson R. Dalton; Deputy County Attorney Principal; Marian E. 
Sheppard, Clerk of the Board; and Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk.   
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Bryan Chambers led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Carl Peterson of the Payson United Methodist Church 
(via ITV) delivered the invocation. 
 
At 10:04 a.m., Chairman Pastor recessed the meeting to recognize Bryan 
Chambers’ appointment by Arizona Governor Douglas Ducey to serve as Gila 
County Division I Superior Court Judge. 
 
At 10:19 a.m., Chairman Pastor reconvened the meeting.   
 
Item 2 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation 2015-09 
proclaiming September 2015 as Childhood Cancer Awareness Month in 
Gila County.   
 
Michael Pastor, District II Supervisor, stated that the Board of Supervisors 
received a letter in July 2015, from Mr. Steven Firestein, M.A., Volunteer 
Director, American Cancer Fund for Children, Inc., asking the Board to 
consider adopting a proclamation recognizing September as Childhood Cancer 
Awareness Month in Gila County.  He added that locally, the Dylan Earven 
Foundation provides services to families affected by childhood cancer in Gila 



Page 2 of 10 
 

County. Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 
Marcanti, the Board unanimously adopted Proclamation 2015-09 proclaiming 
September 2015 as Childhood Cancer Awareness Month in Gila County.   
Chairman Pastor added that September 5, 2015, is the 3rd Annual Dylan 
Earven Foundation Run 5K-1K Walk/Run and Trike/Bike Race at Miami High 
School.  He has attended the event in past years, and stated that historically 
approximately 20-25 bikes were raffled off.  (A copy of the Proclamation is 
permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation No. 2015-10 
proclaiming August 2015 as Child Support Awareness Month in Gila 
County.   
 
Jeff Dalton, Deputy County Attorney Principal, stated that since approximately 
1995, the United States has been honoring Child Support Awareness Month 
during the month of August.  He added that the Board of Supervisors has had 
a contract with the State of Arizona in excess of 20 years, which is 
administered by the Gila County Attorney’s Office, Division of Child Support 
Services, to enforce child support locally.  Upon motion by Supervisor 
Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously adopted 
Proclamation No. 2015-10 proclaiming August 2015 as Child Support 
Awareness Month in Gila County.  (A copy of the Proclamation is 
permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the distribution of 
$1,442,908.95 of Gila County's share of Federal FY2014 Secure Rural 
Schools Act funds, as authorized through section 24 of P.L. 114-
10, for FY2014-15 as follows: $49,000 to Roads and $1,393,908.95 to Gila 
County School Districts.   
 
Dr. Linda O'Dell, (via ITV) advised that Secure Rural Schools (SRS) and 
Communities funding is intended to provide assistance to rural counties 
negatively affected by unrealized revenues from publicly held lands. Funds 
generated by Title I of the SRS Acts have been used for schools and roads - 
to create employment opportunities, to maintain current infrastructure and to 
improve the health of watersheds and ecosystems.  Twenty percent of Gila 
County's total allocation goes to a regional Resource Advisory Committee for 
distribution. The remaining 80% of the Title I funds is allocated to the Board of 
Supervisors for distribution and use by Roads and School Districts.  Before the 
SRS Act was reauthorized in April 2015, the 1908 Act (16 U.S.C. 500) requiring 
25-percent payments governed the distribution of payments to States for FY 
2014 (FY 2015 payment year)  The Forest Service made 25-percent payments to 
States under the 1908 Act in February of 2015. In each of the past five years 
(2010-2014), the Board of Supervisors has authorized the distribution of Title I 
SRS Act funds for Gila County Roads and Schools as follows, upon 
recommendation of the Gila County Superintendent of Schools and County 
Management: $50,000 to Roads, and the remainder to School Districts by a 



Page 3 of 10 
 

formula that provides a base amount for all districts and additional amounts 
based on forest acreage and student enrollment of each district.  
 
Dr. O’Dell reviewed and further explained the attachment to this agenda item 
entitled: “Gila County Forest Fees Distribution FY15” which provides a detailed 
summary of the distributions to each school district in the County.   
 
Supervisor Marcanti commented that the County has to fight for 
reauthorization of the SRS funds and that it’s one of the main topics discussed 
at the County Supervisors Association meetings, and that it’s unfortunate 
funds have been cut again this year.  Vice-Chairman Martin agreed that each 
year it’s a struggle to get permanent PILT (Payment in Lieu of Taxes) and SRS 
funding.   
 
Dr. O’Dell’s added three closing comments:  1) The School Districts are very 
grateful for the funds, which are put to good use; 2) the School Districts are in 
agreement with the distribution schedule; and 3) she thanked the Board of 
Supervisors for its ongoing support and continued efforts in this regard.  Upon 
motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board 
unanimously approved the distribution of $1,442,908.95 of Gila County's 
share of Federal FY2014 Secure Rural Schools Act funds, as authorized 
through section 24 of P.L. 114-10, for FY2014-15 as follows: $49,000 to Roads 
and $1,393,908.95 to Gila County School Districts.   
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously adjourned as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and 
convened as the Gila County Flood Control District Board of Directors. 
 
D.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the publication of a 
notice of the proposed amendment to the Gila County Floodplain 
Management Ordinance, and to set a public hearing date for October 6, 
2015.   
 
Darde deRoulhac, Chief Engineer of the Gila County Flood Control District, 
explained the purpose of the amendment to the Ordinance is to correct 
erroneous internal references to clarify some requirements for different 
residential building types, create better ease of understanding of the document, 
and to promote compliance.  A proposed amendment to the Ordinance was 
presented to the Board on April 7, 2015, and a public hearing was held as 
advertised in the newspaper.  No public comments were received at the public 
hearing.  At that time Mr. deRoulhac requested that the Board not take an 
action on the proposed amendment to the Ordinance because he needed to 
incorporate additional revisions as recommended by the Arizona Department of 
Water Resources (ADWR), which he believed had merit.  The changes as 
recommended by ADWR have been incorporated into the proposed amendment 
attached to this agenda item; however, another public hearing date needs to be 
set by the Board and thereafter advertised in the newspaper.  Vice-Chairman 



Page 4 of 10 
 

Martin read aloud the changes to the Ordinance from the evaluation section of 
the agenda item as follows and asked that it be included in the record of the 
minutes:  “The amendment adds provisions to allow permitting of wet-flood 
proofed large parking buildings without a variance from the Board, if certain 
criteria are followed.  The minimum elevation requirement for manufactured 
homes is also being modified to provide a comparable degree of flood protection 
to that required for site-built homes, while still exceeding minimum standards 
for flood protection.”  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously authorized the publication of a 
notice of the proposed amendment to the Gila County Floodplain Management 
Ordinance, and set a public hearing date for October 6, 2015.   
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously adjourned as the Gila County Flood Control District Board 
of Directors and reconvened as the Gila County Board of Supervisors.   
 
E.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Health and Emergency 
Services Division's electronic submission of a 2015 Multi-Jurisdiction 
Hazard Mitigation Plan Application in the amount of $40,000 (a 75%-25% 
match) which, if approved, will enable the Health and Emergency 
Services Division to contract services for the review and update of the 
2015 Gila County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan.   
 
Michael O'Driscoll, Health & Emergency Services Division Director, stated that 
this application is being submitted to obtain funds to contract services for the 
review and update of the 2015 Multi-jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan.  If 
approved, the County would be required to provide a 25% cash match of which 
County general funds would be used.  The program provides funding for 
eligible mitigation activities which reduce disaster losses and protect life and 
property from future loss or damages.  The program is administered by the 
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) in consort with local agencies 
and is reviewed by the State and FEMA every 5 years.  One of the requirements 
to receive these funds is to participate in a multi-jurisdictional hazard 
mitigation plan; therefore, Mr. O’Driscoll requested approval of the application 
as described above.  Chairman Pastor stated that he has received concerns 
from residents in Tonto Basin, Roosevelt, and Gisela regarding possible 
flooding and requested that Mr. O’Driscoll provide him with germane 
information to share with the residents in those areas, to which Mr. O’Driscoll 
agreed.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 
Marcanti, the Board unanimously approved the Health and Emergency 
Services Division's electronic submission of a 2015 Multi-Jurisdiction Hazard 
Mitigation Plan application in the amount of $40,000 (a 75%-25% match) 
which, if approved, will enable the Health and Emergency Services Division to 
contract services for the review and update of the 2015 Gila County Multi-
Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan. 
 



Page 5 of 10 
 

F.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Gila County Animal 
Control Department to submit a grant application to the Arizona 
Companion Animal Spay and Neuter Committee to receive $10,000 in 
order to provide spay/neuter services in Gila County for a period of one 
year.   
 
Mr. O'Driscoll advised that Gila County does not have a spay/neuter program.  
If this grant application is approved, the funds will used to implement a new 
program in the Globe/Miami area to ensure that all animals leaving the County 
animal shelter will be surgically altered by offering a spay/neuter procedure for 
free to the residents of Gila County.  He also stated that John Castaneda, 
Animal Regulation Enforcement Manager, is one of the top Regulation 
Enforcement Managers in the state and he helps with training others around 
the state.  Chairman Pastor added that he has received positive feedback 
regarding the professional services provided by Mr. Castaneda.   
 
Mr. Castaneda stated that he is pleased to be moving forward in this effort and 
he advised that he is working with other agencies to receive other funding to 
provide additional spay/neuter services in the County.  He is currently working 
with the Payson Human Society which will be offering a mobile spay/neuter 
clinic to southern Gila County.  He clarified for the Board that this particular 
funding will be used in southern Gila County as there are few veterinarians.  
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously authorized the Gila County Animal Control Department to 
submit a grant application to the Arizona Companion Animal Spay and Neuter 
Committee which, if approved, will provide $10,000 to implement a 
spay/neuter services program in Gila County for a period of one year.   
 
G.  Information/Discussion/Action dictions within Gila County and 
convey tax rates to set primary and secondary property tax rates for 2015 
for all taxing juris for all jurisdictions to the County Treasurer, and adopt 
Resolution No. 15-08-02 providing for the collection of taxes for all 
jurisdictions by the County Treasurer for fiscal year 2015-2016.   
 
Don McDaniel, County Manager, read aloud Resolution No. 15-08-02 and 
stated that the Arizona Revised Statutes require that the Board adopt a 
resolution for the collection of taxes by the Gila County Treasurer from the 
persons who are listed in the roll.  The Board is also required to fix, levy and 
assess the amount to be raised from primary property taxation and secondary 
property taxation.  Vice-Chairman Martin commented that she hopes all of the 
numbers are correct.  Chairman Pastor replied that he thinks the numbers 
have been reviewed carefully and are correct.  Supervisor Marcanti inquired if 
the merger of the Canyon Fire District into the Tri-City Fire District should be 
listed as one taxing authority with one tax rate instead of two separate fire 
districts with two different tax rates.  Mr. McDaniel clarified that because of the 
timing to merge the two fire districts, the resolution must be presented in this 



Page 6 of 10 
 

fashion.  He stated that he was confident that in the future it will be designated 
as one taxing district with one tax rate.   
 
Chairman Pastor called upon Nick Renon, Fire Chief of the Tri-City Fire 
District, to further clarify the issue.  Mr. Renon stated that when the process 
began to merge the two fire districts, it was believed that Canyon Fire District 
would be taxed at $3.25 and Tri-City Fire District would be taxed at $2.40; 
however, when the levies were received from the State, the tax rate was $2.40 
across the board; therefore, next year they will both be $2.40. 
 
Chairman Pastor inquired as to the reason the Apache Hills Street Lighting 
District went from a tax rate of less than $1.00 to $4.4480.  Jeff Hessenius, 
Finance Division Director, advised that the budget received from the Apache 
Hills Street Lighting District was absent some expenses; therefore, those 
expenses needed to be captured and will be a one-time aberration.   
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously set primary and secondary property tax rates for 2015 for 
all taxing jurisdictions within Gila County and conveyed tax rates for all 
jurisdictions to the County Treasurer, and adopted Resolution No. 15-08-02 
providing for the collection of taxes for all jurisdictions by the County Treasurer 
for fiscal year 2015-2016.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
H.  Information/Discussion/Action to consider authorizing Bose Public 
Affairs Group to exceed the $50,000 contract amount by $29,645 to allow 
the continuation of lobbying services through November 2015.   
 
Mr. McDaniel advised that on November 18, 2014, the Board approved a new 
contract with Bose Public Affairs Group (Bose) on a retainer basis, with a not to 
exceed amount of $50,000 for the contract term of November 2014 to 
November 2015.  The contract indicates that the not to exceed amount may 
only be exceeded with prior written approval by the County.  Bose estimates 
that the cost of their projected services for the remainder of the contract will be 
$29,645 excluding expenses.  This request is for the Board to authorize Bose to 
exceed the $50,000 amount of the contract.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin advised that when the contract is up for renewal, the 
Board needs to discuss ways to receive a better “bang for the buck.”  
Supervisor Marcanti commented that these services are needed; however, the 
County needs to work out a better way to structure the billing process.  
Chairman Pastor added that there have been some changes made to this 
contract from prior year’s contracts with Bose.  The not to exceed amount of 
$50,000 for this contract was established with the belief that amount would be 
sufficient for Bose to effectively lobby for the County for one more year.  He 
commented that the County has received sufficient services and he feels the 
services have improved since the contract amount was reduced from the 



Page 7 of 10 
 

previous contract.  He then asked if there are sufficient funds in the budget to 
cover this expense.  Mr. McDaniel replied that the funds are available in the 
Natural Resources Fund and may be used for this purpose.  Chairman Pastor 
stated that there are some important issues in the works at the legislature, and 
it would be helpful to have assistance from Bose.  He recommended that staff 
review the contract before its renewal date in order to determine the best way 
to manage the contract.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously authorized Bose Public Affairs 
Group to exceed the $50,000 contract amount by $29,645 to allow the 
continuation of lobbying services through November 2015.   
 
Item 3 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  
 
A.  Approval to accept Arizona Criminal Justice Commission FY 2016 
Crime Victim Assistance Program Grant No. VA-16-020 in the amount of 
$17,600 for the period of July 1, 2015, to June 30, 2016.  
 
B.  Approval to accept Arizona Criminal Justice Commission FY 2016 
Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control Grant Agreement No. DC-16-023 in 
the amount of $63,656 for the period of July 1, 2015, to June 30, 2016.  
 
C.  Approval to accept Arizona Criminal Justice Commission FY 2016 
Crime Victim Compensation Grant No. VC-16-052 in the amount of 
$67,419 for the period of July 1, 2015, to June 30, 2016.  
 
D.  Approval of Amendments 1 through 4 to the Arizona Nutrition 
Network SNAP-Ed Request for Grant Application (RFGA No. ADHS15-
00004836) submitted by the Gila County Health and Emergency Services 
Division to the Arizona Department of Health Services in the amount of 
$201,572 per year for a 3-year period to be used for population health 
initiatives in the areas of food systems, active living, school health, and 
early childhood education.  
 
E.  Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement No. 061715 between Gila 
County and the Town of Hayden whereby, upon request from the Town of 
Hayden, the County will provide various types of equipment and/or 
services on occasion and when available for safety needs and/or various 
activities and events by the Town of Hayden beginning July 1, 2015, 
through June 30, 2016.  
 
F.  Approval of the following precinct committeeman appointment as 
submitted by the Gila County Republican Committee Chairman:  James 
M. Feezor - Payson #3.  
 



Page 8 of 10 
 

G.  Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by 
Pine Strawberry Fuel Reduction, Inc. to serve liquor at an event to be held 
at the Mary Ellen Randall Horse Arena located in Pine on September 11-
13, 2015.  
 
H.  Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by 
the Gila County Cattle Growers to serve liquor at an event to be held at 
the Gila County Fairgrounds located in Globe on December 5, 2015.  
 
I.  Approval of an Application for Extension of Premises/Patio Permit 
submitted by Tamara Morken to temporarily extend the premises where 
liquor is permitted to be served at THAT Brewery Rimside Grill located in 
Pine for an Oktoberfest event to be held on September 26-27, 2015, and a 
Halloween event to be held on October 31, 2015.  
 
J.  Approval of an Application for Extension of Premises/Patio Permit 
submitted by Thomas Coons to permanently extend the premises where 
liquor is permitted to be served at the Maverick Restaurant Smoked BBQ - 
Steaks & Seafood located in Pine.  
 
K.  Approval of the July 28, 2015, and August 4, 2015, Board of 
Supervisors' meeting minutes.  
 
L.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 
approved by the County Manager for the weeks of July 20, 2015 through 
July 24, 2015, and July 27, 2015 through July 31, 2015.  
 
M.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of 
August 11, 2015, and August 18, 2015.  
 
August 11, 2015 
 
$628,948.70 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 271837 
through 271936.  
 
August 18, 2015 
 
$1,740,221.58 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 271937 
through 272061.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda action items 3-A through 3-M. 
Chairman Pastor advised that he would address Agenda Items 5 and 6 prior to 
addressing Agenda Item 4. 
 



Page 9 of 10 
 

Item 5 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
Item 6 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events. No action may be taken 
on issues presented. 
 
Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on 
current events.   
 
Item 4 – EXECUTIVE SESSION ITEMS:  (The Board of Supervisors may 
vote to go into executive session on one or all of the items listed in this 
section.  No action will be taken by the Board while in executive session.)  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to consider a proposed settlement 
regarding Globe Pacific Associates v. Gila County, TX 2013-000423, a tax 
appeal filed in Arizona Tax Court.  The Board may vote to go into 
executive session in order to receive legal advice from its attorney 
regarding this case pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3) and to instruct its 
attorney regarding settlement negotiations in order to resolve the appeal 
pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(4).   
 
Chairman Pastor read aloud this agenda item and asked whether the Board 
members wanted to vote to go into executive session regarding this agenda 
item.  Supervisor Marcanti made a motion to go into executive session 
pursuant to the paragraphs as listed on this agenda item, which was seconded 
by Vice-Chairman Martin and unanimously approved by the Board.  Chairman 
Pastor recessed the regular meeting at 11:18 a.m. 
 
Chairman Pastor reconvened the regular meeting at 11:45 a.m. and he 
requested a motion from the Board on this agenda item.  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin the Board 
unanimously voted to accept the proposed settlement regarding Globe Pacific 
Associates v. Gila County, TX 2013-000423, a tax appeal filed in Arizona Tax 
Court.  
 



Page 10 of 10 
 

There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 11:46 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



   
ARF-3232     Consent Agenda Item      5. M.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  
Reporting
Period:

08/04/15, 08/11/15, 08/18/15, and 08/25/15

Submitted For: Shelley McPherson, HR and Risk Management Director 
Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Sr.,

Human Resources Department

Information
Subject
Human Resources reports for the weeks of August 4, 2015, August 11,
2015, August 18, 2015, and August 25, 2015.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of August
4, 2015, August 11, 2015, August 18, 2015, and August 25, 2015.

Attachments
HR Summary Report
08/04/15 Human Resources Report
08/11/15 Human Resources Report
08/18/15 Human Resources Report
08/25/15 Human Resources Report



Summary
Year To 
Date Jan‐15 Feb‐15 Mar‐15 Apr‐15 May‐15 Jun‐15 Jul‐15 Aug‐15 Sep‐15 Oct‐15 Nov‐15 Dec‐15

Human Resources Action Items

DEPARTURES 102 8 18 7 12 11 20 19 7

NEW HIRES REGULAR STATUS 68 9 9 8 9 2 8 13 10

NEW HIRES TEMPORARY STATUS 17 3 2 2 4 0 4 1 1

NEW VOLUNTEERS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS 38 6 4 4 4 3 3 8 6

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD 52 2 2 10 5 8 8 6 11

OTHER ACTIONS 57 11 2 1 10 5 9 10 9

REQUEST TO POST 82 7 14 5 9 5 18 13 11

  Total Transactions 416 46 51 37 53 34 70 70 55 0 0 0 0

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 4, 2015 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Jonathan Bearup – Superior Court – Deputy Court Administrator – 07/31/15 – General Fund – DOH 
04/08/09 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

2. Evelyn Guevera – Community Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – 08/10/15 – 
GEST(.60)/CAP(.40) Funds – Replacing Melvina Takala-Griffin 

3. Ian Uptain – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/10/15 – General Fund – Replacing Christy  
Buchanan  

4. Mariah Campagna – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/10/15 – General Fund – Replacing 
Michael Fucci 

5. Vincent Hilliard – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/10/15 – General Fund – Replacing Richard 
Stockwell 

6. Jasmine Gingras – Health and Emergency Services – Staff Nutritionist – 08/17/15 – 
WIC(.99)/Commodity Supplement Food Program(0.1) Funds – Replacing Samantha Jerome  

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

7. Brian Buchanan – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/28/15 – General Fund 
8. Veronica Chaidez – Clerk of Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk Technician – 08/25/15 – General Fund  
9. Kelly Jones – Public Works – Administrative Clerk Specialist – 08/08/15 – Facilities Management Fund 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

10. Sarah Chavez – Health and Emergency Services – Accounting Clerk – 07/01/15 – Various Funds – 
Change in fund codes 

 
 
 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 11, 2015 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Philip York – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 08/08/15 – General Fund – DOH 10/06/14 
 
NEW HIRES: 
 

2. Jerome Wallace – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 08/17/15 – General Fund – Replacing 
Kathleen Miranti 

3. Bret McDaniel – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 08/17/15 – General Fund – Replacing 
Anthony Dosela Jr. 

4. Kevan Ford – Community Services – From Temporary WEX Participant – To Administrative Clerk 
Senior – 08/17/15 – Various Funds – Replacing Lydia Morales 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

5. Daniel Lowe – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 2 – 08/19/15 – Adult Intensive Probation 
Supervision Fund  

6. Pamela Alvino – Treasurer’s Office – Accounting Clerk Specialist – 08/15/15 – General Fund  
7. Tiffiney Sanchez – Treasurer’s Office – Accounting Analyst – 08/15/15 – General Fund  

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

8. Robert Swinford – County Attorney’s Office – From Deputy County Attorney – To Deputy County 
Attorney Senior – 08/17/15 – From Cost of Prosecution Reimbursement Fund – To General Fund – 
Replacing Lauren Ramirez 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

9. Arthur Power IV – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician – 08/13/15 – Facilities 
Management Fund – Changing resignation date from 08/06/15 to 08/13/15 

10. Joshua Beck – Health and Emergency Services – Emergency Management and Public Health 
Emergency Preparedness Manager – 07/27/15 – From Bio Terrorism Program(.60)/General(.40) Funds – 
To Bio Terrorism Program(.30)/General(.70) Funds – Change in fund codes 

11. Nicholas Montague – Community Services – Fiscal Services Manager – 07/01/15 – Various Funds – 
Change in fund codes 

12. Gabriel Eylicio – Community Services – Housing Project Administrator – 07/01/15 – From Housing – 
To Housing(.50)/Housing Rehabilitation(.50) Funds – Change in fund codes 

13. Celena Cates – Health and Emergency Services – Executive Administrative Assistant – 08/17/15 – 
Health Service(.75)/Public Health Accreditation(.25) Funds – To Health Service(.50)/Public Health 
Accreditation(.50) Funds – Change in fund codes 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

14. County Attorney’s Office – Deputy County Attorney – Vacated by Robert Swinford 
 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 18, 2015 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. William McDaniel – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician Senior – 09/25/15 – Facilities 
Management Fund – DOH 06/09/08 

2. Anthony Martinez – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 07/27/15 – General Fund – DOH 07/27/15 
3. Briana Goss – Sheriff’s Office – Temporary Accounting Clerk Specialist – 07/29/15 – General Fund – 

DOH 07/29/15 
 
NEW HIRES: 
 

4. Cody Trotter – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/31/15 – General Fund – Replacing Joseph 
Cook 

5. Adela Valenzuela – Public Fiduciary – Public Fiduciary Finance Specialist – 08/24/15 – General Fund – 
Replacing Antonella Campos 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
 

6. Ernest Salcido – Constituent Services 2 – Temporary Laborer – 08/24/15 – Constituent Services 2 Fund 
– Replacing Tannyn Garcia 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

7. Devin Alvarez – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician – 08/23/15 – Facilities Management 
Fund 

8. Jessie Perez – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 09/15/15 – General Fund  
 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

9. Karen Yanez – From Clerk of Court – To County Attorney’s Office – From Courtroom Clerk Title IV-D 
– To Legal Secretary Senior – 08/31/15 – From General Fund – To General(.10)/A G Victim Rights 
(.90) Funds – Replacing Terry Dalton 

10. Debra Blevins – Health and Emergency Services – From Administrative Clerk Senior – To Accounting 
Analyst – 08/24/15 – From Immunization Fund – To Various Funds – Replacing Debra Blevins 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

11. Leitha Griffin – Community Services – Administrative Assistant – 07/01/15 – Various Funds – Change 
in fund codes 

12. Dana True – Community Services – Accounting Clerk Senior – 07/01/15 – Various Funds – Change in 
fund codes 

13. Malissa Buzan – Community Services – Director of Community Services – 07/01/15 – Various Funds – 
Change in fund codes 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

14. Clerk of Court – Courtroom Clerk Title IV-D – Vacated by Karen Yanez 
15. Recorder’s Office – Voter Outreach Assistant – Vacated by Louise Talahytewa 
16. Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk – Vacated by Shealene Stidham 
17. Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk Senior – Vacated by Shealene Stidham 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 18, 2015 
PAGE 2 OF 2 

 
18. Assessor’s Office – Mapping Technician – Vacated by Sue Pontel 
19. Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser 1 – New position  
20. Finance – Buyer – Vacated by Joni Erwin 

 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 25, 2015 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Joni Erwin – Finance – Buyer – 08/22/15 – General Fund – DOH 01/21/14 
2. Amanda Olvera – Health and Emergency Services – Animal Care Worker – 08/28/15 – Rabies Control 

Fund – DOH 06/02/14 
 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

3. Calley Anderson – County Attorney’s Office – Deputy County Attorney – 09/02/15 – General Fund 
4. Micah Wheeler – Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser I – 08/23/15 – General Fund 
5. Jessica Lopez – Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser I – 09/09/15 – General Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

6. Joseph Williams – Assessor’s Office – From Property Appraiser II – To Chief Deputy Assessor – 
08/31/15 – General Fund – Replacing Lisa Romo 

7. Erika Pisano – Probation – From Deputy Probation Officer II – To Deputy Probation Officer IV – 
08/24/15 – From General Fund – To JPSF (.78)/ Weekend Res Center (.22) Funds – Replacing Patrice 
Goodman 

8. Marcos Diaz – Probation – From Surveillance Officer – To Deputy Probation Officer I – 08/24/15 – 
From General(.50)/Adult Probation Service Fees(.50) Funds – To General Fund – Replacing Erika 
Pisano  

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

9. Health and Emergency Services – Animal Care Worker – Vacated by Amanda Olvera  
10. Health and Emergency Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – Vacated by Debra Blevins 
11. Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser I – Vacated by Joseph Williams  

 



   
ARF-3320     Consent Agenda Item      5. N.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  
Reporting
Period:

August 7, 2015; and August 14, 2015

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division

Information
Subject
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks
Ending 8-7-15; and 8-14-15.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved
by the County Manager for the weeks of August 3, 2015, through August
7, 2015; and August 10, 2015 through August 14, 2015.

Attachments
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under 50,000 for
Weeks Ending 8-7-15 and 8-14-15
Service Contract Agreement CNT003055-07-Multicard
Amendment No. 3-Lori Martinez
Authorization to utilize Maricopa County contract-Norment Security
Amendment No. 1-Holyoak's Equipment Repair
Amendment No. 2-North Mechanical
Amendment No. 1-US Imaging
Service Agreement No. 080515-Kino Floors
Amendment No. 4-Payson Place
Service Agreement No. 080415-Four Corners Concrete
Authorization to increase CCS Presentation Systems estimated
amount



  
Page 1 

 
  

COUNTY MANAGER APPROVED CONTRACTS UNDER $50,000 
 
 
August 03, 2015 thru August 07, 2015 

 

Number/Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

CNT003055-07 
Multicard 

 

 
Service Contract 

Agreement CNT00305-07 
 

 

 
$1,580.00 

 
8-15-15 to 8-14-16 

 
8-4-15 

 
Expires 

 
Renewal for Maintenance Agreement on 
the two Sheriff’s Office fingerprint 
scanners, card printers and related 
equipment. Includes one preventative 
maintenance service per year per card 
printer and all parts, labor, travel and 
mileage. Consumables not included.  
 

 
080913-1 

 Lori Martinez,  
PhD, LPC, LISAC, NCC 

 

 
Amendment No. 3 to 
Professional Services 

Agreement No. 080913-1 
HIV Care and Services 

 

 

 
Decrease 
original 
contract 

amount of 
$4,000 by 

$1,500 for a 
new total 
contract 

amount of 
$2,500 

 

 
4-1-15 to 3-31-16 

 
8-4-15 

 
Expires 

 
Due to budget adjustments being made 
by the Health Department at this time, 
Amendment No. 3 will serve to decrease 
the contract amount by $1,500.00 for a 
new contract amount of $2,500.00.  
Contractor will provide HIV Care and 
Services for the Payson area. 
  
 

 
13024S 

Norment Security 
Group 

 

 
Authorization to utilize 

Maricopa County Contract 
with Norment Security 

Group for a  
Maintenance Contract 

 

 

 
$5,000.00 if 

needed and as 
service is 
requested 

 

 
7-27-15 to 6-30-16 

 
8-4-15 

 
Expires 

 
The Sheriff’s Office wishes to have a 
Maintenance Agreement in place for any 
repair on the Cameras and Recording 
System in the Jail that may be required. 
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  
Page 2 

 
  

August 03, 2015 thru August 07, 2015 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

012815 
Holyoak’s Equipment 

Repair & Welding 

 

 
Amendment No. 1 to 

Service Agreement No. 
012815 

 

 

 
Increase 
original 
contract 

amount of 
$4,450 by 

$6,500 for a 
new total 
contract 

amount of 
$10,950 

 

 
3-18-15 to 3-17-16 

 
8-4-15 

 
Expires 

 
The Public Works Department in Payson 
wishes to increase the contract amount 
to Holyoak’s Equipment Repair & 
Welding contract to cover any additional 
work performed in FY 2015-2016.   
  
 

 
 102414-1 

North Mechanical LLC  

 
Amendment No. 2 to 

Service Agreement No. 
102414-1 

HVAC Repair & 
Maintenance 

 

 
Increase 
contract 

amount of 
$4,590.32 by 
$3,000 for a 

new total 
contract 

amount of 
$7,590.32 

 

 
11-19-14 to 11-18-15 

 
8-4-15 

 
Option to renew for two 

additional one year 
periods 

 
Facilities wishes to increase the contract 
amount to cover costs of replacing parts 
and making repairs to various HVAC 
units, when the need arises.  

 
 
 
 
August 10, 2015 thru August 14, 2015 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

030413-1 
US Imaging 

 

 
Amendment No. 1 to 
Professional Services 

Contract No. 030413-1 
Recorder’s Office Imaging 

 

 
Not to exceed 

$14,512.20 
 

 
03-13-15 to 03-13-16 

 
8-12-15 

 
Option to renew for one 

additional one year 
period 

 
US Imaging provides document 
managing to the County Recorder’s Office 
by microfiche. 
 

 
 
 
 



  
Page 3 

 
  

August 10, 2015 thru August 14, 2015 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

080515 
Kino Floors 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

080515 
Replace Flooring-Justice 

Court Vault 
Globe Justice Court 

 

 
Not to exceed 

$457.60 
 

 
08-12-15 to 08-26-16 

 
8-12-15 

 
Expires 

 
Replacement flooring is needed in the 
Justice Court Vault. 
 

 
Payson Place, LLC 

 

 
Amendment No. 4 to Lease 

Agreement 
Gila County and Payson 

Place 

 

 
$4,925.76 

 

 
09-1-15 to 03-31-16 

 
8-12-15 

 
Option to renew 

annually 

 
Extension to lease agreement for County 
Attorney’s office in Payson, AZ.  Term 
will run through March 31, 2016.  
 

 
080415 

Four Corners Concrete 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

080415 
Concrete Sidewalk 

Replacement-Trip Hazard 
Payson Health & 

Environmental Building 

 

 
$5,424.00 

 

 
08-12-15 to 08-30-15 

 
8-12-15 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor to remove and replace 15sq. 
ft. area of concrete and 528 sq. ft. area of 
asphalt to correct a trip hazard area that 
has arisen in the transition from the 
parking area to the sidewalk area of the 
south side of the Health & Environmental 
Building in Payson.  
 

 
ADSPO12-032703 
CCS Presentation 

 

 
Authorization to utilize 
State Contract with CCS 
Presentation to increase 

estimated amount of repair 

 

 
Increase 

estimated 
amount of 
$405.80 by 
$399.76 to 

cover actual 
cost of repair 
in the amount 

of $805.56 
 

 
07-08-15 to 08-30-15 

 
8-12-15 

 
Expires 

 
The SMART board in the Gila County 
Emergency Operations Center is not 
communicating with the station that is 
installed to operate it.  The County 
approved an earlier estimate for a 
service call and repairs.  The initial 
estimate was in the amount of $405.80.  
Actual costs to get the system running 
came in at $805.56.  
 

 
 






































































	Agenda
	 Item 2.A. - ES&S Election Equipment Demonstration
	Att1_Electronic Pollbook Information
	Att2_Key Features and Benefits
	 Item 3.A. - Resolution No. 15-09-01 Naming an Unnamed Road to be Called W. Dalmolin Heights
	Att1_Resolution No. 15-09-01
	Att2_PUBLIC NOTICE-W Dalmolin Heights
	Att3_Signed Petition Dalmolin Heights
	Att4_Resident Notification Dalmolin Heights
	Att5_Map
	 Item 3.B. - Resolution No. 15-09-02 Naming an Unnamed Road to be Called N. Gambel Drive
	Att1_Resolution No. 15-09-02
	Att2_Public Notice
	Att3_Letter to Resident
	Att4_Petition
	 Item 3.C. - Resolution No. 15-09-03 Naming an Unnamed Road to be Called E. Rim Estates Trail
	Att1_Resolution No. 15-09-03
	Att2_Public Notice
	Att3_Second Letter - Notification
	Att4_First Letter to Residents
	Att5_Map
	 Item 3.D. - Community Development Block Grant Application Federal FY 2015
	Att1_CDBG App2015
	Att2_Housing Services Guidelines 2015
	Att3_CDBG Public Hearing Notice 2015
	Att4_CDBG Disclosure Report 2015
	 Item 3.E. - Sheila's Creekside Steakhouse and Tavern Liquor License Applications
	Att1_Series No. 7 Beer and Wine Liquor License  Application
	Att2_Series No. 12 Restaurant Liquor License Application
	Att3_Sheriff's Office Affidavits of Posting
	Att4_Interoffice Memos (3)
	Att5_Local Governing Body Recommendations
	 Item 4.A. - Resolution No. 15-09-05 Approving Amended Bylaws of the Eastern Arizona Counties Organization
	Att1_Resolution No. 15-09-05
	Att2_ECO Amended Bylaws 2015
	Att3_ECO Bylaws-1993
	 Item 4.B. - Approval of the amended Intergovernmental Agreement and Bylaws for the Eastern Arizona Counties Organization 
	Att1_ECO Amended IGA and Bylaws 2015
	Att2_ECO original IGA and Bylaws 1993
	 Item 4.C. - Resolution No. 15-09-04 Re PILT Funding for FY 2016
	Att1_Resolution No. 15-09-04
	 Item 4.D. - FY 15_16 Library Service Agreements
	Att1_Globe
	Att2_Hayden
	Att3_Isabelle Hune-Pine
	Att4_Miami
	Att5_Payson
	Att6_San Carlos
	Att7_Tonto Basin
	Att8_Young
	Att9_Approval as to Form
	 Item 4.E. - State Grants-in-Aid Application 2016 for the Gila County Library District
	Att1_SGIA 2016 Application
	Att2_SGIA 2016 Certification
	Att3_Award Letter SGIA 2016
	Att4_SGIA FAQs
	State Grants-in-Aid (SGIA)
	What is SGIA?
	Who Qualifies?
	How Can Funds Be Used?


	Att5_Resource Attainment Policy State Library
	 Item 4.F. - Approve Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 011312-1 Primary Banking Service with JPMorgan Chase NA
	Att1_Amendment No. 1-JPMorgan Chase Bank
	Att2_Contract 011312-1
	Att3_Contract continued
	Att4_Approval as to Form
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	 Item 4.G. - Award Contract No. 032315-1 for the Copper Administration Building Interior Renovation Project
	Att1_Approval as to Form
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	Att2_Contract No. 032315-1-SD Crane Builders
	Att3_Request to Advertise
	Att4_GENERAL PROVISIONS GLOBE COPPER ADMIN BLDG RENOVATION
	Att5_Technical Specifications-IFB No. 032315-1
	Att6_Drawings-IFB No. 032315-1
	Att7_Addenda
	Att8_As Read Bid Results
	Att9_Plan Holder List
	Att10_Pre-Bid Sign In Sheet
	Att11_Bid Opening Sign in Sheet
	Att12_SD Crane Builders
	Att13_Valwest Construction
	Att14_JMW Construction
	Att15_FCI Constructors, Inc.
	Att16_Oddonetto Construction
	Att17_Sellers and Sons
	Att18_Bayley Construction
	 Item 5.A. - Amendment No. 1 to an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Arizona Department of Economic Security
	Att1_IGA Explanation
	Att2_Amendment 1 to ADES15-089113
	Att3_Contract ADES15-089113
	Att4_Contract ADES15-089113 cont.
	 Item 5.B. - Approval to Extend the Term of Service with Blackstone Security Services, Inc.
	Att1_Approval as to Form
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	Att2_Amendment No. 1-Blackstone Security
	Att3_Contract Agreement Form with Blackstone Security Services
	 Item 5.C. - Amendment No. 4 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813-Medical Examiner Services for Gila County
	Att1_Amendment No. 4 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062831
	Att2_Amendment No. 3 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062831
	Att3_Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062831
	Att4_Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062831
	Att5_Professional Services Agreement No. 062831-Medical Examiner Services with Dr. Fischione
	Att6_Approval as to Form
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	 Item 5.D. - Sidewinders Tavern & Grill Application for a Temporary Extension of Premises_Patio Permit
	Att1_Sidewinders Application Temp. Ext. Patio
	Att2_Interoffice Memo (Approved)
	 Item 5.E. - Gila County Fair Special Event Liquor License Application
	Att1_GC Fair, Inc. Special Event Liquor License Application
	 Item 5.F. - July 2015
	Att1_Globe Regional Justice Court Monthly Report
	 Item 5.G. - July 2015
	Att1_July 2015
	payson JP fy15-16 July.pdf
	JP0404 July 2015

	 Item 5.H. - July 2015
	Att1_Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for July 2015
	 Item 5.I. - July 2015 and September 2014
	Att1_July 2015
	Att2_September 2014
	 Item 5.J. - July 2015
	Att1_Clerk of Superior Court Report for July 2015
	 Item 5.K. - July 2015
	Att1_Recorder's Office Monthly Report for July 2015
	 Item 5.L. - August 17, 2015
	Att1_BOS 08-17-15 Meeting Minutes
	 Item 5.M. - 08_04_15, 08_11_15, 08_18_15, and 08_25_15
	Att1_HR Summary Report
	Att2_08_04_15 Human Resources Report
	Att3_08_11_15 Human Resources Report
	Att4_08_18_15 Human Resources Report
	Att5_08_25_15 Human Resources Report
	 Item 5.N. - August 7, 2015_ and August 14, 2015
	Att1_Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under 50,000 for Weeks Ending 8-7-15 and 8-14-15
	Att2_Service Contract Agreement CNT003055-07-Multicard
	Att3_Amendment No. 3-Lori Martinez
	Att4ization to utilize Maricopa County contract-Norment Security
	Att5_Amendment No. 1-Holyoak's Equipment Repair
	Att6_Amendment No. 2-North Mechanical
	Att7_Amendment No. 1-US Imaging
	Att8_Service Agreement No. 080515-Kino Floors
	Att9_Amendment No. 4-Payson Place
	Att10_Service Agreement No. 080415-Four Corners Concrete
	Att11ization to increase CCS Presentation Systems estimated amount

